Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

events, contingent additional consideration of $5
million, which was recorded as goodwill at the
acquisition date. Talon manages assets of wealthy
families and institutions. Goodwill related to this
acquisition, including the contingent additional
consideration, is included in our Investment
Management business and totaled $10 million and is
deductible for tax purposes. Customer relationship
intangible assets related to this acquisition are
included in owr Investment Management business,
with a life of 20 years, and totaled $6 million. The
impact of this acquisition was not material to eamings
per share in 2011.

On Nov. 30, 2011, BNY Mellon acquired Penson
Financial Services Australia Pty Lid (“Penson™), a
clearing firm located in Australia, in a $33 million
share purchase transaction. Goodwill related to this
acquisition is included in our Investment Services
business and totaled $10 million and is non-tax
deductible. Customer relationship intangible assets
related to this acquisition are included in our
Investment Services business, with a life of nine
years, and totaled $6 million. The impact of this
acquisition was not material to carnings per share in
2011,

Dispositions tn 2011

On Dec. 31, 2011, BNY Mellon sold the Shareowner
Services business. The sales price of $550 million
resulted in a pre-tax gain of $98 million. We recorded
an immaterial after-tax gain primarily due to the
write-off of non-tax. deductible goodwill associated
with the business. ixcluding the gain on the sale, the
Shareowner Services business contributed $273
million of revenue and $21 million of pre-tax ncome
in 2011.

Acquisitions in 2010

On July 1, 2010, we acquired GIS for cash of $§2.3
billion, GIS provides a comprehensive suite of
products which includes subaccounting, fund
accounting/administration, custody, managed account
services and alternative investment services. Assets
acquired totaled approximately $590 million.
Liabilities assumed totaled approximately $250
million. Goodwill related to this acquisition totaled
$1.505 million, of which $1,256 million is tax
deductible and $249 million is non-tax deductible.
Customer contract intangible assets related to this
acquisition totaled $477 million with lives ranging
from ten years to 20 years.
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On Aug. 2, 2010, we acquired BAS for cash of $370
million. This transaction included the purchase of
Prankfurter Service Kapitalanlage-——Gesellschaft mbH
(“FSKAG™), a wholly-owned fuad administzation
affiliate. The combined business offers a full range of
tailored solutions for invesiment companies, financial
institutions and institutional investors in Germany.
Assets acquired totaled approximately $3.6 billion and
primarily consisted of securities of approximately
$2.6 billion. Liabilities assumed totaled approximately
$3.4 billion and included deposits of $2.3 billion.
Goodwill related to this acquisition of $272 million is
tax deductible. Customer contract intangible assets
related to this acquisition totaled $40 million with a
life of ten years.

On Sept. 1, 2010, we acquired 1(3) Advisors of
Toronto, an independent wealth advisory company,
for cash of $21.1 million. Goodwill related to this
acquisition totaled $8 million and is non-lax
deductible. Customer relationship intangible assets
related to this acquisition totaled $10 million with &
life. of 33 years.

Divestitures in 2010

On Jan, 15, 2010, BNY Mellon sold MUNI, our
national bank subsidiary located in Flerida, The
results for MUNB were classified as discontinued
operations. See Note 4 for additional information on
the MUNB transaction.

Acquisitions in 2009

In November 2009, we acquired Insight Investment
Management Limited (“Insight’™) for $377 million of
cash and stock. Goodwill related to this acquisition is
non-tax deductible and totaled $202 million.
Intangible assets (primarily customer contracts)
related to the transaction, with a life up to 11 years,
totaled $111 million.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Mote 4—Discontinued operations

On Jan. 15, 2010, BNY Mellon sold MUNB, our
former national bank subsidiary located in Florida.
We applied discontinued operations accounting o this
business. Summarized financial information for
discontinued operations is as follows:

Discontinned operations

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Fee and other revenie $- $ - 8 7
Net interest revenue - 9 59
Provision for loan losses - 191
Nel interest revenue after
provision for loun losses - 9 (132)
Noninterest expense:;
Staff - 4 37
Professional, legal and other
purchased services - 4 4
Net oceupancy - 1 5
Othex - 3 16
Goodwill impairment - - 50
‘Total noninterest. expetse - 12 112
Tucome (Joss) from operations - %) (237)
Logs on assels held for sale - (106) (184)
1.0ss on sale of MUNB - 43} -
Provision (benefit) for incone taxes - (44 (151)
Net mncome (foss) from
discontinned operations §~ $ €66)  $270)
Discontinued operations assets and liabilities
Dec. 31,
(in millions) 2011 2010
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses $- 3183
Deferred taxes - 90
Qiher assets - 3
Assets of discontinned operations $- 8278
Liabilities of discontinued operations 8- $ -

Certain loans were not sold as part of the MUNB
{ransaction and are held-for-sale. Bffective Jan. 1,
2011, we reclassified the remaining assets of
discontinued operations of $278 million to continuing
operations. Loans of $114 million at Dec. 31, 2011,
are inclided in other assets on the balance sheet.
These loans are recorded at the lower of cost or
market. [n 2011, we recorded income of $100 miflion
primazily related to paydowns and valuation changes
on loans held-for-sale.

Tnformation for 2010 and 2009 included in these
Financial Statements and Notes reflects continiing
operations, unless otherwise noted.

Note 5--Securities

The following tables present the amortized cost, the
gross unrealized gains and losses and the fair valve of
securities at Dec, 31, 2011 and 2010,

Securifies nt Gross
Dec. 31,2011 . unreatized .
Amotiized ———— Fair
(in miliions) cost Cains Losses  value
Available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury 516,814 $ 514 § 2 $17.326
U.S. Government agencies 932 26 - 958
State and political
subdivisions 2,724 62 47 2739
Agency RMBS 26,232 575 11 26,796
Alti-A RMBS 306 9 42 273
Pritne RMBS 916 i 102 813
Subprime RMBS 606 2 190 418
Other RMBS 1,133 - 230 903
Commercial MBS 3,327 89 T 3339
Asset-hacked CLOs 1,480 1 37 1.444
Other assel-backed
socoriiies 527 8 3 532
Foreign covered honds 2,410 18 3 2425
Ofher debi securities 16,816 339 38 16.317(e)
Equity securities 26 4 - 30
Money market fonds 973 - - 973
Alt-A RMBS (b) 1,790 157 68 1,879
Pricoe RMBS (b)) 1,000 106 21 LTS
Subprime RMBS (5 122 6 3 128
Total securities
available-for-sale 71,424 1,917 874 78AGT
Heldto-maturity:
U.8. Treasury 813 53 - 866
State anxl political
subdivisions 100 3 - 103
Agency RMBS 658 39 - 697
Alt-A RMBS 153 4 19 138
Prime RMBS 121 - 10 111
Subprime RMBS 28 - 3 25
Other RMBS 1,617 47 93 1571
Commercial MBS 28 “ 2 6
Other securities 3 - - 3
Total securiiies
held-tognaturity 3,523 146 127 3,340
Total sceuriiies $80,945 $2,063 $1,001 $82,007

(a) Includes $13.1 billion, ot foiy value, of government-
sponsored and guaraniced entities, and sovereign debt.

(by Previousty included in the Grantor Trust. The Grantor Trust
was disselved in 2011,
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Noies to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Securities at Gross
Dec. 31,2010 Amortized urealized Pait
{in millionsi cost Gaine Logses  value
Availahle-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury $12,650 § 97 § 138 §12,609
1.8, Government agencies 1,007 2 4 1,008
State and political
subdivisions 559 4 55 508
Agency RMBS 16,383 387 4% 19727
All-A RMBS 475 34 29 470
Prime RMBS 1,305 8 86 1,227
Subprirne RMBS 606 - 188 508
Other RMBS 1,665 1 35 1331
Comnercial MBS 2,650 89 100 2,639
Asset-backed CLOs 263 - 14 249
Other asset-backed
secnrities 532 9 2 539
Foreign covered bonds 2,884 - 16 2,368
Other debt securities 11,800 148 57 11,891
Equity securities 36 11 a7
Money market funds 2,538 . - 2,538
Alt-A RMBS (b) 2,164 364 15 2513
Prime RMBS (b} 1,626 205 6 1,825
Subprime RMBS (5) 128 20 158
Toral securities
available-for-sale 62,361 1,330 1008 62652
Held-to-maturity:
State and political
subdivisions 119 2 121
Agency RMBS 397 33 - 430
Alr-A RMBS 215 5 19 201
Prime RMBS 149 2 S 146
Subprime RMBS 28 - 3 25
Other RMBS 2,709 69 81 2,697
Commercial MI3S 34 - 1 33
Oiher securilies 4 - - 4
Total secuorities
held-to-matugity 3,655 111 109 3,657
Total securities $66,016 $1,500 $1.207 866,209

(@) Includes $11.0 billion, at fuir value, of government-
sponsored and guaranteed entitics, and severeign debt.
(b) Previousty included in the Grantor Trust.

106 BNY Mellon

fa)

Nat securities gains (losses)

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Realized gross gaina $183 §$48 % 130
Realized gross losses (56) (3) (1,648)
Recognized gross impainments (79) (16) (3,851}
Total net securities gains (fosses) $ 48 $ 27 35,3691

Temporarily impaired securities

At Dec. 31, 2011, substantially all of the wnrealized
Josses on the investment securities portfolio were
attributable to credit spreads widening since purchase,
and interest rate movements, We do ot intend to sell
these securities and it is not mote likely than not that

we will have to sell.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables show the aggregate related fair value of investments with a continuous unrealized loss
position for less than 12 months and those that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position. for 12 months or
more.

Temporarily impaired securities at Dec. 31,2011 Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair  Unrealized Pair  Unrealized Pair  Unrealized
(in millions) value losses value losses value losses
Available-for-sale:
U.8. Treasory $ 118 $ 2 & - $ - §& 118 $ 2
State and political subdivisions 4383 2 157 45 640 47
Agency RMBS 3.844 10 140 1 3,984 11
Alt-A RMBS 132 16 69 26 201 42
Prime RMBS 324 28 447 i i 102
Subprime RMBS - - 400 199 400 190
Other RMBS 5 4 895 226 900 230
Commercial MBS 340 2 495 75 835 i
Asset-Dacked CLOs 1,143 26 211 11 1,354 37
Other assel-backed securities 60 1 18 2 78 3
Foreign covered bonds 368 1 406 2 774 3
Other debt secvrities 2,867 12 54 a6 2,921 38
Alt-A RMBS (o) 898 83 29 15 624 68
Prime RMEBS (a) 437 21 - - 437 21
Subprime RMBS (a} 50 3 - - 50 3
Total securities available-for-sale $10.766 $178  $3,321 $696  $14,087 $ 874
Held-to-maturity:
All-5 RMBS $ 69 $ 3 $ 4 $16 $ 111 $ 19
Prime RMBS - - 56 10 56 10
Subprime RMBS - - 25 3 25 3
Othey RMBS 107 2 873 91 680 93
Commercial MBS - - 26 2 26 2
Total securities held-to-matuity $ 176 $ 8§ 8§ 722 $122 & 808 $ 12
Total tepaporarily impaired securities $10,942, $183  $4.043 4818  $14,985 $1,001.
{ap  Previcusly included in the Grenior Trust, The Grantor Triest was dissolved in 2011
Temporarily impaired securities al Dec, 31,2010 Less than 12 months 12 months or Inoxe Total
Fair  Uwrealized Faiv  Unrealized Fair  Unrealized
{in millions) value losses value losses valug losses
Available-for-sale:
1.8, Treasory 3 6,519 $i38 % - $ - $6519 $ 138
11.8. Covernment agencies 189 4 - . 489 2.
State and political subdivisions 210 30 122 16 332 55
Agency RMBS 5,079 a2 200 1 5,245 A%
Alt-A RMBS 55 3 104 36 159 39
Prime RMBS 315 13 739 73 1,034 86
Subprime RMBS 3 - 484 188 487 18%
Other RMBS 49 17 1,275 318 1,324 B
Commercial MBS 28 1 536 99 564 100
Asset-backed CLOs - - 249 14 249 14
Other asset-backed securities 1 - 32 2 33 2
Foreign covered bonds 2,553 16 - - 2,553 16
Other dabt securities 1.063 37 61 20 1,129 57
Alt-A RMBS (a) 196 15 - : 196 13
Prime RMBS (e} 139 & - - 139 6
Total securities available-for-sale: 316,704 $331  $3,808 $767 320512 $1,098
Held-to-maturity:
Ali-& RMBS $ 18 $ - % 108 $ 19 F 120 5019
Prime RMBS - - 73 5 75 s
Subprine RMBS . - 25 3 25 3
Other RMBS 3135 5 614 76 G29 81
Conunercial MBS - - 33 1 33 1
Total securities held-to-malurity $ 333 $ 5 $ 853 $104 $ 1,186 4 109
Total temporaiily impaired securitics $17,037 $336 34,661 3871 $21,698 $1,207

(a)  Previously incliuded in the Grantor Triest.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateiments (continued)

The following table shows the maturity distribution by carrying amount and yield (on a tax equivalent hasis) of
our investment securities portfolio at Dec. 31, 201 1.

Investment securities portfolio Mortgage/
.S State and Other bonds, agset-backesd and
s, Governmenit political notes and aquity
Treasury agency suhdivisions debentures securities

(dollars in willions) Amouni Yield (a) Amonnt Yield (@) Amounl Yield (2) Amount Yiwld (a) Amouni Yield (@) Total
Secnrities available-for-sale:
One year or less $ 1,165 096% § - B % 60 1.44% F 5005 147% 3 - C -9 $ 6,230
Qver 1 through 5 vears 11,618 1.03 958 1.63 1,155 193 11,547 140 - - 25,278
Qvey 5 through 10 years 2,313 2.83 - - 1,063 387 731 282 - - 4,107
Over 10 years 2230 311 - - 161 1.80 1459 3.66 - - 4,150
Morlgage-backed securities - - - - - . B - 35,723 445 38,723
Asset-backed securities - - - - . - - - 1,976 191 1,976
Equity securities (b) - - - - - - - - 1,003 001 1,003

Total $17,326  1.53% 3958 1.630% $2,739  3.16% $13,742 165% $38,702  4.20% $78.467
Securities held-to-maturity:
One yeat oy less $ - % % - % 8 - G0 8 3 % $ - Ly § 3
Over 1 through 5 years 412 171 - - 1 687 - . - - 414
Over § through 10 years 400 262 - - 32 6606 - - - - 432
Over 10 years - - - - 67 658 - - - - &7
Mortgage-backed securities - - - - - - - - 2,605 268 2,608

Total $ 813 217% § O % 100 6.60% § 3 o % 2,605 2.68% $ 3,521

(@) Yields are based upon the amortized cost of securities.
(b} Includes money market funds.

Other-than-temporary impairment in order to determine the projected collateral loss. We
also evaluate the current credit enhancement
underlying the bond to determine the impact on cash
flows. If we determine that a given security will be
subject to a write-down or loss, we record the
expected credit loss as a charge to earnings.

We routinely conduct periodic reviews of all
securities using economic models to identify and
evaluate each investment security to determine
whether OTTT has occurred. Various inputs to the
economic models are used to determine if an

untealized loss on securities is other-than-temporary. [n addition, we have estimated the expected loss by
For example, the most significant inputs related to taking into account observed performance ol the
non-agency RMBS are: underlying securities, industry studies, market

forecasts, as well as our view of the economic outlook
e Default rate—the number of mortgage loans affecting collateral
expected to go into default over the life of the

transaction, which is driven by the roll rate of The table below shows the projected weighted-
loans in each performance bucket that will average defauli rates and loss severities for the 2007,
ultimately migrate to default; and 2006 and late 2005 non-agency RMBS at Dec. 31,

s  Severity—the loss expected to be realized when 2011 and 2010.

a loan defaults.

Projected weighted-average default rates and severities
Dec. 31,2011 Dec. 31,2010
Default Rate Severity Default Rale Severity

To determine if an unrealized Joss is other-than-
remporary, we. project total estimated defaults of the

underlying assets (mortgages) and multiply that Alt-A, 449, 57% 424 A9
calculated amount by an estimate of realizable value Subprine 63% 73 % 68% 63%
upon sale of these assets in the marketplace ( severity) Prime 25% 43% 20% 42%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The following table provides pre-tax net securities
gains (losses) by type.

Nel securities gains (losses)

{in millions) 2011 2010 2009
U.8. Treasury $77  $15 %
Agency RMBS 8 15 -
Alt-A RMES {36) (13} (3,113)
Prime RMBS3 §8) - (1,008)
Subprine RMBS (21) 4 (322)
Huropeau floating rate notes {39) {3y {269)
Sovereign debt 36 -
Home equity lines of credit - - (205)
Commercial MBS - - (89)
Grantor Trost - - (39)
Credit cards - - (26)
ABS CDOs - - (23)
Other 24 17 (275)

~

Total net secorities gains (losses) $ 48 $ 27 $(5,369)

The following table reflects investment securities
credit losses recorded in earnings. The beginning
balance represents the credit loss component for which
OTTI occurred on debt securities in prior periods. The
additions represent the first time a debt security was
credit impaired or when subsequent credit impairments
have occurred, The deductions represent credit logses
on securities that have been sold, are required to be
sold or it is our intention to sell.

Debt securities credit loss roll forward

(in millions) 2011 2010

Beginning balance as of Jau. 1 182 3244
Add: Tnifial OTTI credit losses 61 10
$ubsequent Q1T credit losses 18 6
Less: Realized losses for securities sold /
consolidated 8 78
Jinding balance as of Dec, 31 253 $182

At Dec. 31, 2011, assets amounting to $77.0 billion
were pledged primarily for potential borrowing at the
Federal Reserve Discount Window. The significant
components of pledged assets were as foltows: $68.2
billion of securities, $4.9 billion of interest-bearing
deposits with banks and $3.9 billion of loans. Also
included in these pledged assets was securifies
available-for-sale of $1.6 billion which were pledged
as collateral for actual borrowings. The lenders in
these borrowings have the right to repledge or sell
these securities, We obtain securities under yesale,
securitics borrowed and custody agreements on teims
which permit us to repledge or resell the securities 1o
others. As of Dec, 31, 2011, the market value of the
securitics received that can be sold or repledged was
$14.0 billion. We routinely repledge or lend these
securities to third parties. As of Dec. 31, 2011, the
market value of collateral repledged and sold was $2.5
billion.

Note 6—Loans and asset quality
Loans
The table below provides the details of our loan

distribution and industry concentrations of credit risk
at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010:

Loans Dec. 31,
(in millioris) 2011 2010 {a)
Yomestic:
Financial institutions $ 4606 3 4,630
Commercial 752 1,250
Wealth management loans and
mortgages 7342 6,506
Comimercial real estate 1,449 1,592
Lease financings (&) 1,558 1,605
Other residential mortgages 1,923 2079
Overdiafts 2,058 4,524
Other 623 771
Margin loans 12,760 6,810
Total domestic 33,971 29,767
Foreign:
FHinancial ipstitutions 6,538 4,626
Commercial 528 345
Iease financings (H) 1,051 1,545
Other (primarily overdrafls) 1,891 1,525
Total foreign 10,008 8,041
Total loans $43,079  §37.808

(a) Presented on a continuing eperations basis.

(b} Net of uneamed incore on domestic and foreign lease
financings of $1.343 million at Dec. 31, 2011 and $2,036
miliion at Dec. 31, 2010,

In the ordinary course of business, we and our
banking subsidiaries have made loans at prevailing
interest rates and texms to our directors and executive
officers and to entities in which certain of our
directors have an ownership interest ot divect or
indirect subsidiaries of such eutities. The aggregate
amount of these loans was $3 million at both Dec. 31,
2011 and Dec. 31, 2010, and $4 million at Dec. 31,
2000. These loans are primarily extensions of credit
under revolving lines of credit established for such
entities.

Our loan portfolio is comprised of three portfolio
segments: commercial, lease financing and mortgages.
We manage our portfolio at the class level which is
comprised of six classes of financing receivables:
commercial, commercial real estate, financial
institutions, lease financings, wealth management
loans and mortgages, and other residential mortgages.
The following tables are presented for gach class of
financing receivable, and provide additional
information about our credit risks and the adequacy of
our allowance for credit Josses.

RFUN_EX 25,090003 50 100
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Allowance fov cvedit losses

Transactions in the allowance for credit losses are summarized as follows:

Allowance for eredit losses activity for the year ended Dec. 31, 2011 Wealth
management Other
Commercial  Financial Lease  loans and residential Al
{in miliions) Commercial | real estale instiiutions financing  mortgages mortgages Otber {a)  Foreign () Total
Beginning balimece $ 93 § 40 $ 11§ 9 § 41 $ 235 3 1 $§ 60 % 571
Charge-offs (&) ) ® - m (563 - (33 (83
Recoveries 3 - 2 - - 3 - - 3
Net (charge-offs)
recoveries 3) ) %) . n {53) - &) 73
Provision 1 (2) 38 (243 (1) (26) 1) 6 1
Finding balance $ o1 $ 34 § 63 & 866 5 29 8 15 8 - 3 58 $ 497
Altowance for:
Loans logses $ 33 $ 24 $ 41 3 66 $ 25 § 156 $ - $ 51§ 3
Unfuanded commitments 58 10 22 - 6 - - 7 103
Individnally evaluated for
fmpairment:
l.oan halance $ 2 $ 38 $ 24 % - $ 30 9§ - % - $ 10 % 128
Allowance for Joan losses 9 7 7 - 5 - - 4 32
Collectivel y evaluated for
impairnent:
Loan batance. %726 $1,411 $4,582  $1,558 $7.312  $1,923 $16,341 (a)  $9,998 (b) 343,851
Allowance for loan losses 24 17 34 66 18 156 - 47 362
(@) Includes $2,958 millian of domestic everdrafts, $12.760 million af margin loans and $623 wmillion of other loans at Dec. 31, 2011,
(b) Includes $1,891 million of other foreign loans (primarily overdrafts) at Dec. 31, 2011.
Allowance for credit Josses activity for the year ended Dec. 31, 2010 Wealth
management Other
Comrnercial  Financial Lease  loans and residential All
(in millions) Commercial  real estate jnstitations Sinancing  rmorigages mortgages Other (a) Yoreign (b) Total
Beginning balance 3 153 $ 45 5 76 3 80 § 58 § 164 § - § 50 % o2
Charge-offs (5) () 2% . 4 {46) - - (88)
Recoveries 15 1 2 - - 2 - - 20
Net charge-offs 10 [ 23 - 4) (44) - - (GR)
Provision (72) 2 (42) 10 {13) 115 1 10 11
$nding balance $ 93 $ 40 $ 11 % 90 g 41 $ 235 % 1 $ 60 0§ 571
Allowance for:
1.oans losses $ 51 $ 28 $ 1 % 90 $ 38 § 235 % 1 $ 54 4 498
Unfunded comumitments 42 12 10 - 3 - - 6 73
Individnally evaluated for
nnpatiment:
l.oan halance $ 32 $ 44 $ 4 % - $ 33 8§ -8 - $ 7 % 140
Allowance for loan losses 10 9 - - S - 2 26
Collestivel y evalnated for
itnpairment;
Loan balance $1,218 $1,54%8 $4,626  $1,605 $6453  $2,079 $12,105(a)  $8.034 (b) $37,668
Allowance for Joan tosses 41 19 ) 90 33 235 ) 52 472

(g} Inciudes $4.524 million of domestic overdrafts, £6,810 million of margin loans and $771 million of other leans at Dec. 31, 2010.

(b)  Includes $1,525 million of ather foreign laans (primarily overdrafisj ot Dec. 31, 2010.
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Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Allowance for credit losses activity for the year ended Dec. 31, 2008 managmez:ég; Other
Commercial - Financial Lease  loans and residential All
{in nillions) Coranercial  real estate insdtutions financing  mortgages mortgages Other (2] Foreign (b) Total
Beginning balance $ 180 $ 59 § 57 § 90 $ 32 $ 8% 3 2 $ 21 % 529
Charge-offs 90 31) 34) (1) (60) - - {216}
Recoverizs - - - 3 1 - - - 2
Nei charge-offs (90} (31) (34) 1 : (60 - . (214)
Provision 66 34 3 an 26 137 (2 29 332
Transferred to discontinged
operations (1) {17 - - (1) - - (19
Ending balance § 1355 $ 45 $ 76 $ 80 3 0S8 % 164 3 - $ 50 § o628
Allowance for:
Loans losses $ ¢4 3 31 § 42 % 80 § 6§ 164 3 - $ 36 § 503
Unfunded commitments 61 14 24 - 2 - . 14 125
Individually evaluated for
impairment:
Loan balance $ 63 $ S8 $ 171 % $ 53 8 - % 3 § 345
Alfowance for loan losses 10 13 25 3 51
Collectively evaluated for
impairment:
I.oan balance $2 261 $1.986 §5,338  $1,703 $6,109  $2,179  $%,010(a)  $7,758 (bj $36.344
Allowance for loan logses 84 18 17 30 53 164 - 36 452

(a) Includes $3,946 million of domestic everdrafls, $4,657 million of margin loans and $407 million of other loans al Dec. 31,2009,
(b Incluedes $2,109 million of other foreign loans ( primarily everdrafts) at Dec. 31, 2009,

Nonperforming assets

The table below sets forth information about owr
nonperforming assets.

At Dec. 31, 2011, undrawn commifments to borrowers
whose loans were classified as nonaccrual or veduced
rate were not material.

Lost interest

Nonperforming assets Dec. 31,
(in miflions) 2011 2010
Mouperforming loans:
Domestic:
Other residential mortgages $203 $244
Comuercial real estate 40 44
Wealth management 32 59
Finaricial institntions 23 b]
Commercial 21 34
Total domestic 319 386
Toreign loans 10 7
Total nonperforming loans 329 393
Other assets owned 12 6
Total nonperforuing asseis (a) $341  §399

(a) Loeans of consolidated trnvestrnent manogeinent Sfinds are not
part of BNY Mellon’s loan porifelio. Included in these loaris
are nonperforning loans of $101 million at Dec. 31, 2011
and $218 mitlion at Dec. 31, 2010. These Ioans are recorded
at fair value and thevefore do not brpact the provision Jor
credit losses and allowanee for foan losses, and accordingly
are excluded from the nenperforming assels table above.

Lost interest

{in milfions) 2011 2010 2009
Amouni by which interest income
recogiized on nonpecforming loans
exceeded reversals:
Total $2 $2 52
Foreign .
Amonnt by which interest income
would have increased if
nonperforming loans at year-end had
been pexforming for the entive year:
Total (el $17 $a0 §19
Foreign : -

(a) Lost interest excludes discontinued operations for 2010 and
2009
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Impaired loans

The table below sets forth information about our impaired loans. We use the discounted cash flow method as the
primary method for valuing impaired loans.

Tmpaired loans Year ended
Dec. 31, 2011 3ec. 31, 2010 Dec. 31, 2009
Average Interest Average Interest
recorded income recorded income Recorded
{in miflions) inveslment  recopnized  investment  recoguized Investment
[mpaired loans with an alowance:
Coromercial 527 51 $ 30 $ $ 30
Commercial real estate 22 - 34 - 49
Financial institutions $ - 35 - 171
Wealth management Ioans and mortgages 37 1 53 1 33
Foreign 10 - 2 - -
Total impaired loans with an allowance 105 2 154 P 303
Impaired toans without an allowance:
Comunercial 1 - G - 33
Comunercial real estate 13 - 11 . 9
Wealth managernent loans and mortgages 2 ~ 3 -
Total impaired loans without an allowance {a} 16 - 20 - 42
Total impaired loans $121 $2 §174 $2 $345
Altowance for impaired loans £5) $ 51
Average balance of impaired loans - 2009 216
Interest ncome recognized on impaired loans 2

(o) When the discounted cash flows, colloteral vatue oy market price equals or exceeds the carrying value of the loan, then the loan does
not require an allowance under the accounting standard related 1o impaired loans.
(b) The allowance for impaired loans is included in the allowance for loan losses.

Jmpaired foatts Dee. 31,2011 Dec, 31, 2010
Unpaid Unpaid
Recorded.  principal Related Recorded.  principal Related
(int pullions) imvestment balance  allowauce (@)  inveshnent balance  allowance
Impaired loans with an allowance:
Commercial, $ 26 $ 31 39 3 30 $ 30 310
Comynercial real estaig 35 41 7 25 39 9
Financial institutions 2 21 7 4 10 -
Wealth managemment loans and morigages 27 27 3 52 52 5
Forei gn 10 18 4 7 7 2
Total fmpaired loans with an allowance 119 138 32 118 138 26
Impaired toans without an allowance.
Comyner cial - - - 2 6 -
Conmnercial teal estate 3 3 - 19 19
Finanecial ingtitutions 3 9 - - - -
Weal th management. Joans and morigages 3 3 ~ 1 2 -
Total dnmpaired loans withovt an allowance () 9 15 - 22 27
Total impaired loans (¢} $128 3153 832 $140 3165 826

(aj The allowance for impaired loans is included inthe allowance Jor loan losses.

(bi When the discounted cash fiows, collateral value or market price equais or exceeds the carrying vale of the loan, then the loan. does
nat require an allowance under the accounting standard related to impaired loans.

(¢} Exchudes an aggregate of 32 million of impaired loans in ainounts individually Tess than $1 millivn.at Dec. 31, 2011 and 3 million at
Dec. 31, 2010. The allowance for loar loss assaciated with these loans totided tess than $1 million at both Dec. 31, 2011 and Dec. 31,
2010.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Past due loans

The table below sets forth information about otr past due loans.

Past due loans and still accruing interest

Dec. 31,2011 Dec. 31, 2010

Days past dae

Days past due

Total Total
(in millions) 30.59 60-80  »90 pastdve  30-59  60-89 >80 past due
{Domestic:
Comimercial real estate §118 $9 § - $127 §174 $ - 811 £185
Wealth management loans and mortgages 89 3 - 92 62 4 6 72
Commercial 60 7 - 67 10 i 1 12
Other residential mortgages 36 10 13 59 40 15 15 70
Financial ingtitniions 36 - 36 10 1 - 11
Total domestic 339 29 13 381 296 21 23 350
TFareign - - - - - - - -
Total past due loans $339 $20 813 $381 $206 $21  §33 350

Troubled debt restructurings { “IDRs™)

A modified loan is considered a TDR if the debtor 18
experiencing financial difficulties and the creditor
grants a concession to the debtor that would not
otherwise be considered. A TDR may include a
ransfer of real estate or other assets from the debtor to
the creditor. or a modification of the term of the loan.
Not all modified loans are considered TDRs, At Dec.
31, 2011, there were no unfunded lending-related
commitments to debtors whose terms have been
modified in TDRs.

As a result of adopting ASU 2011-02, Receivables
(Topic 310): A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a
Restructuring is a Troubled Debt Restructiring
effective July 1, 2011, we reassessed all loant
restructurings that occurred on or after Jan. 1, 2011
through June 30, 2011 and determined that no
additional modified loans would have qualified as
TDRs.

Ta the fourth quarter of 2011, 11 other residential
mortgage loans ware restructured in TIDRs. The
pre-modification and post-modification outstanding
recorded mvestment was $5 million. The

modifications of the other residential mortgage loans
consisted of reducing the stated mterest rate and in
certajn cases, extending the interest only payment
period and/or maturity date. The value of modified
Joans is based on the fair value of the collateral.
Probable loss factors are applied to the value of the
modified loans to determine the allowance for credit
losses.

One of the residential mortgage loaus that bad been
restructured in a TDR dwing the previous 12 months
subsequently defaunlted during the fourth quarter of
2011. The total recorded investment of this loan was
less than $1 million.

Credit gquality indicators

Our credit strategy is to focus on investment grade
names to support cross-selling, oppertunities, avoid
single name/industry concentrations and exit high-risk
portfolios. Bach customer is assigned an internal
rating grade which is mapped to an. external rating
agency grade equivalent based upon a number of
dimensions which are continually evaluated and may
change over time.

The following tables set forth information about credit quality indicators,

Cotmmercial loan portfolio

Commercial loan portfolio — Credit risk profile by creditworthiness calegory

Commercial Commercizl real sstate Financial institutions

. Dec, 31,  Dec. 31, Dec, 31, Dec. 31,  Dec, 31, Dec. 31,

{in millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Tnvestment grade $ Y08 $ 964 $1,062 $1,072 $ 9.643 57,394
Nominvestoent grade 374 631 387 520 1501 1,362
Total $1,280 $1,595 $1.449 $1,592 $11,144 $9,256
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The commercial loan portfolio is divided into
investment grade and non-investment grade categories
based on rating criteria largely consistent with those
of the public rating agencies. Hach customer in the
portfolio is assigned an internal rating grade. These
internal rating grades are generally consistent with the
ratings categories of the public rating agencics.
Customers with ratings consistent witl BBRR- (S&P)/
Baa3 (Moody’s) or better are con sidered 1o be
investment grade. Those clients with ratings Jower
than this threshold are considered to be
non-investment grade.

Wealth management loans and mortgages

Wealth management loans and mortgages - Credit risk
profile by internally assigned grade

Dec. 31, Dee 31,

(in millions) 2011 2010
‘Weslth management loans:

Investment grade $3,450 $2,995

Noninvestment grade 111 170

Wealth management marigages 3,781 3,341

Total $7,342 $6,506

Waealth management non-mortgage loans are not
typically rated by extemal rating agencies. A majority
of the wealth management loans are secured by the
customers’ invesiment management accounts Or
custody accounts. Eligible assets pledged for these
loans are typically investment grade, fixed income
secnrities, equities and/or mutual funds. Tnternal
ratings for this portion of the wealth m anagement
portfolio, therefore, would equate to investment-grade
external ratings. Wealth management loaps are
provided to select customers based on the pledge of
other types of assets, including business assets, fixed
assets, or 4 modest amount of commercial real estate,
For the loans collateralized by other assets, the credit
quality of the obligor is carefully analyzed, but we do
not consider this portfolio of loans to be of mvestment
grade quality.

Credit quality indicators for wealth management
mortgages are not correlated to external ratings.
Wealth management mortgages are typically loans to
high-net-worth individuals, which are secured
primarily by residential property. These loans are
primazily interest-only adjustable rate mortgages w ith
an average loan to value ratio of 62% at otigination.
Tn the wealth management portfolio, 1% of the
morigages were past due at Dee. 31, 2011.

At Dec. 31, 2011, the private wealth mortgage
portfolic was comprised of the following geographic

114 BNY Mellon

concentrations: New York ~ 24%; Massachusetts —
179 California — 17%; Tlorida ~ 8%; and other -
34%.

Other residential mortgages

The other residential mortgage portfolio primarily
consists of one to four family residential mortgage
loans and totaled $1,923 million at Dec. 31,2011,
These loans are not typically correlated to external
ratings. Included in this portfolio is $596 nyiltion of
mortgage loans purchased in 2005, 2006 and the fisst
guarter of 2007 that are predominantly prime
mortgage loans, with a small portion of Alt-A loans.
As of Dec. 31, 2011, the purchased loans in this
portfolio had a weighted-average loan-to-value ratio
of 76% at origination and 28% of these loans were at
least 60 days delinquent. The properties securing the
prime and Alt-A mortgage loans were located (in
order of concentration) in California, Florida,
Virginia, Maryland and the tri-state area (New York,
New Jersey and Connecticut).

Overdrafts

Overdrafts primarily relate to custody and securities
clearance clients and totaled $4,849 million at

Dec. 31, 2011 and $6,049 million at Dec. 31, 2010.
Overdrafts occur on a daily basis in the castody and
securities clearance business and are generally repaid
within two business days.

Margin loans

We had $12,760 million of secured margin loans on
our balance sheet at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with
$6.810 million at Dec. 31, 2010. Margin loans are
collateralized with marketable securities and
borrowers are required to maintain a daily collateral
margin in excess of 100% of the value of the loan. We
have rarely suffered a loss on these types of loans and
do not altocate any of our allowance for credit losses
to them.

Other loans

Other loans primarily includes loans to consumers that
are fully collateralized with equities, mutual funds and
fixed income securities, as well as bankers’
acceptances.

Reverse vepurchase agrecments

Reverse repurchase agreements are transactions fully
collateralized with high-quality liquid securities.
These transactions cairy minimal credit risk and

thetefore are not allocated an allowance for credit
fosses.
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Note 7—Goodwill and intangible assets
Goodwill impairment testing

BNY Mellon's three business segments include seven
reporting units for which annual goodwill impairment
testing is done i accordance with ASC 350. The
Investment Management segment is comprised of two
reporting units; the Investment Services segment 18
comprised of four reporting units; and one reporting
unit is included in the Other segment.

The goodwill impairment test is performed in two
steps. The first step compares the estimated fair value
of the reporting unit with its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill
of the reporting unit is considered not impaired.
However, if the carrying amount of the reporting uit
were to exceed its estimated fair value, a second step
would be performed that would compare the implied
fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the
carrying amount of that goodwill. An impairment loss
would be recorded to the extent that the canrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

The Company performed its annual goodwill
impairment testing for all reporting units in the second
quarter of 2011.

The broad decline of stock prices throughout the U.S.
stock market in the second half of 2011 also impacted
the Company’s stock price, which declined below the
Company’s net book value per share. As a result of
this sustained decline in the second half of 2011, the
Company performed an interim goodwill test of all its
reporting units in the fourth quarter of 2011, The
astimated fair values of each of the Compasy s
reporting units exceeded their cairying values in the
interin test and no goodwill impairment was
recognized.

Goodwill

The level of goodwill decreased in 2011 compared
with 2010 as a resnlt of the sale of Shareowner
Services and foreign exchange translation on non-U.S.
dollar denominated goodwill, partially offset by the
acquisitions of Penson Financial Services, Talon
Asset Management and contingent payments on
previous acquisitions.

The table below provides a breakdown of goodwill by business.

soodwill by business Investment  Investment
{in milfions) Managerment Services  Other  Consolidated
Balance at Dex. 31, 2009 $9,312 $6,890 $47 $16,249
Acquisitions 8 1,790 - 1,798
Foreign exchange anslation (44) (30} (48] (75)
Other () 33 [€)) (6) 70
Balance at Dec. 31, 2010 $9,359 $3,643 $40 $18,042
Acquisitions/dispositions 10 (118) - (103)
Yoreign exchange transiation (32 (2 - {61)
Other (o) 36 (5) - 31
Balance at Dee. 31, 2011 $9,373 $8,491 340 $17,904

(@) Other changes in goodwill inchule purchase price adjustments and certain other reclossifications.

Intangible assets

The decrease in intangible assets in 2011 compared
with 2010 resulted from amortization of intangible
assets and the sale of Shareowner Services, partially
offset by the acquisition of customer contracts in the
Investment Services and Investment Management
businesses. Also, in 2011, we recorded $9 million in

impairment charges to write-down the value of &
software technology intangible to its fair value. This
impairment charge is included in other expensc on the
income statement.

Amortization of intangible assels was 4428 million,

$421 million and $426 miltion in 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.
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The table below provides a breakdown of intangible assets by business.

Intangible assets - net carrying amonnt by business

Investment  Investment

(in millions) Managenent Services  Other  Consolidated
Balance at Dec. 31, 2009 $2,825 $1.911 $832 $5,588
Acquisitions 15 530 - 545
Amortization (237) {182) (2) 20
Foreign exchange (ranslation 9 - - (9)
Other (a) 3 5) (N

Balance at Dec. 31, 2010 §2,592 $2,254 $850 $5,696
Acquisitions/dispositions 6 a1 - (105)
Amortization (214} (212) ) (428)
Jioreign exchange translation (2) 23 - )
Trnpairment - 9) - 9)
Other (2} - 2 R 2

Balance at Dec. 31, 2011 $2,382 $1,922 $848 $5,152
(@} Other changes in intangible assels include purchase price adjustrents and certairs other veclassifications.

“The table below provides a breakdown of intangible assets by type.

Intangible assels

Dec. 31, 2011 Dac. 31,2010

Remaining
weighted
Gross Nel average Gross Net
carrying Accumulated carrying amorbization catrying  Accmmulaled  carrying
{in millionsj amount amortization  amount period  amount amorfization  amount
Subject Lo amnortization:
Customer relationships---Investment
Management $2,109 $(1,189) § 920 12yrs. $2,102 § (983 $1,119
Customer contracts-—Investment Services 2,351 (834) 1,517 13 yrs. 2,566 (736) 1,830
Othex 131 (95) 36 5 yrs, 134 (86) 48
Total sabject Lo amortizalion 4,891 (2,118) 2,473 13 yrs, 4,802 (1,803) 2.997
Mot subiject 10 amortization: {a)
Trade name 1,366 N/A. 1,366 N/A 1,375 MA 1,375
Cusiomer relationships 1.313 N/A 1,313 N/A 1,314 N/A 1,314
Other - N/A. - N/A 10 N/& 10
Total not subject to amortization 2,679 N/A 2,679 N/A 2,699 N/A 2,699
Total intungible assels $7,270 $(2,118) 85,152 N/A 37,501 $(1,805) $5,696
fa) Intangible assets not subject 10 amortizarion have an indefinite life.
Fstimated annual amortization espense for current Note 8—Other assels
intangibles for the next five years is as follows:
Other assets Dec. 33 Dec. 31,

For the year ended Estimated amortization expanse

Deg, 31, (in nitlions)
2012 $383
2013 333
2014 297
2015 266
2016 236
116 BNY Mellon

(in millions) 2011 2010
Corporate/barik owned life insurance $ 4216 B 4071
Accounts recegvable 4,208 3,506
Equity in joint ventures and olher

investments (@) 2677 2,643
Income taxes receivable 2,873 2,326
Fair value of hedging derivalives 1,600 836
Software 986 896
Fails to deliver 961 1428
Prepaid expenses 784 834
Due from customers o acceptances 321 424
Prepsid pension assets 144 732
Other 1,369 594

Total other assets $19.839 $18.790

{a) Incledes Federal Reserve Bank stock of $429 million ond
$400 million, respectively, at cost.
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Seed capital and private equity investments valued
using net asset value per share

In owr Investment Management business, we manage
investiient assels, including equities, fixed income,
money market and alternative investment funds for
institutions and other investors; as part of that activity
we make seed capital investments in certain funds.
BNY Mellon also holds private equity investments,
which consist of investments in private

equity funds, mezzanine financings and direct equity
investments. Seed capital and private equity
investments are included in other assets. Consistent
with our policy to focus on our core activities, we
continue to reduce our exposure to private equity
investments.

The fair value of these investments has been estimated
using the net asset value (“NAV™) pex share of BNY
Mellon’s ownership interest in the funds. The table
below presents information about BNY Mellon’s
imvestments in seed capital and private equity
mvestments.

Seed capital and private equity investments valued uding NAV - Dec, 31,2011

(dollar amounts in rillions) Fair Value

Unfunded commitiments

Redemption frequency  Redemption notice period

Hedge fonds (a) $ 9 $ - Monibly-quarterly 3-45 days

Private equity fands (b) 122 24 N/A N/A

Other funds (¢) 63 - Monthly-yearly (¢)
Total $194 $24

(@) Hedge funds include multi-strategy funds that wiilize o variety of investment svategies and equity long-short hedge funds that include
various funds that invest over both fong-term investrent and short-term. investment horizons.

(b} Private equity funds primayily inchede nutnerous ventiee capiial fundy that invest in various sectovs of the econamy. Private equity
Sunds do not have redemption rights. Distyibutions from such Finds will be received as the wnderlying investinents i the funds are

liquidated.

c)  Other funds include various market neutral, leveraged loans, veal estate and structured credit finds. Redemption notice periods vary
8 4

by find.
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Note 9—Deposits

Total time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or
greater was $44.2 billion at Dec. 31,2011, and $35.3
billion at Dec. 31, 2010, At Dec. 31, 2011, the
scheduled maturitics of all time deposits are as
follows: 2012 — $44.6 hillion; 2013 — $3 million; 2014
— $20 million; 2015 — $3 million; 2016 ~$- million;
and 2017 and thereafter — $4 million.

Note 10—Nat interest revenue

Net inlerest revenue
{in millions) 2011 2010 2009

Literest revenne

Non-margin loans $ 681 § 738 9% ©74
Margin loans 129 88 69
Securities:
Taxable 1,949 1,944 1,71%
Exempt from federal tucoine
taxes 36 25 30
Total securities 1985 1,969 1,748
Other short- term tnvestoents-
1.8, govermuent-backed
commercial paper B - g
Deposils in banks 543 491 684

Deposits with the Federal

Reserve and other central

banks 148 49 43
Federal Tunds sold and

securi ties purchased nnder

resale agreements 8 64 31
Trading assets 74 71 S0
Total imerest revenie 3,588 3,470 3.508
Interest expense
Deposits in dorestic offices 47 49 7

Deposits in foreign offices 194 32 115
Borrowings from Federal

Reserve related to ABCP - - 7
Federal Tunds purchased and

securities sold under

repurchase aureenents 2 43 -
Trading liabilities 32 41 22
Other borrowed funds 21 24 20
Customer payables 7 6 6
Long-terra debl 301 300 366
‘Total interest expense 604 545 593

Net inlerest revenoe $2,984 52925  $2915

118 BNY Mellon

Note 11—0ther noniniterest expense

The following table provides a breakdown of other
noninterest expense presented on the consolidated
income statement.

Qther noninterest expense

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Litigation $ 210 § 217 8§ 3
Commanicalions 173 140 s
Clearing 135 127 117
Other 629 376 683

Total other $1,147  $1.060 8934

Note 12--Restructuring charges
Operational efficiency initiatives

Tn 2011, we amnounced our operational efficiency
initiatives which include an expense reduction
initiative impacting approximately 1,500 positions or
approximately 3% of our global workforce, as well as
additional initiatives to transform operations,
technology and corporate services that will ncrease
productivity and reduce the growth rate of expenses.
We recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of $107
million related to the global efficiency initiatives in
2011. The aggregate restructuring charge is recorded
as a separate line on the income statement. This
charge was comprised of $78 million of severance
costs and $29 million primarily for operating lease-
related items and consulting costs. The following table
presents the activity in the restructuring reserve
related to the operational efficiency initiatives through
Dec. 31, 2011

Operational efficiency initintives 2011 - vestructuring charge
reserve activity

{in rillions) Severance  Other  Total

Original restrncturing charge 378 $ 26 $107
Utilization () (293 33
Balance at Dec. 31, 2011 $74 & - $ 74

This restructuring charge was recorded in the Other
segment as it is & corporate initiative and not divectly
related to the operating performance of the businesses.
The table below presents the restructuring charge if it
had been allocated by business.

Operational efficiency initiatives 2011 - restructuring charge
by business

(in millions) 2011
Investment Management $ 17
Tavestment Services 41
Other segiment (including Business Partuers) 49

Total resructuring charge 3107
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Glohal location siralegy

BNY Mellon continues to execute its global location
strategy. This strategy includes migrating positions to
our global growth centers and is expected to result in
moving and/or eliminating approximately 2,400
positions. Tnn 2009, we recorded a pre-tax restructaring
charge of $139 million related to this strategy. This
charge was comprised of $102 million for severance
costs and $37 million primarily for asset write-offs
and expense related to the closing of offices. In 2011,
we recorded a recovery of $15 million associated with
the global location strategy.

Severance payments related to these positions are
primarily paid over the salary continsance period in
accordance with the separation plan.

The following table presents the activity in the
restructuring reserve related to the global location

Workforce reduction program

Tn the fourth quarter of 2008, we announced that, due
to weakness in the global economy, we would reduce
our workforce by an estimated 1,800 positions, and as
a result, recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of
$181 million. In 2011, we recorded a recovery of $3
million associated with this workforce reduction
program.

We completed this program in 2010. AtDec. 3t
2011, severance payments related to positions covered
by this program were substantially cotnpleted.

The following table presents the activity in the
restruciuring reserve related to the workforce
rednction program through Dec. 31, 2011.

Workforce reduction program 2008 ~ restruciuring
charge reserve activity

{in_millions) Severance  Other  Total

§ 166 $15  $181

Original restrocturing charge

strategy through Dec. 31, 2011 Additional charges 4 7 11
Utilization (103 (22) {127)
Ralance at Dec, 31, 2009 $ 65 $ $ 63
Global location strategy 2009 - restructuring Additional (recovery) N - (@3]
charge reserve activity Utilization (42) - (42
Asset. e g
write-offs/ Balance at Dec. 31, 2010 $ 16 § - % 19
(in millions) Sevetance other  Total Additional (recovery) [€))] B (3)
Original restrucluxing charge $102 $37  §139 Utilization (18 - a3
Utilization . (23) {23) Balance at Dec. 31, 2011 $ - 8 - § -
Balance at Dec., 31, 2009 102 14 116
Additional charges 39\ 6 {25 This restructuring charge was recorded in the Other
Utilization 00} d) G 1) segment as it is a corporate initiative and not directly
Balance at Dee. 31, 2010 ¥ 8 $19  $100  related to {he operating performance of the businesses.
Additional (recovery) (13 - (12;’ The table below presents the restructuring charge if it
Ulilization (39 ® __¢D  fadbeen allocated by business.
RBalance at Dec. 31, 2011 $ 27 $11 838

This reswucturing charge was recorded in the Other
segment as it is a corporate mitiative and not directly
related to the operating performance of the businesses.
"The table below presents the restructuring charge if it
had been allocated by business.

Global loeation strategy 2009 ~ restructuring Total
charge (recovery) by business charges
since
(in millions) 2011 2010 2009 inception
Investment Management $ - 315 540 5 55
Tnvestment Services a8 2 68 76
Other segment (including
Business Partners) 3 {6) 31 28
Total restructunng charge S(15) $35 3139 31359

Workforce reduction program 2008 — restructuring
charge (recovery) by business

Total

charges

since

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009 inception

Investrnent Managenent $(1) 5 39 $ 80

Investment Services {2) (2) 2 54

Other (including

Business Partners) - . 4 43
Toisl restructuring

charge $(3) $(7) $11 $182
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MNote 13--Income taxes

Mravision (henefit) for
income laxes

Year ended Dec, 31,

alternative minimwm tax credit carvyforwards of $45
million with an indefinite life. We have not recorded a
valuation allowance because we expect to realize ous
deferred tax assets incloding these carryovers.

(in millions) 2011 2010{a) 2009 (a)

Cuarrent. taxes (bhenefits): As of Dec. 31, 2011, we had approximawly $3.5
Fedexal % 691 §(670) § 289 billion of eamings attributable to foreign subsidiaries
Foreign 317 408 185 that have been permanently reinvested abroad and for
State and local 28 119 101 which no provision has been recorded for income tax

Total current {ax expense that would occur if repatriated. It is not practicable at
{benefil) 1,036 (152) 375 this time 1o determine the income tax lability that

Deferred taxes: would result upon repatriation of these eamnings.
Fedezal o 1278 (1,676
Foreign (16) (75) . The following table presents a reconciliation of the
State and Jocal 62 43 204)  statutory federal income taxX rate to our effective

Total deferred tax incomie tax rate applicable to income from continuing
expense (benefit) 12 1,199 (1,970) operations.

Provision (benefit) for T - Yo c——
incomo taxes $1,048  §1,047  $1p95)  Cfective taxrate q?l‘ff e‘“ggf}’“‘ ;’(309

(a} Based on comtinming operations for 2010 and 2009. 201 - -

Federal rale 350% 35.0% 35.0%
. State and local incomne taxes, net of
The components of income (loss} before taxes are as federal income tax benefit 1.6 2.4 4.5
follows: Credit for low-incorne housing
investments (1.9 1.5 2.6
X —— - Tax-exempt income (2.6) 2.3 2.9

(,om pougnts of income (loss) N Foreign operations 32 G52 35

hefore taxes Year ended Dec. 31, e ) y

T - . Tax seltlements - - 4.0

{in WHL’!ZOIZS) 2011 2010 (a) 2009 (62} Tax logs on morigages - . 10.8

Domestic $2336  $2,563  $(3.022) Other —net th.1 62 (01

Foreign 1,281 1,331 814 Effective rate 290% 28.3% 632%
Income (1oss) before taxes $3,617 $3,094 $(2,208)

; ., P rrgisme Fiap - Unrecognized tax positions

(a) Based on continuing eperations for 2010 and 2009. (in mil I ris) 2011 2010 2009

} . o Beginning balance at Jan. 1, -~ gross $289 5335 5189

The components of our net deferred tax lability are as Prior period tax positions:

follows: increases 24 97 225

decreases (12) (CHRENEI0)
Current pericd tax positions 16 4] 10

Nel deferred tax Hability Dec. 31, Setilements 64 (119 (58)

(in millions) 2011 2010 Statuts expiration 3 (5) 8y

Depreciation and amortization $2,500  $2,366 Fncing balance at Dec. 31, - gross $250 $ 289 8335

Lease financings 1,040 1,093

Pension obligation @9) 190 Our total tax reserves as of Dec. 31, 2011 were 5250

Reserves not deducted for tax @ 331)  miflion compared with $289 million at Dec. 31, 2010.

Credit losses 01“ loans (_‘;‘32) (‘; ?g’ If these tax reserves were unnccessary, $250 million

wet operaling Loss camryover (126) (112) would affect the effective tax rate in future periods.

Employee benefits (544) (543) ' i . PR . TS

NS _ We recognize accrued inferest and penalties, if

Equity investments 238 227 licable. telated to inc S N

Other assels (289) (264) applicable, te ate Fo imcome taxes 1m meome tax

Other liabilitios 378 380 expense. Included in the balance sheet at Dee, 31,

Tt > 1 M O1ES Bore 3 2 ',.(
Net defexred fax liability $2.556  $2.507 2011 is accrued interest, where applicable, of $39

million. The additional tax expense related to interest
for the year ended Dec. 31, 2011 was $31 mullion

As of Dec. 31, 2011, we have net operating loss
carryforwards for state and local income tax purposes
of $1.6 billion which will expire in 2029. We have a
German net operating loss carryforward of $110
million with an indefinite life. In addition, we have

120 BNY Mellon

compared with $9 million for the year ended Dec. 31,

2010.

As previously disclosed, on Nov. 10, 2009 BNY
Mellon filed a petition with the U.S. Tax Court
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challenging the RS’ disallowance of certain foreign
tax credits claimed for the 2001 and 2002 tax years.
The aggregate tax for all of the years in question is
approximately $900 million, including interest. A trial
is cuwrently scheduled for April 16, 2012, See Note 24
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information. BN'Y Mellon continues to
believe the tax treatment of the transaction was
consistent with statutory and judicial authority
existing at the time of the transaction. However, if
there is a decision by the courts in similar litigation
with unrelated taxpayers before the BNY Mellon
matter is decided and that decision adopts the
Govermnent’s expansive view of economic substance

Note 14-~Long-term debt

for disallowing forcign tax credits, BNY Mellon. may
be required to re-evaluate its uncertam tax position.
with respect to this matter. If a re-evaluation is
required, it is reasonably possible that the total reserve
for uncertain tax positions, pursnant to ASC 740
(FASB Interpretation 48), could inorease w ithin the
next 12 months by a net amount up to $850 million.

Our federal consolidated income tax retums ate closed
to examination through 2002. Qur New York State
and New York City return examinations have been
completed through 2008. Our Usnited Kingdom
incone tax returns are closed through 2008.

Long-term debt

Pec. 31,2011 Dec. 31,2010

(in millions) Rate Maturity  Amount Rale  Amount
Senior debt:
Fixed rate 1.50-6.92% 2012-2021 $12367  2.50-6.92% $ ©.354
Foating rate 0.35.1.409% 2012-2038 2,679 0.10-0.57% 1.475
Subordinated debt {a) 478-7.80% 2012-2033 3,201 4.40-7.50% 4,037
Junior snbordinated debentnies (a) 5,95.7.78% 2026-2043 1.686 $.95.7.78% 1,651
Total $19.933 $16,517

(@i Fixed mte,

Total long-term debt that matures during the next five
years for BNY Mellon is as follows: 2012 — $3.45
billion, 2013 ~ $1.61 billion, 2014 — $4.36 billion,
2015 — $1.90 billion and 2016 — $1.85 billion. At Dec.
31, 2011, subordinated debt aggregating $249 million
will he redeemable at our option as follows: 2012 ~
$142 million, and 2013 ~ $107 million.

Junior subordinated debentures

Wholly owned subsidiaries of BNY Melion (the
“Trusts”) have issued cumulative Company-Obligated
Mandatory Redeemable Trust Preferred Securities of
Subsidiary Trust Holding Solely Junior Subordinated
Debentares (“trust preferred securities”™). The sole
assets of each trust are junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures of BNY Melion whose maturities
and interest rates match the trust preferred securities.
Our obligations under the agreements that relate to the
trust preferred securities, the Trusts and the
debentures constitute a full and unconditional
guarantee by us of the Trusts’ obligations under the
trust preferred securities. The assets for Mellon
Capital IV are currently (1) o remarketable 6.044%
junior subordinated notes due 2043, and (ii) interests
in stock purchase contracts between Mellon Capital
IV and us. On June 20, 2012, the “stock purchase
date.”” as defined in the prospectus supplement for the
trust preferred securities of Mellon Capital IV, the
sole assets of the trust will become shares of a series
of our non-cuaulative perpetual preferred stock.

The following table sets forth a summary of the Trust Preferred Securities issued by the Trusts as of Dec. 31,

2011

Trust Preforred Securities at Dec. 31, 2011 Interest Assers Due Call Call
{dollay amounts in millions) Amount rate  oftrust{a) date dale price
BNY Institutionat Capital Trust .4 3 300 7.7%% $ 309 2026 2006 101.95% (b)

BNY Capital IV 200 6.88 206 2028 2004 Par

BNY Capital V 350 5.95 361 2033 2008 Par

MEL, Capital 111 {¢) 309 6.37 300 2036 2016 Par

MET. Capital IV 500 6.24 500 - 2N2 Par
Total $1,059 $1,676

(ai Junior subordinated debentures and interest in stock purchase contracts for Mellon Capital IV.

(b} Call price decreases vatably to par in the year 2016.

(¢} Amonnt was translated from Sterling into U5, dollars on a basis of U.S. $1.54 10 £1, the mie of exchange on Dec. 31, 2011,
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We have the option to shorten the maturity of BN'Y
Capital 1V to 2013 or extend the matarity to 2047.
The BNY Capital Trust Preferred Secuities have been
converted to floating rate via interest rate swaps.

Note 15—Securitizations and variable interest
entilies

Variable Inferest Enfities

Accounting guidance on the consolidation of VIkis is
included in ASC 810, Consolidation, and ASU
2009-17, “Improvements to Kinancial Reporting by
Fnterprises Involved with Variable Interest Fntities.”

Effective Jan. 1, 2010, the FASB approved ASU
2010-10 “Amendments for Certain Investment
Funds,” which defers the requirements of ASU
2009-17 for asset managers’ interests i entities that
apply the specialized accounting guidance for
investment companies or that have the attributes of
investment companies and for interests in money
market funds.

Accounting guidance on the consolidation of VIEis
applies to certain entities in which the equity
investors:

e do not have sufficient equity atrisk for the entity
to finance its activities without additional
financial support, or

e Jack one or more of the following characteristics
of a controlling financial interest:
¢ The power, through voting rights or similar

rights. to direct the activities of an entity that
most significantly impact the entity’s
economic performance (ASU 2009-17
model).

e The direct or indirect ability to make
decisions about the entity’s activities through
voting rights or similar rights (ASC 810
modet).

¢ The obligation to absorb the expected losses
of the entity.

¢ The right to receive the expected residual
returns of the entity,

BNY Mellon’s VIEs generally include retail,
institutional and alternative investment funds offered
to its retail and institutional customers in which it acts
as the fund’ s investment manager. BNY Mellon eamns
management fees on these fumds as well as
performance fees in certain funds. It may also provide
start-up capital in its new funds. These VIEs are

122 BNY Mellon

included in the scope of ASU 2010-10 and are
reviewed for consolidation based on the guidance in
ASC 814.

BNY Mellon applics ASC 810 to its mutual funds,
hedge funds, private equity funds, collective
investment fands and real estate investment trusts. If
these entities are determined to be VIks, primary
beneficiary calculations are prepared in accordance
with ASC 810 to determine whether or not BNY
Mellon is the primary beneficiary and required to
consolidate the VIE. The primary beneficiary of a VIE
is the party that absorbs a majority of the variable
interests” expected losses, receives a majority of its
expected residual retuns or both.

The primary beneficiary calcnlations include
estimates of ranges and probabilities of losses and
retums from the funds. The calculated expected gains
and expected losses ate allocated to the variable
interest holders of the funds, which are generally the
fund’ s investors and which may include BNY Mellon,
in order to determine which entity is required to
consclidate the VIE, if any.

BNY Mellon has other VIEs, including securitization
trusts, which are no longer considered QSPESs, and
CLOs, i which BNY Mellon serves as the investment
manager. In addition, we provide trust and custody
services for a fee to entities sponsored by other
corporations in which we have no other interest.
These VIEs are evalnated under the guidance incloded
in ASU 2009-17. BN'Y Mellon has two securitizations
and several CLOs, which are assessed for
consolidation in accordance with ASU 2009-17.

The primary beneficiary of these VIEs is the entity
whose variable interests provide it with a controlling
financial interest, which imcludes the power to direct
the activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s
economic performance and the obligation to absorb
losses of the VIE or the right to receive benefits of the
V1T that could potentially be significant to the VIE.

Tn order to determine if it bas a controlling financial
interest in these VIBs, BNY Mellon assesses the
VIE's purpose and design along with the risks it was
designed to create and pass through to its variable
interest holders. We also assess our involvement in
the VIE and the involvement of any other variable
interest holders in the VI

Generally, as the sponsor and the manager of its VIEs,

BNY Mellon has the power to control the activities
that significantly impact the VIE’s economic
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performance. Both a qualitative and quantitative
analysis of BNY Mellon’s variable interests are
performed o determine if BN'Y Mellon has the
obligation to absorb losses of the VIE or the right to
receive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. The analyses included
assessments related to the expected performance of
the VIFs and its related impact on BNY Mellon’s seed
capital, management fees or residual interests in the
ViRs. We also assess any potential impact the VIE’s
expected performance has on our performance fees.

The following tables present the incremental assets
and Habilities included in BNY Mellon’s consolidated
financial statements, after applying intercompany
eliminations, as of Dec. 31, 2011 and Dec. 31, 2010,
based on the assessments performed in accordance
with ASC 810 and ASU 2009-17. The net assets of
any consolidated VIE are solely available to seftle the
liabilities of the VIE and to seitle any investors®
ownership liquidation requests, including any seed
capital invested in the VIE by BNY Mellon.

Tnvestments consolidated under ASC 810 and ASU 2009-17 at
Dec. 31,2011

Investment Total
Management consolidated
(in millions) funda Securitizations investimens
Availgble-for-sule $ - %479 5 479
Trading assets 10,751 - 10,731
Other assets 596 - 596
Total assels $11,347 $479 $11,826
Trading Habilities 10,053 - 10,053
Other liabilities 12 443 475
Total
liabilities $10,085 $443 $10,528
Non-redesmable
nonconirolling,
interests $ 670 5 - $ 670

Investments consolidated under ASC 81() and ASU 2009-17 at
Dec, 31, 2010

Investmett Total
Mana gemernt consolidated
(in pullions) funds  Securitizations investinents
Available-for-sale h - $483 § 483
Trading asseis 14,121 B 14,121
Other assels &5 - o435
Total assets $14,766 $483 $15,249
Trading Jiabilities 13,361 - 14,561
Other Babilities 2 386 388
Tolal liabilities $13,563 $386 313,949
Non-redeernable
noncontrolling
interests $ 699 3 - 5 699

BNY Mcllon voluntarily provided capital support
agreements to certain VIHs (see below). With the
exception of these agreements, we are not
contractually required to provide financial or any
other support to any of our V1Es. Additionally,
creditors of any consolidated VIEs do not have any
recourse to the general credit of BN'Y Melloo.

Non-conselidated VIES

As of Dec. 31, 2011 and Dec. 31, 2010, the following
assets related to the VIEs, where BNY Mellon is not
the primary beneficiary, are included in our
consolidated financial statements.

Non-consolidated Vikg at Dee. 31, 2011 Maximum
Joss

{in millions) Assets  Liabilities EXpOSure
Trading $1 3- 31
Other 41 - 41
Total $42 $- $42
Non-consolidated VIEs at Dee, 31, 2010 Mazximum
loss

(in millions) Assets  Liabilities BXPOSUIE
Trading $24 3 $24
Gther 34 - 34
Total $58 §- 358

The maximum loss exposure indicated in the above
tables relate solely to BNY Mellon’s seed capital or
residual interests invested in the VIEs.

Credit supported VIES

BNY Mellon voluntarily provided limited credit
support to certain money market, collective,
commingled and separate account funds (the
“Funds™). Butering into such support agreements
represents an event under ASC 810, and is subject to
its inferpretations.

In analyzing the Funds for which credit support was
provided, it was determined that interest rate risk and
credit risk are the two main risks that the Funds are
designed to create and pass through to their investors.
Accardingly, interest rate and credit risk were

analy zed to determine if BNY Mellon was the primary
beneficiary of each of the Funds.

RBINY Mellon’s analysis of the credit risk variability
and interest rate risk variability associated with the
supported FPunds resulted in BNY Mellon not being
the primary beneficiary and theretore the Funds were
not consolidated,
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The tables below show the financial statement items
related to non-consolidated VIEs to which we have
provided credit support agreements at Dec. 31, 2011
and Dec. 31, 2010,

Credit supported Vs at Dec. 31,2011 Maximuom

loss
{in naflions) Assets  Liabilities exposnre
Other 8- $- $-
Credit supported VIilig af Dec. 31,2010 Maximuim

ioss
(in millions) Assets  Liabilities exposure
Other 3- 3- 813

Consolidated credit supported VIEs

Certain funds have been created solely with securities
that are subject to credit support agreements where we
have agreed to absorb the majority of loss.
Accordingly, these funds have been consolidated into
BNY Mellon and have affected the following
financial statement items at Dec. 31, 2011 and

Dec. 31, 2010, '

Consolidaled credit supporled VIEs at Dec, 31, 2011

WMaximum

{oss

{in millions) Assets  Liabilities exXposue

Available-for-sale $14 5 - $i4

Other - 22 10

Total $14 322 524
Consolidated credit supported VIXs at Dec. 31, 2010

Maxinwm

loss

(in millions) Assets  Liabililies eXposure

Available-for-sale $53 3 - 8 53

Other - 126 51

Total $53 $126 $104

The maximum loss exposure shown above for the
credit support agreements provided to BNY Mellon’s
VIts primarily reflects a complete loss on the Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc. securities for BN'Y Melion’s
clients that accepted our offer of support. As of Dec.
31,2011, BNY Mellon recorded $22 million in
liabilities related to its VIBs for which credit support
agreements were provided.

Note 16~-Shareholders’ equity
BNY Mallon has 3.5 hillion authorized shares of
common stock with a par value of $0.01 per share,

100 million authorized shares of preferred stock with
a par value of $0.01 per share. At Dec. 31, 2011,
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1,209,674,607 shares of common stock were
outstanding. There were no shares of preferred stock
owtstanding at Dec. 31, 2011

Temporary equily

Temporary equity was $114 million at Dec. 31, 2011
and $92 million at Dee. 31, 2010. Temporary equity
represents amounts recorded for redeemable
non-controlling interests resulting from equity-
classified share-based payment arrangements that are
currently redeemable or are expected to become
redeemable. The currest redemption value of such
awards is classified as temporary equity and is
adjusted to its redemption value at each balance sheet
date.

Troubled Asset Relief Program

In 2008, BNY Mellon issued and sold to the U.S.
Treasury $3 billion of preferred stock and a warrant to
purchase shares of common stock in accordance with
the terms of the Troubled Asset Relief Program
Capital Purchase Program.

In 2009, BNY Mellon repurchased the Series B
preferred stock for its §3 billion liquidation value.
BNY Melon recorded an after-tax redemption charge
of $196.5 million in 2009, representing the difference
between the amortized cost of the Series B preferred
stock and the repurchase price.

Also in 2009, BNY Mellon repurchased for $136
millon the warrant for 14,516,129 shares of our
common stock.

Cormmon stock vepurchase prograin

On Dec. 18, 2007, the Board of Directors of BNY
Mellon authorized the repurchase of up to 35 million
shares of common stock. On March 22, 2011, the
Board of Directors of BNY Mellon authorized the
repurchase of up to an additional 13 million shares of
comnon stock. Tn 2011, we repurchased 34.8 million
shares in the open market, at an average price of
$24.00 per share for a total of $835 million. At Dec.
31,2011, 12.0 million common shares were available
for repurchase under the program. There is no
expiration date on the share repurchase authorizations.

Capital adegquacy
Regulators establish certain levels of capital for bank
holding companies and hanks, including BNY Mellon

and our bank subsidiaries, in accordance with
established quantitative measurements. For the Parent
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to maintain its status as a financial holding company,
our bank subsidiaries and BNY Mellon must, among
other things, qualify as well capitalized.

As of Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010, BNY Mellon and our
bank subsidiaries were considered well capitalized on
the basis of the Basel I Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-
weighted assets ratios and the leverage ratio (Basel 1
Tier 1 capital to quarterly average assets as defined
for regulatory purposes).

Our conselidated and fargest bank subsidiary, The
Rank of New York Mellon, capital ratios are shown
below.

Consolidated and largest bank subsidiary o Dee. 3L,

capttal ratios (@) 2011 2010
(onsoli dated capital vatios:
Tier 1 13.0% 13.4%
Total capital 174 16.3
lLeverage 52 3.8
"The Bank of New York Mellon capital ratios:
Tier 1 14.3% 11.4%
Total capital 17.7 153
J.everags 53 53

(a) Determined under Basel I guidelines. For a banking
instietion to qualify as “well capitalized,” its Basel I Tier 1,
Totol (Fler 1 plus Tier 2) and leverage capital ratios must be
at least 6%, 10% and 5%, respectively. For The Bank af New
York Mellon, our largest bank subsidiary, to qualify as
“adequately copitalized " Basel I Tier 1, Total and leverage
capited ratios must be at least 4%, 8% and 3%, respectively.

If a financial holding company such as BNY Mellon
fails to qualify as well capitalized, it may lose its
status as a financial holding company, which may
restrict its ability to undertake or continue certain
activities or make acquisitions that are not generally
permissible for bank holding companies without
financial holding company status. If a bank holding
company such as BNY Mellon or bank such as The
Rank of New York Mellon or BNY Mellon, N.A. fails
to qualify as “well capitalized,” it may be subject o
higher FDIC assessments.

If a bank holding company such as BNY Mellon or
banok such as The Bank of New York Mellon or BNY
Mellon, N.A. fails to qualily as adequately
capitalized, regulatory sanctions and limitations are
imposed. AtDec. 31, 2011, the amounts of capital by
which BNY Mellon and owr largest bank subsidiary,
The Bank of New York Mellon, exceed the well
capitalized guidelines are as follows:

Capital above guidelines at Dec. 31,2011
The Bank of

{in millions) Consolidated  New York Mellon
Tier 1 capital $9,254 $7,241.
Total capital 7,208 6,708
Loverage 565 618

The following table presents the components of our
Basel I Tier 1 and total risk-hased capital at Dec. 31,
2011 and 2010

Components of Basel 1 Tier Land

tolal risk-based eapilal (a) Drec. 31,
(in millions) 2011 2000 (b)
Tier 1 capital:
Comumon shareholders’ equity $ 33417  § 32354
Trust prefested securities 1,659 1,676
Adjnstments for:
Goodwill and other intangibles (c) {20,0630) (21,297)
Pensionsfcash flow hedges 1,426 1,053
Securities valuation allowance (450) {170)
Merchant banking investments 33) (19
Total Tier 1 capitat 15,389 13,597

Tiex 2 capitals
Qualifying unrealized gains on
equily seourities 2 5
Qualifying subordinated debt 1,548 2,38
Qualifying allowance for credit
losses 497 571

Total Tier 2 capifal 2,044 2,957
Total risk-based capital $ 17433 $ 16,554
Total rigk-weighted agsets $102,258 3101407
Average assets for leverage
capital parposes $296,484  $235.905
faj Ona regulatory hasis as deternined under Basei ]

guildelines.

(b) Includes discontinued operations.

(¢) Reduced by deferred tax liabilities associated with nen-tax
deductible identtifiabic intangible assets of $1,439 miilion at
Dec. 31, 2011 and $1,625 willion at Dec. 31, 2010, ard
deferred tox linbilities associated with tax dednctible
goodwill of $967 railiion at Dec. 31, 2011 and $816 million
az Dec. 31, 2040
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Note 17-—Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

ASC 820 Adjustimenis

Unrealized

gain {loss) Urircalized Total
Toreign Qther post- on assets gain (Joss)  accurmulated
cprrency retirgment available-  on cash flow urealized
(dollars in millions) transtation  Pensions benefits for-sale hedges (a) gain (10ss)
2008 ending balance, net of x {expense)
benefit $(363  § (9%6) ${66) $ (4,053) $ 37 $ (5401
Adjustments for the curaulative effect of
applying ASC 320, net of taxes of 3-, §-, $-,
$470, §-, $470 . . (676) (676)
Adjusted balance at fan. 1, 2009 (363) (956) (66) (4,729) 37 (6,077}
Change in 2009, net of tax (expense) benefit of
$(82), §14, 33, $489), §(1), 3(592D) 227 (46) ¢)) 762 {16) 926
Reclassification adjustment, net of tax.
(expense) benefit $-, 3-, 3, 8(2,022), &-,
$(2,022) : 3,348 (32) 3,316
2009 total unrealized gain (0ss) 227 (40) (1) 4,110 (48) 4,242
2009 encing balance, et of (ax (expense)
benefil $(136)  $(1,002) 37 § (619) $(11) $(1,835)
Adjustments for the cumulative effect of
applying ASC 810 - - - 24 - 24
Adjustled balance at Jan. 1, 2010 {136y (1,002) (67) (395) (11} (1,811
Change in 2010, et of tax (expense) benefit of
$(6%), 815, $(3), $(469), §-, $(525) (319} 9 12 747 12 461
Reclagsificaion/other adjustment, net of tax
(expense) benefit -, % -, 3 -, §12, $2, $14 (18) (b) - 18 (b) {5) (3)
2010 toial vorealized gain (loss) 337y 9 12 765 7 436
2010 ending balance, net of tax (expense}
benefit {4733 (993) $(55) § 170 3 $(1,355)
Change in 2011, net of tax (expense) benefit
of $(11), $230, $24, $(177), $(2), $64 {178y (336) 1Gh))] 306 3 (246)
Reclassification/other adjustiment, net of tax
{expense) benefit $ -, $ -, § -, $22, 82, $24 - - - (26) - {26}
2011 total unrealized gain (loss) (178) (336) {41) 280 3 Q72
2011 ending balance, net of fax (expense)
benefit 5651  $(1,329) $(26) $§ 450 § (1) $ (1,627)

(a} Includes unrealized gain (loss) on foreign currency cash flow hedges of $1 wmillion, $- million and, $¢1) milfion ot Dec. 31, 2011,

Dec. 31, 2010 and Dec. 31, 2009, respectively.

by Includes a net reclassification adjustment of $14 million to retained ecrnings from other comprehensive income.

Note 18--Stock-based compensation

Our Long-Term Tncentive Plans provide for the
issnance of stock options, restricted stock, restricted
stock units (“REUS) and other stock-based awards to
employees of BNY Mellon. At Dec. 31, 2011, under
the Long-Term Incentive Plan approved in April
2011, we may issue 50,858,398 new options. Of this
amount, 28,528,609 shares may be issued as restricted
stock or R8Us. Stock-based compensalion expense
related to retirement eligibility vesting totaled $31
miltion in 2011, $25 million in 2010, and $16 million
in 2008.

126 BNY Mellon

Stock options

Our Long-Term Incentive Plans provide for the
issuance of stock options at fajr market value at the
date of grant to officers and emplovees of BNY
Mellon. Generally, each option granted is exercisable
between one and ten years {rom the date of grant.

The compensation cost that has been charged against
income was $96 million for 2011, $87 million for
2010 and $86 million for 2009. The total income tax
benefit recognized in the income statement was $40
million for 2011, $35 million for 2010 and $35
million for 2009.
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We nsed a lattice-based binomial method to calculate Tor 2011, 2010 and 2009, assumptions were
the fair value on the date of grant. The fair value of determined as follows:

each option award is estimated on the date of grant
using the weighted-average assumptions noted in the
following table:

Assumptions 2011 2010 2009
Dividend yield 2%  22%  31%
Fxpected volatility 32 32 34
Rigk-free interest rate 278 2.94 2.22
Expected option lives (in years) 6.7 6.6 39

o Expected volatilities are based on implied
volatilities from traded options on our stock,
historical volatility of our stock, and other
factors.

e We use historical data to estimate option
exercises and employee terminations within the
valuation model.

¢ The risk-free rate for periods within the
contractual life of the option is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve at the time of grant.

e The expected term of options granted is derived
from the output of the option valuation model
and represents the period of time that options
granied are expected to be outstanding.

A summary of the status of our options as of Dec. 31,2011, and changes during the year, is presented below:

Stock option activity Weighted-
average remaining,
Shares subject  Weighted-average contractual term
to option exercise price {in years)
Balance at Dec. 31, 2010 92,540,471 $35.21
Granted 8,739,395 29.98
Exercised (802,287) 2111
Canceled (13,667,087) 44,73
Ralance at Dec. 31, 2011 86,803,492 $33.32 5.2
Vested and expected to vest at ec. 31, 2011 86,150,188 33.35 5.2
Exercisable at Dec, 31, 2011 60,158,853 35.21 4.0

Stock options outstanding at Dee. 31, 2011

Options cutstanding

Options exercisable {a)

Weighted-

average
emaining Weighted- Weighted-
Range of contractual average Exercisable AVETage
exercise Outstanding at life exeIcise at Dec. 31, exercise
prices Diee. 31, 2011 {inyears) price 2011 price
$18 031 43,343,651 6.5 $26.05 20,108,983 $24.96
31 o4l 22,879,675 38 37.03 22,004,630 36.93
41 to 51 20,580,166 3.9 44.51 18,045,240 44.52
318105 86,803,492 5.2 $33.32 60,158,853 $35.21

{a) At Dec. 21, 2010 and 2009, 62,801,018 and 65,703,148 aptions were exercisable at an average price pey common share of $37.93 and

$38.96, respectively.

Aggregate nilrinsic value of options

{in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Ouistanding at Dec. 31, $22 3193 8167
Exercisable at Dec. 31, $11 $77 8§ 2

The weighted-average fair value of options at grant
date was $8.47 in 2011, $8.38 in 2010 and $4.59 in
2009.

The total intringic value of options exercised was $7
million in 2011, $12 million in 2010 and $3 million in
2009.

As of Dec. 31,2011, $110 million of total
unrecognized cotpensation cost related to n onvested
options is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 1.6 years.
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Ctash received from option cxercises totaled $18
million in 2011, $31 million in 2010 and $16 million
in 2009. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax
deductions from options exercised totaled $2 million
in 2011, $1 million in 2010 and $4 million in 2009.

Restricted stock, vestricted stock units (“RSU” ) and
Total Shareholder Return (“TSR ™) awards

Restricted stock and RSUSs are granted under our
1.ong-Term Incentive Plans at no cost to the recipient.
These awards are subject to forfeiture until certain
restrictions have lapsed, including continued
employment, for a specified period. The recipient of a
share of restricted stock is entitled to voting rights and
generally is entitled to dividends on the common
stock. An RSU entitles the recipient to receive a share
of common stock after the applicable restrictions
lapse. The recipient generally is entitled to receive
cash payments equivalent to any dividends jraid on the
underlying common stock during the period the RSU
is outstanding but does not receive voting rights.

The fair value of restricted stock and RSUs is equal to
the fair market value of our common stock on the date
of grant. The expense is recognized over the vesting
period, which is generally three years. The total
compensation expense recognized for restricted stock,
RSUs and TSRs was $134 million m 2011, $119
million in 2010 and $124 million in 2009. The total
income tax benefit recognized in the income statement
was $52 mitlion for 2011, $46 million for 2010 and
$48 miltion for 2009.

Tn March 2008, BN'Y Mellon granted TSR awards.
Under the tetms of the TSR Performance share
awards, a target award comprised of restricted stock
was granted o an employee at the beginning of the
three-year performance period beginuing on Jan. 1,
2008 through Dec. 31, 2010. BN'Y Mellon’s aciual
TSR for the performance period is compared to the
results of a peer group (weighted two-thirds) and an
S&P 500 Financial Services Index (weighted
one-third). Based on the final calculations, 76% of the
target awards (150,038 shares of the target number of
performance shares) were earned and released to the
participants. The reanaining shares that were not
earned were forfeited. As of Dec. 31, 2011, there were
no TSR awards outstanding.

In 2011, 817,698 of RSUs were granted to members
of BNY Mellon's Executive Conymittee which
contained certain performance criteria that were
achieved in 2011, The actual nuniber of units that vest

126 BNY Mellon

is subject to negative discretion by BNY Mellon's
Fluman Resources and Compensation Committee. As
a result, these shares are subject to variable
accouing.

The following table summarizes our nonvested
restricted stock, RSU and TSR activity for 2011

Weighted-
AVErage
fair value

Nonvested restricied stock, RSUs Number of
and TSRs activity shares

Wonvasted restricted stock, RSUs

and TSRs at Dec. 31, 2010 11,319,776 $29.96
Granted 5,828,098 29.79
Vesled (3.530,607) 39.91
Rorfeited (483,809) 3379
Nonvested restricted stock and

RSUs at Pec. 31, 2011 (o) 13,133,458 $26.44

(a) Incliedes 817,698 shares grantedio members of BNY
Mellon's Bxacutive Commitice that are marked-to-market
based on the closing stock price at Dec. 31, 2011 of $19.91.

As of Dec. 31, 2011, $143 million of total
uprecognized compensation costs related to nonvested
restricted stock and RSUs is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.4
years.

The total fair value of restricted stock, RSUs and
TSRs that vested was $100 million in 2011, §96
million in 2010 and $72 million in 2009,

Subsidiary Long-Term Incentive plans

BNY Mellon also has several subsidiary Long-Term
Incentive Plans which have igsued restricted
subsidiary shares to certain employees. These share
awards are subject to forfeiture until certain
restrictions have lapsed, inchuding continued
employment for a specified period of time. The shares
are non-voting and non-dividend paying. Once the
restrictions lapse, which generally occurs in three to
five years, the shares can only be sold, at the option of
the employee, to BNY Mellon at a price based
generally on the fair value of the subsidiary at the time
of repurchase. In certain instances BNY Mellon has
an election to call the shares.

Note 19-Employee benefit plans

BNY Melton has defined benefit and defined
contribution retirement plans covering substantially
all full-time and eligible part-time employees and
other post-retirement plans providing healthcare
henefits for certam retived employees.
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Pension and pasi-retirement healthcare plans

The following tables report the combined data for owr domestic and foreign defined benefit pension and post-

retivement healthcare plans.

Pension Benefits

Healthcare Benefits

Domestic Forsign romestic Foreign

(doliar amounis in millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Weighted-average assumptions used fo defer mine

benetit obligations
Discount rate 4.78% S71%  4987% S2%  4795% S571% 3.00% S5A0%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00 3.50 3.57 447 3.00 3.50 - -
Change in benefit obligation (a)
Renefit obligation at beginning of period 43,139 3(2.833)  §(626) S(5835) $232) S242) 0§ 3 % )
Service cost (64 ©0) (33) (28) %)) (2 .-
Interest cost (174) (174 (30) 30 {13) (14)
Employee contributions - - 1 1 - . -
Amendiments - 26 - (3) N N .
Actarial gain (foss) 397) (224) {3) (28} @7} 5 (€N}
{Acquigitions) divestitres - . - 1D - . .
Curtailiments ) - - - - - -
Benefits pad 140 155 12 10 26 21
Foreign exchange adjustroent N/A N/A 3 20 N/A NiA -

Benefit obligarion al end of perind (3,639 (3,139) (68:4) G20)  (288) (232 {4) (3)
Change in fair value of plan assets
Fair value at beginning of period 3,628 3,331 611 540 71 66 -
Actual retmn on plan assets 26 427 30 70 2 5 -
Employer contributions 15 25 86 21 26 21 -
Employee conltribolions “ - 1 1 - . .
Acquisifons (divest tures) - - - 10 - - .
Benefil payments (140) (155) (12) {10 (26) 210 -
Foreign exchange adjustment N/A NIA (5} 1) N/A N/A -

Fair value at end of period 3,520 3,628 681 611 13 71 - -

Funded status at end of period $ 110y $ 489 % (3§ (15) §21%) g6y § () & (Y
Amounts recognized in accomulated other

comprehensive (income) loss consist. of:
Net Toss (gai; $3,126 $1582 §188 817 $124 8% 36 S (B § 4
Prior service cost (credit) (78) (943 3 3 3) ©))] . -
Net initial obligation (asset) “ - - - 3 8 - .

Total {before tax efiecis) $ 2,048  $ 1,488 $191 $IB0 $124 3 60 0§ () § (4

(@} The benefit obligation for pension benefits is the projected bensfit obligation and for healthcare benefits, it is the accurmilated benefit

obligation.
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Net periodie benefit cost
(eredity

Pension Benefits

Healtheare Benefits

Domestic Foreign Domuestic Foreign

(dollor ameounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2031 2010 2009
Weighted-average

assmnptions as of Jan, 1:
Market-related value of plan

assels $3,836 $3861 $3,651 $624 $529 $450 $ 78 $ 76 § 77 NA O ONA O NA
Discount rate G 6.21% 6.38%  5209% 574% 6.18% 371% 621% 6.38% 5.40% 5.85% ©6.25%
Fixpected rate of retnn on plan

assels 7.50 8.00 8.00 6§38 660 640 7.50 800 800 NA  NA  NA
Rate of compensation increase 3.80 3,50 3.50 447 461 411 380 330 350 N/A N/A N/A
Components of net peiodie

henetit cost (credit):
Service cost $ 64 5 9 % 96 $33 $28 %W S 2% 23 25 - 5 - %
Interest cost 174 171 160 36 30 24 13 14 16 -
Expected return on assets (282) (303) (295 “» @GN (32) {6) 6) (6) -
Amortization of:

Net juitial obligaiion (asset) - - - - s 4 4 -

Prior service cost {eredit) (1.6) 14) (14) - - - {1 - - - - -

Net actuarial (gain) 10ss 169 i 26 14 11 3 3 5 5 1) €D} (1)
Settlement (gainj loss - - b - - - - - - - -
Curtailment (gain) loss 5 - - . - - - - - - - -
Other - - (10) O - - - - - - - -

Net periodic benefit cost

(eredit) $ 54 % 15 % 3Vw$ 39 % 32 $ 15 8§ 16§ 9 $21 & $ MY D

(@} Includes discontinued operations.

Changes in other comprehensive (income) loss in 2011

Pension Benefits

Healthoare Benefits

{in pillions) Domestic  Foreign  Domestic  Foreign
Met loss (gain) arising during period $653 $22 $71 $1
Recognition of prior years' vet gain (Ioss} (1.0 14) 3 1
Prior service cost {credit) ansing during period - - - -
Recognition of prier years’ service (cost) credit 16 - 1 -
Recognition of net initial (obligation) asset . - (6] -
Foreign exchange adjustruent N/A. 3 - -

Total recogmzed in other comprehensive (income) loss {before tax effects) $360 %11 $64 %2

Amounts expected to be vecognized in net periodic benetit

cost (inconte) in 2012 (before tax effects)

Peusion Benefils

Healtheare Benefits

(in nullions} Domestic  Foreign  Domestic  Foreign
(CGain) 1oss recognition $167 $12 %9 $-
Prior service cost recognition (16} - . -
Met initial obligation (assel) recognition - - 3 -
Domestic Foreign Plans with obligations in
(in millions) 2011 o010 2011 2010 excess of plan asseis Domestic Foreign
i’e nsion be.nefi Lo {in millions) 2011 2000 2011 2010
Prepaid benefit cost $193 S$680  $41 $52 Projected benefit abligation $234 3212 835 $32
Accrued benefit cost @213 (191 @4 (67y  Hecumulated benefit
. " ) ) 1 & bligation 233 21 iy 26
tal pension beneiits 5(11 3 48 ( $(15 ©

Tolal pension benelils $(110) 49 $(3)  3(15) Fair value of plan assels 20 ”n 3 5
Iiealtheare henefits: )
Accrued benefit cost $218) 301611 $ (4§ D L ) i ]

Total healtheare betiefits 5215 S(6D) S (&) S B For information on pension assumptions see the

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined

benefit plans was $4.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 and
$3.6 hillion at Dec. 31, 2010.
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Assumed healthcare cost trend-—-Domestic post-
retiremeni healthcare benefits

The assumed healthcare cost frend rate used in
determining benefit expense for 2012 s 8.00%
decreasing to 4.75% in 2022. This projection is based
on various economic models that forecast a decreasing
growth rate of healthcare expenses over time. ‘The
underlying assumption is that healthcare expense
growth cannot outpace gross national product
(“GNP”) growth indefinitely, and over time a lower
equilibrivm growth rate will be achieved. Further, the
growth rate assumed in 2022 bears a reasonable
relationship to the discount rate.

An increase in the healtheare cost trend rate of one
percentage point for each year would increase the
accunrulated post-retirement benefit obligation by
$21.0 million, or 8%. and the sum of the service and
interest costs by $0.8 million, or 9%. Canversely. a
decrease in this rate of one percentage point for each
year would decrease the benefit obligation by $18.1
willion, or 7%, and the s of the service and interest
costs by $0.7 million, or 8%.

Assumed healthcare cost trend—Foreign post-
retirement healthcare benefits

An incresse in the healthcare cost trend rate of one
percentage point for each year would increase the
accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation by less
than $1 million and the sum of the service and interest
costs by less than $1 million. Conversely, a decrease
in this raie of one percentage point for each year
would decrease the benefit obligation by less than $1
million and the sum of the service and intercst costs
by less than $1 million.

Investment strategy and asset allocation

BN'Y Mellon is responsible for the administration of
various pension and healthcare post-retirement
benefits plans, both domestically and iuternationally.
The domestic plans are administered by BNY
Mellon’s Benefils Administration Commitlee, a
named fiduciary. Subject to the following, at all
relevant times, BNY Mellon’s Benefiis Investment
Committee, another named fiduciary to the domestic
plan, is responsible for the investment of plan assets.
The Benefits Investment Committee’s responsibilities
include the mvestment of all domestic defined benefit
plan assets, as well as the determination of investment
options offered to participants in all domestic defined
contribution plans. The Benefits Investment
Committee conducts periodic reviews of investment

performance, asset allocation and investment manager
suitability. In addition, the Benefits Investment
Commitiee has oversight of the Regional Governance
Committees for the foreign defined bepefit plans.

Our investment objective for U.S. and foreign plavs is
to maximize total return while maintaining a broadly
diversified portfolio for the primary purpose of
satisfying obligations for future benefit payments.

Equities are the main holding of the plans. Alternative
investments (including private equities) and fixed
jncome securities provide diversification and, in
certain cases, lower the volatility of retwns. In
general, equity securities and alternative investments
within any domestic plan’s portfolio can be
maintained in the range of 30% to 70% of total plan
assets, fixed-income securities can range from 20% to
509% of plan assets and cash equivalents can be held in
amounts ranging from D% to 5% of plan assets. Actual
asset allocation within the approved ranges varies
from time to time based on economic conditions (both
current and forecast) and the advice of professional
advisors,

Our pension assets were invested as follows at
Dee. 31, 2011 and 2010:

Assetallocations Dormestic Foreign
2011 2010 2011 2010
Equities 8§2%  57% 64%  55%
fixed income 38 33 29 28
Private equities 3 3 - ;
Alternative investment 6 6 3 9
Real estate - - 3 3
Cash 1 1 1 5
Total pension benefits 100% 100% 100% 100%

We held no BNY Mellon Corporation stock in our
pension plans at Dec. 31, 2010 and 2011. Assets of
the 10.S. post-retirement healthcare plan are invested
in an insurance contract.

BNY Mellon expects to make cash contributions to
fund its defined benefit pension plans in 2012 of $18
million for the domestic plans and $26 million for the
foreign plans.

BNY Mellon expects to make cash contributions to
fund its post-retirement healthcare plans in 2012 of
$24 million for the domestic plans and less than $1
million for the foreign plans.
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The following benefit payments for BNY Mellon’s
pension and healthcare plans, which reflect expected
future service as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

K xpected benefit payments

(in millions) Domestic  Foreign
Pension benetits:
Year 2012 $ 17 § 9
2013 183 11
2014 197 i1
2015 213 3
2016 233 17
o 2017-2021 1,256 101
Total pension benefits $2,259 $162
Healthcare benefits:
Year 2012 § 24 s -
2013 24 -
2014 24
2015 24
2016 25 -
3017-2021 119 1
Total healtheare benefils $ 240 $ 1

Tiffective Jan. 1, 2011, the U.8. pension plan was
amended to reduce benefits carned by participants for
service after 2010, and to freeze plan participation
such that no new employees will enter the plan after
DDec. 31, 2010.

Fair value measurement of plan assels

In accordance with ASC 715, BNY Mellon has
established a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurements of its pension plan assets based upon
the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset
as of the measurement date. The valuation hierarchy is
consistent with gnidance in ASC 820 which is detailed
in Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The following is a description of the valuation
methodologies used for assets measured at fair valoe,
as well as the general classification of such assets
pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Cash and currency

This category consists primatily of foreign currency
balances. Foreign currency is translated nionthly
based on curtent exchange rates.

Common and preferred stock and exchange traded
Funds

These types of securities are valued at the closing
price reported in the active muarket in which the
individual securities are traded, if available. Where

132
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there are no readily available market quotations, we
determine fair value primarily based on pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transparency.

Venture capital investments and parinership interests

There are no readily available market quotations for
these funds. The fair value of the investments is based
on the Plan’s ownership percentage of the fair value
of the underlying funds as provided by the fund
managers. These funds are typically valued on &
quarterly basis. The Plan’s venture capital investments
and partnership interests are valued at NAV as a
practical expedient for fair value.

Collective trust funds

There are no readily available market quotations for
these funds. The fair value of the fund 15 based on the
securities in the portfolio, which typically is the
amount that the fund might reasonably expect to
receive for the securities upon a sale. These funds are
ejther valued on a daily or menthly hasis.

Corporate debt and U.S. and sovereigh government
obligations

Certain corporate debt and goverument obli gations are
valued at the closing price reported in the active
market in which the bonds are traded. Other corporate
debt and government obligations are valued based on
yields currently available on comparable securities of
issuers with similar credit ratings. When quoted prices
are not available for identical or similar bonds, the
bonds are valued using discounted cash flows that
maximize observable inputs, such as current yields of
similar instruments, but includes adjustments for

certain risks that may not be observable, such as credit

and liquidity risks.
U.S. Treasury securities

Treasury securities are valued at the closing price
reported in the active market in which the individnal
security is traded.

Funds of funds

Thetre are no readily available matket quotations for
these funds. The fair value of the fund is based on
NAVs of the funds in the portfolio, which reflects the
value of the undetlying securities. The fair value of
the underlying securities is typically the amount that
the frmd might reasonably expect1o receive upon
selling those hard to value or illiquid securities within
the portfolios. For securities that are readily valued,
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fair value is the closing price at the end of the period.
These funds are valued on a monthly basis.

The following tables present the fair value of each
major category of plan assets as of Dec. 31, 2011 and
Dec. 31, 2010, by captions and by ASC 820 valuation
hierarchy. There were no transfers between Level |
and Level 2.

Plan assets measored at Fair value on a recurring basis—
domestic plans at Dec. 31, 2011

Total

(in millions) Tevell Level?2 Llevel3 fair value
Collective rrust funds % - $1,079 $ - $1,070
Common and preferred

stock 893 - ~ 803
Corporate debi.

obligations - 792 ~ 792
148, and sovereign

governient

obligations 385 83 ~ 468
Funds of funds - - 128 128
Ventore capital and

partnership interests - - 121 121
Exchange traded funds 57 - - 57
Total domesie plan

agsets, at fair value $1,335  $1,948 $249 $3.529

Plan assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis—
foreign plans at Dec. 31,2011

Total

(in millions) Levell Level2 Level3 fair value
Equity fonds $312 $121 $ - $433
Sovergign/govermmeit

obligation funds 22 192 - 124
Corporate debt funds - 63 14 77
Cash and currency 7 - - 7
Venture capital and

partnership interests « ~ 40 40
Total foreign plan

asaets, at fair value $341 $286 $54 8681

Changes in Level 3 fair value measurements

Plan assets measured at Fair value on a recurring basis—
domestic plans at Dec. 31, 2010

Total

{in millions) Levell Level2 Level3 fair value
Collective trnst funds 3 - $1.181 5 - $1,181
Conuson and preferred

stock 938 - - 938
Corporate debt

ohligations - ey - 777
U.S. and sovereign

government

olligations 271 209 - 480
Funds of fonds - - 134 134
Venture capital and

partnership interests - - 113 115
Exchange traded fonds 3 3
Total domestic plan

assels, al fair value $1,212  $2,167 3249 33,628
Plan assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis—
foreign plans at Dec. 31, 2010

Total

{in millions) Tevell Level2 Level 3 fair value
Equity funds $234 3126 $ - 3360
Sovereign/government

obligation furkls 37 46 - 103
Corporate debt funds - 67 14 ]
Cash and currency 26 - - 26
Venture capital and

partusrship interests - - 41 41
Total foreign plan

assels, at fair valug $317 3239 $55 $611

"The table below includes a rollforward of the plan assets for the years ended Dec. 31,2011 and 2010 (including
the change in fair value), for financial instruments classified in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy.

Kair value measurements using significant unobser vable inputs—domestic plans—for the year ended Dec, 31, 2011

{in millions)

Venture capital and
partnership wnlerests

Total plan assels

Funds of funds at air value

THair value at Dec. 31, 2010 5134 $115 $249
T'otal gains or (losses):

Inchuded in earnings (or changes i net assets) {2) 20 18
Purchases, issnances, sales and seftlements:

Purchases - 7 7

Sales (4) 21) (25)
Fair value at Dec. 31, 2011 5128 $121 $249
The amount of tofal gains or (losses) included in earnings for changes in net

agsels) attributable 1o the changes in unrealized gains or losses S 2 $ 8 $ 10
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Tair value measurements using signiticant unobservable inputs—foreign plans—for the year ended Dec. 31, 2011

Corporate Venture capital and  Total plan assets
(in millions) eht funds  partnership interests al fair value
Fair value at Dec, 31, 2010 $14 $41 855
Total gains or (losses) inclidedin earnings (or changes in net asseis) - 1 1
Purchases, issuances, sales and settlements:
Purchases - 4 !
Sales - [€©) {6)
Yair value at Dec. 31, 2011 $14 $440 $54
The amount of total gains or (losses) inciuded {u earnings {or changes in net
assefs) aitributable to the changes in onrealized gains or losses 3 - §1 31
Fair value measurements using significant unobser vable inputs—domestic plans—for the year ended Dec. 31, 2010
Changes in

unrealized gains and

Total realize</ Purchases, ‘Transfers (losses) related to
Fai value at - unrealized gaing issuances amd  in/ont-of  Fair value ar plan assets held
(in miillions) Dec. 31, 2000 (fosses)  setilements, net Tevel 3 Dec 31,2010 at Dee, 31, 2010
Venture capital and partmership
interests $110 $8 $3) 3- $118 $2
Funds of funds 121 5 3 - 134 2
Tolal plan assets al fair value $231 $13 $35 $- $249 34

Tair value measurementis using significant unobservable inputs-~foreign plans—for the year ended Dec. 31,2010

Change in
unrealized gains and

Total realized/ Purchases, Transfors flosses) related to
¥air value at  unrealized gains jissuances and  infont-of  Fair value at plan assets held
(in millions) Dec, 31, 2009 (losses)  setllements, net Level 3  Dec 31,2010 at Dec, 31, 2010
Venture capital and partnership
{nrerssts $36 $5 $- $- $41 35
Corporate ebt fonds 13 1 - - 14 1
Total plan assels at fair valoe $49 %6 $- $- 355 $6

Veniure capital and partnership interests and funds of
Sfunds valued using net asset value per share

AtDee. 31, 2011, BN'Y Mellon had pension and post-
retirement plan assets invested in venture capital and
partnership interests and funds of funds valued using
net asset value. The fund of funds invesiments are
redeemable at net asset value under agreements with
the fund of funds managers.

Venture capital and partnership interestz and funds of funds
valued using NAV-—Dec. 31, 2011

Redernption

(dollar amounts Fair Unfunded Redemption notice
in millions) vaue commitments  frequency period
Ventore capital

and parfership

inlerests (a) %161 $36 N/A N/
Funds of funds (b) 128 - Montidy 3045 days

Total %289 336

() Venture capital and partnership interests do not have
redemption Fights, Distributions frem such fiunds will be
received as the widerlying invessments are Lguidoted.

(b} Funds of finds include multi-strategy hedge funds that utilize
investent strategies that invest over both long-terin
investment and shorl-teyi investment horizons.

134 BNY Mellon

Defined contyibution plans

We have an Employee Stock Ownership Plan
{“ESOP™) covering certain domestic full-time
employees with more than one year of service. The
ESOP works in conjunction with the defined benefit
pension plan. Bmployees are entitled to the higher of
their benefit under the ESOP or such defined benefit
pension plan at retirement. Benefits payable under the
defined benefit pension plan are offset by the
equivalent value of benefits carned under the ESCP.

Contributions are made equal to required principal
and interest payments on borrowings by the ESOP. At
Dec. 31, 2011 and Dec. 31, 2010, the BESOP owned
7.1 million and 7.4 million shares of our stock,
respectively. The fair value of total ESOP assels was
$146 million and $2238 million at Dec. 31, 2011 and
Dec. 31, 2010, respectively. There were no
contributions and no ESOP related expense in 2011,
2010 or 2009.

We have defined contribution plans, excluding the
ESOP, for which we recognized a cost of $182 million
in 2011, $163 million in 2010 and $163 million in
2009,
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The Benefits Investment Committee appointed
liiduciary Counsclors, Inc. to serve as the independent
fiduciary to (i) make certain fiduciary decisions
related to the continued prudence of offering the
common stock of BNY Mellon or its affiliates as an
investment option under the plans other than with
respect to plan sponsor decisions, and (i} select and

monitor any internally managed investments (active or

passive, including mntual funds) of BNY Mellon or
its affiliates to be offered to participants as investment
options under the Plan.

Note 20-—Company financial information

Our bank subsidiaries are subject to dividend
limitations under the Federal Reserve Act, as well as
national and state banking laws. Under these statutes,
prior regulatory consent is required for dividends in.
any year that would exceed the bank’s net profits for
such year combined with retained net profits for the
prior two years. Additionally, such bank subsidiaries
may not declare dividends in excess of net profits on.
hand, as defined, after deducting the amount by which
the principal amount of all loans, on which interest is
past due for a period of six months or more, exceeds
the allowance for credit losses. The Bank of New
York Mellon, which is a New York state chartered
bank, is also prohibited from paying dividends in
excess of net profits.

The payment of dividends also is limited by mintimum
capital requirements imposed on banks. As of Dec.
31, 2011, BNY Mellon’s bank subsidiaries exceeded
these minimum requirements.

Our bak subsidiaries can declare dividends to the
Parent of approximately $1.4 billion, subsequent to
Dec. 31, 2011 without the need for a regulatory
waiver. In addition, at Dec. 31, 2011, non-bank
subsidiaries of the Parent had liquid assets of
approximately $1.4 bitlion.

The bank subsidiaries declared dividends of $156
million in 2011, $239 moillion in 2010 and $659
million in 2009. The Federal Reserve Board and the
OCC have issued additional guidelines that require
bank holding companies and national banks to
continually evaluate the level of cash dividends in
relation to their respective operating income, capital
needs, asset quality and overall financial condition.

The Federal Reserve Board policy with respect to the
payment of cash dividends by bank holding
companies provides that, as a matter of prudent

banking, a bank holding company should not maintain

a rate of cash dividends unless its net income
available to common shareholders has been sufficient
to fully fund the dividends, and the prospective rate of
earnings retention appears to be consistent with the
holding company’s capital necds, asset quality and
overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve
Board can also prohibit a dividend if payment would
constitute an unsafe or unsound banking practice. Any
increase in BNY Mellon’s ongoing gquarterly
dividends would require approval from the Federal
Reserve. The Federal Reserve’s current guidanes
provides that, for large bank holding companies like
us, dividend payout ratios exceeding 30% of projected
after-tax net income will receive particularly close
scrutiny.

On Nov. 22, 2011, the Federal Reserve issued. a final
rule requiring UJ.S. bank holding companies with total
consolidated assets of $50 billion or more, like BNY
Mellon, to submit annual capital plans for review. The
Tederal Reserve will evaluate the bank holding
companies’ capital adequacy, internal capital
adequacy assessment processes, and their plans to
make capital distributions, such as dividend payments
or stock repurchases.

BNY Mellon’s capital plan was filed with the Federal
Reserve on Jan. 9, 2012. The comprehensive capital
plan, which was prepared using Basel I capital
guidelines, included internally developed baseline and
stress projections as well as supervisory baseline and
stress projections using macroeconomic assumptions
provided by the Federal Reserve. We also provided
the Federal Reserve with projections covering the
time period it will take the Company to fully comply
with Basel III capital guidelines, inchuding the 7%
Tier 1 common equity, 8.5% Tier 1 capital, and 3%
leverage ratios.

The Federal Reserve is expected to provide an initial
response to the capital plan and proposed capital
actions, such as dividend payments and share
repurchases, no later than March 15, 2012 and more
general feedback on the comprehensive capital plan
and capital adequacy processes by April 30, 2012.

To address capital actions planned for prior to
March 15, 2012, the bank holding companies were
given the opportunity to review and confirm in
December 2011 that the Federal Reserve had no
objection to such actions.

The Jederal Reserve Act lmits and requires collateral

for extensions of credit by our insured subsidiary

hanks to BNY Mellon and certain of its non-bank
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affiliates. Also, there are restrictions on the amounts
of investments by such banks n stock and other
securities of BNY Mellon and such affiliates, and
restrictions on the acceptance of their securities as
collateral for loans by such banks. Extensions of
credit by the banks to each of our affiliates are limited
to 10% of such bank’s regulatory capital, and in the
aggregate tfor BNY Metlon and all such affiliates to
20%, and collateral must be between 100% and 130%
of the amount of the credit, depending on the type of
collateral.

Our insured subsidiary banks are reguired to maintain
reserve balances with Federal Reserve Banks under
the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation D). Required
balances averaged $4.3 billion and $2.2 billion for the
years 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Tn the event of impairment of the capital stock of one
of the Parent’s national banks or The Bank of New
York Mellon, the Parent, as the banks” stockholder,
could be required to pay such deficiency.

The Parent gunarantees the debt issued by Mellon
Funding Corporation, a wholly-owned financing
subsidiary of the Company. The Parent also
puarantees commitied and wncommitted lines of credit
of Pershing LLC and Pershing Limited subsidiaries.
"The Parent guarantees described above are full and
unconditional and contain the standard provisions
relating to parent guarantees of subsidiary debt.
Additionally, the Parent guarantees or indemmnifies
obligations of its consolidated subsidiaries as needed.
Generally there are no stated notional amounts
included in these indemnifications and the
contingencies triggering the obligation for
indemnification are not expected to occur. As aresult,
we are unable to develop an estimate of the maximum
payout under these indemuifications. However, we
believe the possibility is remote that we wiil have to
make any material payment under these guarantees
and indemnifications.
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The Parent’s condensed financial statements are as
follows:

Condensed Income Statement—The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation (Parent
Corporation)

Year ended Dec. 31,

(in miliions) 2011 2010(a) 2009 (@)
Dividends from bank

subsidiaries $ 120 $ 200 $ 611
Dividends from nonbank

subsidiariss 34 74 176
Interest reverue from bank

subsidiaries 211 211 228
Interest revenoe from

nonhank subsidiares 130 131 146
Gain (1oss) on securities held

for sale 17 5 (2)
Other revenue 51 73 81

Total revenue 583 694 1,240

Tnterest (including $13, $14

and $23 to subsidiaries) 282 285 366
Other expense 138 22 338

Total expense 420 506 704

fneome {loss) before income

laxes and equity in

andistributed net income of

sibgidiaries 163 188 $36
Provision (henefit) for income

taxes 66 (465) (357)
Bauity in mndistributed net.

income (10ss):

Bank subsidiaries 1,781 1,630 (2,271)

Nonbank subsidiaries 638 235 294
Net incone {1oss) 2,516 2,518 {1,084)
Redemplion charge and

preferred dividends - (283)
Net income (loss) applicable

Lo common shargholders of

The Bank of New York

Mellon Corporation $2.516 $2.518 $(1,367)

(a) Includes the results of discontinued operatians.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Condensed Balance Sheet—The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation (Parent

Corporation)
e, 31,
(in miillions) 2011 2010
Assets:
Clash and due from. banks $ 4,884 3 3452
Secnities 188 219
TLoang--net of allowance 20 52
Investment in and advances
subsidlaties and associated companies:
Banks 29,169 26,349
Othex 20,930 20,578
Subtotal 50,099 46,927
Corporate-owned lifo insurance 666 630
Other assets 3,009 3,014
Total assets $58,866 $54,314

Liabilities:
Deferred compensaion

$ 492 3 497

Commercial paper 10 10
Affiliate borrowings 3,407 3,344
Other Habilities 2735 2,682
Long-term debt 18,803 15427
Total liabiliies 25,449 21,960
Sharcholders® equity 33,417 32,354
Tolal liabilities and shareholders’
equity $58,866 554,314

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows—The
Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (Parent

Corporation)
Year ended Dec, 31,
{in nillions) 2011 2010 2009
Operating activities:
Net income (10ss) $ 2,516 82,518 $(1,084)
Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided
by/ (used it operating
activities:
Amortization 13 14 13
Equity in wndistributed net
(income)foss of
subsidiaries 2,419)  (1,863) 1477
Change in accrued wterest,
recei vable % 2 1)
Change in acerued inierest
payable 11 2 1)
Change in taxes payable (a) 168 321) (482)
Other, net {8ih 17¢ (455)
Net cash provided by/(used
in) operating activities 187 529 (73)
Investing activities:
Purchases of secmities (50) (5} )
Proceeds from sales of
secarities 101 43 129
Change in loans 32 61 110
Acquisitions of, investiments in,
and advances to subsidiaries (611) (1,002 (5606)
Other, net - 208 -
Net cash used in invesiing
activities {528) (695) (330)
Finaneing activities:
Net change in commercial paper - 2) 4)
Proceeds from issnance of long-
term debt 5,042 1,347 3,350
Repayments of tong-ferm. delt (1,911) (2,614) (1,277)
Change in advances from
subsidiaries 63 1o 59
Issuance of common stock. 43 728 1,387
Treasury stock acquired 873) 413 {28)
Cash dividends paicl {593) {4409 (673)
Series 13 preferred stock
repurchased - - (3,000
Warrant sepurchased - - {136}
Tax benefit realized on share
baged payment awards 2 1 4
Net cash provided by/(used
in) financing activilies L7773 (1,031) (318)
Change in cash and due from
Danks 1432 (LW {127
Cash and due from banks at
beginning of year 3,452 4649 5,376
Cash and due from banks at end
of vear $ 4,884 $ 3452 $ 4,649
Supplemental disclosures
Interest paid $ 293 35 284 3 367
Income laxes paid $ 212 5 442¢h) $ 1,013(h)

Income faxes refunded

123 178 (b) £09 ()

(a) Includes paymenis received from subsidiaries for taxes of
3501 miliion in 2011, $900 million in. 2020, and $967 miilion

ir 2009.
(b)) Inclides discontinued operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Note 21—Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of our financial mstriments

(i.e., monetary assets and liabilitiesy are determined
under different accounting methods—see Note 1 of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following disclosure discusses these instruments
on a uniform fair value basis. However, active
markets do not exist for a significant portion of these
instruments, principally loans and interest-bearing
deposits with banks. As a result, fair value
determinations require significant subjective
judgments regarding fature cash flows. Other
judgments would result in different fair values.
Among the assumptions we used are discount rates
ranging principally from 0.01% to 4.17% at Dec. 31,
2011, and 0.12% to0 6.46% at Deg. 31, 2010. The fair
value information supplements the basic financial
statements and other traditional financial data
presented throughout this report.

Note 22, “Fair value measurement” presents assets
and liabilities measured at fair value by the three level
valuation hierarchy established under ASC 820. Note
23, “Fair value option” presents the instruments for
whicly fair value accounting was elected and the
corresponding income statement impact of those
instrwments. A summary of the practices used for
determining fair value is as follows.

Interest-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve
and other central banks, and federal funds sold and
securilies purchased under resale agreements

The fair valae of interest-bearing deposits with the
Federal Reserve and other central banks and federal
funds sold and securities purchased under resale
agreements is assumed to equal carrying value due to
their short maturity.

Interest-bearing deposits with banks

The fair value of interest-bearing deposits with banks
is based on discounted. cash flows.
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Securities, trading activities, and hedging derivatives

The Fair value of securities and trading assets and
liabilities is based on quoted market prices, dealer
guotes, or pricing models. Fair value amounts for
hedging derivatives, such as optious, futures and
forward rate contracts, commitments to purchase and
sell foreign exchange, and foreign currency swaps, are
similarly determined. The fair value of OTC interest
rate swaps is the discounted value of projected future
cash flows, adjusted for other factors including, but
not limited to and if applicable, optionality and
implied volatilities, as well as counterparty credit.

Loans

For residential mortgage loans, fair value is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses, adjusting where
appropriate for prepayment estimates, using interest
rates currently being offered for loans with similat
terms and maturities to borrowers. To determine the
fair value of other types of loans, BNY Mellon uses
discounted cash flows using current market rates.

Other financial assety

Other financial assels primarily include cash and due

from banks, and corporate/bank-owned life insurance.

The fair value of cash and due from banks is assumed

to equal carrying value due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of corporate/bank-owned life insurance

is based on the insurance contract cash surrender
+alue.

Deposits, federal funds purchased and securities sold
under vepurchase agreements, borrawings and long-
term debt

The fair value of noninterest-bearing deposits, federal
funds purchased and securities sold wader repurchase
agreements, and payables to customers and broker-
dealers is assumed to be their carrying amount. The
fair value of interest-bearing deposits, borrowings,
and long-tern debt is based wpon current rates for
instruments of the same remaining maturity or quoted
market prices for the same or similay issues.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contnued)

Summary of financial instryments
Dec, 31, 2011

Dec. 31,2010

Corrying Estimated Carying Estimated
(in nxllions) amount fair value  amonnt fair value
Assets:
Interest-hearing deposits
with the Federal
Reserve and other
central banks $ 90,243 $ 90,243 & 18,549 $ 18,549
Interest-bearing deposifs
with hanks 36,321 36,382 50,200 30253
Federal funds sold and
sccurities purchased
nndler resale
agreeroents 4,510 4,510 5,169 5169
Secorities 84,665 84,802 68950 68,504
Trading assets 7,861 7,861 6,276 6,276
Loans 40,976 41,186 24,163 34,241
Hedging derivatives:
Interest rale contracts 968 958 34 8§34
Poseign exchange
contracis 635 635 2 2
Total hedging
derivatives 1,600 1,600 836 36
Other financial ssseis 9,604 9,004 8,283 §.283
Total financial assets 275,180 275,588 192,426 192,111
Assets of discontinued
operations - - 278 278
Assets of consolidated
investoent
roanagement funds -
primearily trading 11,347 11,347 14,766 14,766
Nuon-financial assets 38,739 39,789
Total assets $325,266 $247,259
Liabilities:
Noniuterest-bearing
deposits $ 95,335 $ 95,335 § 38,705 § 38,703
Inierest-bearing deposits 123,759 123,760 106,636 107,417
Federal funds purchased
and securities sold
under repurchase
agresmenis 6,267 6,267 5,602 5,602
Trading liabilities 8,071 8,071 6,911 6211
Payables to customers
and brokec-dealers 12,671 ¥2,671 9,962 9,962
Borrowings 2,376 2,376 2,997 2,997
Long-teren debt: 19,933 20,459 16,517 17,120
Hedging derivatives:
Interest yate contracts 298 298 44 44
Forxeign exchange
contracts 21 21 116 116
Tuotal hedging
derivatives 319 319 160 160
Total financial
Habilities 268,731 269,288 187488 188,872
Liabilities of
consolidated
investment
management funds
- primarily bading 10,085 10,085 13563 13,563
Nan-financial liabilities 12,249 13,051
Total Habiliiies $201,068 $214,102

The table helow summarizes the carrying amount of
the hedged financial instruments, the notional amount
of the hedge and the estimated fair value (unrealized
gain (loss)) of the derivatives.

Notional Unrealized
Carrying amount
amount of hedge Gain (J.oss)

Hedged financial instruments

{in millions)
At Dec. 31,2011:
Interest-bearing deposits
with banks % 8780 $ 8,780 $441 $ ()
Securities available-for-sale 4,354 4,009 - (289)
Deposits 10 10 1 -

Long-term debt 15,048 14,262 964 9)
At Dec. 31, 2010:
Interest-bearing deposits with
banks $ 6763 $6763% - % -
Securities available- for-sale 2170 2168 51 (33
Deposits 27 25 3 -
Long-{erm debl 12,540 11,774 780 (41

Notie 22—Fair value measurement

The guidance related to *Fair Value Measurement,”
included in ASC 820 defines fair value as the price
that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to
transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date and
establishes a framework for measuring fair value. It
establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurements based upon the transparency of inputs
to the valuation of an asset or Hability as of the
measurement date and expands the disclosures about
ingtruments measured at fair value. ASC 820 requires
consideration of a company’s owa creditworthiness
when valuing liabilities.

The standard provides a consistent definition of fair
value, which focuses on exit price in an orderly
transaction {that ig, not a forced ligquidation or
distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. If
there has been a significant decrease in the volume
and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change
in vatuation technique or the use of nultiple valuation
techniques may be appropriate. In such instances,
determining the price at which willing matlket
participants would transact at the measurement date
under current market conditions depends on the facts
and circumstances and requires the use of significant
judgment. The objective is to determine from
weighted indicators of fair value a reasonable point
within the range that is most representative of fair
value under current market conditions.
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Notes to Consolidated Fihancial Statements (continued)

Determination of fair value

Following is a description of our valuation
methodologies for assets and labilities measored at
fair value. We have established processes for
determining fair values. Fair value is based upon
quoted market prices in active markets, where
available. For financial mstruments where quotes
from recent exchange transactions are not available,
we determine fair value based on discounted cash
flow analysis, comparison to similar instruments, and
the use of financial models. Discounted cash flow
analysis is dependent upon estimated future cash
flows and the level of interest rates. Model-based
pricing uses inputs of observable prices, where
available, for interest rates, forsign exchange rates,
option volatilities and other factors. Models are
benchmarked and validated by an independent internal
risk management function. Our valwation process
takes into consideration factors such as counterparty
credit quality, liquidity, concentration concerns, and
observability of model parameters. Valuation
adjustments may be made to ensure that financial
instruments are recorded at tair value.

Most derivative contracts are valued using internally
developed models which are calibrated to observable
market data and employ standard market pricing
theory for their valuations. An initial “risk-peutral”
valuation is performed on each posilion assuming
time-discounting based on & AA credit curve. Then, to
arrive at a fair value that incorporates counterparty
credit risk, a credit adjustment is made to these results
by discounting each trade’s expected exposures to the
counterparty using the counterparty’s credit spreads,
as implied by the credit default swap market. We also
adjust expected liabilities to the counterparty using
BNY Mellon’s own credit spreads, as implied by the
credit default swap market. Accordingly, the valuation
of our derivative position is sensitive to the current
changes in our own credit spreads as well as those of
our counterparties.

In certain cases, yecent prices may not be observable
for instruments that trade in inactive or less active
markets. Upon evaluating the uncertainty in valuing
financial instruments subject to liquidity issues, we
make an adjustment to their value. The determination
of the liquidity adjustment includes the availability of
extenal quotes, the time since the latest available
guote and the price volatility of the instrument.

Certain parameters in some financial models are not
directly observable and, therefore, are based on
management’s estimates and judgments. These
financial instruments are normally fraded less
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actively. We apply valuation adjustments to mitigate
the possibility of error and revision in the model based
estimate value. Bxamples include products where
parameters such as conelation and recovery rates are
unobservable.

The methods described above for instrurents that
trade in inactive or less active markets may produce a
current fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future
fair values. We believe our methods of determining
fair value are appropriate and consistent with other
market participants. However, the use of different
methodologies or different assumptions to value
certain financial instruments could result in a ditferent
estimate of fair value.

Valuation hierarchy

ASC 820 established a three-level valuation hierarchy
for disclosure of fair value measurements based upon
the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset
or liability as of the measurement date. The three
levels are described below.

Level I: Inputs to the valoation methodology are
recent quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets, Level 1 assets and
liabilities include debt and equity securities and
derivative financial instruments actively traded on
exchanges and U.S. Treasury securities and U.S.
Government securities that are actively traded in
highly liguid over-the-counter markets.

Level 2: Observable mpuis other than Level 1 prices,
for example, quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical
or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, and inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated, either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the financial instrument.
Level 2 assets and Habilities include debt instruments
that arc traded less frequently than cxchange traded
securities and derivative instruments whose model
inputs are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by market observable data. Examples in
this category are certain variable and fixed rate agency
and non-agency securities, corporate debt securities
and derivative contracts,

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are
mobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement. fixamples in this category include
interests in certain securitized financial assets, cerlain
private equity investments, and derivative contracts
that are highly structured or long-dated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A financial instrument’s categorization within the
valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Pollowing is a description of the valuation
methodologies used for instruments measured at fair
value, as well as the general classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Securiiies

Where quoted prices are available in an active market,
we classify the securities within Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy. Securities are defined as both
long and short positions. Level 1 securities include
highly liquid government bonds, money market
mutual funds and exchange-traded equities.

If quoted market prices are not available, we estimate
fair values using pricing models, quoted prices of
secarities with similar characteristics or discounted
cash flows, Examples of such instroments, which
would generally be classified within Level 2 of the
valuation hierarchy, include certain agency and
non-agency mortgage-backed securities, commercial
mortgage-backed securities and European floating rate
notes.

For secorities where quotes from recent transactions
are not available for identical securities, we determine
fair value primarily based on pricing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency that employ
financial models or obtain comparison to signilar
instruments to arrive at “consensus” prices.

Specifically, the pricing sources obtain recent
transactions for similar types of securities (e.g.,
vintage, position in the securitization structure} and
ascertain variables such as discount rate and speed of
prepayment for the types of transaction and apply
such variables to similar types of bonds. We view
these as observable transactions in the cugrent
marketplace and classify such securities as Level 2.
Pricing sources discontinue pricing any specific
secutity whenever they determine there is insufficient
observable data to provide a good faith opinion on
price.

Tn addition. we have signiticant investients in more
aclively traded agency RMBS and other types of
securities such as FDIC-insured debt and sovereign
debt. The pricing sources derive the prices for these
securities largely from quotes they obtain from three
major inter-dealer brokers. The pricing sources
receive their daily observed trade price and other
information feeds from the inter-dealer brokers.

Tor securities with bond insurance, the fisancial
strength of the insurance provider is analyzed and that
information is included in the fair value assessment
for such securities.

In certain cases where there is limited activity or less
transparency around inputs to the valuation, we
classify those securities in Level 3 of the valuation
hierarchy. Securities classified within Level 3
primarily include other debt securities and securities
of state and political subdivisions.

At Dec. 31, 2011, approximately 99% of ous
securities were valued by pricing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency. Less than 1%
of our securities were priced based on economic
models and non-binding dealer quotes, aud are
incinded in Level 3 of the ASC 820 hierarchy.

Consolidated collateralized loan obligations

BNY Mellon values assets in consolidated CLOs
using observable market prices observed from the
secondary loan market. The retuimns to the note holders
are solely dependent on the assets and accordingly
equal the value of those assets. Based on the structure
of the CLOs, the valuation of the assets is atiributable
to the senior note holders. Changes in the values of
assets and liabilities are reflected in the income
statement as investment income and interest of
investment management fund note holders,
respectively.

Derivatives

We classify exchange-traded derivatives valued using
quoted prices in Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.
Fxamples include exchanged-traded equity and
foreign exchange options. Since few other classes of
derivative contracts are listed on an exchange, most of
our derivative positions are valued vsing internally
developed models that use as their basis readily
observable market parameters and we classify them in
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. Such devivatives
inclade basic swaps and options and credit default
sWaps.

Derivatives valued using models with significant
unobservable market parameters in markets that lack
two-way flow, are classified in Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy. Examples mclude long-dated
interest rate or currency swaps and options, where
parameters may be mnobservable for longer maturities;
and certain products, where correlation rates are
unobservable. The fair value of these derivatives
compose less than 1% of our derivative financial
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Noies to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

instruments. Additional disclosures of derivative
instruments are provided in Note 25 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

FLoans and unfunded lending-related commitments

Where quoted market prices are not available, we
generally base the fair valoe of loans and unfunded
lending-related commitments on ohservable market
prices of similar instruments, including bonds, credit
derivatives and loans with similax characteristics. If
observable market prices are not available, we base
the fair value on estimated cash flows adjusted for
credit risk which are discounted using an interest rate
appropriate for the maturity of the applicable loans or
the unfunded lending-related commitments.

Untealized gains and losses on unfunded lending-
related commitments carried at fair value are
classified in Other assets and Other labihities,
respectively. Loans and unfunded lending-related
commitments carried at fair value are generally
classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarcly,

Seed capital

In our Investment Management business we manage
investment assets, including equities, fixed inconie,
money market and alternative investment funds for
institutions and other investors; as part of that activity
we make seed capital investments in certain funds.
Seed capital is incladed in other assets. When
applicable, we value seed capital based on the
published NAV of the fund. We include funds in
which ownership interests in the fund are publicly
traded in an active market and institutional funds m
which investors trade in and out daily in Level 1 of
the valuation hierarchy. We include open-end funds
where investors are allowed to sell their ownership
interest back to the fund less frequently than daily and
where our interest in the fund contains no other rights
or obligations . Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.
However, we generally include investments in funds
that allow investors (o sell their ownership interest
back to the fund less frequently than monthly in Level
3, unless actual redemption prices are observable.

For other types of mvestments in funds, we consider
all of the rights and obligations inherent in our
ownership interest, including the reported NAY as
well as other factors that affect the fair value of owr
interest in the fond. To the extent the NAV
measuretnents reported for the investments are based
on unohservable inputs or include othey rights and
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obligations {e.g., obligation to meet cash calls), we
generally classify them in Level 3 of the valuation
hierarchy.

Certoin nlerests in Securitizations

For certain interests in securitizations which are
classified in securities available-for-sale, trading
assets and long-term debt, we use discommted cash
flow maodels which generally include assumptions of
projected finance charges related to the securitized
assels, estimated net credit losses, prepayment
assumptions and estimates of payments to third-party
investors. When available, we compare our fair value
estimates and assumptions to market activity and to
the actual results of the securitized portfolio.

Private equity investments

Qur Other segment includes holdings of nonpublic
private equity investment through funds managed by
third-party investment managers. We value private
equily investments initially based upon the transaction
price, which we subsequently adjust to reflect
expected exit values as evidenced by financing and
sale transactions with third parties or through ongoing
reviews by the investment managers.

Private equily imvestments also include publicly held
equity investments, generally obtained through the
inttial public offering of privately held equity
investments. These equity investments are often held
in a partnership structure. Publicly held investments
are marked-to-market at the quoted public value less
adjustments for regulatory or contractoal sales
restrietions or adjustments to reflect the difficulty in
selling a partnership interest.

Discounts for restrictions are quantified by analyzing
the length of the restriction period and the volatility of
the equity security. Publicly held private equity
investments are primarily classified in Level 2 of the
valvation hierarchy.

The following tables present the financial instruments
carried at fair value at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010, by
caption on the consolidated balance sheet and by ASC
820 valuation hierarchy (as described above). We
have included credit ratings information in certain of
the tables because the nformation indicates the degree
of credit risk to which we are exposed, and significant
changes in ratings classifications could result in
increased risk for us. There were no material transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 during 201 L.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Assets and Mabilities measured at fair value on a reeuring basis at Dec. 31, 2001

Total carrying

{dottar amounts in viillions} Tevel 1 Jovel 2 J.evel 3 Netting (a) value
Available-for-sale secuities:
LLS. Treasury $17.326 $ . - $ $17.326
U.S. Govemment agancies 958 - - 958
Sovereign debt 44 11.910 - - 11,954
State and political subdivisions (b) - 2,094 45 2,73¢
Agency RMBS 26,756 . 26,796
Alt-A RMBS 279: - 273
Prime RMBS - 815 - - 815
Subpriime RMEBS - 418 - - 418
Other RMBS 903 - 503
Commercial MBS 3,339 3,339
Asset-backed CLOs 1444 - 1,444
Other asset-backed securities - 532 - - 832
Equity securities 9 24 - - 30
Money market funds () 973 - - 973
Other debt securitics E 4,360 3 4,363
Foreign covesed bonds 1,820 603 - 2425
Alt-A RMBS (¢) - 1,879 - 1,879
Primne RMBS (¢) - 1175 - 1,175
Subprime RMBS (¢) - 125 B 125
Total available for-sale 20,172 58,247 48 784¢7
Trading assels:
Debt and equily instruments (4) 485 1,655 63 2,203
Derivative assets:
Interest rate 164 26434 54 N4
Foreign exchange 4,519 113 - N/A,
Beouity 91 84 43 NIA
Other - 3 N/A,
Total derivative asscts 4,774 26,834 97 (26,047 {g) 5,658
Total trading assets 5259 28489 160 {26.047) 7.861
Loans - 10 - - 10
Other assats (2) 672 1,019 157 - 1,848
Subtotal assets of operations at fair value 26,103 87,765 365 (26,047} 88,184
Pesventage of assets pror Lo nelting 22.9% 76.86% 0.3%
Assets of consolidated investiment management. funds:
Trading assets 323 10428 10,751
Other assets 453 143 - 596
Total assets of consolidaied investment management. funds 776 10,571 . - 11,347
Total assets $26,.879 $98,336 3365 $026,047) 499,533
Percentage of assets prior to netting 21.4% 78.3% 0.3%
Trading Habilities:
Debt and ecpuity instruments $ 418§ 3537 3o~ % - $ 955
Derivative Habilities:
Interest rate - 27,201 239 NIA
Foreign exchange 4,311 44 - N/A
Equity 53 200 75 NiA
Total derivative liabilities 4,366 27445 314 (25,009) (g) 7,116
Toigl trading labilities 4,784 27982 314 (25,009) 8.071
Long-term debit (&) - 326 - - 326
Qther liabilitiss () 14 363 - - 382
Subtotal liabilities af fair value 4,798 R ATS 314 {25,009) 8779
Percentage of liabilities prior to netting 14.2% 84.9% 0.9%
Liahilities of congolidated Lnvestment management fands:
Trading abilities - 10,033 10,053
Other labilities 2 30 - 32
Total labilities of consolidated investmenl inanagement funds 2 10,083 - 10,085
Total liabilities $ 4,808 $38,759 $314 &(23,009) $18,864
Percentage of Habilities prior Lo nelting 10.9% 838.4% 0.7%

(@) ASC SI5 permits the neiting of derivative receivables and derivative payables under legally enforceable master netting agreements and permits the

netring af cash collateval.
(h) Inclides cerfain interests i seourithzyations.
(¢} Previousty included in the Granitor Triest.

(d) Inctudes ioans classified as trading assels and cerlain interests in seceritizations.
(e} Includes private eqiaty invesiments, ssed capiial, a brokerage accownt, and derivatives in designated hedging relationships.

() Inclides the fzir value adjustoent for certein unfunded lending-related commitments and derivatives in designaied hedging relationships and suppovt

Qgraenients.
(g} Netiing cannot be disaggregated by product,

>
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at

Dec. 31,2010
Total carrying
(dollar amounts in millions) Levell Lewl2  Level3 Netiing {a) value
Available-for-sale securities:
U.8. Treasury $12.609 ) - $ - % - $12.60%
U6, Govemment agencies - 1,005 . - 1,005
Sovereign debt 27 3,522 - 8,349
State and politeal subdivisions () - 448 10 - 508
Agency RMBS - 19,727 - - 19,727
Alt-4 KMBS - 70 - 47}
Prime RMBS - 1,227 1,227
Subprime RVMBS 508 - 508
Other RMBS - 1,351 - - 1.331
Commercial MBS - 2,639 ~ - 2,639
Asset-backed CLOs - 249 - - 249
Qther assel-backed securitics - 539 539
Equity securitics 18 29 47
Money raadket fonds (&) 2,538 - - - 2.538
Other debt secusities 91 3,193 58 - 3,342
Foreipn covered bonds 2,260 608 - - 2,868
Alt-A RMBS (o) - 2,513 2,513
Prime RMBS {¢) 1,825 - 1,825
Subprime RMES (¢) - 158 - 158
Total securities available-for-sale 17,543 45,041 68 - 62,652
Trading assets:
Debt and equity instruments () 1.598 7160 32 - 2.340
Derivative assets:
Interest rale 272 15,260 119 N/A
Foreigh exchange 3.561 100 - N/A
Equity 79 370 - N/A
Othier 1 1 - N/A
Tolal deddvative assels 3,913 15,731 119 (158275 () 3,936
Total trading assets 5,311 16,441 151 (15,827) 6,276
f.oans - - 6 6
Other assets (e) 52 910 113 - 1,075
Subtotal assets of operations at fair value $23,106 $62,392 3338 S(15,827) §70,009
Peentage of assels prior to netting 26.9% T2.7% 04%
Assets of consolidated investment management funds: .
Trading assets 279 13,842 - - 14,121
Other assets 499 144 2 - 645
Total assets of consolidated investiment managernent funds 778 13,986 2 - 14766
Total assets $23,884 $75,378 3340 $(15,827) $84,775
Percentage of assets prior to netting 23,8% 75.9% 0.3%
Trading liabilities:
Debt and equity instruments $ 1,277 $ 443 $ 6 % - $ 1,726
Derivative labilities
Interast rate - 16,126 149 N/A
Foreign exchange 3,648 59 - N/A
Equity 54 304 22 N/A
Qther - 4 - N/A
Total dexivative labdlities 3,02 16,493 171 (15,181) (g) 5,185
Total trading labilities 4,979 16,936 117 (15,181) 6911
Long-term debt () - 269 ~ - 269
Oiher liabilities () 115 473 2 - 390
Subtotal liabilities ot fair value $ 5,094 517,678 $179 ${15,181) § TI70
Percentage of labilities prior to netting 22.2% 77.0% 0.8%
Liabilities of consalidated investment management funds:
‘Trading liabilities B 13,561 - 13,501
Other liahilities 2 ~ 2
Total labilities of consolidated investmont management funds 2 13,561 - - 13,563
Total liabilities % 5,096 $31,239 $179 $415,181) 521333
Percentage of Liabilities prior to netling 14.0% 85.5% 0.5%

(q) ASC 815 permils the netting of derivative receivables and devivative payaliles wider legally enforcechle master netting agreemients and permits e

netting of cash collateral.
(6)  Includes cerfain interests in securitizations.
(¢)  Previcusly included i the Grantor Trust.

() Tncludes loans classified as trading assets and cerlain interesis in securitizations.

(2) Inciirdes private eq

o Inc
QErEentenls.

(g) Neuing cannot be disaggregated by product.

SN

144 BNY Mellon
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 investments, seed copiial.and derivatives in designated hedging relatio
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemernts (continued)

Details of certain ifems easured at faiv value on

a recurring basis

Dec. 31, 2011

Dee, 31,2010

Total

Ratings

carrying AAA/

Total

Ratings

A+l BBRB+ BB+ and camying AAA/

A+l BBB+ BB+ and

{dollay amounts in milfions) value (ajAA-  A-  BBB- lower value (nAA.  A- BBB- lower
Al-A RMEBS, originated in:
20062007 § 99 Y% Y% -% 0o 4§ 187 o o 100%
2005 113 - - - 100 209 . . - 100
2004 and carhier 61 27 13 47 13 74 70 25 5 -
Total All-A RMBS S 273 6% 3% 11.% 80% § 470 11% 4% 1% B4
Pritge RMBS, originated in:
2007 $ 121 8% 4% -G 58% $ 254 509, 28% 7% 156
2006 73 - - - 160 166 - 39 - 61
2005 230 32 - - 68 310 39 - 14 47
2004 and eardier 389 29 38 11 22 497 79 12 6 3
T'otal prime RMBS § Bi3 8% 19% 5% 48% §1,227 52% 168 8% 24%
Subprme RMBS, onginated in:
2007 % 2 9 2% 984 % % 5 Go  B% 92 e
2005 82 2 12 28 36 97 25 12 12 51
2004 and earlier 334 3 i3 18 62 406 74 13 5 3
Total subprime RMBS $ 418 8% 14% 21 % 57% § 508 64% 13% % 16%
Corpercial MBS~Dotuestic, originated in:
20092011 5 200 100% - - -% $§ -G G T 2
2008 25 16 84 . - - B - -
2007 782 66 26 8 - 685 83 8 9 .
2006 B892 85 15 - - 582 90 10 .
2005 696 944 6 - - 489 100 . -
2004 and earliex 403 97 2 1 - 528 100 - - -
Tolal commercial MEB §—IDD omestic $ 3,008 84% 14% 25 ~Y%  $2,284 NG 3% 3% o
Foreign covered bonds:
Geymany $ 1461 9% 1% ) ~%  $2,260 9% 1% Do %o
Canada 795 1680 - - - 608 100 . -
Other 169 100 - . - - - - - -
Potal foreign covered bonds $ 2425 100%  -% - % $2,868  100% - T G
European floating rate notes—-available-for-sale:
United Kingdom $ 686 T2% 28% T -% $ 838 99% 1% % Y
Ireland 203 - 30 47 3 299 9 8 -
ftaly 150 100 - . - 218 100 - - -
Laxemboury 140 - 100 - - 143 - 100 - -
Australia 101 41 9 - - 136 199 -
Cenmany 23 21 & 73 - 113 31 89 - -
Nethexlands 47 35 65 - - 150 78 22 - -
Fraoee 9 100 - - - 10100 - -
Total European floaling rate notes-—available-for-sale $ 1,429 53% 34% 11% ~% $1,907 85% 13% -G -Gl
Sovercign debt:
United Kingdorn $ 4,526 100% -% T % $3,214  W00% R o %
France 2,790 180 - - 1,845 109 - B -
CGlersany 2,347 100 - - - 3,065 100 -
Netherlands 2,230 109 - - 396 100 - . -
Other 3] 97 3 - - 29 93 6 - 1
Total sovercign debt $11,984  100%  -% -% -G $8,519  100% % Ao -G
Alt-ARMBS (&), originated ity
2007 $ 554 Yo - <% 100% § 792 o T % 100%
2006 488 - . 100 660 - - - 100
2005 628 5 - 1 94 820 2 - 4 94
2004 and carlier 209 - 4 Y1i 69 241 22 46 19 13
Total Alt-A RMBS (b) $ 1,879 2% % 3% 95% $2,513 3% 4% 3% 90
Peime RMBS (&), originated in:
2007 & 370 Rl Yo 100% § 679 % % Fo 100%
2006 308 - - 100 431 - - - 109
2005 463 - 4 . %6 672 2 5 1 42
2004 and earlier 32 9 - 22 6 43 49 47 4
Total prisne RMBS (b) $ 1,175 - 2% 1% 97% $1,825 2% 34, - 95%
Subprime RMBS (&), oxiginated in:
2007 $ 3 Yo % % 100% $ 15 G G % 100%
2006 74 - - 180 89 - 100
2005 11 - - 160 13 - - 100
2004 and earkive a7 3 34 0l 41 53 - - 47
Total subprime RMBS (&) % 128 2% 0% -Ye 83% % 138 14% - Yo 86%

(a) At Dee. 31, 2021 and Dec. 31, 2010, the German. Joreign covered bonds were considered Level

above are primarily Level 2 assets i the valuation hisrarchy.

(b)  Previously included in the Grantor Truse.

1 in the vaheation hierarchy. Al other 283

i the dable
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Changes in Level 3 fair valiue measurements

The tables below include a roll forward of the balance
sheet amounts for the years ended Dec. 31, 2011 and
2010 (including the change in fair value), for financial
instruments classified in Level 3 of the valuation
hierarchy.

Our classification of a financial instrument in Level 3
of the valuation hierarchy is based on the significance
of the unobservable factors to the overall fair value
measurement, However, these instruments generally

inchade other observable components that are actively
quoted or validated to third-party sources;
accordingly, the gains and losses in the table below
include changes in fair value due Lo observable
parameters as well as the unobservable parameters in
our valuation methodofogies. We also frequently
manage the risks of Level 3 financial instraments
using securities and derivatives positions that are
Levet 1 or 2 instroments which are not included in the
table; accordingly, ihe gains or losses below do not
reflect the effect of our risk management activities
related to the Level 3 instraments.

Fair value measurements for assets using significant
unobservable juputs for the vear ended Dee. 31,2011

Available-for-sale securities

Trading assets

State and Debt and
pohtecal  Other debt equity Derivative Other  Total
(in millions) subdivisions  securities instronetnis assets Loans agsels  assets
IFair value at Dec. 31, 2010 $10 $ 58 332 - $11¢ $6 $113 $338
Transters into Level 3 35 - 25 48 - 49 157
Transfers ont of Level 3 (55 - @4 (2) 3 (144)
Total gains or (losses):
Included in earnings (or changes in net asssts) - {a) - () 6 (b} 15(h) - 9(c) 30
Purchases, issnances, sales and setfleynents:
Purchases - 4 4
Issuances 1 B 1
Sales - - - - (15 ((13)
Settlements - - - (1} (5) - (6)
Fair value at Dec, 31, 2011 $45 $ 3 $63 $ 97 $ - 5157 $365
The amount of total gains or (losses) inciuded in earnings
(or changes in nel assels) altributable to the changes n
nrrealized gains or losses 3 4 § 13 $§- 3 - 3% 19
(@) Realized gains (losses) ave veported In securities gains (losses). Unrenlized. gains (losses) are veported in accunadated other
comprehensive income (loss) except for the credit portion of OTTT lesses which are recorded in securities gains (losses).
(b} Reported in foreign exchange and other trading revenue.
{ch  Reported in investinent income.
Fair value measurements for labilittes using significant unobservable
inputs for the year ended Dec. 31, 2011
Trading liabilities
Debt and
equity  Derivative Other Total
(in millions) ingtruments liabilities  liabilities  liabilities
Fair valne at Dec. 31, 2010 $6 $171 §2 $179
Tranafers into Level 3 - 77 - 77
Transfers out of Level 3 (93 . 9
Total (gains) or losses:
Inclnded in eacings (or changes in net labilities) B 88 () {2y (b} 86
Purchases, issnances, sales and settlements:
Setilements (6) (13) - (19
Fair value at Dec, 31, 2011 $ - 8314 $ . $314
The amount of total (gaing) of losses included in earnings (o1 changes in net
assels) attibutable to the changes in unrealized gains or logses § - 3142 $ - 5142

{a] Reported in foreign exchange and cther trading yevenue.
(&) Reported in other revemie.

146 BNY Mellon
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued;

Fair value measurements for assets using significant anobservable inputs for the year ended Dec. 31, 2010
Total realized/unrealized.

gains/(lossesy recorded in

Fair value

issuances and

Purchases,
Transfers Fair value

Change in
uealized gaiws and
(losses) related 1o

Dec. 31, Comprehensive  setflernents,  inf{out;  Dec. 31, instruments held
{in nutlions) 2009 Income mcome net of Level 3 2010 at Dec. 31, 2010
Available-for-sale securities:
Asset-backed C1.Os 5 6 $ - §- ) $ ©® 5 - 5 -
State and political subdivisions - 1 - - 9 10 1
Other debt securities SO 2 2 (2) 58 2
Total available-for-sale 56 3 (a) ~{a) 8 1 68 3
Trading assets:
Debt and equity instruments 170 (1y(b) 3 (140 32
Derivative assets:
Interest rate 121 (19 - 2 15 119 28
Equity 2 (25) -
Total derivative assets 146 (44) (b) 2 15 119 28
Total trading assets 316 (45) - 5 {1253 151 Py
Loans 28 2 (18) 3) 6 -
Other assets 164 13 (c) - (4) (60) 113
Total assets $561 2T 3 - $ () S8BTy () $338 331
(a) Realized gains (losses) are reported in securities gains (losses). Unrealized gains { losses) are reported in accurmlated other
comprehensive loss except for other than temporary imnpairment losses which are recorded in securities gains (losses).
{b) Reported in foreign exchange and other trading revere.
(¢c) Reported in foreign exchange and ather trading revenue, except for derivatives in designated hedging relationships which are
recorded in inlerest revenue and interest expense.
(d) Primarily relates 1o investments cansolidaied in accordance with ASC 810,
Fair value measurements for liabilities using significant unobservable inputs for the year ended Dec. 31,2010
Total realized/nnrealized Change in

gains)Aosses recorded in

Purchases,

unrealized (gains) and

Fraiy value - — jaguances and  Transfers Fair value losses related to
Dec. 31, Comprehensive  settlements,  infout)  Dec. 31, instruments held
{in millions) 2000  Income COINe net _of Level 3 2010 at Dec, 31, 2010
Trading Habilitles:
Debt and eqeity instruments 3 - 3o & 36 $ - $ 6 3
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate 34 38 - 9 (2) 149 122
Equity 38 (31) - 15 - 22 -
Total derivative liabililies 92 57 {a) 24 (2) 171 122
"Total trading habilities 22 57 30 (6] 177 122
Other liabilities 3 (1) () . 2
Total Habilities 303 $ 56 $- 330 $(2) 3179 3122
(a) Reported in foreign exchange and cther trading vevenie.
(b} Reporied in foreign exchange and other trading revenne, except for derivatives in designated hedging relationships which are
recarded ininterest revenue and interest expense,
REIN_EX 285,0Q0008%8 147
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Assets and Habilities measured ai fair value on a
nonrecurring basis

Under certain circumstances, we make adjustments to
fair value our assets, Habilities and unfunded lending-
related commitments although they are not measured
at fair value on an ongoing bagis. An example would
be the recording of an impairment of an assct.

The following table presents the financial instruments
carried on the consolidated balance sheet by caption
and by level in the fair value hierarchy as of Dec. 31,
2011 and 2010, for which a nonrecwrring change in
fair value has been recorded during the years ended
Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010,

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at Dec. 31,2011

Total carrying

(in millions) Level 1 Level2 Level3 value
Loans (a §- $178 $43 8221
Qther assets (b) - 126 - 126

Total assels at fair value on 4 nonrecurring basis $- $304 $43 $347
Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecirving basis at Dec. 31, 2010 Total carcying
(in millions) Level 1 Level2 Level3 value
Loans (a) $- $148 $33 $247
Other assets (&) 6 - o]

Total assets at fair value on a nonrecurting basis 3- $194 $53 3247

(@) During the years ended Dee. 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair vahue of these loans was reduced 332 million and $15 million, based on the
fairvalue of the underlying collateral as allowed by ASC 310, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a loan, with an offset to the

allowonce far credit losses.

(b) Includes other assets received in satisfaction of debt and loany held for sale. Loans held for sale are carried on the holance shect at

the lower of cost or market value.
Note 23—Fair value option

ASC 825 provides an option to glect fair value as an
alternative measurement for selected financial assets,
financial liabilities, unrecognized fiem commitments
and wyitten loan commitments.

148 BNY Mellon

The foltowing table presents the assets and liabilities,
by type, of consolidated investment management
funds recorded at fair value.

Assets and liabilities of consolidated
inyestment management funds, at faiv

valne Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
{in millions) 2011 2010
Assets of consclidated investment

management, funds:

Tiading assels $10.751  §14,121

Other assets 596 645
Total assets of consolidated

investment managerment funds $11,347  §14,766
Liabilities of consolidated investment
management funds:
Trackag Habilities $10,053  $13,561
Other liabilities 32 2
Total Habilities of conaolidated
investmeni management inds $10,085  $13,563
Non-redgemable noncontrolling interests
of consolidated investment
managenent funds $§ 670§ 699

BNY Mellon values assets in consolidated CLOs
using observable market prices observed frony the
secondary loan market The returns to the note holders
are solely dependent on the assets and accordingly
equal the value of those assets. Accordingly,
mark-to-market best reflects the limited interest BNY

RFJN_EX 25_ 00000154
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Noies 1o Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Melion has in the economic performance of the
consolidated CL.Os. Changes in the values of assets
and liabilities are reflected n the income statement as
investment income of consolidated investment
management funds.

‘We have elected the fair value option on $240 million
of Iong-texm debt in connection with ASC 810. At
Dec. 31, 2011, the Fair value of this long-term debt
was $326 million. The long-term debt is valued using

interest rate risk not recognized in the balance sheet.
Qur off-balance sheet risks are managed and
monitored in manners similar to those used for
on-balance sheet risks. Significant industry
concentrations related to credit exposure at Dec. 31,
2011 are disclosed in the Financial institutions
portfolio exposure table and the Commercial portfolio
exposure table below.

Financial institutions Dec. 31, 2011

ortfolio exposure -

observable market inputs and is included in Level 2 of }lgr bgz?lio(:zs) P Loans ¢ ong:l‘lmgfg ox Z;‘i:l‘é
e ASC 820 hierarchy. e S AP
t i Banks $ 6.3 $18 $ 8.2
Securifies industry 3.8 2.6 6.4
The following table presents the changes m fair value asurance 0.1 4.6 477
of the long-term debt included in foreign exchange Asset managers 0.8 32 4.0
and other trading revenue in the consolidated income Government - 1.6 16
statement. Other 0.1 1.6 1.7
Total $11.1 $15.5 $26.6
Forgign exchange and other trading revenue
Year ended Dec. 31, Commercial porttolio Dec. 31, 2011

(in millions) 2011 2010 exposure Untunded Total
Long-tesn, debt () $(57) $(29) (in billions) Loans  commitments  exposure
{a) The change in fair vaiue of the long-teym debt is Manutactaring $0.3 $ 37 $ 6.0
approximaiely offset by an economic hedge inchided in Energy and utilities 0.3 4.8 5.1
trading. Services and other 6.5 4.5 5.0
Media and telecont 0.2 1.3 1.5
Total 51.3 $16.3 $17.6

We have elected the fair value option on $120 million
of unfunded lending-related comunitments. The fair
market value of unfunded lending-related
commitments for which the fair value option was
elected was a hability of less than §1 million at Dec.
31, 2011 and Dec. 31, 2010 and is inchuded in other
liahilities, Unfunded lending-related commitments are
valued using quotes from dealers in the loan markets,
and are included in Level 3 of the ASC 820 hierarchy.

Note 24--Commitments and contingent
liabilities

1n the normal course of business, vatious
commitments and contingent Habilities are
outstanding which are not reflected in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Our significant trading and off-balance sheet risks ave
securities, foreign currency and interest rate risk
management products, commercial lending
commitments, letters of credit, securities lending
indemnifications and snpport agreements. We assume
these risks to reduce interest rate and foreign currency
risks, to provide customers with the ability to meot
credit and lquidity needs and to hedge foreign
currency and interest rate risks. These items mvolve,
to varying degrees, credit, foreign exchange, and

Major concentrations in securities lending are
primarily to broker-dealers and are generally
collateralized with cash. Securities lending
transactions are discussed below.

The following table presents a summary of owr
off-balance sheet credit risks, net of participations.

Off-balance sheet eredit visks Dec. 31,

(in millions) 2011 2010
Lending conumitments (a) $ 28,406  § 29,100
Standby letiers of credit () 6,707 8,483
Commercial letters of credit 437 512
Securities lending indemuifications 268,812 278,069
Suppoit agreements 63 116

(a) Net of participations totaling $326 million at Dec. 31, 2011
and $423 millien at Dec. 31, 2010.

(b) Net of participations totaling $.1.2 billion at Dec, 31, 2011
ard $1.7 billion at Dec. 31, 2010

Included m lending commitments are facilities that
provide liquidity for variable rate tax-exempt
securities wrapped by monoline insurers. The credit
approval for these facilities is based on an assessment
of the underlying tax-exempt issuer and considers
factors other than the financial strength of the
moneline insurer.

RFIN_EX Zsﬁfg Q’O.Q%I?(?n
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The total potential loss on undrawn lending
commitments, standby and commercial letters of
credit, and securities lending indemnifications is equal
to the total notional amount if drawn upon, which
does not consider the value of any collateral.

Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total amount
does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. A sommary of lending commitment
maturities is as follows: $9.9 billion less than one
year, $18.3 billion in one to five years and $0.2 billion
over five years.

Standby letters of eredit (“SBIC™) principally support
corporate obligations. As shown in the off-balance
sheet credit risks table, the maxinum potential
exposure of SBLCs was $6.7 billion at Dec, 31, 2011
and $8.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010, and includes $485
million and $628 million that were collateralized with
cash and securities at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. At Dec. 31, 2011, $2.2 billion of the
SBLCs will expire within one year, $4.3 billion in one
to five years and $0.2 billion over five years.

‘We must recoguize, at the inception of standby letters
of credit and foreign and other guarautees, a liability
for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in
issuing the guarantee. As required by ASC 460 -
Guarantees, the fair value of the liability, which was
recorded with a corresponding asset in other assets,
was estimated as the present value of contractual
customer fees.

The estimated liability for losses related to these
commitments and SBLCs, if any, is included in the
allowance tor lending-related commatnaents. The
aflowance for lending-related cornmitments was $103
million at Dec. 31,2011 and $73 million at Dec. 31,
2010,

Payment/performance risk of SBLCs is monitored
using both historical performance and internal ratings
criteria. BN'Y Mellon’s historical expericnce is that
SBLCs typically expire without being funded. SBL.Cs
below investment grade are monitored closely for
payment/performance tisk. The table below shows
SBLCs by investment grade:

Standby letters of credit Dec, 31,
2011 2010

Investment grade 91% 89%

Noninvesiment grade 9% 11%

150 BNY Mellon

A commercial letter of credit is normally a short-term
instrument used to finance a commercial contract for
the shipment of goods from a sefler to a buyer.
Although the commercial letter of credit is contingent
upon the satisfaction of specified conditions, it
represents a credit exposure if the buyer defaults on
the underlying transaction. As a result, the total
contractual amounds do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. Commercial letters of eredit
totaled $437 million at Dee. 31, 2011 compared with
$512 million at Dec. 31, 2010

A securities lending transaction is a fully
collateralized transaction in which the owner of a
security agrees to lend the security {typically through
an agent, in our sase, The Bank of New York Mellon),
to a borrower, usually a broker-dealer or bank, on an
open, overnight or term basis, under the terms of a
prearranged contract, which nonmally matures in less
than 90 days.

We typically lend securities with indemnification
against borrower defanlt. We generally require the
borrower to provide cash collateral with a value of
102% of the fair value of the securities borrowed,
which is monitored on a daily basis, thus reducing
credit risk. Market risk cau also arise in securities
lending transactions. These risks are controlled
through policies limiting the level of risk that can be
undertaken. Securities lending transactions are
generally entered into only with highly rated
counterparties. Securities lending indemmifications
were secured by collateral of $276 billion at Dec. 31,
2011 and $285 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. We recorded
$183 million of fee revenue from securities lending
trapsactions in 2011 compared with $150 million in.
2010.

We expect many of these guarantees to expire without
the need to advance any cash. The revenue associated
with guarantees frequently depends on the credit
rating of the obligor and the structure of the
transaction, including collateral, if any.

At Dec. 31, 2011, our potential maximum exposure to
support agreements was $63 million, after deducting
the reserve, assuming the securities subject to these
agreements being valaed at zero and the NAV of the
related funds declining below established thresholds.
This compares with $110 million at Dec. 31, 2010,

Trust acrivities

As avesult of the GIS acquisition, at Dec. 31, 2011,
our clients maintained approximately $400 million of

RFIN_EX 25_ 00000156



Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements (contirued)

custody cash on deposit with other institutions.
Revenue generated from these balances is included in
other revenue on the income statement. These deposits
are expected to transition. to BN'Y Mellon by
mid-2012.

Operating leases

Net rent expense for premises and equipnent was
$350 million in 2011, $314 million in 2010 and $327
yoillion in 2009.

At Dec. 31, 2011, we were obligated under various
noncancelable lease agreements,; some of which
provide for additional rents based upon real estate
taxes, ipsurance and maintenance and for various
renewal options. A summary of the future minimum
rental commitments under noncancelable operating
leases, net of related sublease revenue, is as follows:
20124318 million; 2013—$306 million; 2014—
$249 million; and 2015—3$205 million; 2016—§189
miltion; and 2017 through 203 1—$798 million.

Indemnification Arrangements under Ordinary
Course Confracts

We have provided standard representations for
underwriting agreements, acquisition and divestiture
agreements, sales of foans and commitments, and
other similar types of arrangements and customary
indemmnification for claims and legal proceedings
related to providing financial services that are not
otherwise mcluded above. Insurance has been
purchased to mitigate certain of these risks. Generally,
there are no stated or notional amounts incladed in
these indemmifications and the contingencies
triggering the oblipation for indemnification are not
expected to oceur, Furthermore often counterparties 1o
these transactions provide us with coniparable
indemnifications. We are unable to develop an
estimate of the maxinrum payout wder these
indemnifications for several reasons. In addition to the
lack of a stated or notional amount in a majority of
such indemnifications, we are unable to predict the
nature of events that would trigger indemnification or
the level of indemmnification for a certain event. We
believe, howewver, that the possibility that we will have
to make any material payments for these
indemmnifications is remote. At Dec. 31,2011 and
Dec. 31, 2010, we have not recorded any material
liabilities under these arrangements.

Clearing and Setilement FExchanges

We are a minority equity investor in, and member of,
several mdustry clearing or seftlement exchanges

through which foreign exchange, securities, or other
transactions settle. Certain of these industry cleating
or settfement exchanges require their members to
guaraniee their obligations and liabilities or to provide
financial suppert in the event other membess do not
honor their obligations. We believe the likelihood that
a clearing or settlement exchange (of which we are a
member) would become insolvent is remote.
Additionally, certain settlement exchanges have
implemented loss allocation policies which enable the
exchange to allocate settlement losses to the members
of the exchange. It is not possible to quantify such
matk-to-market loss until the loss occurs. In addition,
any ancillary costs that occur as a result of any
mark-to-market loss cannot be quantified. At Dec. 31,
2011 and Dec. 31, 2010, we have not recorded any
material liabilities under these arrangements.

Lepal proceedings
&

In the ordinary course of business, BNY Mellon and
its subsidiaries are routinely named as defendants in
or made parties to pending and potential legal actions
and regulatory matters. Claims for significant
monetary damages are often asserted in many of these
legal actions, while clains for disgorgement, penaltics
and/or other remedial sanctions may be sought in
regulatory matters, It is inherently difficult to predict
the eventual outcomes of such matters given their
complexity and the particular facts and circumstances
at issue in each of these matters. However, on the
basis of our current knowledge and understanding, we
do not believe that judgments or settlements, if any,
arising from these matters (either individually or in
the aggregate, after giving effect to applicable
reserves and insurance coverage), will have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position
or liquidity of BN'Y Mellon, although they could have
a material effect on net income in a given period.

In view of the mherent unpredictability of outcomes in
litigation and regulatory matlers, particularly where
(i) the damages sought are substantial or
indeterminate, (i) the proceedings are in the early
stages, or (1ij) the matters involve novel legal theories
or a large number of parties, as a matter of course
there is considerable uncertainty surrounding the
timing or ultimate resolution of litigation and
regnlatory matters, mcluding a possible evenmal loss,
fine, penalty or business impact, if any, associated
with each such matter. In accordance with applicable
accounting guidance, BNY Mellon establishes
reserves for litigation and regulatory matters when
those matters proceed to a stage where they present
loss contingencies that are both probable and
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reasonably estimable. In such cases, there may be a
possible exposure to loss in excess of any amounts
accrued. BNY Mellon will continue to monitor such
matters for developments that could affect the amount
of the reserve, and will adjust the reserve amount as
appropriate. If the loss contingency in question is not
both probalsle and reasonably estimable, BN'Y Mellon
does not establish a reserve and the matter will
continue to be monitored for any developments that
would make the loss contingency both probable and
reasonably estimable. BNY Mellon believes that its
accruals for legal proceedings are appropriate and, in
the aggregate, are not material to the consolidated
financial position of BN'Y Mellon, although future
accruals could have a material effect on net income in
a given period.

For certain of those matters described herein for
which a loss contingency may, in the futare, be
reasonably possible (whether in excess of a related
accrued liability or where there is no accrued
Hability), BNY Mellon is currently unable to estimate
a range of reasonably possible logs. For those matters
where BNY Mellon is able to estimate a reasonably
possible loss, exclusive of matters described in. Note
13 of the Notes to Consolidated Iinancial Statements,
sulyject to the accounting and reporting vequirements
of ASC 740 (FASB Interpretation 48}, the aggregate
range of such reasonably possible Joss is up to $1.05
billion in excess of the aceraed liability (f any)
related to those matters.

The following describes certain judicial, regulatory
and arbitration proceedings involving BNY Mellon:

Sentinel Matlers

As previously disclosed, on Jan. 18, 2008, The Bank
of New York Mellon filed a proof of claim. in the
Chapter 11 bankruptey proceeding of Sentinel
Management Group, Inc. (“Sentinel”) pending in
faderal court in the Northern District of Hlinois,
seeking to recover approximately $312 million loaned
to Sentmel and secured by securities and cash in an
account maintained by Sentinel at The Baok of New
York Melon. On March 3, 2008, the bankruptey
trustee filed an adversary complaint against The Bank
of New York Mellon secking to disallow The Bank of
New York Mellon’s claim and seeking damages for
allegedly aiding and abetting Sentinel fsiders in
mmisappropriating enstomer assets and improperly
nsing those assets as collateral for the loan. Ina
decision dated Nov, 3, 2010, the court found for The
Bank of New York Mellon and against the bankruptey
trustee, holding that The Bank of New York Mellon’s
Joan to Sentinel is valid, fully secured and not subject
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to equitable subordination. The bankptey trustee
appealed this decision on Dec. 1, 2010.

As previously disclosed, in November 2009, the
Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Commodities
Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) indicated that
it is considering a recommendation to the CFTC that it
file a civil enforcement action against The Bank of
New York Melion for possible violations of the
Commodity Fxchange Act and CETC regulations in
connection with its relationship to Sentinel. The Bank
of New York Mellon responded in writing to the
CFTC on Jan. 29, 2010 and provided an explanation
as 1o why an enforcement actjon is unwarranted.

Auction Rate Securities Matters

As previously disclosed, in April 2008, BNY Melton
notified the SEC that Mellon Financial Markets LLC
(“MEM™) placed orders on behalf of certain issuers to
purchase their own Auction Rate Securities (“ARS”).
In approximately Ootober 2008, the Texas State
Securities Board, Floarida Office of Financial
Regulation and the New York State Attorney General
(the “regulators™) began an investigation focused on
whether and to whai exient the issuers’ orders had the
effect of reducing the clearing rate and preventing
failed anctions. MEM reached a settlement with the
regulators in December 2011 pursuant to which the
regulators discontinued the investigation.

As previously disclosed, in Febraary and April 2009,
two institutional customers filed lawsuits in Texas
state District Court for Dallas County, and California
state Superior Court for Orange County, alleging
misrepresentations and omissions in the sale of ARS.
Two more institutional customers filed arbitration
proceedings in Decernber 2008 and May 2011. The
Texas lawsuit was regolved and dismissed on April 8,
2011. The earlier-filed arbitration proceeding was
dismissed on Ang. 1, 2011. The remaining disputes
together seek rescission or damages relating to
approximately $67 million of ARS, plus interest and
attorneys’ fees.

Securities Lending Matters

As previously disclosed, BNY Mellon or its affiliates
have been named as defendants in a number of
lawsuits initiated by participants in BNY Mellon’s
securities lending program, which is a part of BNY
Mellon’s Investment Services business. The lawsuits
were filed on various dates from December 2008 to
2011, and are awrrently pending in couts in
Oklahoma, New York, Washington, California and
South Carolina and in commercial court in London.
The complaints assert contractual, statutory, and
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common law claims, including claims for negligence
and breach of fiduciary duty. The plaintiffs allege
losses in connection with the investment of securities
lending collateral, including losses related to
investments in Sigma Finance Inc., Lehman Brothers
Holdings, Inc. and certain asset-backed securities, and
seek damages as to those losses. Thiee of the pending
cases seek to proceed as class actions.

Matiess Relating To Bernard L. Madoff

As previously disclosed, on May 11, 2010, the New
York State Attorney CGieneral commenced a civil

law suit against Ivy Asset Management LLC (“Ivy™), a
subsidiary of BNY Mellon that manages primarily
funds-of-hedge-funds, and two of its former officers
in New York state court. The lawsuit alleges that Ivy,
in connection with its role as sub-advisor to
investment managers whose clients invested with
Madoff, did not disclose certain material facty about
Madoff. The complaint seeks an accounting of
compensation received from January 1997 to the
present by the Ivy defendants in connection with the
Madoff investments, and waspecified damages,
including restitution, disgorgement, costs and
attorneys’ fees.

As previously disclosed, on Oct. 21, 2010, the y.s.
Department of Labor comm.enced a civil lavsuit
against vy, two of its former officers, and others n
federal court in the Southern District of New York.
The lawsuit alleges that Ivy violated the Himployee
Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA™) by failing
to disclose certain material facts about Madoff to
investment managers subadvised by Ivy whose clients
included employee benefit plan investors, The
complaint seeks disgorgement and damages. On Dec.
8, 2010, the Trustee overseeing the Madotf liquidation
sued many of the same defendants in bankruptcy court
in New York, secking to avoid withdrawals from
Madoff investments made by various funds-of-funds
(including six funds-of-funds managed by Ivy).

As previously disclosed, vy or its affiliates have been
named in a number of civil lawsuits filed beginning
Tan. 27, 2009 relating to certain investment funds that
allege losses due to the Madoff investments. Ivy acted
as a sub-advisor to the investient managers of some
of those funds. Plaintiffs agsert various causes of
action including securities and comumon-law fraud.
Certain of the cases seck to proceed as class actions
and/or to assert derivative claims on behalf of the
funds, Most of the cases have been consolidated 1n
two actions in federal coust in the Southern District of
New York, with certain cases filed in New York State
Supreme Court for New York and Nassau counties.

Medical Capital Litigations

As previously disclosed, The Bank of New York
Mellon has been named as a defendant in a number of
class actions and non-class actions brought by
numerous plaintiffs in connection with its role as
indenture trustee for debt issued by affiliates of
Medical Capital Corporation. The actions, filed in late
2009 and currently pending in federal court in the
Central District of California, allege that The Bank of
New York Mellon breached its fiduciary and
coniractual obligations to the holders of the
underlying securities, and seek unspecified damages.

Foreign HExchange Matters

As previously disclosed, beginning in December
2009, government anthorifies have been conduocting
inquiries secking information relating primarily to
standing instruction foreign exchange transactions in
connection with custody services BN'Y Mellon
provides to public pension plans and certain other
custody clients. BNY Mellon is cooperating with
these inquiries.

In addition, in carly 201 1, as previously disclosed, the
Virginia Attomey General’s Office and the Fiorida
Attorney General’s Office each filed a Notice of
Intervention in a gui fam lawsuit pending in its
Jjurisdiction. ‘Fhese offices filed complaints
superseding the gui fam lawsuits on Aug. 11, 2011.
On Qct. 4, 2011, the New York Attorney General’s
Office, the New York City Comptroller and various
city pension and benefit funds filed a lawsuit
whereby, among other things, the plaintiffs assert
claims under the Martin Act and state and city false
claims acts. Also, on Oct. 4, 2011, the United States
Department of Justice (“DOI™) filed a civil lawsuit
seeking civil penalties under 12 U.8.C. Section 1833a
and injunctive relief under 18 U.S.C. Section 1345
based on alleged ongoing vielations of 18 U.5.C.
Sections 1341 and 1343 (mail and wire fraud). On
Jan. 17, 2012, the court approved a partial seftiement
resolving the DOT’s claim for injunctive relief. In
Qctober 2011, several political subdivisions of the
state of California mtervened i1 a gui tam lawsuit
pending in California state cout, previcusly under
seal, and, on Nov. 28, 2011, BNY Mellon removed
the lawsuit to federal district cowrt in California. On
Oct. 26, 2011, the Massachuselts Securities Division
filed an Administrative Complaint against BNY
Mellon.

BNY Mellon has also been named as a defendant in
several putative class action lawsuits filed on various
dates in 2011 in federal district courts in
Pennsylvania, California, and New York. The
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complaints, which assert varying claims, including
breach of contract, and violations of ERISA, state and
federal Jaw, all allege that the prices BNY Mellon
charged and reported for standing instruction forsign
exchange transactions executed in conmection with
custody services provided by BNY Mellon were
improper. In addition, BNY Mellon has been named
as a nominal defendant in several derivative lawsuits
filed on various dates in 2011 and 2012 in New York
state cowrt and federal district court in Neow York.

German Broker-Dealer Litigation

As previously disclosed, on various dates from 2004
to 2011, BNY Mellon subsidiary Pershing 1.LC
(“Pershing”) was named as a defendant in more than
100 lawsuits filed in Germany by plaintiffs who are
investors with accounts at German broker-dealers.
"The plaintiffs allege that Pershing, which had a
contractual refationship with the broker-dealers
through which the broker-dealers executed options
transactions on behalf of the broker-dealers’ clients,
should be held liable for the tortious acts of the
broker-dealers. Plaintiffs seek to recover their
investment losses, interest, and statutory attorney’s
Tees and costs. On March 9, 2010, the 11% Senate of
the German Federal Supreme Court ruled in the
plaintiff’s favor in one of these cases, and held
Pershing liable for a German broker-dealer’s tortious
acts. In subsequent cases, the Supreme Court
continued to rule in the plaintiffs” favor, In December
2011, Pershing settled the majority of the cases.

Lyondell Litigation

As previously disclosed. in an action filed in New
York State Supreme Court for New York County, on
Sept. 14, 2010, plaintiffs as holders of debt issued by
Rasell AF in 2005 allege that The Bank of New Yotk
Mellon, as indenture trustee, breached its contractual

and fidaciary obligations by executing an intercreditor

agreement in 2007 in conpection with Basell’s
acquisition of Lyondell Chemical Company. Plaintiffs
are seeking damages for their alleged losses resulting
from the exgcution of the 2007 intercreditor
agreement that aliowed the company to increase the
amount of its senior debt.

Fax Litigation.

As previously disclosed, on Aug. 17, 2009, BNY
Mellon received a Statutory Notice of Deficiency
disallowing tax henefits for the 2001 and 2002 tax
years in connection with 4 2001 transaction that
wvolved the paynient of UK. corporate income taxes
that were credited against BNY Mellon's U.S.
corporate income tax lability. On Nov. 10, 2009,
BNY Mellon filed a petition with the 11.8. Tax Court
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contesting the disallowance of the benefits. A trial is
currently scheduled for April 16, 2012, The aggregate
tax benefit for all six years in question is
approximately $900 million, including interest. In the
event BNY Mellon is unsuccessful i defending its
position, the IRS has agreed not (o assess
underpayment penalties. See Note 13 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

Mortgage-Securitization Trusts Proceeding

The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee 15 the
petitioner in a legal proceeding filed in New York
State Supreme Court, New York County on June 29,
2011, seeking approval of a proposed settlement
involving Bank of America Corporation and
bondholders in certain Countrywide residential
mortgage-securitization. trusts. The New York
Attorney General has sought permission to intervene
in this proceeding and to assert claims against BNY
Mellon under the Martin Act and the FExecutive Law,
On Aug. 26, 2011, an investor that had intervened in
the state court proveeding removed this case to the
United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York. BNY Mellon sought to remand the case
to state court and on Oct. 19, 2011, the District Coort
denied BNY Mellon’s motion. On Jan. 17, 2012, BNY
Mellon filed its brief appealing the District Cowrt’s
decision to the Second Cirenit Court of Appeals.

Note 25--Detivative instruments

We use derivatives to manage exposure to market
risk, interest rate risk, credit yisk and foreign cumrency
risk. Qur trading activities are focused on acting as a
market-aker for our customers and facilitating
customer trades, In addition, we periodically manage
positions for our own account. Positions managed for
our own account are immaterial to our overall foreign
exchange and other trading revenue and to our overall
results of operations.

The notional arounts for derivative financial
instruments express the doilar vohume of the
transactions; however, credit risk is much smaller. We
parform credit reviews and enter into netting
agreentents to minimize the credit risk of derivative
financial instruments. We enter into offsetting
positions to reduce exposure to foreign exchange and
interest rate risk.

Use of derivative financial instroments involves
reliance on counterparties. Failure of a counterparty to
honor its obligation under a derivative contracl is a
risk we assume whenever we engage in a derivative
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contract. Counterparty default losses were $15 million
in 2011 and $39 million in 2010. Reserves for losses
incurred in both 2011 and 2010 were established in
prior years. As a result, these counterparty default
losses did not impact income in either year.

Hedging derivatives

We ntilize interest rate swap agreements to manage
our exposure to interest rate fluctuations. For hedges
of investment securities available-for-sale, deposits
and long-term debt, the hedge documentation
specifies the terms of the hedged items and the
interest rate swaps and indicates that the dervivative is
hedging a fixed-rate item and is a faiv value hedge,
that the hedge exposure is to the changes in the fair
value of the hedged itern due to changes in benchmark
interest rates, and that the strategy is to eliminate fair
value variability by converting fixed-rate interest
payments to LIBOR.

The securities hedged consist of sovereign debt and
1.8, Treasury bonds that had original maturities of 30
years or less at initial purchase. The swaps on the
sovereign debt and 1.5, Treasury bonds are not
callable. All of these secunities are hedged with “pay
fixed rate, receive variable rate” swaps of similar
maturity, repricing and fixed rate coupon. At Dec. 31,
2011, $4 billion of securities were hedged with
interest rate swaps that had notional values of $4
billion.

The fixed rate deposits hedged generally bave original
maturities of three to six years and are not callable.
These deposits are hedged with “receive fixed rate,
pay variable” rate swaps of similar maturity, repricig
and. fixed rate coupon. The swaps are not callable. At
Dec. 31, 2011, $10 million of deposiis were hedged
with interest rate swaps that had notional values of
$10 million.

The fixed rate long-term. debts hedged generally have
original maturities of five to 30 years. We issue both
callable and non-callable debt. The non-callable debt
is hedged with stmple interest vate swaps similar to
those described for deposits. Callable debt is hedged
with callable swaps where the call dates of the swaps
exactly match the call dates of the debt. At Dec. 31,
2011, §14.3 billion of debt was hedged with interest
rate swaps that had notional values of $14.3 billion.

In addition, we enter into foreign exchange hedges.
We use forward foreign exchange contracts with
maturities of nine mwonths or less to hedge our British
Pound, Buro and Indian Rupee foreign exchange

exposure with respect to foreign currency forecasted
revenue and expense transactions in entities that have
the U.5. dollar as their functional currency. As of
Dec. 31, 2011, the hedged forecasted foreign currency
transactions and designated forward foreign exchange
contract hedges were $136.1 million (notional), with
$0.4 million of pre-tax gain recorded in accumulated
other comprelensive income. This gain will be
reclassified to income or expense over the next nine
months.

We nse forward foreign exchange contracts with
remaining maturities of one year or less as hedges
against our foreign exchange exposure to Ruro,
Norwegian Krona, British Pound, Swiss Frane and
Japanese Yen with respect to interest-bearing deposits
with banks and their associated forecasted interest
revenue. These hedges are designated as cash tlow
hedges. These hedges are affected such that their
maturities and notional values match those of the
deposits with banks. As of Dec. 31, 2011, the hedged
interest-bearing deposits with banks and their
designated forward foreign exchange contract hedges
were $8.8 billion (notional), with $3.0 million of
pre-tax loss recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income. This loss will be reclassified
to net interest revenue over the next twelve months.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are also used to
hedge the value of our net investments in foreign
subsidiaries. These forward foreign exchange
comtracts usually have maturities of less than two
years. The derivatives employed are designated as
hedges of changes in value of our foreign investments
due to exchange rates. Changes in the value of the
forward foreign exchange contracts offset the changes
in value of the foreign investments due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The change in fair market
value of these forward foreign exchange confracts is
deferred and reported within accumulated translation
adjustments in shareholders” equity, net of tax. At
Dec. 31, 2011, forward foreign exchange contracts
with niotional amounts totaling $5.2 billion were
designated as hedges.

In addition to forward foreign exchange contracts, we
also designale non-derivative financial instruments as
hedges of our net investments in foreign subsidiaries.
Those non-derivative financial instruments designated
as hedges of our net investments in foreign
subsidiaries were all long-term lisbilities of BNY
Mellon in various currencies, and, at Dec. 31, 2011,
had a4 combined U.S. dollar equivalent value of $495
million.
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Ineffectivencss related to derivatives and hedging
relationships was recovded in income as follows:

Ineffectiveness Year ended Dec. 31,
(in miliions) 2011 2010 2009
Fair value hedges on loans $ 01 S01  $OD
Ffair value bedges of securities 8.6) (4.2) 0.1
Fair valoe hedges of deposiis and

long-term debt 5.3 77 2.2
Cash flow hedges (0.1) 0.1 -
Other () 0.1 {0.2) 0.1

Total 140y $35 $23
(a}  Includes ineffectiveness recorded on foreign exchange

hedges.

The following table summarizes the notional amount and credit exposure of our total derivative portfolio at

Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010

Impact of derivative instruments on the balance sheet Liability
Asset Derivatives Derivatives
Notional Valve Fair Value (a) Fair Value (a)
Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dee, 31,
{in millions} 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
‘Derivatives designated as hedging instruments (b);
Interest rare contracts $ 18,281 % 13,967 % 965 0§ 83 0§ 248 8 44
Foreign exchange contracis 14,160 11,816 635 2 21 116
Total derdvaiives designated. ag hedging instcomenty $ 1,600 $ 836 & 319 § 160
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments {¢):
Toterest rate contracts $975,308 $1,090,718 $26,682 $ 15,651 $ 27440 $ 16275
Equity contracis 8,205 6,903 418 449 330 380
Credit contracts 333 681 3 2 - 4
Foreign exchange contracts 379,235 315,050 4,632 3,661 4,355 3,707
Total derivatives not designated as hedging insizuments $31,705 $19763 $32,128  § 20,366
Total derivatives fair value (d) $33,305  $2059¢  $32444  § 20,526
Effect of master netting agreements (26,047) (15,827 (25,009) (15,181}
Fair valoe after effect of master petling agreements $ 7,258 % 4772 0§ 7435 § 5,345

(a} Derivative financiol instruments are reporvted net of cash colle

eral received and paid of $1,269 million and $231 million, respectively,

at Dec. 31, 2011 and $889 wmillion and $243 million, respectively, at Dec. 31, 2010,

(b
liabilities, respectively, on the balarice sheet.

{c)

(d)

trading liabilities, respectively, on the balance sheet.

At Dec. 31, 2011, $336 billion (notional) of interest
rate contracts will mature within one year, $391
billion between one and five years, and $267 billion
after five years. AtDec. 31, 2011, $376 billion

The fair value of asset derivatives and liability derivatives designated as hedging instruments is recorded as other assets and ohrer
The fair value of asset derivatives and liability derivatives not designated as hedging instruinents s recorded as trading assets and

Faiv values are on g gross basis, before consideration of master netting agreerents, as required by ASC 815,

(notional) of foreign exchange contracts will mature
within one year, $9 billion between one and five
years, and $8 billion after five years.

Impact of derivative instruments on the income statement
Cine nad Hions )

Araount of

Amount of gain
or (loss) recognized
in income on

gain ot (loss)
recogmzed in
hedged tein

Location of gain or (foss) Yer de'rii":”:;“g% 3 Location of gain or {loss) \Ba,('~c2|}e<l
Deerivatives in fair valoe hedging recognized 1 income on ear ended Dec, 31, secognized in incote ot cc. oL
relationships derivatives 2011 2000 2009 hedged tem 2011 2010 2009
Interest rate contracis Net interest revenne $(150) $370  $(406) Net interest revenue $136  $(366) 5408
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Amount of
gain or (loss)
recoghized in

accumnlated GCT
on derivative
(effective portion)
Year ended Dec, 31,

(loss)

Dertvatives in cash fow

Locarion of gaio or
reclassified
from acoumulated
OClinto income

Year ended Dec. 31,

Ameaunt of gain or
(loss) reclassified
from accomulated
QCTinto income
(effective portion)

L.ocation of gain or
(loss) recogiized in
incoime on derivatives
(ineffective portion and
amount excluded from

Ainount of gain or (fuss)
roeognized in income on
derjvatives (ineffectiveness
pestion and amount
exclnded from
effectiveness testing)
Year ended Dec. 31,

hedging relationships 2011 2010 2000 (effective portion) 2011 2010 2000  offectiveness testing) 2011 2010 2009
X coniracts $(118) § (1§ - Netinterest revenve ${114) $ (6) § - Netinterestrevenue 3 - $ - $-
FX conlracts @) (134) (1) Otherrevenue 6 (435 6 Olher revenue 0.1) 0.1 -
FX coniracts (528) - - Trading revenve (523} - - Trading revenue . - -
FX contracts 3 H - Salary expense 2 (93] - Salary expense - - -
Interest wte contracts - - - INet intesest revenus - - 26 Net interest rovenue - -

Total 3(646) $(142)  $(D $(643) $(142) $32 $0.1) il 3-

Amount of
gain or Joss)
recognized in

accumuiated OCY
on denvatives
(effective poition)

Location of gain or
(oss) reclassified
from accuimmlaied
OCTHnte Income

Derivatives dn pet

Ameunt of gain or
{loss) seclassified
from accumulated
QClinto income,
(effective portion)
Year ended Dee. 31,

Anonnt of gain or (loss)
recognized in income on
dedvatives (ineffectiveness
portion and amouut
excluded from
cffectiveness testing)
Year ended Dec. 31,

Location of gain or
(ass) rocogoized in
income on derivative
(ineffective portion and
amount excluded from

investrenl hedging Yearended Dec. 31,

relationships 2011 2010 2009 (effective portion) 2011 2010 2009 effectivensss testing) 2011 2010 2009
FX contracts §75  $(52) $(298) NNt inlerest revensve $- 3- $- Qther revense $(0.1) $(02) $0.1

Trading activities (fncluding wading derivatives)

We manage trading risk through a system of position
limits, a VaR methodology based on Monte Carlo
simulations, stop loss advisory triggers, and other
market sensitivity measures. Risk is monitored and
reported o senior management by a separate unit on.a
daily basis. Based on certain assumptions, the VaR
methodology is designed to capture the potential
overnight pre-tax dollar loss from adverse changes in
fair values of all trading positions. The calculation
assumes a one-day holding period for most
instruments, atilizes a 99% confidence level, and
incorporates the non-linear characterisiics of options.
The VaR model is one of several statistical models
used to develop economic capital results, which is
allocated to lines of business for computing risk-
adjusted performance.

As the VaR methodology does not evaluate risk.
attributable to extraordinary financial, economic or
other occurrences, the risk assessment process
includes a number of stress scenarios based upon the
risk factors in the portfolio and management’s
assessment of market conditions. Additional stress
scenarios based upon historic market events are also
performed. Stress tests, by their design, incorporate
the impact of reduced liquidity and the breakdown of
observed correlations. The results of these stress fests
are reviewed weekly with senior management.

Revenue from foreign exchange and other trading
included the following:

Foreign exchange and other trading

revenue
(in millions) 2011 2010 2009

$761  §7%7 § 830

Foreign exchange

Fixed income 65 30 242
Credit derivatives (a) (3) N (84
(ther ) 28 26 28

Total $848 §886 $1,036

(1) Used as economic hedges of loans.

Foreign exchange includes income from purchasing
and selling foreign currencies and currency forwards,
futures, and options. [Fixed income reflects results
from futures and forward contracts, interest rate
swaps, foreign currency swaps, options, and fixed
income securities. Credit derivatives include revenue
tfrom credit defanlt swaps. Other primarily includes
income from equity securities and equity derivatives.

Counterparty credit visk and collateral

We assess credit risk of our counterparties through
regular examination of their financial statements,
confidential communication with the management of
those counterparties and regular monitoring of
publicly available credit rating information. This and
other information is used to develop proprietary credit
rating metrics used to assess credit quality.
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Collateral requirements are determined afier a
comprehensive review of the credit quality of each
counterparty. Collateral is generally held or pledged in
the form. of cash or highly liquid government
securities. Collateral requirements are monitored and
adjusted daily.

Additional disclosures concerning derivative financial
instruments ave provided in Notes 21 and 22 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Disclesure of contingent features in over-the-counter
(“OTC” ) derivative instruments

Certain OTC derivative contracts and/or collateral
agreements of The Bank of New York Mellon, our
largest banking subsidiary and the subsidiary through
which BNY Mellon enters into the substantial
majority of all of its OT(C derivative contracts and/or
collateral agreements, contain provisions that may
require us to take certain actions if The Bank of New
York Mellon’s public debt rating fell to a certain
level. Barly fermination provisions, or “close-out”
agreements, in those contracts could trigger
immediate payment of outstanding contracts that are
in net liability positions. Certain collateral agreements
would require The Bank of New York Mellon to
immediately post additional collateral to cover some
or all of The Bank of New York Mellon's liabilities 1o
a counterparty.

‘The following table shows the fair value of contracts
falting under early termination provisions that were in
net lability positions as of Dec. 31, 2011 for thyee key
ratings triggers:

If The Bank of New York

Mellon’s rating was changed Potential close-out

to (Moody’s/S&P) exposures (fair value) {a)

A3IA- § 936 miltion

1Boa2/BBB $1,129 million

Bal/BB+ $1,803 million

{a) The change between raling categories is incremental, not
crunlative.

Additionally, if The Bank of New York Mellon’s debt
rating had fallen below investment grade on Dec. 31,
2011, existing collateral arrangements would have
required us to have posted an additional $498 million
of collateral.

Note 26--Review of businesses

We have an internal information system that produces
performance data for our two prineipal businesses and
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the Other segment. The following discussion of our
businesses satisties the disclosure vequirements for
ASC 280, Segment Reporting.

Organization of owr business

In the first quarter of 2011, BNY Mellon realigned its
internal reporting structure and business presentation
to focus on its two principal businesses, Investment
Management and Investment Sexvices. The
realignment reflects management’s current approach
1o assessing performance and decisions regarding
resource allocations. Investment Management
includes the former Asset Management and Wealth
Management businesses. Investment Services mcludes
the former Asset Servicing, Issuer Services and
Clearing Services businesses, and the Cash
Management business previously included in the
Treasury Services business. The Other segment
includes credit-related activities previously included
in the Treasury Services business, the lease financing
portfolio, corporate treasury activities, including our
investment securities portfolio, our equity investments
in Wing Hang Bank and ConvergEx Group, business
exits and corporate overhead. All prior periods
presented in this Annual Report are presented
accordingly.

Also in the first quarter of 2011, we revised the net
interest revenue for our businesses to reflect a new
approach which adjusts our transfer pricing
methodalogy to better reflect the value of certain
domestic deposits. All prior period business results
were restated to reflect this revision. This revision did
not impact the consolidated results.

Business acconnting principles

Qur business data has been determined on an intemal
management basis of accounting, rather than the
generally accepted accounting principles used for
consolidated financial reporting. These measurement
principles are designed so that reported results of the
businesses will track their economic performance.

Business results are subject to reclassification
whenever mnprovements are made in the measurement
principles, or when organizational changes are made.

The accounting policies of the businesses are the same
as those described in Note | of the Notes to
Congolidated Financial Statements.

The operations of acquired businesses are integrated
with the existing businesses soon after they are
completed. As a result of the imegration of staff
support functions, mapagement of customer
relationships, operating processes and the financial

RFJN_EX 25_ 00000164
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued;

impact of fanding acquisitions, we canpot precisely
determine the impact of acquisitions on income before
taxes and therefore do not repost it.

Information on our businesses is reported on a
continuing operations basis for 2010 and 2009. See

Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Staterments for a discussion of discontinued
operations.

The primary types of revenue for two principal businesses and the Other segment are presented below:

Business

Primary types of revenue

Investment Management

o

Investment management and performance fees from:
Mutuzl funds

Institutional clients

Private cliests

High-net-worth individuals and tamilies, endowments and
foundations and related entities

Distribution and servicing fees

Investment Services

-

Asset servicing fees, incloding institutional trust and
castody fees, broker-dealer services and securities lending
Tssuer secvices fees, including Corporate Trust, Depositary
Receipts, employee investment plan services and
Shareowner Scervices

Clearing services fees, including broker-dealer services,
registered invesunent advisor services and prime brokerage
fervices

Treasury services fees, inclvding global payment services
and working capital solutions

Foreign exchange

Other segment

L S I Y

Cradit-related activities

Leasing operations

Corporale treasury activities

Global markets and institational banking services
Business exits

The results of our businesses are presented and
analyzed on an internal management reporting basis:

¢ Revenue amounts reflect fee and other revenue
generated by cach business. Fee and other
revenue transferred betw een businesses under
revenue transfer agreements is included within
other revenue in sach business.

+ Revenues and expenses associated with specific
client bases are included in those businesses. For
example, foreign exchange activity associated
with clients using custody products is allocated
to Investment Services.

o Net interest revenue is allocated to businesses
based on the yields on the assets and liabilities
generated by each business. We employ a funds
transler pricing system that matches funds with
the specific assets and labilities of each
business based on their interest sensitivity and
maturity characteristics.

o Support and other indirect expenses are
altocated to businesses based on internally-
developed methodologies.

Recurring FDIC expense is allocated to the
businesses based on average deposits generated
within each business.

Litigation expense is generally recorded in the
buginess i which the charge occurs.
Management of the investment securities
portfolio is a shared service contained in the
Other segment. As aresult, gains and losses
associated with the valuation of the securities
portfolio are included in the Other segment.
Client deposits serve as the primary funding
source for our investment securities portfolio.
We typically allocate all interest revenue to the
businesses generating the deposits.
Accordingly, the higher yield related to the
restructured investment securities portfolio has
been included mn the results of the businesses.
Restructuring charges are related to corporate
initiatives and are therefore recorded in the
Other segment.

M&I expenses are corporate level items and are
therefore recorded in the Other segment.

REIN_EX 2593090085 159
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& Balance sheet assets and habilitics and their
related income or expense are specifically
assigned to each business. Businesses with a net
liability position have been allocated assets.

*  Goodwill and intangible assets are reflected
within individual businesses.

Total revenue includes approximately $2.2 billion in
2011, $2.1 billion in 2010 and $1.6 billion in 2009, of
international operations domiciled in the UK which
comprised 15%. 15% and 21% of total revenne,
respectively,

The following consolidating schedules show tre contribution of our businesses to our overall profitability.

For the year ended Dec. 31, 2011

Investment  Investment

{dollar amounts in millions) Muanagement Services Other Consolidated
Fee and other revenue $ 3264¢2) % 7957 § 475 § 11,696
Nel interest sovenue 206 2,635 143 2,984

Total revenue 3,470 10,592 618 14,680
Provision for credit losses 1 - “ 1
Noninterest expense 2,746 TAT8 888 11,112
Incorme (loss) befors taxes $ T23(x) $ 3114 $ (70) $ 3567
Pre-tax operating margin (&) 21 % 28% /M 24
Average assels $37,043 $207454  $46,648 $291,145

{a} Total fee and ather revenue includes incorne from consolidated investment wanagement fiunds of 5200 million, net of nencontrolling
intere ste of $30 million, for a net impact of $1 50 million. Income before taxes includes noncontrolling intevesty of $50 million.

()  Income before taxes divided by total revenue.

For the year ended Dec, 31, 2014

(a)

(e)
(}’D

Total

Tovestment  Investment continuing

{doliar ammounts in millions ) Management Services Other operations
Fee and other revenue $ 3234 @) % 7179 s 478 $ 10,891 (a)

Net interest revenus 205 2,448 272 2,925

Total revenue 5,439 9,627 750 13,8186

Provision for credit losses 3 - ] It

Moninterssi expense 2,693 6,515 062 10,170
Income (loss) before taxes § 73 $ 3112 $ (220) $ 363572

Pre-tax operating margin (&) 22% 32 N/M 264

Average aesels $35,411 $161,605 $40,420 $237436 (¢}

()} Total fee and other revenne includes income from consolidated investrent managemertt funds of $226 million, net of noncentrofling
intere sts of $59 million, for a net impact of $167 mitlion. Income before taxes includes noncontroliing intervests of $59 million.

(b} Inconie before taxes divided by total revenue.

(¢} Including average assels of discontinued operations of $404 million in 2010, consolidated average assets were $237,840 million.

For the year ended Dec, 31, 2009

Total

Investment  Investment continuing

(dollar amounts in millions) Management. Services Other operations
Fee and other revenus $ 2,825 § 6887 $@Y1H $ 4739
Net inferest revenus 242, 2,349 324 2915
Total revenve 3,067 4,236 (4,649) o584
Provision for eredit logses 1 - 331 332
Nonintersst sxponse 2,499 3,901 1,130 9,530
Income (loss) before taxes $ 567 $ 3335 86,1103 $ {2.208)
Pre-tax aperating margin (@) 18% 36% NM NM

Average assets $21,840 $151,001 $37,098 $209,939 (p)

() Inconwe before taxes divided by total revenue.

(b} Including nverage assets of discontimed operations of $2.188 million in 2009, consolidated average assets were $212,127 million.

160 BNY Mellon
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerits (continued)

Note 27-~International operations As a result, it is necessary to make certain sulyjective
assumptions such as:
Interpational activity includes Investment

Management and Investment Services fee revenue s Income from international operations is
generating businesses, foreign exchange trading determined after internal allocations for interest
activity, loans and other revenue producing assets and revenue, taxes, expenses, provision and
transactions m which the customer is domiciled allowance for credit losses.

outside of the United States and/or the international ¢ Expense charges to international operations
activity is resident at an international entity. Due to include those directly incurred in connection

the nature of our international and domestic activities, with such activities, as well as an allocable share
it is not possible to precisely distinguish between of general support and overhead charges.

internationally and domestically domiciled customers.

Total vevenue, income before income taxes, income from continuing operations and total assets of our
international operations are shown in the table below.

International operations

Intemational Total Total
(in wmillions) HEMEA, APAL Other international domestic Total
2011:
Total assels at period end (a) $61,115 (b) $13.030 $1,694 $75.839 $249,427 $323,266
Total revenue 3,780 () 842 768 5,391 9,339 14,730
Income before taxes 1,135 426 350 1,911 1,706 3.617
Net income 867 325 267 1,459 1,110 2,569
2010 (c):
Total assets at period end (a) $72,629 (k) $ 8,806 8§31 $84,559 $162,422 $246,981
Total xevenue 3,497 (b) 745 735 4,977 8,898 13,875
Income before (axes 1,222 394 348 1,964 1,730 3,694
Net.income from coutinning operations 9106 205 26] 1,472 1,175 2,647
2009 (¢):
Total assets at period end (a} $58,011 (b) $ 5,588  §1,375 964,974 $145,008 $200,982
Total revenue 2,825 (bid) 668 578 4,072 3,582 7,654
Incorme (oss) befoxe taxes 863 (d) 287 257 1,407 (3,615 (2,208)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 667 () 222 19¢ 1,088 (1,901) (e) (313)

(a) Total assets include long-lived assets, which are not considered by management 1o be significant in relation 10 totaf assets. Long-lived
assets are primarily located in the United States.

(b) tncludes reverue of approsimately $2.2 billion, $2.1 bittion and $1.6 bitlion arnd asyety of approximately 328.3 billion, $44.7 billion
ond 84.3.0 bitlion in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively, of international operations domiciled in the United Kingdom, which is 15%,
15% and 2196 af total revernee and 9%, 18%, and 20% of total assets, respactively.

(¢} Presemted on o continuing operativay basis.

(i In 2009 excludes the $269 millicn of investment securities Losses on the Ewropean floating rate netes.

(e) Domestic income from. continuing operarions in 2009 was rechiced by investment securities losses.

Note 28—Supplemental information to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Noncash investing and financing transactions that, appropriately, are not reflected in the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows are listed below.

Noneash investing and

financing transactions Year ended Oec. 31,
{in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Transfers from loans to other assets for OREO $ 16 § 11 $11
Assels of consolidated VIBs 3,419 15,249 -
Liabilities of consolidated Wiks 3,478 13,049 -
Non-controlling interests of consolidated VIis 29 (699 -
Disposition of business 544 - -
Issvance of commion stock for acquisitions - - 85
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Renort of Independent Registered Publin Accounting Firm

The Bosrd of Direclors and ’Simrﬁholdﬁrs
0 .

T'hF Eank of MNew ful"l\ Melion

B Ln,g7 consolldated bslance shests of The Bank of Mew York Mellon Corporstlon

1 of Decsmber 31, 2911 and 2019, and the relawed “'munmdztéz st:xtc-ment;s of

a:h fiows for eash of the years in the three-yeor pericd ended December 31, 2011,
A t"“|') axe m{:‘r:.spomlk ity of H\e Irw lon’s umxm; emenl, Dut rsponsibility {s

Welinve aud i*Fr:l the o
md s*:bai

[TJ o GO L0 ld

“We conduded our sudits in seoordance wt b the standards of the Public Company Accourting Ovarsight Board
(United States). Those standards reguire that we plan and perferm the andit to obtsin reas somahle sosarance about
whether the financisl slatements are frae <~f zz;zru'“‘al misstatlemernt. An suddt includes exarndning, on & o8t basl,
svidenne supporting the amounts wd disslosures in the fnancial slatements, An audit aleo Includes assessing the
aceounl frigg prinsiples used and sipnificant estbnates made by monagement, as el as ew]uat;ngg the overall
financial staiement preseniation, We believe thet our audits provide a rezsoneble basis for eur opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referrad 1o akove present .a,irl", in all materlal respects, the
ﬁjmzwi“} soiition of HNY I’*Av‘l'xz as of Decemsber 37, 2611 and 2010, and the resuls of thely ‘)s' raticns and thely
>

caskh flows for each of the years fn the thres-year veriod ended Dscember 31, 301 l 1n conformily with
ULS, genexally accepled sceounting prinadples,

&g discussed in Nate Z io the consclidated financial stetements, n 2111

: m
seoounting related to the consclidation of varisble interect entities,
We alat have audited, In ancordance withishe stendards of the Fublic Company Ascounting Oversight Doard

{Unltedd ‘)Laze.s) BT Mellon’s Intexnal conivel vwer fnanclsl reporling g of [‘”f-i:ernbf; 31, 2011, based on erllerla
established in Inlﬁludx Control - Integrated Framewerk issued by the Committes of Sponsoring Organizat 10"3 of
the Treadway Comrndssion l(’?ﬂ,‘a("‘), and cur report dated Pebruary 28, 2012 wxpressed an Hl‘lQU‘!IITl{‘d opfion en

ihe effectéven-m of BHY Meilon's inteimal control over financial reporiing.

F1t3

KPriG LLP

New Yak, Mew Yok
Pebruary 28, 2012
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Directors, Executive Committee and Qther Executive Officers

irectors

Ruth E. Bruch

Retired Senior Vice President and
Chiefl Information Offiver
Kellogg Company

Cereal and convenience foods

Nicholas M. Donofrio

Retired Bxecutive Vice President,
Jnnovation and Technolagy

IBM Corporation

Developer, manufacturer and provider
of advanced information. echnologics
and services

Gerald L., Hassell

Chairman, President and Chief
Fxecuntive Officer

The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation

Edmund F. (Ted) Kelly
Chairman

Liberty Mutual Group
Muiti-line insurance company

Richard J. Kogan

Retired Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Schering-Plough Corporation
International research-based
developmert and manufacturing

Michael J. Kowalski

Chairman and Chief Bxecutive Officer
Tiffany & Co.

International designer, manufacturer
and disiributor of jewelry and fine
goods

John A, Luke, Jr.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
MeadWestvaco Corporation
Manufacturer of paper, paclkaging and
specialty chemicals

Mark A. Nordenberyg

Chancellor and Chief Bxeoutive Officer

University of Pittsburgh
Major public research university

* Designated as an Executive Officer.

Catherine A, Rein

Retired Senior Execulive Vice
President and Chief Administrative
Officer

Metl.ife, Inc.

Insurance and financial services
company

William C. Richardson

President and Chief Executive Officer
Emeritug

The W. K. Kellogg Foundation
Retired Chairman and Co-Trustee of
The W. K. Kellogg Foundation Trust
Private foundation

Samuel C. Scott ITL

Reiired Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Corn Products International, Inc.
Global producers of corn-refined
products and ingredients

Jolm P. Surma

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
United States Steel Corporation

Steel manufacturing

Wesley W. von Schack

Chairman

AEBGIS Insurance Services, Inc.

Mutual property and casualty insurance
company

Executive Committee and Qther
Executive Officers

Gerald L, Hassell *

Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Curtis Y. Arledge *
Chief Executive Offjcer,
Investment Management

Richard ¥. Brueckner ¥
Chief of Staff

Arthur Certosimo ¥
Chief IExecutive Officer,
Global Markets

Michael Cole-Fontayn

Chairman,

Europe, the Middle East and Africa

Thomas P. (Toedd) Gibbons *
Chief Financial Officer

Mitchell E. Harris

President,

Investment Management

Timothy F. Keaney *
Chief Executive Officer,
BNY Mellon Asset Servicing

Stephen 1D, Lackey

Chairman,

Asia Pacific

James P, Palermo #

Chief Executive Officer,
Global Client Management and
Liguidity Services

John A. Park *

Controller

Karen B. Peetw *
Chief Bxecutive Officer,
Financial Markets and Treasury

Services

Lisa B. Peters *
Chief Human Resources Officer

Brian G. Rogan *
Chief Risk Officer

Brian T. Shea
Chief Executive Officer,

Pershing 1.

I.C

Jane C. Sherburne *
Ceneral Counsel

Kust D, Woetzel ¥
Head of Global Operations and
Technology and Chief Administrative

Officer
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Performance Graph

Cumulative Total Shareholder Return (5 Years)

R . 2

30 ; ;
2006 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011

e Tha Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
—3e—— S&P 500 Financial index
- w@ie w S&P 500 Index

--------- 3 PG GrOUP
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201%
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation $1000  $1194  $71.2  §71.8  §785  §527
S&P 500 Financial Index 100.0 81.5 36.4 427 47.9 398
$&P 500 Index 100.0 105.5 66.5 84.1 967 98.8
Peer Group 160.0 83.4 45.8 51.6 55.8 428

This graph shows The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation’s cumulative total shareholder returns over the
five-year period from Dec. 31, 2006 w Dec. 31, 2011. The graph reflects total shareholder returns for The Bank of
New York Company, Inc. from Dec. 31, 2000 to June 29, 2007, and for The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation from July 2, 2007 to Dec. 31, 2011. The last day of trading The Bank of New York Company. lne.
common stock on the NYSE was June 29, 2007 and the first day of trading The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation common stock on the NYSE was July 2, 2007. We are showing combined The Bank of New York
Company, Inc. - The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation sharcholder returns because The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation does not have a five-year history as a public company. Our peer group is composed of
financial services companies which provide investment management and investment servicing. We also utilize the
S&P 500 Financial Index as a benchmark against our performance. The graph shows the cumulative total returns
for the same five-year period of the S&P 500 Financial Index, the S&P 500 Index as well as our peer group listed
below. The comparison assumes a $100 investment on Dec. 31, 2006 in The Bank of New York Conipany, Inc.
common stock (which was converted on a 0.9434 for one basis into The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
common stock on July 1, 2007), in the S&P 500 Financial Index, in the S&P 500 Index and in the peer group
detailed below and assumes that all dividends were reinvested.

Peer Group*

American Express Companty Citigronp Inc, Prisdential Financial, Inc.
Rank of America Cotparation JPMorgan Chase & Co. State Street Corporation
BlackRozk, Inc. Northern Trust Corporation LS. Bancorp

The Charles Schwab Corporation The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. Wells Fargo & Corpany

* Relurns are weighted by marked capiialization at the beginning of the measurement period.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Financial instinutions

The diversity of the financial institutions portfolio is shown in the following table.

Financial institutions

Dec. 31, 2011

Dec. 31, 2010

P ortfolio exposure . Unfunded Total % Invy % due Unfonded Tolal
(doliar amounts in billions) loans  commitments  exposure  grade <lyc  loans  commitments  exposue
Banks $63 $ 19 % 82 82% 96%  $4.2 322 § 64
Securities industry 38 2.6 6.4 95 95 3.9 23 6.2
Insurance 0.1 4.6 4.7 a9 42 0.1 5.0 5.1
Assel maAnagers 0.8 32 4.0 28 82 0.8 2.4 3.2
Goverrmnent - 1.6 1.6 94 36 0.2 2.1 2.3
Other 0.1 1.6 17 98 36 0.1 1.8 1.9

Total $11.1 $155 $26.6 93Y% 8% §$9.3 $158 $25.1

The financial institutions pertfolio exposure was
$26.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared to

$25.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase primarily
reflects loans to banks.

Financial institution exposures are high quality, with
93% meeting the invesiment grade equivalent criteria
of our rating system at Dec. 31, 2011. These
exposures are generally short-tenn. Of these
exposures, 78% expire within one year, and 39%
expire within 90 days, In addition, 44% of the
financial institutions exposure is secured. For
example, securities industry and asset managers often
borrow against marketable securities held in custody.

For ratings of non-1.5. comterparties, as a
conservative measure, o internal credit rating

Commercial

classification generally caps the rating based upon the
sovereign rating of the country where the counterparty
resides regardless of the credit rating of the
counterparty or the underlying collateral.

Our exposure to banks is predominaiely to investment
grade counterparties in developed countries.
Non-investment grade bank exposwres are short-term
in nature supporting our global trade finance and U.S.
dolar clearing businesses in developing countyies.

The asset manager portfolio exposures are high
quality with 99% meeting our investment grade
equivalent ratings oriteria at Dec. 31, 2011, These
exposures are generally short-term Hquidity facilities
with the vast majority to regulated mutual funds.

The diversity of the commercial portfolic is shown in the following iable.

Commercial portfolio exposure

Dec. 31, 2011

Dec. 31,2010

Unfunded Total % Inv % due Infunded Total

(deillar amounts in. billions) Loans  commitments  exposure grade <lvr Loans  commitments  exposure
Mamnfacturing $0.3 $ 87 $ 6.0 1% 2% %04 $ 59 $ 63
Energy and ufilities 0.3 4.8 5.1 95 17 0.3 54 57
Services and other 0.5 4.5 5.0 91 27 0.7 5.9 6.6
Media and telecom 0.2 13 1.5 85 18 0.2 1.6 1.8
Total $1.3 $16.3 $17.6 91%: 21%  $1.6 3188 $20.4

The commercial portfolio exposure decreased 14% to
$17.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, from $20.4 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010, reflecting our desire to reduce

now-strategic exposure. Our goal is to maintain a
predominantly investment grade portfolio.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Financial institutions

The diversity of the financial institutions portfolio is shown in the following table.

Financial institutions

Dec. 31, 2011

Dec. 31, 2010

portiolio exposure Unfunded Tolal % Iny % doe Unfunded Tetal
(doliar amounts in billions) loans  commitments  exposure  grade <lyc  loans  commitments  exposue
Banks $ 63 $ 19 %82 82% 96%  $4.2 § 22 3 64
Securities industry 3.8 2.6 6.4 95 95 3.9 23 6.2
fosurance 0.1 4.6 4.7 99 42 0.1 3.0 5.1
Assel maAnagers 0.8 32 40 28 82 0.8 2.4 3.2
Goverronent - 1.6 1.6 94 36 0.2 2.1 2.3
Other 0.1 1.6 17 98 36 0.1 1.8 1.9

Total $11.1 $15.5 $26.6 93% 78% $9.3 $158 $25.1

The financial institutions portfolio exposure was
$26.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared to

$25.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase primarily
reflects loans to banks.

Financial institution exposures are high quality, with
93% meeting the mvesiment grade equivalent criteria
of our rating system at Dec. 31, 2011. These
exposures are generally short-tenn. Of these
exposures, 78% expire within one year, and 39%
expire within 90 days. In addition, 44% of the
financial institutions exposure is secured. For
example, securities industry and asset managers often
borrow against marketable securities held in custody.

For ratings of non-U.S. comterpartics, as a
conservative measure, owr internal credit rating

Commercial

classification generally caps the rating based upon the
sovereign rating of the country where the counterparty
resides regardless of the credit rating of the
counterparty or the underlying collateral.

Our exposure to banks is predominately to investment
grade counterparties in developed countries.
Non-investment grade bank exposures are short-term
in nature supporting our global trade finance and U.S,
dolar clearing businesses in developing countyies.

The asset manager portfolio exposures are high
quality with 99% meeting our investment grade
equivalent ratings criteria at Dec. 31, 2011, These
exposures are generally short-term Hquidity facilities
with the vast majority to regulated mutual funds.

The diversity of the conumercial portfolio is shown in the following table.

Commercial portfolio exposure

Dec. 31, 2011

Dec. 31,2010

Unfunded Total 9 Inv % due Infunded Total

(deilar amounts in. billions) Loans  commitments  exposure grade <Ilvr Loans  commitments  exposure
Mannfacturing $0.3 $ 87 $ 6.0 61% 2% %04 $ 59 $ 63
Energy and uiilities 0.3 4.8 5.1 95 17 0.3 54 57
Services and other 0.5 4.5 5.0 91 27 0.7 5.9 6.6
Media and telecom 0.2 1.3 1.5 88 18 0.2 1.6 1.8
Total $1.3 $16.3 $17.6 V1% 21%  $1.6 3188 $20.4

The commercial portfolio exposure decreased 14% to
$17.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, from $20.4 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010, reflecting our desire to reduce

non-strategic exposure. Our goal is to maintain a
predominantly investment grade portfolio.
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Results of Operations (continued)

The table below summarizes the percentage of the
financial institutions and commercial exposires that
are investment grade.

Percentage of the portfolios Dec. 31, Dec.31, Dec. 31,
that are investment grade 2011 2010 2009
Financial instilutions 93% 91% 85%
Comrnercial 91% 894% 0%

Our credit strategy is to focus on investment grade
pames to support cross-selling opportunities, avoid
single name/industry concentrations and exit high-risk
partfolios. Bach customer is assigned an internal
rating grade, which is mapped to an external rating
agency grade equivalent based upon a number of
dimensions which are continually evaluated and may
change over time. The execution of our strategy has
resulted in a higher percentage of the portfolio that is
investment grade at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with
Dec. 31 2010.

Wealth management loans and mortgages

Wealth Management Joans and mortgages arc
primarily composed of loans to high-net-worth
individuals, which are secured by marketable
securitics and/or residential property. Wealth
management mortgages are primarily interest-only
adjustable rate mortgages w ith an average loan to
value ratio of 62% at origination. In the wealth.
management porifolio, 1% of the mortgages were past
due at Dec. 31, 2011

At Dec. 31, 2011, the private wealth morigage
portfolio was comprised of the following geographic
concentrations: New York — 24%; Massachusetts —
17%; California — 17%; Florida ~ 8%; and other —
34%.

Commercial real estate

Our commercial real estate facilities are focused on
experienced owners and are structured with moderate
leverage based on existing cash flows. Our
commercial real estate lending activities include both
construction facifities and medium-term loans. Our
client base consists of experienced developers and
long-term holders of real estale assets. Loans are
approved on the basis of existing or projected cash
flow, and supported by appraisals and knowledge of
local market conditions. Development loans are
structured with moderate leverage, and inmost
instances, involve some level of recourse to the
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developer. Our commercial real estate exposure
totaled $3.0 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with
$3.2 billion at Dec. 31, 2010.

At Dec. 31, 2011, 58% of our commercial real estate
portfolio is secured. The secured portfolio is diverse
by project type, with 62% secured by residential
buildings, [7% secured by office buildings, 9%
secured by retail properties, and 12% secured by other
categories. Approximately 95% of the unsecured
portfolio is allocated to investment grade yeal estate
investment trusts (“REITs™) under revolving credit
agreements,

At Dee. 31, 2011, our commercial real estate portfolio
is comprised of the following geographic
concentrations: New York metro — 43%; investment
grade REITs — 40%; and other — 17%.

Lease financings

The lease financing portfolio consisted of non-airtine
exposures of $2.4 billion and $197 million. of airline
exposures at Dec. 31, 2011, The lease {inancing
exposure is 89% investment grade, or investment
grade equivalent. The leasing portfolio is likely to
decline in the future if risk-adjusted retuns are unable
to meet our expected refurns.

At Dec. 31, 2011, the non-airline portion of the lease
financing portfolio consisted of $2.4 billion of
exposures backed by well-div ersified assets, primarily
lar ge-ticket transportation equipment. The largest
component is rail, consisting of both passenger and
freight trains. Assets are both domestic and foreign-
based, with primary concentrations in the United
States and Buropean countries. Approximately 50% of
the non-airline portfolio is additionally secured by
highty rated securities and/or letters of credit from.
investment grade issuers. Excludmg airline lease
financing, counterparty rating equivalents at Dec. 31,
2011, were as follows:

1% of the counterparties are AA, or equivalent;
42% were A,

531 % were BBB; and

6% were non-investment grade

% @ ® @&

At Dec, 31, 2011, our $197 million. of exposure to the
airline industry consisted of $13 million of real estate
lease exposure, as well as the airline leage financing
portfolio, which included $69 million to major U.S.
cactiers, $103 million to foreign airlines and $12
million to U.S. regional airlines.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Recently, the U.S domestic airline industry has shown
significant improvement in revenues and yields,
Despite this improvement, these carriers continue to
have extremely high debt levels. Combined with their
high fixed-cost operating models, the domestic
airlines remain vulnerable. As such, we continue to
maintain a sizable allowance for loan losses against
these exposures and continue to closely monitor the
portfolio.

We utilize the lease financing portfolio as part of our
tax management strategy.

Other residential mortgages

The other residential mortgage portfolio primarily
consists of one to four family residential mortgage
loans and totaled $1.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2011.
Included in this portfolio is $596 million of mortgage
loans purchased in 2005, 2006 and the first quarter of
2007 that are predominantty prime mortgage Joans,
with a small portion of Alt-A loans. As of [ec. 31,
2011, the purchased foans in this portfolio had a
weighted-average loan-to-value ratio of 76% at
origination and 28% of these loans wege at Jeast 60
days delinquent. The properties securing the prime
and Alt-A mortgage loans were located (in order of
concentration) in California, Florida, Virginia,
Maryland and the tri-state avrea (New York, New
lersey and Connecticut).

To determine the projected loss on the prime and
Ali-A mortgage portfolio, we caloulate the total
estimated defaults of these mortgages and multiply

that amount by an estimate of realizable value upon
sale in the marketplace (severity).

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had less than $15 million'in
subprime mortgages included in the other residential
mottgage portfolio. The subprime loans were issued to
support our Community Reinvestment Act
requirements.

Overdrafts

Overdrafts primarily relate to custody and securities
clearance clients. Overdrafts occur on a daily basis in
the custody and securities clearance business and are
generally repaid within two business days.

Other lpans

Other loans primarily includes loans to consumers that
are Tully collateralized with equities, mutual funds and
fixed income securitics, as well as bankers’
acceptances.

Margin loans

Margin loans are collateralized with marketable
securities and borrowers are required to maintain a
daily collateral margin in excess of 100% of the value
of the loan, Margin loans also include §5 billion
related to a term loan program that offers fully
collateralized loans to broker-dealers. The increase
compared with Dec. 31, 2010 was primarily driven by
the term loan progran.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Loans by produci

The following table shows trends in the Joans outstanding at year-end over the last five vears.

L.oans by product - at year end

(in millions) 2011 2010(a) 2009 (a) 2008 2007
Domestic:
Jinancial institunions $ 4,606 § 4,630 § 5509 $ 5546 % 8,934
Commercial 752 1,250 2,324 5786 5.099
Weal th Management loats and moitgages 7.342 6,506 6,162 5,333 4.521
Commercial real estate 1,449 1,592 2,044 3,081 3,019
Lease financing (b) 1,558 1,605 1,703 1,809 1,980
Other residential mortgages 1,923 2,079 2,17 2,505 3118
Overdrafts 3,958 4,524 3,046 4,835 4,037
Othey 623 T 407 485 363
Margin Loans 12,760 6,810 4,657 3,977 5,210
Total domestic 33,971 29,767 28,931 33,357 36,278
Foreign:
Finatcial instiintions 6,338 4,626 3,147 3,755 4,392
Conmmercial 328 345 634 573 852
Lease financings (5) 1,051 1,545 1,816 2,154 2,935
Government and official institutions - - 52 1,434 312
Other (primarily overdrafts) 1,801 1,525 2,109 2,121 5,662
Total foreign 16,008 5,041 7,758 10,037 14,653
Total loans 443979 337,808 $36,689 $43,394 350,931

(a) Presented ona contimdng operations basts.

(b) Net of unearned income on domestic and foreign lease financings of $1,343 million at Dec. 31, 2011, $2,036 millien at Dec. 31, 2010,
$2,282 million at Dec. 31, 2009, $2,836 million at Dec. 31, 2008 and $4,050 nillion at Dec. 31, 2007.

Maturity of loan porffolio

The following table shows the maturity structure of
our loan portfolio at Dec. 31,2011,

Maturily of loan portfolio at Dec. 31,2011 (a)

Between
Within  1and$5 After

{in millions) 1 year years 3 yewrs Total
Domestic:
Financial institations  § 4,363 $ 243 $ - % 4006
Convmercial 68 a7 7 752
Commercial roal

estate 247 667 535 1,449
Overdrafts 2,958 - - 2958
Other 623 - - 623
Margin loans 10,260 2,500 12,760

Subtotal 18,519 4,087 542 23,148
Foreign 8,500 457 - 8,957
Total 527,019 $4.544 (b} $542 (b) $32,105
(a} Excludes loans collateralized by residential properties, lease
financings and wealth management loans and mortgages.
(b} Variable rate loans due afier one year totaled 35.0 hillion
wnd fixed rate loans toteled $114 million.

International loans

We have credit relationships in. the international
markets, particulatly in areas associated with our
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securities servicing and trade finance activities.
Tixcluding lease financings, these activities resulted in
outstanding international loans of $9.0 hillion at Dec.
31,2011 and $6.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010, This
increase primarily resulted from an increase in
investment grade loans to financial stitutions.

Asset quality and allowance for credit losses

Over the past several years, we have improved our
visk profile through greater focus on clients who are
active users of our non-credit services,
de-emphasizing broad-based loan growth, Owr
primary exposure to the credit risk of a customer
consists of funded loans, unfunded formal contractual
commitments to lend, standby letters of credit and
overdrafts associated with our custody and securities
clearance businesses.

The role of credit has shifted to one that complements
our other services instead of as a lead product. Credit
solidifies customer relationships and, through a
disciplined allocation of capital, can earn acceptable
rates of return as part of an overall relationship.

Crur credit strategy is to focus on investment grade

names to support cross-selling opportunities, avoid
single name/industyy concentrations and exit high-risk
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Results of Operations (continued)

portfolios. In addition, we make use of credit
derivatives and other risk mitigants as economic
hedges of portions of the credit risk in our portfolio.
The effect of these transactions is to transfer credit

risk to creditwarthy, independent third partics. The
following table details changes in our allowance for
credit losses for the last five years.

Allowance for eredit losses activity

(doliar amounts in mitlionsj 2011 2010 2000 2008 2007 (a)
Margin loans $12,760  § 6,810 § 4,657 $ 3977 $ 5210
Non-margin loans 31,219 30,998 32,032 30417 45,721
Total loans at Dec. 31, 43,979 37,808 36,689 43,394 50,931
Average loans outstanding 46,919 36,303 36,424 43,132 41,515
Allowance for credit losses:
Balance, Jan. 1,
Domestic $ 511 § 578 0§ 508 0§ 446 0§ 407
Foreign 60 50 21 48 30
Total 571 628 529 494 437
Charge-offs:
Commercial () 5) 90 (21 22
Cormmercial real estaie {4 (&) (31) (15} -
Financial institutions (8 (25) (3 %) -
ILease financing - - - - (36)
Wealth tpanagement loaus and mortgages N {4 1) 1 -
Other residential mortgages (56) (40) (60) 20 B
Foreign (8) - - (7 (19)
Qther - - - (H)
Total charge-offs (83) (&%) (216) @3 (73)
Recoveries:
Commercial 3 15 - 2 1
Commercial real estate - 1 - -
Financial instilutions 2 2 - ~ “
l.ease financing - - 1 a 13
Wealth management loans and mortgages - - 1 1 -
Other residential mortgages 3 2 - -
Foreign - 4 1
Qther - - - -~ -
Total recoveries 8 20 2 10 i3
Net charge-offs (78) {68) (214) (73) (63)
Provision for credit losses 1 11 332 104 an
Transferred to discontinoed operations . (19} 27 1
Acquisitions/dispositions and other - - - (23) 130
BBalance, Dec, 31,
Domestic 439 S11 578 508 446
Foreign 58 60 50 21 48
Total allowance, Dec. 31, (b) $ 497 0§ 571§ 628 § 329 0§ 49
Allowance for loan losses $ 394 F 498 3 503 0§ 415 3 327
Allowance for lending-related commitments 103 73 125 114 167
Net charge-offs 1o average loans onistapding 0.18% 0.19% 0.59% 0.15% Q.15%
Net charge-olfs to total allowance for credit losses 15.09 11.91 34.08 13.80 1275
Allowance for loan losses as  percentage of towl loans 0.90 1.32 1.37 .96 0.64
Allowance for loan losses as a percentags of nou-imargin loans 1.26 1.61 1.57 1.08 0.72
Total altowsmee Tor eredit losses as a percentage of tolal loans 113 1.51 171 1.22 0.97
Total allowanee for credil losses as a percentage of non-margin loans 1.59 1.84 1.96 1.34 1.0%

(a) Charge-alfs, recoveries and the provision for 2007 include six months of BNY Mellon and six months af legacy The Bank of Sevw York

Company, Inc.

(bj The allowanee for eredit losses ot Dec. 31, 2010, and 2009 excludes discontinued operations. The allowance for credit losses includes
discontinued operations of §35 million ot Dec. 31, 2008, and $17 million at Pec. 31, 2007,
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Restuits of Operations (continued)

Net charge-offs were §75 million in 2011, $68 million
in 2010 and $214 million in 2009. Net charge-offs in
2011 incloded $53 million of other residential
mortgages primarily located in California, Florida,
New York and New Jersey, a $10 million loan in the
media portfolio and $6 million related to a broker-
dealer holding company that filed for bankruptey. Net
charge-~offs in 2010 included $44 million of other
residential mortgages primarily located in California,
New York and Florida, $17 million related to a
mortgage company, partially offset by $10 million of
net recoveries from the media portfolio. Net charge-
offs in 2009 included $71 million related to print and
broadcast media, $60 million of residential mortgages
primarily located in California, New York, New
Tersey and Florida, $31 million related to commercial
real estate exposure in Florida and New York, $38
million to finance and leasing companies and $8
million to an auto parts manufacturer.

The provision for credit losses was $1 million in 2011
compared with $11 million in 2010 and $332 million
in 2009, The lower provision in 2011 primarily
resulted from an improvement in the loan portfolio
and a decline in criticized assets. Criticized assels
include impaired credits and higher risk-rated credits.
We anticipate the quarterly provision for credit losses
to be approximately $0 to $15 million in 2012.

The total allowance for credit losses was $497 million
at Dec. 31, 2011 and $571 million at Dec. 31, 2010.
The decrease in the allowance for credit losses reflects
a 27% decline in criticized assets.

The ratio of the total allowance for credit losses to
year-end non-margin loans was 1.59% at Dec. 31,
2011 and 1.84% at Dec. 31, 2010. The ratio of the
allowance for loan losses to year-end non-margin
loans was 1.26% at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with
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1.61% at Dec. 31, 2010. The decrease reflects the
decline in criticized assets.

We had $12.8 billion of secured margin loans on our
balance sheet at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $6.8
billion at Dec. 21, 2010. We have rarely suffered a
Joss on these types of loans and do not allocate any of
our allowance for credit losses to them. As a result,
we believe that the ratio of total allowance for credit
losses to non-margin loans is a more appropriate
meitric to measure the adequacy of the reserve.

Based on an evaluation of the three elements and owr
qualitative framework of the allowance for credit
losses, as discussed in “Critical accounting estimates™
and Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, we have allocated our allowance for credit
losses as follows:

Aldlocation of allowance ) )
2011 2010{a) 2000 (a) 2008 (a) 2007 (@)

Qther residential

mortgages M% 41% 26% 17% 7%
Commercial 18 16 25 34 43
Financial instittions 13 2 12 11 8
{.ease financing 13 16 13 17 19
Foreign 12 11 8 4 10
Cornmercial real estate 7 7 7 11 9
Wealth inanagement (b) & 7 ] 6 4

Total 100% 100%  100%  100%  100%

(a) Restated to reflect the implementition. of the qualitative
allowance framework. Kxcltdes discomtinued operations in
2010 and 2009. The allowartce for credit losses includes
discontinued operations in 2008 and 2007,

(b)) Diclicdes the allowence for wealth managenent martgages.

The allocation of allowance for credit losses is
inherently judgmental, and the entire allowance for
credit Tosses is available to absorb credit losses
regardless of the nature of the loss.

REJN_EX 25_ 0000050

1453



Results of Operations (continued

Nonperforming assets

The following table shows the distribution of nonperformin

g assets at the end of each of the last five years.

&

Nonperforming assets at Dec, 33

(doliars in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Loans:
Other residential niortgages $ 203 3 244 § 190 & 97 $ 20
Commaercial real estate 40 44 61 130 40
‘Wealth management 32 59 5B 2 -
Financial institutions 23 5 172 41 24
Commercial 21 M 65 14 15
Foreign 10 7 - - &7
Total nonperforming loans 320 393 346 284 186
Othey assets owned 12 6 4 8 4
Total nonperforming assels (a) § 341(b) 3 399(b) § 550 $ 292 $ 190
Nonperforming assels ratio 0.78% 1.06% 1.50% 0.67% 0.38%
Nonperforming assets rafio, sxcluding margin loans 1.09 1.29 1.72 0.74 042
Allowance for loan losses/monperforming loans 119.8 1267 921 146.1 1758
Allowanee for loan losses/monperforming assets 115.5 1248 91.5 142.1 1721
Totzl alowsnce for credit Jossesmonperforming loans 1511 145.3 1150 186.3 265.6
Total sllowance for credit losses/nonperforming assels 1457 143.1 114.2 181.2 260.0

(6) Nomperforming assets at Dec. 31, 2010 and Dec, 31, 2009 exclude discontinued aperations. Nonpeiforming assets at Dec. 31, 2008
and 3007 include discontinued eperations of $96 million and 318 million, respectively.

(b} Loans of consolidated investment managewment fiunds are not part aof BNY Mellon's loan portfolio. Included in these loans are
nonperforming loans of $101 million ot Dec. 31, 2011 and 5218 million at Dec. 31, 2010. These loans are recorded at futy vaine and
therefore do not impact the provision for credit losses and allowance for loan losses, and accordingly are excluded from the

nonperforming assets lable above.

Nonperfornzing assets activity

(in mitlions) 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year %399 3§ 5350
Additions 180 202
Retorn to acerual statius {87) (32)
Charge-ofls (78) {86)
Paydowns/sales (93)  (230)
Transferred to other real estate owned am 1

Balance at end of year $341  $399

Nonperforming assets were $341 miflion at Dee. 31,
2011, a decrease of $58 million compared with

Dec. 31, 2010. The decrease primarily resulted from
repayments of $46 million in the other residential
mortgage portfolio, $24 million in the commercial real
estate portfolio, $10 million in the commercial loan
portfolio, $8 million in the financial institutions
portfolio, $4 million in the wealth management
portfolio and $1 million in the foreign loan portfolio,
and charge-offs of $52 million in the other residential
mortgage portfolio, $8 million in the financial
institutions portfolio, $8 million in the foreign loan
portfolio, $6 million in the conmercial loan portfolio
and $4 million in the commercial real estate portfolio.
Also in 2011, $27 million in the wealth managenment
portfolio, $21 million in other residential morigages
and $9 million in the commercial portfolio retrned to

accrual status. Additions in 2011 included $90 million
in the other residential mortgages porifolio, $36
million in the financial instittions postfolio, $25
million in commercial real estate portfolio, $12
million in the commercial loans portfolio, $12 million
in the foreign loan portfolio and $5 million ia the
wealth management portfolio,

The following table shows loans past due 90 days or
more and still aceruing interest.

Past due Joans still aceruying interest at year-end

{in millions} 2001 20006 2000 2008 2007
Domestic:
Consumer $13 %21 §93 $27 % -
Conmercial - 12 338 315 343
Total domestic 13 33 431 342 343
Foreign - - - - -

Total past due Joans $13  $33 8431 §342  §3d3

Past due loans at Dec. 31, 2011 werc primarily
comprised of other residential mortgages. For
additional information, see Note 6 of the Notes to
Caonsolidated Financial Statements.
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Deposits

Total deposits were $219.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2011,
an nerease of 51% compared with $145.3 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in deposits reflects 4
higher level of both domestic and foreign deposits
resulting from much higher client deposits in our
Investment Services business.

Noninterest-bearing deposits were $95.3 billion at
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $38.7 billion at Dec.
31, 2010. Interest-bearing deposits were $123.8
billion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $106.6 billion
at Dec. 31, 2010.

The aggregate amount of deposits by foreign
customers in domestic offices was $6.5 billion and
$3.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Deposits in foreign offices totaled $85.1 billion at
Dec. 31, 2011, and $72.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2010, The
majority of these deposits were in amounts in excess
of $100,000 and were primarily overniglt foreign
deposits.

The following table shows the maturity breakdown of
domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more at
Dec. 31, 2011

Domestic lime deposits » $100,000 at Dec. 31, 2011

Qther

Certificates timre
(in millions) of deposit  deposits Total
3 months or 1ess $ 37 $35983 836,020
Between 3 and 6 months 19 - 19
Between 6 and 12 months 19 - 19
Over 12 months 29 - 29
Total $104  $35983  $36.,087

Short-term borrowings

We fund ourselves primarily through deposits and, to
a lesser extent, other borrowings, which are comprised
of federal funds purchased and securities soid under
repurchase agreements, payables to customers and
broker-dealers, commercial paper, other borrowed
funds and long-term debt, Cettain other borrowings,
for example, securities sold under repurchase
agreements, require the delivery of securities as
collateral.

See “Liquidity and dividends” below for a discussion
of long-term debt and liquidity metrics that we
monitor and the Parent’s limited veliance on shott-
term borrowings.
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Information related to federal funds purchased and
securities sold under vepurchase agreements is

presented below.

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under

repurchase agreements

(dollar armounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Maximum. dajly balance

during the year $21,690 816,006  $9.076
Average Gaily balance $ 8,572  § 3356  $2,695
Weighied-average rate

doring the year 0.02% 0.80% -Gl
Ending balance at Dec. 31 $ 6,267 § 5602  $3,348
Weighled-average rale at Dec, 31 (0.05)% 2.12% 0.01%
Federsl funds purchased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements

Quarter ended
Dec.31,  Sept.30, Dec 31,

{doilar amannts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maximum daily balance

doring the quarter $LL717 0 $21,690  $12,080
Average daily balance % 8,608 310,164 3 7,256
Weighied-average raie

dvring the quarter (0.0 % 0.03% 213%
Ending balance § 6,267 S 6768 0§ 5602
Weighted-average rate at

period end {0.05) % 0.01% 2.12%

Tederal funds purchased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements were $6.3 billion at Dec. 31,
2011, compared with $6.8 billion at Sept. 30, 2011

and $5.6 billion at Dec. 31,

2010. The higher average

federal funds purchased and securities sold undex
repurchase agreements in the third quarter of 2011
was primarily a function of attractive overnight repo
rate opportunities, The maximum daily balance in the
third quarter of 2011 was $21.7 billion and resulted
from the same attractive overnight borrowing
opportunities. At Dec. 31, 2011 and in the fourth
quarter of 2011, we earned revenue on securities sold
under repurchase agreements related to cerfain
securities for which we were able to charge a higher

rate for lending them.

Information related to payables to customers and
broker-dealers is presented helow,

Pavables to customers and broker-dealers

{dollar armounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Maximum daily balance

during the year $14,481 313,454 $14,398
Average daily balance (@) $11.853  $11,270  § 9,662
‘Weighted-average rate

during the year 6.09% 0.09% 0.12%
Ending balance at Dec. 31 $12,671 § 9962  $16,721
Weighled-average rate at Dec. 31 0.09% 0.12% 0.07%

(a} The weighted average rate is coleuloted bosed on, and is
applied to, the average interesi-bearing payables to
customers and broker-dealers which were $7,319 million in
2011, $6,439 milliom in 2018 and $3,263 miflion in 2009,
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Payables to enstomers and broker-dealers
Quarter ended

Dec. 31,  Sept. 30, Dec. 31,

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maxirnoin daily balance

during the quarter $14,481 $14,190  $12,192
Average daily balance () $13,308 $12,3203 $10,694
Wei ghted-average mle

during the quartex 0.08% 0.10% 0.11%
Ending balance $12,671 $13,097  § 9,902
Weighted-average yate af

petod end 0.08% 0.0949 0.12%

(a) The weighted average rote is colenlated based or, anel ix
applied to, the average interest-bearing payables o
custorners and broker-dealers, which were $8,023 wmillion in
the fourth quarter of 2011, 87,692 wmillion in the third quarier
of 2011 and $35.878 million in the fourth quarter of 2010.

Payables to customers and broker-dealers represent
fands awaiting re-investment and short sale proceeds,
payable on demand. Payables to customers and
broker-dealers were $12.7 billion. at Dec. 31, 2011 and
$13.1 billion at Sept. 30, 2011, and $10.0 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010. Payables to custormers and broker-
dealers are driven by customer trading activity levels
and market volatility.

Information related to commercial paper is presented
below.

Commercial paper

(doliar cynounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Magimum daily balance

during the year $575  $128  $537
Average daily balance $ 98 $ 18 $19
Weighted-average rate

during the year 0.04% 003% 0.01%
Ending batance at Dee. 31 $ 10 % 10 § 12
Weighted-average rate at Dec. 31 003% 0.03% 0U2%
Commercial paper Quarter ended

Dec. 31,  Sept, 30,  Dec. 31,

{dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maximom daily balance

during the quarter $ 46 $ 575 $ 53
Average daily balance 5 23 3300 $ 13
Weighted-average rate

during the quarter 0.03% .08% 0.03%
Finding balance $ 10 § 44 $ 10
Weighted-average rale al

period end 1.03% 0.03% 0.03%

Commercial paper outstanding was $10 million at
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $44 million at Sept. 30,
2011, and $10 million at Dec. 31, 2010, Our
commercial paper matures within 397 days from date
of issue and is not redeemable prior to maturity or
subject to voluntary prepayment.

Information related to other borrowed funds is
presented below,

Other borrowed funds

(dollar amaonnts in milfions) 2011 2010 2009
Maximom daily balance

during the year 84,861  $5359  $4,789
Average daily balance $1,932 $2,045 31378
Weighted-average rate

during the year 1.10%  2.14%  223%
Balance at Dec, 31 $2,174  $2.858  § 477
‘Weighted-average rate at Dec. 31 118%  1.77%  2.7%%
Othet borrowed funds Quarter ended

Dec. 31, Sept. 30,  Dec.31,

{dellar amounts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maximum daily balance

during the quaster $4,273 $4,561 $5.359
Aversge daily balance $2,109 $1,956 91,986
Weighted-average rale

during the guartes 0.95% 1.72% 1.66%
Ending balance $2,174 $4,561 $2,858
Weighted-average rale al

period end 1.15% 181% 1L.77%

Other borrowed. funds primarily include: term federal
funds purchased under agreement to resell;
borrowings under lines of credit by our Pershing
subsidiaries; and overdrafts of subcustodian account
balances in our Investment Sexvices businesses.
Overdrafts i these accounts typically relate to timing
differences for settlements of these business activities.
Other borrowed funds were $2.2 billion at Dec. 31,
2011 compared with §4.6 billion at Sept. 30, 2011 and
$2.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. Fluctuations between
periods reflect overdrafts of subcustodian accounts.

Liguidity and dividends

BNY Mellon defines liquidity as the ability of the
Parent and its subsidiaries to access funding or
convert assets to cash quickly and efficiently, ,
aspecially during periods of market stress. Liquidity
risk is the risk that BNY Mellon cannot meet its cash
and collateral obligations at a reasonable cost for both
expected and unexpected cash flows, without
adversely affecting daily operations or {inancial
conditions. Liquidity risk can arise from cash flow
mismatches, market constraints from inability to
convert assets to cash, inability to raise cash in the
markets or deposit run-otf.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Our overall approach to liquidity management is o
ensure that sources of liquidity ave sufficient in
amount and diversity such that changes in fonding
requirements at the Parent and at the various bank
subsidiaries can be accommniodated routinely without
material adverse impact on earnings, daily operations
or our financial condition.

BNY Mellon seeks to maintain an adequate liquidity
cushion in both normal and stressed environments and
seeks to diversify funding sources by line of business,
customer and market segment. Additionally, we seek
to maintain liquidity ratios within approved limits and
liquidity risk tolerance; maintain a iquid asset bufler
that can be Tiquidated, financed and/or pledged as

- necessary; and control the levels and sources of
wholesale funds.

Potential uses of liquidity include withdrawals of
customer deposits and client drawdowns on unfunded
credit or liquidity facilities. We actively monitor
unfunded lending-related commitments,

thereby reducing unanticipated funding requirements.

When monitoring liquidity, we evaluate multiple
metrics to ensure ample liquidity for expected and
unexpected events. Metrics include cashflow
mismatches, asset maturilies, access to debt and
money markets, debt spreads, peer ratios,

unencumbered collateral, funding sources and balance
shect liquidity ratios. We have begun to monitor the
Basel I1I liquidity coverage ratio as applied. to us,
based on our current interpretation of Basel IIL Ratios
we currently monitor as part of our standard analysis
include total loans as a percentage of total deposits,
deposits as a percentage of total interest-earning
assets, foreign deposits as a percentage of total
interest-earnings assels, purchased funds as a
percentage of total interest-earning assets, liquid
assets as a percentage of total interest-eaming assets
and liquid assets as a percentage of purchased funds.
All of these ratios exceeded our minimum guidelines
atDec. 31, 2011,

We also perform stress tests to verify sufficient
funding capacity is accessible after conducting
multiple stregs scenarios.

Available funds are defined as liquid funds (which
include interest-bearing deposits with banks and
federal funds sold and securities purchased under
resale agreements), cash and due from banks, and
interest-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and
other central banks. The table below presents our total
available funds including liquid funds at period end
and on an average basis. The higher level of available
funds at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with Dec. 31, 2010
resulted from a higher level of client deposits.

Available and liguid funds Average
Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
(in millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2009
Available funds:
Liquid funds:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks $ 36,321 $50,200 8 85218 836,679 $55.797
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under regale agreements 4,510 5,169 4,809 4,660 3,238
‘Total liquid funds 40,831 53,369 60,027 61,339 59.035
Clash and due from banks 4,378 3,675 4,579 3,832 3,638
Tnterest- bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and other central
banks 90,243 18,549 47,104 14,253 11,928
‘Total available funds $135,249  $77,593  $11L710  $7944 374611
Total available fands as a percentage of total assels 42 % 31% 8% 23% 354

On an average basis for 2011 and 2010, non-core
sources of funds such as money market rate accounts,
certificates of deposit greater than $100,000, federal
funds purchased, trading liabilities and othex
horrowings were $17.5 billion and $13.9 billion,
respectively, The increase primarily reflects higher
levels of federal funds purchased, money market rate
accounts and trading labilities, partially offset by
lower levels of other borrowed funds. Average foreign
deposits, primarily from our European-based
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Tnvestment Services business, were $83.8 billion i
2011 compared with $71.4 billion in 2010. Domestic
savings and other time deposits averaged $35.9 billion
in 2011 compared with $28.0 billion in 2010. Both
increases reflect growth in client deposits. The deposit
growth trend could be impacted by proposed money
market fund reforin and the expiration of the
tetuporary untimited FDIC insurance coverage on
noninterest-bearing deposits expiring on Dec. 31,
2012.
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Hesults of Operations (continued)

Average payables to customers and broker-dealers
were $7.3 billion in 2011 and $6.4 billion in 2010.
Long-term debt averaged $18.1 billion in 2011 and
$16.7 billion n 2010. The increase in average long-
term debt wag driven by planned capital actions and
anticipated maturities, Average noninterest-bearing
deposits increased to $58.0 billion in 2011 from $35.2
Billion in 2010 reflecting growth in client deposits. A
significant reduction in our Investment Services
business would reduce our access to deposits.

The Parent has four major sources of liguidity:

cash on hand;

dividends from its subsidiaries;

access to the commercial paper market; and
access to the long-term debt and equity markets.

® & ®© e

Our bank subsidiaries can declare dividends to the
Parent of approximately $1.4 billion, subsequent to
Dec. 31, 2011 without the need for a regulatory
waiver. In addition, at Dec. 31, 2011, non-bank
subsidiaries of the Parent had liquid assets of
approximately $1.4 billion,

In the first quarter of 2011, BNY Mellon increased its
quarterly cash dividend to $0.13 per common share,
Any increase in BNY Mellon’s ongoing quarterly
dividends would require approval from the Federal
Reserve. The Federal Reserve’s current guidance
provides that, for large bank holding compauies like
us, dividend payout ratiog exceeding 30% of after-tax
net income will receive particularly close scrutiny.

Restrictions on our ability to obtain funds from our
subsidiaries are discussed in more detail in Note 20 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2011 and 2010, the Parent’s average commercial
paper borrowings were $98 million and $18 million,
respectively. The Parent had cash of $§4.6 billion at
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $3.2 billion at Dec. 31,
2010. The Parent issues commercial paper, on an
overnight basis, to certain custody clients with excess
demand deposit balances. Overnight commercial
paper outstanding issued by the Parent was $10
million at both Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010, Net of
commercial paper outstanding, the Parent’s cash
position at Dec. 31, 2011, increased by $1.3 billion
compared with Dec. 31, 2010, reflocting the issuance
of lopg-term debt,

The Parent’s major uses of funds are payment of
dividends, principal and intere st payments on its
borrowings, acquisitions, and additional investments
in its subsidiaries.

In 2011, we rcpurchased 34.8 million common shares
1 the open market at an average price of $24.00 per
share for a total of $835 million.

The Parent's reliance on short-term unsecured funding
sources such as commercial paper, federal funds and
Turodollars purchased, certificates of deposit, time
deposits and bank notes is limited. The Parent’s
liquidity target is to have sufficient cash on hand to
meet its obligations over the next 18 months without
the need to receive dividends from its bank
subsidiaries or issue debt. As of Dec. 31, 2011, the
Parent met its quidity target.

In October 2011, our $226 million credit agreement
with 10 financial lustitutions matured. We did not
renew this credit agreement. We are satisfied that our
other sonrces of liquidity are sufficient 1o meet our
liquidity needs.

In addition to our other funding sources, we also have
the ability to access the capital markets. In June 2010,
we filed shelf registration statements on Form 5-3
with the SEC covering the issuance of certain
securities, including at unlimited amount of debt,
common stock, preferred stock and trust preferred
securities, as well as common stock issued under the
Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment
Plans. These registration statements will expire in
June 2013, at which time we plan to file new shelf
registration staterents.

Qur ability to access the capital markets on favorable
terms, or at all, is partially dependent on our credit
ratings, which, as of Dec. 31, 2011, were as follows:

Debt ratings at Dee. 31, 2011 Standard
Moudy's & Poor's  Hich DBR3

Parent:
Long-term. senior debt Aa2 A+ AA- AA (low)
Subordinated debt Aa3 A A+ A Qugh)
Trust-preferred
securities Al BBB A A (high)
Short-term P1 A-1 Fl+ R-1
(niddie)
The Bank of New York Mellon:
Long-term senior debt Aaa AA-  AA- AA
long-term daposits Aaa AA- AA AA
Short-term deposits Pt A1+ Fle R-1(high)
BNY Mellon, N.A.:
long-term senior delst Aaa AA-  AA-{a) AA
Long-term deposits Aaz A~ AA AA
Shoxt-term deposits P1 A-T+ P+ R-T (high)
Qutlook: Rahings Negative Stable Stable
under
review

(a) Represenis senior debt issuer defawdt rating.
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Hesults of Operations (continued)

In April 2010, Moody’s announced that regulatory
changes in the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”)
could result in lower debt and deposit ratings for U.S.
banks and other financial institutions whose ratings
currently benefit from assumed government support.
Currently, the ratings for the Parent benefit from one
noteh of “1ift” and The Bank of New York Mellon and
BNY Mellon, N.A. benefit from two notches of “Hft”
as a result of the rating agency’s governmend support
assum ptions. Moody’s continues to evatuate whether
to reduce its support assumptions to below
pre-financial crisis levels for banks that crently
benefit from ratings uplift. In this context, in June
2011, Moody’s rating outlook on the Parent and its
rated subsidiaries deposits, senior debt, and senior
subordinated debt changed to negative from stable. On
Aug. 3, 2011, Moody' s reiterated its negative outlook
on the Parent and its rated subsidiaries to match
Moody’s negative outlook on the U.5. Government,
and also due to its opinion that U.S. Government
support to systemically important banks could decline,
over time, as the Dodd-Frank Act and other banking
system changes are implemented.

Tn December 2011, Moody’s placed the long-tern
ratings of the Parent and its rated subsidiaries on
review for potential downgrade. Moody’s indicated
that it would review BN'Y Mellon's risk profile,
capital plans and earnings prospects in light of an
operating environment characterized by lower interest
rates, greater capital markets volatility and beightened
litigation risks. Moody s indicated that it did not
expect to change its systemic support assumptions
during its carrent review. All short-teri ratings for
BNY Mellon were affirmed at Prime-1 and are
unaffected by this action.

Tn November 2011, S&P revised its ratings
methodology for banks (the Banking Industry Country
Risk Assessment). In that context, on Nov. 29, 2011,
S&P lowered the debt ratings of the Parent and its
rated subsidiaries by one notch. S&P also revised its
rating outlook on the Parent and its rated subsidiaries
to negative from stable, reflecting S&I’s outlook on
the 11.S. government rating and its assumption that our
ratings enjoy one notch of “uplifi™ from assumed
government support.

In January 2012, Standard & Poor’s, Fitch and DBRS
reaffirmed all of our debt ratings.

Long-term debt increased to $19.9 billion at. Dec. 31,
2017 from $16.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010, primarily
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due to the issuance of $5.1 billion of senior medium-
term notes, summarized in the following table,
partially offset by $1.3 billion of senior and
subordinated debt that matured in 2011 and $596
million of retail medinm-term notes that were called
in 2011.

Debt isspances

(in mitlions) 2011
Senior medium-term notes:
3-month LIBOR + 27 bps senior medinm tern notes
due 2014 $ 600
2.month LIBOR + 28 bps senior medinm texm notes
due 2014 350
3.month LIBOR + 85 bps senlor medium term notes
due 2014 250
1.5%% sentor medinm- term nofes doe 2014 350
1.7% sentor medinm-term notes due 2014 500
7.3% senior medinm-lerm. totes due 2016 1000
2.4% senior medivim-term notes due 2017 500
3,556 senior medium-lerm notes due 2021 1,000
4.15% semor medinm-term notes due 2021 500
Total debt issnances $5,050

Tn FPebruary 2012, we issued 750 miltion of senior
notes maturing in 2015 at an annual interest rate of
1.20% and $500 million of senior notes matoring in
2021 at an annual interest rate of 3.35%.

The Parent has $3.45 billion of long-texm debt that
will matare in 2012 and has the option to call $142
million of subordinated debt in 2012, which it may
call and refinance if market conditions are favorable.

We have $1.35 billion of trust preferred securities that
are freely callable in 2012. These securities qualify as
Tier | capital. Any decision to call these securities
will be based on interest vates, the availability of cash
and capital, and regulatory conditions, as well as the
implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act, which
disqualifies these trust preferred securitics from the
Tier 1 capital of large bank holding companies,
inchiding BNY Mellon, over a three-year period
heginning Jan. 1. 2013,

The double leverage ratio is the ratio of investment in
subsidiaries divided by our consolidated cquity plus
trust preferred securities. Our double leverage ra tio
was 107.3% at Dec. 31, 2011 and 100.7% at Dec. 31,
2010, The increase in the ratio primarily reflects a
capital contribution to The Bank of New York Mellon
due to the increased size of its balance sheet. The
doubte leverage ratio is monitored by regulators and
rating agencies and is an important constraint on our
ability to invest in our subsidiaries and expand our
businesses.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Pershing 1.1.C, an indirect subsidiary of BNY Mellon,
has committed and uncommitted lines of credit in
place for liquidity purposes which are guaranteed by
the Parent. The commitied line of credit of $1.083

billion extenided by 19 financial institutions matures in

March 2012, Average daily borrowings against these
lines was $63 miflion in 2011, Additionally, Pershing
has another committed line of credit for $125 million
extended by one financial institution that matures in
September 2012. The average horrowing against this
line of credit was §1 million during 2011. Pershing
LLC has nine separate uncommitted lines of credit
amounting to $1.6 hillion in aggregate. Average daily
borrowing under these lines was $342 million, in
aggregate, during 2011,

The committed line of credit maintained by Pershing
LLC requires the Parent to maintam:

shareholders’ equity of $10 billion;

s aratio of Tier 1 capital plus the allowance for
credit losses to nonperforming assets of at least
2.5; and

s adouble leverage ratio Jess than 130%.

We are currently in compliance with these covenants.

Pershing Limited, an indirect U K.-based subsidiary
of BNY Mellon, has committed and uncommitted
lines of credit in place for liquidity purposes, which
ate guaranteed by the Parent. The committed line of
credit of $233 million extended by five financial
institutions matures in March 2012, There were no
borrowings under these lines during 201 1. Pershing
Limited has two separate uncommitted lines of credit
amounting to $250 million in aggregate and an
overduaft facility of $250 million. Average daily
borrowing under these lines was $37 million, n
aggregate, during 2011,

The committed line of credit maintained by Pershing
Limited requires the Parent to maintain:

s shareholders’ equity of $5 billion;

e aratio of Tier 1 capital plus the allowance for
credit losses to nonperforming assets of at least
2.5; and

s adouble leverage ratio of less than 130%.

We are currently in compliance with these covenants.

Statement of cash flows

Cash provided by operating activities was 52.2 billion.
in 2011 compared to $4.1 billion in 2010 and $3.8
billion m 2009, In 2011 and 2010, the cash flows from
operations were principaily the result of earnings. In
2009, earnings, excluding the non-cash impact of
investment secorities losses, depreciation and.
amortization and aceruals and other balances, partially
offset by deferred tax benefits and changes in trading
activities, were a significant source of funds.

To 2011, cash used for investing activities was $80.2
billion compared to $14.9 billion in 2010 and cash
provided by investing activities of $23.1 million in
2009. In 2011, increases in interest-bearing deposits
with the Federal Reserve and other central banks, and
the purchases of securities, partially offset by a
decrease in interest-bearing deposits with banks and
sales, paydowns and maturities of securities, were
significant uses of funds. In 2010, purchases of
securities available-for-sale, an increase in interest-
bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and other
central banks, and the Acquisitions were a significant
use of funds. In 2009, interest-bearing deposits with
the Federal Reserve and other ceniral banks was a
significant source of funds, partially offset by
purchases of securities available for sale.

Cash provided by financing activities was $78.8
billion in 2011 and $10.8 billion in 2010, compared
with $28.0 hillion in 2009 used for financing
activities. In 2011, changes in deposits and payables
to customers and broker dealers and proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt were significant sources of
funds. In 2010, change in deposits, foderal funds
purchased and securities sold under repurchase
agreements, other funds borrowed and the proceeds
from issuances of long-term debt were significant
sources of funds, partially offset by repayments of
long-term debt. Tn 2009, change in deposits, other
horrowed funds and the repurchase of the Series BB
preferred stock and the warrant were significant uses
of funds, partially offset by proceeds from the
issuance of long term debt and common stock, and the
change in federal funds purchased and securities sold
under repurchase agreements.
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Commitments and obligations

We have contractual obligations 10 make fixed and
determinable payments to third parties as indicated in

the table below. The table excludes certain obligations
such as trade payables and trading liabilities, where
the obligation is short-term or subject to valuation
hased on market factors.

Contractual ohligations at Dec. 31, 2011

Payments due by period

Less than Over
{in milfions) Total {year 1-3years 3-Syears 5 yeuars
Deposits without a stated matutity $ 33,95 $ 33,239 $ - - 5 -
Term deposits 89,800 89,770 23 3 4
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase agreements 6,267 6,267 -
Payables to customers and broker-dealers 12,671 12,671
Othier borrowed funds () 2,184 2,184 - - -
Long-term debt (5) 24,396 4,294 7116 4,396 8,590
Unfunded pension and post retirernent benefits 431 44 82 96 209
Capital leases 81 36 43 2 -
Total contractnal obligations $169.780  $149,225 $7,204 $4,497 $8,803

(a} Including commercial paper.
(b} incliding intesest.

We have entered into fixed and determinable commitments as indicated in the table below:

Other commitments at Dec. 31, 2011

Armount of comuitment expiration per period

Leas than Qver

(in millions) Tolal Tyear 1-3years  3-5years 5 years
Securities lending indernuifications $268,812 $268,812  § - $ - 5 -
Lending-related commitments 28,406 9,910 6521 11,773 202
Standby letters of credit 6,707 2,238 3492 829 148
Operating leases 2,065 a8 5355 304 798
Commercial letters of credit 437 437 - - -
Investment commitments (a) 165 21 - 1 143
Purchase obligations (b) 3,304 631 539 91 43
Support agresments 63 - 63 - -
Total corpnutments $307,959  $282,367  §11,170 413,088  $1,334

(o) Includes private equity ard Compunity Reinvestment Act commitmertds.
(b) Purchase obligations are defined as agreements lo purchase gaods or services that are enforceable and legally binding and specify all

significant terms,

Tn addition to the amounts shown in the table above,
at Dec. 31, 2011, $250 million of unrecognized tax
benefits have been recorded as liabilities in
accordance with ASC 740, Related to these
unrecognized tax benefits, we bave also recorded a
liability for potential nterest of $59 million. At this
point, it is not possible to determine when these
amounts will be settled or resolved.

See “Liquidity and dividends” and Note 24 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
further discussion of the source of funds for our
commitments and obligations and known material
trends in onr capital resoutces,

$2 BNY Mellon

Off-balance sheet arrangements

Off-balance sheet arrangements discussed in this
section are limited to guarantees, retained or
contingent interests, support agreements, and
obligations arising out of unconsolidated variable
interest entities. For BN'Y Mellon, these items include
certain credit guarantees and securitizations.
Guarantees include: lending-related guarantees issued
as part of our corporate banking business; securities
lending indemnifications issued as part of our
servicing and fiduciary businesses; and support
agreements issued to customers in our Investment
Services and Investment Management businesses. See
Note 24 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Staternents for a further discussion of our off-balance
sheel arrangements.
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Capital

Capital data
{doitar amownts in millions except per
$have aMonns; common shares i

thou sands) 2011 2010
At period end:
BNY Mellon sharsholders’ equity to

total assety ralio 10.3% 12.1%
Total BNY Mellon shareholders’ equily $ 33,417 § 32354
Tangible BNY Mellon shateholders”

equity — Non-GAAP {a) $ 12787 % 11,057
Book value per cornmon share § 2762 § 2606

Tangible book value per common
share - Non-GAAP (a)

$ 137 % 8.91
Closing common stock price per shae  $

191§ 3020

Market capitalization $ 24,085 § 3749
Common sharea outstanding 1,209,675 1,241,530
Full-year:
Average conunon equily to average

agsets 11.5% 13.1%
(ash dividends per common share $ 048 $ 0.36
Dividend payou! ratio 24 % 186
Dividend yield 24% 1.2%

{a) See “Supplemental Information” beginning on page 06 fora
reconciliation of GAAP to non-GAAP.

Total The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
shareholders’ equity increased compared with
Dec. 31, 2010. The increase primarily reflects
earnings retention and an. unrealized gain in the
investment securitics portfolio resulting from a
decline in interest rates, partially offset by share
repurchases.

During 2011, we repurchased 34.8 million shares in
the open market, at an average price of $24.00 per
share for a total of $835 million. Our capital plan for
2011 authorized the repurchase of up to §1.3 billion
worth of common shares. In 2012, we continued to
repurchase shares under the 2011 capital plan.
Through Feb. 27, 2012, we repurchased

17.3 million shares in the open market, at an average
price of $21.53 per share for a total of $371 million.

The unrealized net of tax gain on our available-for-
sale investment secorities portfolio recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income was $417
million at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with $151 million
at Dec. 31, 2010. The improvement in the valuation of
the investment securities portfolio was driven by
improved valuations of agency RMBS and U.S,
Treasury securities, partially offset by declines in
valuations of certain non-agency residential morigage-
hacked securities.

In March 2011, the board. of directors authorized a
44% mcrease in the quarterly common stock dividend
to $0.13 per commion share.

In January 2012, we declared a quarterly common
stock dividend of $0.13 per conunon share. This cash
dividend was paid on Feb. 7, 2012, to sharcholders of
record as of the close of business on Jan. 30, 2012.

Capital adequacy

Regulators establish certain levels of capital for bank
holding companies and banks, including BNY Mellon
and our bank subsidiaries, in accordance with
established quantitative measurements. For the Parent
to maintain jts status as a financial holding company,
our bank subsidiaries and BNY Mellon nust, among
other things, qualify as well capitalized.

As of Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010, BNY Mellon and our
bank subsidiaries were considered well capitalized on
the basis of the Basel I Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-
weighted assets ratios and the leverage ratio (Basel 1
Tier 1 capital 1o quarterly average assets as defined
for regulatory purposes).
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Our consolidated and largest bank subsidiary, The Bank of New York Mellon, capital ratios are shown below.

Consolidated and largest bank subsidiary capital ratios Well  Adequately Dec. 31,
capitalized  capitalized 2011 2019
Consolidated capilal ralios:
Estimated Basel (] Tier 1 conunon equity ratio — Non-GAAP (a)(b) N/A N/A 114 N/A
Tangible BNY Mellon shareholders’ aquity to tangible assets of operations
1atio — Non-GAAP (b) N/A N/A 6.4 5.83%
Detertained under Basel I-based guidelives:
Tier 1 commmon equity to risk-weighted assets ratio - Non-GAAP (b) N/A N/A 13.4% 11.8%
Tier 1 capital 6% N/A 15.0 13.4
Total capital 10 N/A 17.0 16.3
l.everage — guideline 3 N/A 5.2 5.8
The Bank of New York Mellon capital ratios:
Tier 1 capital 6% 4% 14.3% 11.4%
Total capital 10 & 17.7 18.3
Leversge 5 3 5.3 5.3

(ap Our estinunted Pasel I Tier 1 commaon equity ratio (Non-GGAAP) reflects our curvent interprelation of the Basel 1 rules. Our
estimated Basel 1 Tier 1 common equity ratio could change in the future as the LLS. regulatory agencies implement Basel LI or if our

businesses change.

(b} See “Supplemental Information” beginning on page 66 for o coleulotion of this ratio.
N/A - Not applicable at the consolidated company level, Well capitatized and adequately copitalized have not been defined for Basel /1.

At Dec. 31, 2011, our estimated Basel 11 Tier |
common equity ratio was 7.1%, an improvement of
more than 100 basis points from March 31, 2011, The
improvement was driven by carmings retention and the
reduction of goodwill and intangible assets related to
the sale of Shareowner Services and paydowns on
sub-investment grade securities, partially offset by
share repurchases.

If a financial holding company such as BNY Mellon
fails to qualify as “well capitalized”, it may lose its
status as a financial holding company, which may
restrict its ability to undertake or continue certain
activities or make acquisitions that are not generally
permissible for bank holding companies without
financial holding company status. Failure by one of
our U.8. bank subgidiaries to maintain a well
capitalized status could lead 1o an increase in its FDIC
assessment,

If a bank holding company such as BNY Mellon or
bank such as The Bank of New York Mellon or BNY
Mellon, N.A. fails to qualify as “adequately
capitalized”, regulatory sanctions and lmitations are
imposed. At Dec. 31, 2011, the amounts of capital by
which BNY Mellon and our largest bank subsidiary,
The Bank of New York Mellon, exceed the “well
capitalized”™ guidelines are as follows.
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The Bauk of

Capital above guidelines at
New York

Dec. 31, 2011

{in millions) Consolidated Mellon
‘Tier 1 capital $9,254 $7,241
Total capilal 7.208 6,708
Leverage 565 618

In 2011, average non-interest bearing client deposits
increased 65% primarily related to the events in
Europe and the U.8. The additional deposits, which
increased the balance sheet, required the Parent to
make a capital contribution to The Bank of New York
Mellon in order for The Bank of New York Mellon to
maintain its leverage ratio above well capitalized
guidelines in 2011. The leverage ratio of The Bank of
New York Mellon was 5.3% at both Dec. 31, 2011
and Dec. 31, 2010.

The Basel | Tier 1 capital ratio varies depending on
the size of the balance sheet at quarter-end and the
level and types of investments. The balance sheet size
fluctuates from guarter to quarter based on levels of
customer and market activity. In general, when
servicing clients are more actively trading securities,
deposit balances and the balance sheet as a whole is
higher. In addition, when markets experience
significant volatility, our balance sheet size may
increase considerably as client deposit levels increase.
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Tn 2011, we gencrated $2.8 billion of gross Basel I The following table shows the impact of a 81 billion
Tier 1 common equity primaxily driven by earnings increase or decrease in risk-weighted assets or a $100
retention. million increase or decrease in conunon equity on the

consolidated capital ratios at Dec. 31, 2011,

Basel I Tier 1 common equity generation »
Dec. 31, Potential impact to capital ratios as of Dec. 31, 2011
(in millions) 2011 2010 Increase or decrease of
$1 biltion it risk-
weighted assets/

Net income applicable 10 comunon
sharsholders of The Bank of New York

Mellon Corporation - GAAP $2,516  $2,518 $100 million in ql::,:ﬁc;:,’i
Add: Amortization of intengible assets, niet (basis points) common equity assets (a)
of 1ax 269 204 Basel I:
Gross Basel I Tier 1 common equily Tier 1 capifal 10 byps 13 bps
generated 2,785 2782 Total capital 10 17
Less capital deployed: Leverage 3 2
Dividends 593 441 )
Commnon stock repurchases 835 : Basel Ill:
Goodwill and intangible assets related to Estimated Tier 1
acquisitions/dispositions (213 2343 common equity
- ralio G hps 4 bps
Total capital deployed 1,215 2,784 - o
Add: Oer 241 726 (@) Quarterly average assets determined under Basel I

- ; - reguiatory guidelines.
Nel Basel T Tier 1 common equity generaled  $1,811  § 124

Qur tangible BN'Y Mellon shareholders® equity to

Our Basel | Tier 1 capital ratio was 15.0% at Dec. 31, tangible assets of operations ratio was 6.4% at Dec.
2011, compared with 13.4% at Dec. 31, 2010. The 31,2011, up from 5.8% at Dec. 31, 2010. The
increase in the Basel I Tlel‘ .1 cdpital ratio cpmpared increase compared with the prior year primarily

with 1_)@‘1 31,2010, prnngﬂiy reﬂ,egts earnings reflects earnings retention and a reduction in goodwill
retention and a reduction in goodwill and intangible and intangible assets as a result of the sale of

assets resulting from the sale of the Shareowner Shareowner Services.

Services business. At Dee, 31, 2011, oot total assets

were $325.3 billion compared with $247.3 billion at At Dee. 31,2011, we had $1.7 billion of trust

Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in assets did not impact preferred securities outstanding, all of which qualifies
our risk-weighted assets as the increase was primarily as Tier 1 capital. On Fune 20, 2012, the “stock

in lower risk-weighted government investments and purchase date,” as defined in the prospectus

deposits with the Pederal Reserve and other central supplement for the trust preferred securities of Mellon
banks. Our Basel I Tier 1 leverage ratio was 5.2% at Capital IV, the sole assets of the trust will become
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with 5.8% at Dec. 31, 2010 shares of a series of our non-cumulative perpetual
The decrease reflects higher average assets driven by preferred stock.

higher client deposits,
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The following tables present the components of our Basel I Tier 1 and Total risk-hascd capital as well as the Basel

1 risk-weighted assets at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010.

Components of Basel I Tiar 1 and total risk-based capital {a) Dee. 31,
(in miltions) 2011 2010 (b)
Tier 1 capital:

Common shareholders’ equity $ 33,417 § 32354

Trust preferred secusities 1,659 1,676
Adjustents for:
Goodwill and other intangibles () (20,630} (21,297)
Pensions/caah flow hedges 1,426 1,053
Securilies valuation allowance (450) £170)
Merchant banking investents {33) (19
Total Tier 1 capital 15,389 13,597
Tier 2 capital.
Qualifying wrealized gains on equity securities 2 S
Qualifying subordinated debt. 1,545 2,381
Quatitying allowance for credit logses 497 571
Total Tier 2 capital 2,044 2,957
"Total risk-based capital $ 17,433 §165%

() On arvegulatory basis as determined under Basel 1 guidelines.
(b) Includes discontinued operations.

{¢c) Reduced by deferredtax liabilitios associated wilh non-tax deductible identifiable intan,
and 31,625 miltion at Dec. 31, 2010 and deferred tax liabilitics associated with lax deductible gooc

2011 and $816 miltion at Dec. 31, 2010.

gibla assels of $1.459 witlion at Dec. 31, 2011
il of $967 million at Dec. 31,

Components of Basel [ risk-weighted assets (a) 2011 20105}
Balance Balance
sheet/ Risk- sheet/ Risgk-
notional  weighted notional  weighted
(in millions) amount assets amoont asyels
Assets:
Cash, due from banks and interest-bearing deposits in banks % 130,739 % 8144 $ 72424 8 10,718
Securities 81,988 18,084 66,307 18,230
Trading assels 7,861 - 6,276 .
Yied tunds aold and seeurities purch ased under resale agreamenta 4,510 152 5,169 304
Loans 43 979 26,028 37,808 24,368
Allowance for loan losses {394) - (498) -
Other assets 36,583 24,294 59,773 21,127
Total assets $ 325266 $ 76,702 8 247 259§ 74,747
Off-balance sheet exposure:
Commitnents to extend credit $ 28763 $ 10,733 % 29845  § 10,946
Secutifies lending 270,346 176 279,931 101
Standby letters of credit and other guarantees 8,372 7,715 10,690 9,341
Derivative instruments 1398522 - 4473 1438995 4,678
Total off-balance sheet expusnre $1,703,003  § 23,007 3§l 59467 8 25,066
- Market rigk equivalent assels 2,456 1,594
Total risk-weighted assets $102,255 $101.,407
Average assets for leverage capi tal purposes $206,484 $235,905

(o} Onareguiatory basis as determined undey Basel 1 guidelines.
(bi Includes discontinited aperations.
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Results of Operations (continued)

The following table presents the calculation of our estimated Basel TH Tier | common cquity vatio.

Tstumated Basgel i Tier 1 common equity ratio ~ Non-GAAP (a}

(dollars in millions)

Dec. 33,2011

Total Tier 1 capital ~ Basel 1 $ 13,380
1.ess: Trust preferred securities 1,659
Adjustments related to AFS securities and pension labilities included in AOCI () 944
Adjustnents related (o equity method jnvestments (h) 588
Net pension fand assets (b) 96
Other 3
Total estimaied Basel 11 Tiex 1 conunon equity $ 12,144
Total risk-weighted assets — Basel { $102,255
Add: Adjustments (¢) 67813
Total estimated Basel I risk-weighted assels $170,068
7.1 %

Estimated Basel 11 Tier 1 common equity ratio ~ (Non-GAAP}

(a) Owr estimated Basel JH Tier 1 conmon equity yatio (Non-GAAP) reflects onr curvent interpretation of the Basel 111 rules. Our
estimated Basel III Tier 1 common equiry yatio could change in the futnre as the U.5. regulatory agencies implement Basel I or if our

businesses change.

(b) Basel [l does not add bock to capital the adjustnent 1o other comprehensive incorme that Basel I and Basel 1 make for pension
Labilities and available-far-sale secwrities. Also, under Basel I, pension assets recorded on the balance sheet and adjusiments

related to equity method investinents are a deduction Jron capitad.

(¢} Primary differences between Basel fand Basel I include: the determination of credit risk under Basel I uses predetermined rish
weights and asset classes, while under Basel Il includes borrover cyedit rafings and intersiad visk models; the treatment of
securitizations that fall below investinent grade receive a significantiy higher risk weighting wider Basel IIT than Basel I; aiso, Basel
1] inclydes additional adjustments for operational risk, markel visk, counter parfy credit risk and eqieity expesures.

Stock repurchase program

Share repuxchases during fourth quarter 2011

Maximum nmber (or
approximate doflar value)

Total shares of shares (or units) that

(commen shares Total shares  Average price  yepurchased as part of a may yet be purchased
in thousands) repurchased per share publicly announced plan undey plans or prograins
October 2011 12 §18.65 - 15,521
November 2011 2,565 19.98 2,500 13,021
Pecember 2011 1,057 18.99 1,000 12,021

Fourth quarter 2011 3,634 (a) $19.69 3,500 12,021

(@) Includes 134,000 shares that were repurchased at a purchase price of $3 millien from employees, primarily in connectian with the

cmployees’ payment of laxes upon the vesting of restricted stack.

On Dec. 18, 2007, the Board of Ditectors of BNY
Melon authorized the repurchase of up to 35 million
shares of common stock. On March 22, 2011, the
Board of Directors of BN'Y Mellon authorized the
repurchase of up to an additional 13 million shares of
common stock. At Dec. 31, 2011, 12 million common
shares were available for repurchase uader the
program. On Feb. 14, 2012, in order to continue with
share repurchases under our 2011 capital plan, the
Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of an
additional 12 million shares of common stock,
provided that the aggregate shares repurchased are
within the $1.3 billion 2011 capital plan. There is no

expiration date on the share repurchase auth orizations.

Rigk marragement
Governance

Risk management and oversight begins with the
Board of Directors and two key Board committees:
the Risk Commitiee and the Audit Committee.

The Risk Committee is comprised entirely of
independent directors and meets on a regular basis to
review and assess the control processes with respect to
the Company's inherent risks. They also review and
assess the risk management activities of the Company
and the Company's fiduciary risk policies and
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activities. Policy formulation and day-to-day oversight
of the Risk Management Framework is delegated to the
Chief Risk Officer, who, together with the Chief
Auditor and Chief Compliance Officer, helps ensure an
effective risk management governance structure. The
roles and respousibilities of the Risk Committee are
described in more detail in its charter, a copy of which
is available on our website, www.bnymellon.com.

The Audit Committee is also comprised entirely of
independent directors, all of whom are financially
literate within the meaning of the NYSI: listing
standards, and two of whom have been deternzined to
be audit commitiee financial experts as set out in the
rules and regulations under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act’™), and to
have accounting or related financial management
expertise within the meaning of the NYSIE listing
standards, and who have banking and financial
management expertise within the meuning of the FDIC
rules. The Audit Conunittee meets on a regular basis to
perfoum an oversight review of the integrity of the
financial statements and financial reporting process,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, our
independent registered public accountant’s
qualifications and independence, and the performance
of our registered public accountant and internal audit
function. The Audit Committee also reviews
management’s assessment of the adequacy of internal
controls. The functions of the Andit Committee are
described in more detail in its charter, a copy of which
is available on our website, www.biymellon. con.

The Senior Risk Management Conmittee (“SRMC™)
is the most senior management body responsible for
ensuring that emerging risks are weighed against the
corporate risk appetite and that any material
amendments to the risk appetite statement are
properly velted and recommended to the Executive
Commitiee and the Board for approval. The SRMC
also reviews any material breaches to our risk appetite
and approves action plans required to remediate the
issue. SRMC provides oversight for the risk
management, compliance and ethics framew ork. The
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Risgk Officer and Chief
Financial Officer are among SRMC's members.

Risk appetite statement

BNY Mellon defines risk appetite as the level of risk
it is normally willing to accept while pursuing the
interests of our major stakeholders, including our
clients, shareholders, employees and regulators, The
Company has adopted the following as its risk
appetite staternent: “Risk taling is a fundamental
characteristic of providing financial services and
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arises in every transaction we undertake. Our risk
appetite is driven by the fact that we are a leading

manager and servicer of global financial assets and play

a major role in the giobal marketplace. As a resull, we
are committed to maintaining a strong balance sheet
throughout market cycles and to delivering operational
excellence to meet the expectations of our major
stakeholders, including our clients, sharsholders,
employees and regulators. The balance sheet will be
characterized by strong Hquidity. superior asset quality,
ready access to external funding sources at competitive
rates and a strong capital structure, that supports our
risk taking activities and is adequate to absorb potential
losses. These characteristics support our goal of having
superior debt ratings among our peers, To that end, the
company’s Risk Management Framework has been
designed to:

e ensure that appropriate risk tolerances (“limits™)
are in place to govem our risk taking activities
across all businesses and risk types;

e ensure that our risk appetite principles permeate
the company s culture and are incorporated into
our strategic decision-making processes;

s ensure rigorous monitoring and reporting of key
risk metrics to senior management and the board
of directors; and

¢ ensure that there is an on-going, and forward-
looking, capital planning process to support our
risk taking activities.”

Primary risk types

The understanding, identification and management of
risk are essential elements for the successful
management of BNY Mellon. Our primary risk
categories are:

Type of risk  Description

The risk of logs resnlting frora inadequale ox
failed intemal processes, human factors and
systems, breaches of technology and
information systems, or from extermal events.

Operational

Market The risk of loss due to adverse changes in the
financial markets. Market risk arises fram
derivative financial instruments, such as fulores,
forwards, swaps and options, and other financial
instruments, including loans, securities,
deposits, and other borrowings. Ovr market
rigks are primarily interest rate and foreign
exchange risk, equity tisk and credit risk.

Credit The possible logs we would suffer if any of our
borrowers or other connterparlies viere 10
defanlt on Meir obligations 1o us. Creditrisk
arises primarily from lending, trading, and.
sccurities servicing activitios.
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Operational risk
(verview

In providing a comprehensive array of products and
services, we may be exposed to operational risk.
Operational risk may result froni, but is not limited to,
errors related to transaction processing, breaches of
intermal contrel systems and compliance requiremients,
fraud by employees or persons outside BNY Melion
or business interruption due to system failures or other
events. Operational risk may also include breaches of
our technology and information systems resulting
from miauthotized access to confideutial nformation.
or from internal or exiernal threats, such as cyber
attacks. Operational risk also includes potential legal
or regulatory actions that could arise as a result of
noncompliance with applicable laws and/or regulatory
requirements. Inn the case of an operational event, we
could suffer a financial loss as well as damage to ouwr
reputation.

To address these risks, we maintlain comprehensive
policies and procedures and an internal control
framework designed to provide a sound operational
environment. These controls bave been designed to
manage operational risk at appropriate levels given
our financial strength, the business environment and
markets in which we operate, the nature of our
businesses, and considering factors such as
competition and regulation. Our internal auditors and
internal control group monitor and test the overall
effectiveness of the internal control and financial
reporting systems on an ongoing basis.

We have also established procedures that are designed
to ensure that policies relating to conduct, ethics and
business practices are followed on a mniform basis.
Among the procedures designed o ensure
effectiveness are our “Code of Conduct,” “Know
Your Customer,” and compliance training programs.

Operational visk management

We have established operational risk management as
an independent risk discipline. The Operational Risk
Management (“ORM™) Group and Information Risk
Management (“IRM”) Group reports to the Chief Risk
Officer. The organizational framework for operational
risk is based upon a strong risk culture that
incorporates both governance and risk management
activities comprising:

o Board Oversight and Governance — The Risk
Committee of the Board approves and oversees
our operational risk management strategy in

addition to credit and market risk. The Risk
Committee meets regularly to review and
approve operational risk management initiatives,
discuss key risk issues. and review the
effectiveness of the risk management systems.

»  Accountability of Businesses — Business
managers are responsible for maintaining an
effective system of internal controls
commensurate with their risk profites and in
accordance with BNY Mellon policies and
procedures.

¢ ORM Group —~ The ORM Group is responsible
for developing risk management policies and
tools for assessing, measuring, monitoring and
managing operational risk for BNY Mellon. The
primary objectives of the ORM group are to
promaote effective risk management, identify
emerging risks, create ncentives for generating
continuous improvement in controls, and to
optimize capital.

e IRM Group -~ The IRM Group is responsible for
developing policies and tools for identifying,
assessing, measuring and monitoring
information and. technology 1isk for BNY
Mellon. The IRM Group partmers with the
businesses to focus on three primary areas:
access, information protection, and techuology
controls. The primary objectives of the IRM
Group are to help maintain and protect the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the
firm's information and technology assets from
internal and external threats such as cyber
attacks.

Market risk

In addition to the Risk Committee and SRMC,
oversight of market risk is performed by certain
committees and through executive review meetings.
Detailed reviews of derivative trading positions and of
all model validations/stress tests resolts are conducied
during the Global Markets Weekly Risk Review.
Senior managers from Risk Management, Finance and
Sales and Trading attend the review.

Business Risk meetings for the Global Markets and
Capital Markets businesses also provide a forum for
market risk oversight. The goal of Business Risk
meetings, which are held at least quarterly, is to
review key risk and controf issues and related
initiatives facing all lines of buginess including Global
Matkets and Capital Markets. The following activities
are also addressed during Business Risks meetings:

s Reporting of all new Monitoring Limits and
changes to existing limits;
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¢ Monitoring of trading exposures, VaR, market
sensitivities and stress testing results; and
¢  Reporting results of all model validations.

The Derivatives Documentation Committee reviews
and approves variations in the Company’s
documentation standards as it relates to derivative
ransactions. In addition, this commitiee reviews all
outstanding confirmations to identify potential
exposure to the Company. Finally, the Risk
Quantification and Modelling Committee validates
and reviews backtesting results.

Credit risk

To balance the value of our activities with the credit
risk incurred in pursuing them, we set and monitor
internal credit limits for activities that entail credit
risk, most often on the size of the exposure and the
maximuni matarity of credit extended. For credit
exposures driven by changing martket rates and prices,
exposure measures include an add-on for such
potential changes.

We manage credit risk at both the individual exposure
level as well as at the portfolio level. Credit risk at the
individual exposute level is managed through our
credit approval system. of Credit Portfolio Managers
{“CPM5s™) and the Chief Credit Officer (“CCQO"). The
CPMs and CCO ate responsible for approving the
size, terms and maturity of all credit exposures as well
as the ongoing monitoring of the exposures. In
addition, they are responsible for assigning and
maintaining the risk ratings on each exposure.

Credit risk management at the porifolio level is
supported by Enterprise Risk Architecture (“ERA™),
formerly the Portfolio Management Division within
the Risk Management and Compliance Sector. The
BRA is responsible for calculating two fondaniental
credit measures. First, we project a statistically
expected credit loss, used to help determine the
appropriate loan loss reserve and to measure customer
profitability. Fxpected loss considers three basic
components: the estimated size of the exposure
whenever default might occur, the probability of
default before maturity and the severity of the loss we
would incur, conumonty called “loss given default.”
Far corporate banking, wheye most of our credit risk is
created, unfimded commitments are assigied a usage
given default percentage. Borrowers/Counterparties
arc assigned ratings by CPMs and the CCO on an
18-grade scale, which translate to a scaled probability
of deﬂxult Additionall y, lramsactions are assigned
loss-given-default ratings (on a 12-grade s¢ dle) that
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reflect the transactions’ structures including the
effects of guarantees, collateral, and relative seniority
of position.

The second fundamental measurement of credit risk
calculated by the BRA is called economic capital. Our
economic capital model estimates the capital required
to supportt the overall credit risk portfolio. Using a
Monte Carlo simulation engine and measures of
correlation among borrower defaulis, the economic
model examines extreme and highly unlikely
scenarios of portfolio credit loss in order to estimate
credit-related capital, and then allocates that capital to
individual borrowers and exposures. The credit-
related capital calculation supports a second tier of
policy standards and Hmits by serving as an input to
both profitability analysis and concentration limits of
capital at visk with any one borrower, industry or
country.

The ERA is responsible for the calculation
methodologies and the estimates of the inputs used in
those methodologies for the determination of expected
loss and economic capital. These methodologies and
input estimates are regularly evaluated to ensure their
appropriateness and accuracy. Asnew techniques and
data become available, the ERA. atternpts to
incorporate, where appropriate, those techniques or
data.

Credit risk is intrinsic to much of the banking
business. However, BNY Mellon seeks to limit both
on- and oft-balance sheet credit visk through prudent
underwriting and the use of capital only where risk-
adjusted returns warrant. We seek to manage risk and
improve our portfolio diversification through
syndications, asset sales, credit enbancements, credit
derivatives, and active collateralization and netting
agreements. [n addition, we have a separate Credit
Risk Review group, which is part of Internal Audit,
made up of experienced loan review officers who
perform timely reviews of the loan files and credit
ratings assigned to the loans.

Global compliance

Qur global compliance function provides leadership,
guldamce and oversight to help our businesses
identify applicable laws and regulations and
implement effective measures to meet the specific
requirements. Compliance takes a proactive approach
by anticipating evolving regulatory standards and
remaining aware of mdustw best practices, legislative
mitiatives, conpetitive issues, and public expectalions
and perceptions. The function uses its global reach to
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disseminate information about conpliance-related
matters throughout BNY Mellon. The Chief
Compliance and Ethics Officer reports to the Chief
Risk Officer, is a member of key committees of BNY
Melion and provides regular updates to the Audit and
Risk Committees of the Board of Directors.

Internal audit

Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance
function that reports directly to the Audit Committee
of the Company’s Board of Directors. Tt agsists the
Company in accomplishing its objectives by brin ging
a systematic, disciplined, risk-based approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management, control, and goverpance
processes. The scope of Internal Aundit's work
includes the review and evaluation of the adequacy,
effectiveness, and sustainability of risk management
procedures, internal control systems, information
systems and governance processes.

Economic capital

BNY Mellon has implemented methodology to
quantify economic capital, We define economic
capital as the capital required to protect against
unexpected economic losses over a one-year period at
a level consistent with the solvency of a firm with a
target debt rating. We quantity econoniic capital
requirements for the risks inhetent in our business
activities using statistical modeling techniques and
then aggregate them at the consolidated level. A
capital reduction, or diversification benefit, is applied
to reflect the unlikely event of experiencing an
extremely large loss in each type of risk at the same
time. Beonomic capital levels are directly related to
our risk profile. As such, it has become a pazt of our
internal capital assessment process and, along with
regulatory capital, 1s a key component to ensuring that
the actual level of capital is commensurate with our
risk profile, and is sufficient to provide the financial
flexibility to undertake future strategic business
initiatives.

The framework and methodologies to quantify each of
our rigk types have been developed by the ERA and are
designed to be consistent with our risk management
principles. The framework has been approved by senior

management and has been reviewed by the Risk
Committee of the Board of Directors. Due to the
evolving nature of quantification techniques, we expect
to continue to refine the methodologies used 1o estimate
our economic capital requirements.

Siress Testing

Tt is the policy of the company 10 perform Enterprise-
Wide Stress Testing at regular intervals as part of its
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessmant Process
(“ICAAP”). Additionally, the company performs or
will perform an analysis of capital adequacy in.a
stressed environment in. its Finterprise-wide Stress
Test Framework, as required by the ephanced
prudential standards issued pursuant to the Dodd-
Frank Act, and as part of the annual Comprehensive
Capital Analysis and Review (“CCAR”) process.

Enterprise-Wide Stress Testing performs analysis
across the company s Lines of Business, products,
geographic areas, and risk Lypes incorporating the
results from the different underlymg models and
projections given a certain stress-test scenario. Jtis an
important coraponent of assessing the adequacy of
capital (as in the ICAAP) as well as identifying any
high risk touch points i husiness activities.
Turthermore, by integrating enterprise-wide stress
testing into the company s capital planming process,
the results provide a forward-looking evaluation of the
ability to complete planned capital actions in a more-~
adverse-than-anticipated economic environment.

Trading activities and risk management

Qur trading activities are focused on acling as a
market maker for our customers and facilitating
customer trades. Positions managed for our own.
account are immaterial to our foreign exchange and
other trading revenue and to our overall results of
operations. The 1isk from market-making activities for
customers is managed by our traders and limited in
total exposure through a system of position limits, a
value-at-risk (“VaR”) methodology hased on & Monte
Carlo simulation, stop loss advisory triggers, and
other market sensilivity measures. See Note 25 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information on the VaR methodology.
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The following tables indicate the calculated VaR
amounts for the trading portfolio for the years ended
Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010

Vak (a) 2011

{in millions) Average Minimmm  Maximum Dec. 31
Interest rate $79 § 3.0 $15.7 $12.1
Foreign exchange 2.8 0.4 59 1.9
Fquity 3.2 1.8 6.1 31
Credit 0.3 - 0.3 -
Diversification (4.8) N/M N/M (5.8)
Overall portfolio 9.2 4.1 18.2 113
VaR (a) 2010

(in millions) Average Minimum  Maximum Irec, 31
Interest rate $59 $ 1.2 $10.9 $4.3
Foreign exchange 2.7 0.7 S0 07
Fauiry 3.6 1.3 7.6 2.1
Credit 0.6 0.2 1.3 0.2
Diversification (5.3) N/M N/M 34)
Overall portfolio 7.5 35 11.4 3.9

(a) VAR figures do not reflect the impact of CVA guidance in
ASC 820, This is consistent with the Regulatory treatment.
VAR exposuve does not include the impact of the Company’s
consolidated invastmen! manage ment finds and seed capitol
investments,

N/ - Because the miniman and maxinmm may occur on different
days for differers yisk components, it is not meaning ful to
compule a portfolio diversification effect.

During 2011, interest rate risk generated 56% of
average VaR, equity risk generated 23% of average
VaR, foreign exchange risk aceounted for 20% of
average VaR and credit risk generated 1% of average
VaR. During 201 1, our daily trading loss did not
exceed our calenlated VaR amount of the overall
portfolio on any given day.

BNY Mellon monitors a volatility index of global
currency using a basket of 30 major cusrencies. In
2011, the volatitity of this index decreased
approximately S basis points from 2010.
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The following table of total daily trading revenue or
loss illustrates the number of trading days in which
our trading revenue or loss fell within particular
ranges during the past year.

Distribution of irading revenves (losses) (a)

Quarier ended
(doltar ameums  Dec. 31, March 31, Tune 30, Sept. 30, Dec, 31,
in omillions) 2010 2011 2011 2011 2011

Number of days

Revenve range:

1ess thay

3(2.5) - 1 - - -
$(2.5 - %0 4 2 1 2 1
$0 - 32.5 17 21 20 21 19
$2.5-85.0 26 29 3 26 33
More than $3.0 16 9 12 15 8

(a) Distribution of trading revenues (Losses) does not reflect the
impact of the CVA and corrgsponding hedge.

Fareign exchange and other trading

Under our mark-to-market methodology for derivative
contracts, an initial “risk-neutral” valuation is
performed on each position assuming time-
discounting based on a AA credit curve. In addition,
we consider credit risk in arriving at the fair value of
our derivatives.

As required by ASC 820 ~ Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures, we reflect external credit ratings as
well as observable credit default swap spreads for
both ourselves as well as our counterparties when
measuring the fair value of our derivative positions.
Accordingly, the valuation of our derivative positions
is sensitive to the current changes in vur own credit
spreads, as well ag those of our counterparties. In
addition, in cases where a counterparty is deemed
impaired, further analyses are performed to value such
positions.

At Dec. 31, 2011, our over-the-counter (“OTC")
derivative assets of $7.0 billion included a CVA
deduction of $182 million, including $8 million
related to the credit quality of certain CDO
counterparties and Lehman, Our OTC derivative
linbilities of $7.4 billion included a debit valuation
adjustment (“DVA”) of $46 million related to our own
credit spread. Net of hedges, the CVA increased $11
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Hesults of Operations (continued)

million and the [DV'A was unchanged in 2011, The net
impact of these adjustments decreased foreign
exchange and other rading revenue by $11 million in
2011, In 2011, we charged-off a $15 million realized
logs against the CVA reserves.

AtDec. 31, 2010, our OTC derivative assets of $4.3
biflion included a CVA deduction of $78 million,
including $27 million related to the declining credit
quality of CDO counterparties and Lehman. Cur OTC
derivative fiabilities of $5.3 billion included a DVA of
$30 million related to our own credit spread. In 2010,

we charged-off a §39 million realized loss against the
CV A reserves. Iixcluding the charge-off, the CV A,
net of hedges, decreased. foreign exchange and other
trading revenue $5 million in 2010.

The table below summarizes the risk ratings for our
[oreign exchange and interest rate derivative
counterparty credit exposure. This information
indicates the degree of risk to which we are exposed
and significant changes in ratings classifications for
which our foreign exchange and other trading activity
could result in increased risk for us.

Foreign exchange and other trading eounter party risk rating profile (a)

Quarter ended
Dec. 31, March 31, June 30, Sept. 20, Dec, 31,

2010 2011 2011 2011 2011
Rating:
AAA 10 AA- 52% 516 51% 18% 47%
A+toA- 18 18 17 19 21
BBB+ to BBB- 21 21 21 23 24
Noninvestiment grade (BB+ and lower) 9 10 11 10 8
Total 100% 100%  100% 100%  100%

(a) Represents credit rating agency equivalent of internal credit ratings.

Asset/liability management

QOur diversified husiness activities include processing
securities, accepting deposits, investing in sceurities,
lending, raising money as needed to fund assets, and
other transactions. The market risks from these
aclivilies are interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk. Qur primary market risk is exposure to
movements in U.8. dollar interest rates and certain
foreign currency interest rates. We actively manage
iterest rate sensitivity and use earnings simwlation and
discounted cash flow models to identify mferest rate
exXposures,

An earnings simulation maodel is the primary tool used
to assess changes in pre-tax net interest revenue. The
model incorporates management’s assumptions
regarding interest rates, balance changes on core
deposits, market spreads, changes in the prepayment
behavior of loans and securities and the impact of
derivative financial instruments used for interest rate
risk management purposes. These assumptions have
been developed through a combination of historical
analysis and future expected pricing behavior and ave
inherently uncertain. As a result, the eamings
simulation mode! cannot precisely estimate net
toterest revenue or the impact of higher or lower
tnterest rates on net interest revenue. Actual results
may differ from projected results due to liming,
magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes, and

changes in market conditions and management’s
strategies, among other factors.

These scenarios do not reflect strategies that
management could employ to limit the impact as
interest raie expectations change, The table below relies
on certain critical assmoptions regarding the balance
sheet and depositors’ behavior related to interest rate
fluctoations and the prepayment and extension risk in
certain of cur assets. To the extent that actual behavior
is different from that assumed in the models, there
could be 2 change in interest rate sensitivity.

We evaluate the effect on earnings by rmning various
interest rate ramp scenarios from a baseline scenario.
These scenarios are reviewed 1o examine the inipact
of large interest rate movements. Interest rate
sensitivity is quantified by caleulating the change in
pre-tax net interest revenue between the scenarios
over a 12-month measurement period.

The following table shows net interest revenue
sensitivity for BNY Melion:

Estimatec! chianges in nef. interest revenue
at Dec. 31, 2011
(dollay amonnts in millions)

up 200 bps s, baseline $693
up 100 bps vs. baseline 434
Long-termo up 50 bps, short-term unchanged (e 93
Long-term down S0 bps, short-term unchanged (a) (76)

(a) Long-termis equal te or greatey thon one year.
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Resulte of Operations (continued)

The hascline scenatio’s Fed Funds rate in the Dec. 31,
2011 analysis was 0.25%- The 100 basis point ramp
scenario assumes short-term rates change 25 basis points
in cach of the next four quarters and the 200 basis point
ramp scenario assumes a 50 basis polut per quarter
change. At Dec. 31, 2011, the up 200 basis point and the
up 100 basis point scenarios assume 10-year rates rising
187 and 87 basis points, respectively.

We also project future cash. flows from our assets and
liabilities over a fong-tesm horizon and then discount
these cash flows using instantaneous pavallel shocks to
prevailing interest rates. This measure reflects the
structural balance sheet interestrate sens itivity by
discounting all future cash flows. The aggregation of
these discounted cash flows is the Feonomic Value of
Equity (“EVE”). The following table shows how the EVE
would change in response Lo changes in interest 1ates:

Estimated changes in BVE at Dec. 31, 2011
Rate change:
up 200 bps v, baseline
»p 100 bps vs. baseline

[~

These results do not reflect strategies that
management could em ploy to limit the mpact as
interest rate expectations change.

The asymmetrical accounting treatment of the inxpact
of a change in interest rates on out balance sheet may
create a situation. in which an increase in mterest rates
can adversely affect repotted equity and regulatory
capital, even though economically there may be 1o
impact on our cconomic capital position. Tor exampie,
an increase in rates will result in a decline in the value
of our fixed income inv estment portfolio. which will
be reflected through a reduction in other
comprehensive income in our shareholders’ equity,
thereby affecting our tangible common eqjuity
(“TCE™) ratios. Under current accounting rules, to the
extent the fair value option provided in ASC 825 is
not applied, there is no corresponding change on our
fixed liabilities, even though. ecopomically these
liabilities are more valuable as rates Tise.

We project the impact of this change using the same
interest rate shock assumptions described earlier and
compare the projected mark-to-market on the
investment securities portfolio at Dec. 31, 2011, under
the higher rale environments versus a stable rate
scenario. The table below shows the impact of a
change in interest rates on the TCE ratio:

Tstimated changes in the TOR ratio at Dee. 31, 2011
(in basis points)
up 200 bps v ba seline 110)
up 100 bps vs. baseline {(80)

61 BNY Mellon

=R X%
=
=

These results do not reflect strategics that
management could enaploy to limit the impact as
interest rate expectations change.

To manage foreign exchange risk, we fund foreign.
currency-denominated assets with Lability instruments
depominated in the same carrency. We utilize various
foreign exchange contracts if a lability denominated
in the same currency is not available or desired, and 10
minimize the eamings impact of translation gains of
losses created by investments in foreign markets. The
foreign exchange risk related to the interest rate
spread on foreign currency-denominated asset/liability
positions is managed ag part of our wading activities.
We use forward foreign exchange contracts to protect
the value of our net investment in foreign operations.
At Dec. 31,2011, pet investments in foreign
operations totaled approximately $10 billion and were
spread across 13 foreign currencies.

Business continuity

We are prepared for events that could damage our
physical facilities, cause delay or disruptions to
operational functions, including telecommuitications
networks, or impair our employeces., clients, vendors
and counterparties. Key elements of our business
continuity strategies are extensive planning and
testing, and diversity of business operations, data
centers and telecommunications infrastructure.

We have established smultiple geographically diverse
locations for our funds transfer and broker-dealer
services operational units, which provide redundant

functionality to facilitate minterrupted operations.

Our securities clearing, amrtnal fund accounting and
custody, securities lending, master trust, Unit
Tnvestment Trust, corporate trast, item processing,
wealth management and treasury units have common
functionality in multiple sites designed to facilitate
continuance of operations or rapid recovery. In
addition, we haverecovery positions for over 14,400
employees on a global basis of which over 8,200 are
proprietary.

We continue to enhance geographic diversity for
husiness operations by moving additional personnel to
prowth centers outside of existing major urban
centers. We replicate 100% of our critical produciion
computer data to multiple recovery data centers.

We have an active telecommunications diversity

program. All major buildings and data centers have
diverse telecommunications carriers. The data centers
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have multiple fiber optic rings and have been designed
s0 that there is no single point of failure.

All major buildings have been designed with diverse
telecommunications access and connect 1o at least two
geographically dispersed connection points. We have
an active program to audit circuits for ronte diversity
and to test customer buck-up comections.

In 2003, the Federal Reserve, OCC and SEC jointly
published the Interagency Paper, “Sound Practices to
Strengthen the Resilience of the U.S. Financial
System” (“Sound Practices Paper™). The purpose of
the document was to define the guidelines for the
financial services industry and other interested parties
regarding “best practices™ related to business
continuity planning. Under these guidelines, we are a
key clearing and settlement organization required to
meet a higher standacd for business continuity.

We believe we have substantially met all of the
requirenients of the Sound Practices Paper. As a core
clearing and settlement organization, we believe that
we are at the forefront of the industry in improving
business continuvity practices.

We are committed to seeing that requirements for
business continuity are taet not just within our own
facilities, but also within those of vendors and service

providers whose operation is critical to our safety and
soundoess. To that end, we have a Service Provider
Management Office whose function is to review new
and existing service providers and vendors to see that
they meet our standards for business continuity, as
well as For information security, financial stability,
and personnel practices, etc.

We bave developed a comprehensive plan to prepare
for the possibility of a flu pandemic, which anticipates
significant reduced staffing levels and will provide for
increased remote working by staff for one or morxe
periods lasting several weeks.

Although we are committed to observing best
practices as well as meeting regulatory requirements,
geopolitical uncertainties and other external factors
will continue to create risk that cannot always be
identified and anticipated.

Duae to BNY Mellon’s robust business recovery
syslems and processes, we are not materially impacted
by climate change, nor do we expect material impacts
in the near term. We have, and will continue to,
implement processes and capital projects to deal with
the risks of the changing climate. The company has
invested in the development of products and services
that support the markets related to clinate change.
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Supplemental Information (Unaudited)

Explanation of Non-GAAP financial measures

BNY Mellon has included in this Annual Report
certain Non-GAAP financial measores based upon
tangible common shareholders’ equity. BNY Mellon
believes that the ratio of Tier 1 common equity (o
risk-weighted assets and the ratio of tangible common
shareholders” equity to tangible assets of operations
are measures of capital strength that provide
additional useful information to investors,
supplementing the Tier 1 and Total capital ratios
which are vtilized by regulatory authorities. The ratio
of Tier 1 common equity to risk-weighted assets
excludes trust preferred securities, which will be
phased out as Tier 1 regulatory capital beginning in
2013, Unlike the Tier 1 and Total capital ratios, the
tangible cominon shareholders’ equity ratio fully
incorporates those changes in investment securities
valuations which are reflected in total shareholders’
equity. In addition, this ratio is expressed as a
percentage of the actual book value of assets, as
opposed to a percentage of a risk-based reduced value
established in accordance with regulatory
requirements, although BN'Y Mellon in its calculation
has excluded certain assets which arve given a zero
percent risk-weighting for regulatory purposes.
Further, BNY Mellon believes that the return on
tangible common equity measure, which excludes
goodwill and intangible asscts net of deferred tax
liabilities, is a useful additional measure for investors
because it presents a measure of BN'Y Mellon’s
performance in reference to those assets which are
productive in generating income. BNY Mellon has
presented its estimated Basel I Tier 1 common
equity ratio on a basis that is representative of how it
currently understands the Basel Hlyules. Management
views the Basel 111 Tier 1 common equity ratio as a
key measure in monitoring BNY Mellon’s capital
position. Additionally, the presentation of the Basel
11 Tier 1 conmmon equity ratio allows investors to
compare BNY Mellon's Basel IIl Tier 1 commen
equity ratio with estimates presented by other
companies. See “Capital” for a reconciliation of total
Tier 1 capital — Basel I to total estimated Basel LI
Tier 1 common equity and total risk-weighted assets —
Basel I to total estimated Basel 111 risk-weighted
assets.

BNY Mellon has provided a measure of tangible book
value per share, which it believes provides additional
useful information as to the level of such assets in
relation to shares of common stock outstanding. BNY
Melton has presented revenue measures, which
exclude the effect of net securities gains (losses),
SILO/LILO charges and noncontrolling interests

BNY Mellon 66

related to consolidated investment management funds;
expense measures which sxclude restructuring
charges, support agreement charges, asset-based taxes,
M&I expenses, and amortization of intangible assets;
and measnres which wtilize net income excluding tax
itemns such as the benefit of tax settlements and
discrete tax benefits related to a tax loss on mortgages.
Return on equity measures and operating margin
measures which exclude some or all of these iterns are
also presented. BN'Y Mellon believes that these
measures are useful to investors because they pevmit a
focus on period to period comparisons which relate to
the ability of BN'Y Mellon to enhance revenues and
limit expenses in circumstances where such matters
are within BNY Mellon"s control. The excluded items
in general relate to cerfain ongoing charges as a result
of prior transactions or valuation or other charges
unrelated fo operational initiatives. M&l expenscs
primarily relate to the 2007 Merger and the
Acquisitions in 2010. M&1 expenses generally
continue for approximately three years after the
fransaclion and can vary on a year-to-year basis
depending on the stage of the integration. BNY
Mellon belicves that the exclusion of M&I expenses
provides investors with a focus on BNY Mellen’s
business as it would appear on a consolidated going-
forward basis, after such M&I expenses have ceased.
TFuture periods will not reflect such M&I expenses,
and thus may be more easily compared to our current
results if Md&] expenses are excluded. With regards to
the exclusion of net securities gains (losses), BNY
Mellon’s primary businesses ate Investment
Management and Investment Sexvices. The
management of these businesses is evaluated on the
hasis of the ability of these businesses o generate fes
and net interest revenue and to control expenses, and
not on the results of BNY Mellon’s investment
securities portfolio. The investment securities
portfolio is managed within the Other segment. The
primary objective of the investment securities
portfolio is to generate net interest revenue from the
liquidity generated by BNY Mellon’s processing
businesses. BNY Mellon does not generally originate
or trade the securities in the investment securities
porttolio. Restructuring charges relate to our
operational efficiency initiatives, migrating positions
1o global growth centers and the elimination of certain
positions. Excluding these charges petmits investors
to view expense on & basis consistent with kow
management views the businass. Excluding the
discrete tax benefits related to a tax loss on mortgages
and the benefit of tax settlements permits inveslors to
calenlate the tax impact of BNY Melton™s primary
bushiesses.
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The presentation of income of consolidated
investment management funds, net of noncontrolling
interests related to the consolidation of certain
investment management funds, petmits investors to
view revenue on a basis consistent with prior periods.
BNY Mellon believes that these presentations, 4s 4
supplement to GAAP information, gives investors a
clearer picture of the resalts of its primary businesses.

In this Annual Report, certain amounts are presented
on an T8 basis. We believe that this presentation
provides comparability of amowits arising from both
taxable and tax-exempt sources, and is consistent with
industry practice. The adjustment to an. FTE bagis has
no impact on net income.

Each of these measures as described above is used by

management to monitor financial performance, both
on a company-wide and business-level basis.

Return on common equity and tangible common equity ~ continuing
operations

(doliars in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 (a)
Net income iloss) applicable to common shateholders of The Bank of New
York Mellon Corporation before extraordinary logs $ 2516 % 2,518 $(1367y % 1412 § 2219
Less:  Netincome (loss) from discontinued operaiions “ (66) 2701 14 10
Net sncome (loss) from continning operations applicable to comuon
shareholders of The Banl of New York Mellon 2,516 2,584 (1,097 1,398 2,200
Add:  Amnorlization of intangible assets, net of tax 269 264 263 292 194
Netincome (loss) from continuing operations applicable to cormon
shareholders of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation before
extraordinary loss excluding amortization of intangible assets -
Non-GAAP 2,785 2,848 (§32) 1,690 2,403
Less: Net securities gains (losses) 3 17 (3,360} (983) (119}
Add:  SILO/LILO/tax sellements - - - 410 -
Support agreement. charges N/A N/A N/A 533 2
M&I expetises 59 91 144 238 238
Restucturing charges 54 19 94 07 -
Discrete tax benefits and the benefit of lax settlements « - (267 .
Net income (loss) from continuing operations apphisable to conwnon
sharehal ders of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation before
extraordinary 10ss excluding net securitios gains (losses), SILO/LILO/tax
seftlements, snpport. agresment charges, WM& L expanses, restructuring
charges, discrete fax bensfits and the benefit of tax settlemsnts and
amortization of intangible assets - Non-GAAP $ 2867  $ 2941 $ 2499 § 4001 $ 2,962
Average common shareholders” equity $33,519  $31,000  $27,98  $28212 320,234
Less:  Average goodwill 18,129 17,029 16,042 16,5258 10,739
Average intangible assels 5498 5,664 5,654 5,896 3,769
Add:  Deferrad 1ax Hahility — tax deductible goodwill 9677 816 F20 599 495
Deferred tax liatility — non-tax deductible intangible assets 1,459 1,025 1,680 1,841 2.006
Average tangible common shaveholders’ equity - Non-GAAP $12,318  $10,848 § 7902 § 8,231 § 8227
Return on commuon equity before extracrdinary loss — GAAP 7.5% 8.3% N/M 5.0% 10.9%
Returm on common equity before extraordinary loss excluding net securities
gains (Josses), SILO/LILOMax setitements, su pport agreement charges,
M&I expenses, restructming chorges, discrete 1ax benefits and the benefit of
tax setflements and arnortization of intangible assets Non-(GAAP 8.6% 9.5% 9.2% 14.2% 13.6%
Retumn on tangible common squity hefore extraordinary Joss — Non-GaAP 32.6% 26.3% N/M 20.5% 20.2%
Peturn on tangible common equily before extraordinary Loss excluding net
securilies gains (losses), SILOLILO/ax setliemernts, support ageeement
charges, M&J expenses, testructuring charges, discrete tax benefits and the
bewefit of tax satlements - Non-GAAP 23.3% 27.1% 31.6% 48.7% 33.6%

{a) Results for 2007 include six months of BNY Mellon and six manths of iegacy The Bank of New York Compary, Inc.
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Reconciliation of income (loss) from continuing operations
before income faxes — pre~tax operating margin

{dollars in millions) 2031 2010 2009 2008 2007 (a)
Income (loss) from continging operations before incoms taxes ~ GAAP $ 3,617 $ 3694  $(2202y § 1946 $ 3,218
l.ess: Net securities gains (losses) 48 27 {5.369) (1,628) {201)
Noncontrolling intexests of consolidated investment management
funds 50 59 -
Add: SILO/LILO charges - - - 489
Support agreement charges N/A N/A N/A 894 3
M&J expenses 91 139 233 483 404
Restiucturing charges 89 2 150 181 -
Asset-based taxes - 20 - -
Amorlization of intangible asseis 428 421 426 473 314
Income (loss) from continning operations before income taxes excluding net
sechrities gains (losses), noncontrolling interests of consolidated investinent
management funds, SILO/AILO charges, support agreement. charges, M&d
expenses, tostructuring charges, assel-based taxes and amortization of
intangible asseis -- Non-GAAP % 4,027 $ 4,196 § 3,990 8 6,094 $ 4,137
Tee and other revenue — GAAP $11,546 $10,724  § 4739 $10,714  $ 9,053
Income of consolidated investment management funds - GAAP 200 226 - - -
Nel interest revenue - GAAP 2.984 2,925 2,915 2,859 2,245
Total revenne — GAAP 14,730 13,875 7,654 13,573 11,298
Less: Net sacurities gains (losses) 48 27 (5,369 {1,628) {201}
Noneontrolling interests of copsolidaied invesiment management
funds : 50 59 - -
Add:  SILO/LILO charges - 489
Total revenue excluding net securities gains {losses), noncontrolling
interesta of consolidated investment management funds and SILOAILO
charges - Nou-GAAP $14,632  $13,789  $13023 15690  §11499
Pre-tax operating margin (b} 259 27% N/M 145 28%
Pre-1ax. operating margin, excluding net securities gains (losses),
noncontrolling interests of consolidated investnent management Tunds,
SILO/LILO charges, support agreement charges, M&I eApenses,
yestrucharing charges, asset-hased taxes and amottization of intangible
assets — Non-GAAR () 28% 30% 31% 39% 36%
(a) Results for 2007 include six months of BNY Mellon and six months of legacy The Bank of New York Company, Inc.
(b) Income (loss) before taxes dividad by total pevenue.
The following table presents income from consolidated investment management funds, net of noncontrolling
interests.
Income from consolidated investment management funds, wet of noncontrofling interests
{dollass in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Income from operations of consolidated investment management funds $200  $226 §-
1.ess: Nel income attributable fo noncontrolling interssts of consolidated investnent management funds 50 59 -
Tncome From consolidated investment management funds, net of noncontrotling fnterests 3150 $167 3

The following table presents the line items in the Investment Management business impacted by the consolidated

investment management funds.

Tneome from consolidated investment management funds, net of noncontrolling inferests

(dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Tovestment managenient. and performance fees $107 3125 3-
Other (Investroent inconie) 43 42

Incorne from consolidated invesinent management fonds, net of nonconirolling inferests $150 3167 8-

68 BNY Mellon
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Equily to assets and book value per common share Dee. 31,
{doliars in millions -
unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2002 2008 2007
BNY Mellon shareholders’ equity at period end - GAAP $ 33417 0§ 32354 % 28977 0§ 25264 F 29403
Less; Goodwill 17,904 18,042 16,249 15,808 16,331
Intangible assets 5,182 5,696 5,588 5.856 6402
Add:  Deferred tax liability - tax deductible goodwill 967 816 720 599 495
Deferred tag Hability - non fax deductible intangible
assels 1,459 1,625 1,680 1,841 2,006
Tangible BNY Mellon shareholders’ equity at pedod end -

Non-GAAP $ 12787 % 11,057 0§ 9540 § 5950 $ 917
Total assels at period end - GAAP $ 325266 % 247,259 0§ 21222 $ 237,512 § 197,656
Less: Assets of consolidated investment management funds 11347 14,766 - - -

Sublotal assets of operations - Non-GAAP 313,919 232493 212,224 237,512 197,656
Less: Goodwill 17,904 18,042 16,249 15,898 16,331

Intangible asseis 5,152 5,690 5,588 58560 6,402
Cash on deposit with the Federal Reserve and othier
central banks {4} 90,230 18,566 7.375 53,278 30
U.8. Government-hacked comercial paper (aj - - - 5,629 -
Tangible total asseis at pariod end — Non-GAAP $ 200,633 $ 190,89 § 183012  § 156851 § 174.843
BNY Mellon shareholders’ equily to tolal assets — GAAP 10.3% 13.1% 137% 10.6% 14.9%
Tangible BNY Melion shareholders” equity fo tangible assets

of operations - Non-GAAP 6.4% 5.8% 52% 3.8% 5.2%
Period end common shares ontstanding (in thousarnds) 1,209,675 1,241.530 1,207,835 1,148,467 1,145,983
Book value per common share $ 2762 § 2606 § 2399 3 2200 3 25.66
Tangible book value per comunon share — Non-GAAP $ 1057 § 891 & 790 3 518 8 3.00
(a) Assigned a zeve percentage risk weighting by the regulators.

Calenlation of Basel 1 Tier 1 common equily to risk-weighited assets ratio (a)
Dec. 31,
{dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2000 2008 2007
Totat Tier 1 capital - Basel $ 15389  § 13,507  $ 12,883 § 15402 3 11,259
Less; Trust preferred securities 1.689 1,676 1,686 1,634 2,030
Series B preferved stock - - - 2,186 -

Total Tier 1 comnmon equity $ 13,730 § 11,921 $ 14,197 $ 10962 § 9229
Total risk-weighted assets — Basel { $102,255  $101,407  $106,328  $116,713 $120.866
Basel I Tier 1 comunon equity 1o risk-weighted assets ratio 13.4% 11.8% 10.5% 9.4 5% 7.6%

{a} Determined wnder Basel ! regulatory
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Ratefvolume analysis

Rate/Volume analysis (@) : 2011 over (under) 2010 2010 over (under) 2009
Due fo change in Dug to change in
Average Average Net Average Average Net
(dollar amounts in millions, presented on an ¥FTE basis) balance rate change balance e change

Interest revenue
Interest-earning assets:

Interest-bearing daposits with banks (primarily foreign banks) 502 $ 64 $ 52 $ 9 $202)  $#193)
Interest-biaring deposils with the Federal Reserve and other central

banks 103 () 99 8 2y G
Qther shori-term investivents — ULS. government-backed

conunsrcial paper - - - €3] 5) )]
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale

agresments 2 {38} (36) 17. 16 33
Margin Joaus 51 am 41 23 ) 19

Non-macgin loans:
Domestic offices:

Consumer 7 21) 14) 4 (35) [:3))
Commercial 15 (55) {40) 5 (1 (6}
Foreign offices 3 (Q) (3 (38) {61) ON
Total non-rnargin loans 25 (82) (87) (29) (107} {136)
Securities:
U.S. govement obligations 111 4 115 70 [¢8 69
U.S. govemnment agency obligations 49 98) 19) 143 {6l 82
State and political subdivisions 36 {18) 18 [€))] (€] {6)
Other securiliss:
Domestic offices 67 {368) {301) (279 432 153
 Foreign offices 34 207 241 72 (147) (715)
‘Total other securities 101 {161} (60) (207) 285 78
Trading secnrities:
Domestic offices 8 3) 3 16 5 21
Forelgn offices - - - - [¢8) (1)
Total trading securities 8 (3) 3 16 q 20
Tolal securilies 308 (278) 27 19 224 243
Total interest revenue $474 $(348) $ 126 $ 43 $ @B $3D
Interest expense
Interest-beating deposits
Domestic offices:
Money market rale accounts $ 1 $ (5 % (D & 8 5 - $§ 8
Savings - 2) {2) i 1 2
Cettifi cates of deposit of $100,000 & over - - - {4} ()] (8)
Other time depusits 6 (2) 4 9 (19) {10)
Total domestic 7 (s} 2 14 {22) (8)
Foreign offices:
Banks 6 34 40 1 4 5
Government and official institutions “ B . 1 (1} -
Other 12 G0 72 {3 (35) 38)
Tolal foreign 18 94 112 (1 (32) {33)
Total interest-bearing deposits 28 85 110 13 (54) 1)
Federal fands purchased and securities sofd under repurchase
agresments 16 &7 41y 1 42 43
Trading liabilities 4 a3 9 8 11 19
Other borrowed funds:
Dontestic offices [6)) (2} {5) 4] - 6
Foreign offices - 2 2 1 (3) (2)
Total other borrewed furids [#)] - (&3] 7 [€)) 4
Borrowings from Federal Reserve related (o asset-backed. comunercial
paper - - - & (% )]
Payables o customers and broker-dealers 1 - 1 1 (1) .
1.ong-teym debt 24 23) 1 (5) (61> (66)
Tolal interest expenss § a7 $ (@B § 89 s 2 NGORG]
Changes in net intevest evenue $407 $(340) $ 67 $ 21 0 $ 1

(@) Changes which are solely due to balance changes or rate changes are dliceated 1o such categories 0% the baxis of the respective perceniuge
changes i average balances and average rases, Changes ininterest yeveie or injerest expense arising from the combination of rate and
vohane variances are alfocated proportionately 1o rate and volume based or: their relative absolute magnitudes.
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Recent Accounting and Regulatory Developments

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

ASU 201 1-04—Amendments to Achieve Common Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in
U.S. GAAF and IFRSs

In May 2011, the FASE issued ASU 2011-04,
“Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.
GAAP and IFRSs.” This ASU intends to improve
congistency in the application of fair value
measwement and disclosure requirements in U.S.
GAAY and IFRS. The ASU clavifies the application of
existing fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements including 1) the application of concepts
of highest and best use and valuation premise in a fair
value measuwrement are relevant only when measuring
the fair value of non-financial assets and are not
relevant when measuring the fair value of financial
assets or any liabilities, 2) measuring the fair vatue of
an instrument classified in shareholders’ equity from
the perspeciive of a market participant that holds that
instrument as an asset, and 3) disclosures about
quantitative information regarding the vnobservable
inputs used in a fair value measurement that is
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The guidance in this ASU is effective for the fivst
interim and annuval period beginning after Dec. 13,
2011, and should be applied prospectively. Harly
adoption is not permitted. This ASU will have no
impact on our results of operations.

ASU 201 1-05--Presentation of Comprehensive
Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05,
“Presentation of Comprehensive Tncome.” This ASU
is aimed at increasing the prominence of other
comprehensive income in the financial statements.
The new guidance eliminates the option to present
comprehensive mcome and its components in the
Statement of Changes in Sharcholders” Equity, and
requires the disclosure of comprehensive income and
its components in one of two ways: 4 single
continuous statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. The single continuous
statement would present other comprehensive income
and. its components on the income statement. Under
the two-statement approach, the first statement would
include components of net income and. the second
statement would include other comprehensive income
and its components. The ASU does not change the
itepas that must be reported in other comprehensive
income. This ASU will have no impact on our results
of operations.

The guidance in this ASU is effective for the first
interim and annual period beginning after Dec. 15,
2011, and should be applied retrospectively for all
periods presented in the financial statements. Barly
adoption is permitted.

ASU 2011-12—Deferral of the Effective Date for
Awmendments to the Presentation of Reclassificafions
of Irems Out of Accwmulated Other Comprehensive
Income in ASU 2011-05

Tn December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12,
“Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Jtems Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in ASU
2011-05". This ASU defers the effective date of the
requirement 1o present separate line items on the
income statement for reclassification adjustments of
items out of accumulated other comprehensive income
into net income. The deferral is temporary until the
Board reconsiders the operational concerns and needs
of financial statement users. The Board has not yet
established a timetable for its reconsideration. The
requirements {o present other comprehensive income
in a single continuous statement or two consecutive
statements and other requirements of ASU 2011-05,
as amended by ASU 2011-12, are effective for public
entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those years, beginning after Dec. 15, 2011

ASU 2011-08—Testing for Goodwill Impairment

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08,
“Testing for Goodwill Impairment”, which amends
the guidance in ASC 350 for goodwill impairment.
TUnder the revised goidance, entities testing goodwill
for impairment have the option of performing a
qualitative assessment before caleulating the fair value
of the reporting unit (i.e., Step 1 of the goodwill
impairent test). If entities determine, on the basis of
qualitative factors, that the fair value of the reporting
unil is more likely than not less than the carrying
amount, the two-step impairment test would be
required. The ASU does not change how goodwill is
caloulated or assigned to reporting units, or the annual
requirement to test goodwill for impairment. In
addition, the ASU does not amend the requirement to
test goodwill for impairment between annual tests if
events or circumstances wartant; however, it does
revisc the examples of events and circumstances that
an entity should consider. The amendments are
effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment
tests performed for fiscal years beginning after Dec.
15, 2011, Early adoption 15 permitied.
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Recent Accounting and Redgulatory Developments (continued)

ASU 201 1-11--Disclosures about Offseiting Assets
and Liabilifies

Tn December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11,
“Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities™.
Eintities are required to disclose both gross
information and net information about both
instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the
balance sheet and instruments and fransactions subject
to an agreement similar to a master netting
amangement. This scope would include derivatives,
sale and repurchase agreements and reverse sale and
repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and
securities lending arrangements. The objective of this
disclosure is to facilitate comparison between those
entities that prepare their financial statements on the
basis of U.S. GAAP and those entities that prepare
their financial statements on the basis of IFRS. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after fan. 1, 2013, An entity would be
required to provide the disclosures required by those
amendments retrospectively for all comparative
periods presented. This ASU will not impact our
results of operations.

Proposed Accounting Standareds

and Revisions 1o the Accounting for Devivalive
Instruments and Hedging Activities

In May 2010, the FASB issucd a proposed ASU,

* Accounting for Financial Instruments and Revisions
to the Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” Under this praposed ASLI, most
financial instruments would be measured at fair value
in the balance sheet. In January 2011, the FASB
preliminarily determined not to require certain
financial assets to be measured at fair value on the
balance sheet.

Measurement of a financial instrament would be
determined based on its characteristics and an entity’s
business strategy and would fall into one of the
following three classifications:

¢« Pair value—Net income—encompasses
financial assets wsed in an entity s trading or
held-for-sale activitics. Changes in fair valne
wonld be recognized innet income,

¢ Pair value—Other comprehensive income-—
includes financial assets held primarily for
investing activities, including those used to
manage interestrate or liquidity risk. Changes in
fair value would be recognized in other
comprehensive income.

72 BNY Mellon

e Amottized cost—includes financial assets
related to the advancement of funds (through a
lending or customer-financing activity) that are
managed with the intent to collect those cash
flows (including interest and fees).

The FASB reached tentative decisions in other areas
including classification and measurenzent of financial
liabilities and the equity method of accounting.

The FASR tentatively decided that the business
strategy should be determined by the business
activities that an entity uses in acquiring and
managing financial assets. The FASB plans to
reexpose the proposed amendments for public
comment. Both the FASB and the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") discussed
effective dates pertaining to the fipancial instruments
project and noted that such a date would not be for
several years.

Supplementary Documeni—Impairment

On Jan. 31, 20171, the FASB issued a Supplementary
Document, “Tmpairment.” The Supplementary
Document proposes to replace the incurred loss
impairment model under U.8. GAAP with an
expected loss impairment model. The docament
focuses on when and how credit impairment should be
recognized. The proposal is Jlimited to open portfolios
of assets such as portfolios that are constantly
changing, through originations, purchases, transfers,
write-offs, sales and repayments. The proposal in the
Supplementary Document would apply to loans and
debt instruments under U.S. GAAP that are managed
on an “open’” portfolio basis provided they are not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized m net income. In the second quarter of
2011, the FASB and JASR revised the model from a
two category approach for splitting the debt
investment portfolio to a three category approach to
better reflect the general pattern of credit quality
deterioration. Both the FASB and the JASE continge
to discuss alternate impairment models and have not
reached a tentative decision. An exposure draft with
the new proposed model is targeted for 2012.

Praposed ASU--Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In June 2010, the FASB issued a proposed AST,
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers.” This
proposed ASU is the result of a joint project of the
FASPR and IASB to darify the principles for
recognizing revenue and develop a common standard
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Recent Accounting and Regulatory Developiments (contnued)

for U.S. GAAP and TERS. This proposed ASU would
establish a broad principle that would require an entity
to identify the contract with a customer, identify the
separate performance obligations in the contract,
determine the transaction. price, allocate the
transaction price 1o the separate performance
ohligations and recognize revenue when each separate
performance obligation is satisfied. In 2011, the
FASB and IASB revised several aspects of the
original proposal to include distinguaishing between
2oods and services, segmenting contracts, accounting
for warranty obligations, and deferring contract
origination, costs.

In November 2011, the FASB re-exposced the
“proposed ASU with a comment period ending on
March 13, 2012. A final standard is expected to be
issued in the second half of 2012. A retrospective
application transition methed would be required, but
the FASB and TASB provided certain “transition
reliefs” to reduce the burden on preparers. The FASB
and TASB tentatively decided that the effective date of
the proposed standard would not be earlier than
annual reporting periods beginning on or after Jan. 1,
2015. The FASB decided to prohibit early application
while the TASB decided to permit eaxly application.

Proposed ASU--Principal versus Agent Analysis

In November 2011, the FASB issued a proposed ASU
“Principal versus Agent Analysis”. This proposed
ASU would rescind the 2010 indefinite deferral of
FAS 167 for certain investment funds, including
mutual funds, hedge funds, mortgage real estate
investment funds, private equity funds, and venture
capital funds, and amends the pre-existing guidance
for evaluating consolidation of voting general
partoerships and similar entities. The proposed ASU
also amends the criteria for determining whether an
entity is a variable interest eutity under FAS 167,
which could affect whether an entity is within its
scope. Accordingly, certain funds that previously were
not consolidated must be reviewed to determine
whether they will now be required to be consolidated.
"The proposed accounting standard will continue to
require BNY Mellon to determine whether or not it
has a variable interest in a variable interest entity.
However, consolidation of its variable imterest entity
and voting general partnership asset management
tunds will e based on whether or not BNY Mellon,
as the asset manager, uses its power as a decision
maker as cither a principal or an agent. Based on a
prelimdinary review of the proposed ASU, we do not
expect to be required to consolidate additional mutual
funds, hedge funds, mortgage real estate investinent

funds, private equity funds, and venture capital funds.
In addition, we expact to de-consolidate a substantial
portion of the CLOs we currently consolidate, with
further deconsolidation possible depending on future
changes to BNY Mellon's investment in subordinated
notes. Comments on this ASU were due on Feb. 15,
2012,

Proposed ASU—Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible
Assets for Impairmeni

In January 2012, the FASB issued a proposed ASU
“Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for
Impaitment”. This ASU provides guidance on
indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment testing
with the intention of simplifving the impairment
assessment and reducing the recurring costs (© comply
with existing guidance while improving the
consistency of testing methods among long-lived asset
categories, The ASU would allow an organization the
option to first assess qualitative factors to determine
whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative
impairment test. A company electing to perform a
qualitative assessment would not be required to
calculate the fair valve of an indefinite-lived
intangible asset unless the company determines, based
on a qualitative assessment, that it is “more likely than
not” that the asset’s fair value is less than its carrying
amount. This ASU would be effective for anmual and
interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2012. Early adoption would
be permitted. Comnents on this ASU are due on.
April 24, 2012,

FASB and IASB project on Leases

In August 2010, the FASB and JASB issued a joint
proposed ASU, “Leases”. FASB has tentatively
decided that lessees would apply a “right-of-use”
accounting model. This would require the lessee to
recognize both a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability to make lease payments at the
lease commencement date, bath measured at the
present value of the lease payments. The right-of-use
asset would be amortized on a systematic basis that
would reflect the patterts of consumption of the
economic benefits of the leased asset. The liability to
make lease payments would be subsequently
de-recognized over time by applying the effective
interest method to apportion the pexiodic payment to
reductions in the liability to make lease payments and
interest expense. Tessors would accomnt for leases by
applying 4 “receivable and residual™ accounting
approach. The lessor would recognize a right to
receive lease payments and a residual asset at the date
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Flecent Accounting and Regulatory Developments (continued)

of the commencement of the lease. The lessor would
initially measure the right to receive lease payments at
the sum of the present value of the lease payments,
discounted using the rate the lessor charges the lessee.
The lessor would initially measure the residual asset
as an allocation of the carrying amount of the
underlying assct and would subsequently measure the
residual asset by accreting it over the lease term, using
the rate the lessor charges the lessee. The FASB is
expected to reexpose the standard during 2012. A
final standard is expected by the end of 2012.

Adoption of neve accounting standards

For a discussion of the adoption of new accounting
standards, see Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Regulatory developments
Evolving regulatory environment

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the Dodd-
Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act broadly affects the
financial services industry by establishing a
framework for systemic risk oversight, creating a
resolution authority for institutions determined to be
systemically important, mandating higher capital and
liquidity requirements, requiring banks to pay
increased fees to regulatory agencies and containing
nuimerous other provisions aimed at strengthening the
sound operation of the financial services sector. Tt will
fundamentally change the system of oversight
described under “Business—Supervision and
Regulation” in Part 1, Item 1 of our 2011 Annual
Report on Form 10-K, Many aspects of the law are
subject to further rulemaking and will take effect over
several years, making it difficult to anticipate the
overall financial impact and increased expenses to
BNY Mellon or across the industry.

In December 2010, the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision (the “Basel Committee™) released its final
framework for strengthening international capital and
liquidity regulation, now officially identitied by the
Basel Committee as “Basel III". Basel IIL is also
described below and under “Business — Supervision
and Regulation” in Part I, Item 1 of our 2011 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

We are currently assessing the following regulatory

developments, which may bave an impact on BNY
Mellon’s business,

74 BNY Mellon

Federal Reserve's Enkanced Prudential Standards
and Farly Remediation Requirements for Cavered
Companies

As required by the Dodd-Frank Act, the Financial
Stability Oversight Council (“FSOC”) makes
recommendations to the Federal Reserve as to
enhanced supervision and prudential standards
applicable to large, interconmected financial
nstitutions, including bank holding companies
(BHCs™) like BNY Mellon, with total consolidated
assets of $50 billion (often referred to as “systemically
important financial institutions™). The FSOC also
authorizes the Federal Reserve to establish such
standards either on its own or upon the
recommendations of the FSOC. The Dodd-Frank Act
mandates that the requirements applicable to
systemically important financial institutions be more
stringent than those applicable to other financial
companies. In December 2011, the Federal Reserve
issued for public comment a notice of proposed
rulemaking establishing enhanced pridential
standards responsive to these provisions for:

tisk-based capital requirements and leverage
limits;

stress testing of capital;

liquidity requirements;

overall risk management requirements; and
concentration/credit exposure limits.

* v & @

Comments on the proposed rules, which we refer to as
the “Proposed SIFI Rules™, are due by March 31,
2012. The Proposed SIFI Rules address a wide,
diverse array of regulatory areas, each of which is
highly complex. In some cases they would implement
financial regulatory requirements being proposed for
the first time, and in others overlap with other
regulatory reforms. The Proposed SIFI Rules also
address The Dodd-Frank Act’s early remediation
requirements applicable to BHCs that have total
consolidated assets of $50 billion or more. The
proposed remediation rules are designed to require
action beginning in the earlier stages of a company’s
financial distress by mandating action on the basis of
arranged triggers, including capital and leverage,
stress test results, liquidity and risk management. We
are analyzing the impact of the Proposed SIFI Rules
on our businesses. However, the full impact will not
be known until the rules, and other regulatory
initiatives that overlap with the rules, are finalized and
their cornbined impacts can be assessed.
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Resolution Planning

As required by the Dodd-Frank Act, the Federal
Reserve and FDIC have jointly issued a final rule that
vequires certain organizations, including each BHC
with consolidated assets of $50 billion or more, to
report periodically to regulators a resokution plan for
jts rapid and orderly resolution in the event of material
financial distress or failure. BNY Mellon's resolution
plan must, among other things, enswre that our
depository institution subsidiaries are adequately
protected from risks arising from our other
subsidiaries. The final rule sets specific standards for
the resolution plans, including requiring a strategic
analysis of the plan’s components, a description of the
range of specific actions the company proposes to take
in resolution, and a description of the company’s
org,aniza(.ional structure, material entities,
interconnections and interdependeucies, and
managenient information. systems, among ather
elements.

Tn addition, the FDIC has issued a final rule that
requires insured depository institutions with $50
Isillion or more in total assets, such as The Bank of
New York Mellon, to submit to the FIDIC periodic
plans for resolution in the event of the institution’s
failure. The rule requires these insared institutions to
submit a resolution plan that will enable the FDIC, as
receiver, o resolve the bank in a manner that ensures
that depositors receive access to their insured deposits
within. one business day of the ingtitotion’s failore,
maximizes the net-present-value return from the sale
or disposition of its assets, and minimizes the amount
of any loss to be realized by the institution’s creditors.
The final rule also sets specific standards for the
resolution plans, including requiring a strate gic
analysis of the plan’s components, & description of the
strategies for achieving the least costly resolution, and
analyses of the financial corapany’s or ganization,
material entities, interconnections and
interdependencies, and management information
systems, among other elements.

The two resolution plan rules are complementary and
we have commenced work on our initial resolution
plans. We expect that our initial plaus will be required
to be submitied to the regulators by early in the fourth
quartes of 2012.

Pederal Reserve's Comprehensive Capital Assessment
Review

Tn November 2011, the Federal Reserve published a
final rule requiring BHCs (including BNY Mellon)
with $50 billion or more of total consolidated assets to

submit annual capital plans to their respective Federal
Reserve Bank. The capital analysis and review
process provided for in the rule is known as the
Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review, or
“CCAR”. The capital plans are required to be
submitted on an annual basis. Such BHCs will also be
required to collect and report certain related data on a
quarterly basis to allow the Federal Reserve o
monitor the companies’ progress against their annual
capital plans. The comprehensive capital plans, which
are prepared using Basel I capital guidelines, include a
view of capital adequacy under four scenarios—a
BHC-defined baseline scenario, a baseline scenario
provided by the Federal Reserve, at least one
BHC-defined stress scenario, and a stress scenatio
provided by the Federal Reserve, Covered BHCs,
including BN'Y Mellon, may pay dividends and
repurchase stock only in accordance with a capital
plan that has been reviewed by the Federal Resexve
and as to which the Federal Reserve has not objected
The rules provide that the Federal Reserve may object
to a capital plan if the plan does not show that the
covered BHC will meet all minimum regulatory
capital ratios and maintain a ratio of Basel I Tier 1
common equity to risk-weighted assets of at least 5%
on a pro forma basis under expected and stressful
conditions throughout the nine-guarter planning
horizon covered by the capital plan. The rules also
require, among other things, that a covered BHC may
not make a capital distribution unless, after giving
effect to the distribution, it will meet all minimom
regulatory capital ratios and have a ratio of Basel |
Tier 1 common equity to risk-weighted assets of at
least 5%. As part of this process, BNY Mellon also
provides the Federal Reserve with projections
covering the time period it will take us to fully comply
with Basel III guidelines, including the 7% Tier 1
common equity, 8.5% Tier | capital and 3% leverage
ratios as well as granular components of those
elements, as described forther under “Capital and
liquidity requirements—Basel I1I". Our capital plan
was submitted on Jan. 9, 2012,

The purpose of the Federal Reserve’s capital plan
review is to ensure that these BFCs have robust,
forward-looking capital planning processes that
account for each BHC's unique risks and that permit
continted operations during times of economic and
financial stress. The CCAR rule, consistent with prior
Federal Reserve Board guidance, provides that capital
plans contemplating dividend payout ratios exceeding
30% of projected after-tax net income will receive
particularly close scrutiny.

The Proposed SIFI Rules, discussed earlier, would
also include the stress testing requirenents that,
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among other things, stress test under a severely
adverse scenario provided by the Federal Reserve. It
also would require a semi-annual mid-year stress
analysis.

Proposed rules removing references to credit ratings

The Dodd-Frank Act requires that all Federal agencies
remove from their regulations references to and
requirements of reliance on credit ratings and replace
them with appropriate alternatives for evaluating
creditworthiness. The Federal banking agencies have
recently issued notices of proposed rulemaking
(“NPRs™) (and applicable related goidance) in
connection with itnplementing these requirements. In.
December 2011, the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency (“OCC™), Federal Reserve, and FDIC issued
a joint NPR applicable to certain U.S. banking
organizations with significant trading operations that
proposed standards of creditworthiness to be used in
place of credit ratings when calculating the specific
risk capital requirements for covered debt and
securitization positions. In November 2011, the OCC
issued an NPR that proposed replacing references lo
credit ratings with alternative standards of
creditworthiness for areas of OCC regulations such as
regulations pertaining to investment securities,
securities offerings, and foreign bank capital
equivalency deposits. The comment period for these
two NPRs closed Feb. 3, 2012 and Dec. 29, 2011,
respectively.

Incentive Compensation Arrangements Proposal

The Dodd-Frank Act requires federal regulators to
prescribe regulations or guidelines regarding
incentive-based compensation practices at certain
financial institutions. On April 14, 2011, federal
reguolators including the FDIC, the Federal Reserve
and the SEC, jointly issued a proposed rule which,
among other things, would require certain executive
officers of covered financial institutions with total
consolidated assets of $30 billion or more, such as
ours, to defer at least 50% of their annual incentive-
based compensation for a pxinimum of three years.
The comment period on the proposed rule closed
May 31, 2011. A final rule has not yet been issued.

Task Force on Tri-Party Repo Infrastructure

Regulatory agencies worldwide have begun to
re-examine systemic risks to various fipancial
markets. One of the markets that regulatory agencies
are reviewing, and in which we participate as «
clearing and custody bank, is the tri-party repurchase
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transaction market, or tri-party repo market. From
2000 until recently, the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York sponsored a Task Force on Tri-Party Repo
Infrastructure. Reform (o examine the risks in the
tri-party repo market and to decide what changes
should be implemented so that such risks may be
mitigated or avoided in future financial crises. The
Task Force issued recommendations regarding the
tri-party repo market. BNY Mellon is working to
implement the Task Foree’s recommendations on its
tri-party repo business activities.

Since May 2010, the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York has released monthly reports on the tri-party
repo market, including information on aggregate
volumes of collateral used in all tri-party repo
transactions by asset class, concentrations, and margin
levels, which is available at hitp//www.
newyorkfed.org/Aripartyrepo/margin_data htnl

Consurer Financial Protection Bureau

In July 2011, our depository institutions were notified
that they will be supervised by the Consumer
Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”) for certain
consumer protection purposes.

The CFPB informed us it will focus on:

¢ risks 1o consumers and compliance with the
TFederal consumer financial laws, when it
evaluates the policies and practices of a financial
institation;

e ihe markets in which firos operate and risks to
consumers posed by activities in those markets;
and

s depository institutions that offer a wide variety
of consumer financial products and services;
depository institutions with a more specialized
focus; and non-depository companies that offer
one or more consunter financial products or
services.

Capital and liquidity requirements

The .S, federal bank regulatory agencies’ risk-based
capital guidelines are based upon the 1988 Capital
Accord of the Basel Committee. The Basel Committee
issued in Jane 2004, and updated in November 2005,
a revised framework for capital adequacy commonly
known as Basel II that sets capital requirements for
operational risk and refines the existing capital
requirements for credit risk. In the United States,
regulators are mandating the adoption of Basel II for
“core” banks such as BNY Mellon and its depository
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institution subsidiaries. The only approach available
to “core” banls is the Advanced Internal Ratmgs
Based (“A-IRB”) approach for credit risk and the
Advanced Measurement Approach (“AMA™) for
operational risk. Additional information on Basel I
and. Basel III is presented below.

Basef I

In the United States, Basel IT became eflective on
April 1, 2008. Under the final rule, 2009 was the first
year for a bank to begin its first of three transitional
floor periods during which banks subject to the final
rule calculate their capital requirements under both the
old guidelines and new guidelines. In response to
Section 171 of the Dodd-Frank Act, the federal
banking regulatory agencics adopted a final rule that
establishes a floor for the risk-based capital
requirements applicable to the largest, internationally
active banking organizations. Generally, the impact of
this rule is that the banking agencies have amended
their capital rules to provide that minimum capital, as
required under the Basel I-based rules, will act as a
floor for minimum. capital requirements calculated in
accordance with U.S. Basel I rules. Accordingly, the
transition for “core” banks to calculations only under
the Basel Il-based requirements is being eliminated,

We have implemented the Basel II Standardized
Approach in the United Kingdom, Belgium,
Luxembourg and Ireland. In the U7.S., BNY Mellon
began the Basel I parallel run in the second quarter of
2010. Our capital models are currently with the
Federal Reserve for their approval. Under Basel 1
guidelines, our risk-weighted assets for credit risk
exposures are expected 1o decline. However, we
expect the Basel Il requirement that operational risk
be included in risk-weighted assets will more than
offset the decline in credit exposure. Under Basel 1,
securitizations that fall below ivestment grade are
included in risk-weighted assets. Under Basel II,
securitizations that fall below investment grade are
deducted 50% from Tier I and 50% from total capital.

Rased on our current estimates for Basel I1 at Dec. 31,
2011, our Tier 1 and Total capital ratios would have
exceeded well-capitalized guidelines.

Basel Il

Under Bagel 11 standards, when fully phased in on
Tan. 1, 2019, banking institutions will be required to
satisfy four risk-based capital ratios:

e ATier 1 conumon equity raiio of at least 7.0%,
4.5% attributable to a minimum Tier 1 common

equity ratio and 2.5% attributable to a “capital
conservation buffer”;

s A Tier 1 capital ratio of at least 6.0%, exclusive
of the capital conservation buffer (8.5% upon
full implementation of the capital conservation
buffer);

a A total capital ratio of at least 8.0%, exclusive of
the capital conservation buffer (10.5% upon full
implementation of the capital conservation
buffer); and

o Asanewly adopted international standard, a
mininum leverage ratio of 3%, calculated as the
vatio of Tier 1 capital to average balance sheet
exposures plus cortain average off-balance sheet
EXposures.

Basel I1I also provides for a “countercyclical capital
buffer,” generally to be imposed when national
regulators determine that excess aggregate credit
growth becomes associated with a buildup of systemic
risk, that would be a Tier 1 capital add-on 1o the
capital conservation buffer in the range of 0% to 2.5%
when fully implemented (potentially resulting in total
buffers of between 2,.5% and 5%).

The capital conservation buffer is designed to absorb
losses during periods of economic stress. Banking
institutions with a Tier 1 common equity ratio above
the minimum but below the conservation buffer {or
below the combined capital conservation buffer and
countercyclical capital buffer, when the latter is
applied) will face constraints on dividends, equity
repurchases and compensation based on the amount of
the shortfall.

The phase-in of the new rules is to commence on Jap.
1,2013. On that date, banking institations will be
required to nieet the following minimum capital
tatios:

s  3.5% Tier 1 common equity to risk-weighted
assets;

e  4.5% Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets; and

e %.0% Total capital to risk-weighted assets.

The phase-in of the capital conservation buffer will
commence on Jan. 1, 2016, and the rules will be fully
phased-in by Jan. 1, 201 9.

On Tuly 19, 2011, the Basel Committee issued a
consultative document sctting forth proposals to apply
a new Tier | common equity surcharge to certain
global systemically important banks (“G-SIBs”), and
on Nov. 4, 2011 the Basel Commitiee issued final
provisions substantially unchangetd from. the
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Recent Accounting and Regulatory Developments (continued)

proposals. In its Proposed SIFL Rules, the Federal
Reserve indicated that it intends to propose, in a
separate 1ulemaking, a Tier 1 common equity
surcharge for G-S1B3s based on the Basel Committee’s
proposal. G-SIBs subject to the surcharge would be
identified by application of a quantitative “indicator-

based approach” comprised of five broad categories of

indicators—cross-jurisdictional activity, size,
interconnectedness, substitutability and complexity.
Fach G-SIB would initially be assigned to one of four
“huckets”, with the capital surcharges for those
buckets ranging from 1% 1o 2.5%. There would be an
additional 3.5% bucket that would initially be empty
but that could be applied to a G-SIB that increases
materially its global systemic importance in the future,
for example, by increasing total assets, The G-SIB
equity surcharge provisions, like the rest of Basel 111
and the Dodd-Frank Act provisions referenced above,
are subject to interpretation and implementation by
U.8. regulatory authorities. In a companion release on
Nov. 4, 2011 addressing progress on a variety of
financial regulatory reforms relating to globally
systemically important financial mstitutions, the
Financial Stability Board released a list of 29 such
institutions that included BNY Mellon and indicated
that it used the G-SIB surcharge methodology n
creating the list.

Under Basel 111, certain items, to the extent they
exceed 10% of Tier 1 common equity individually, or
15% of Tier 1 common equity in the aggregate, would
be deducted from our capital. These items include:

o Deferred tax assets dependent on future taxable
income; and

o Significant investments in unconsolidated
financial institutions.

At Dec. 31, 2011, BNY Mellon did not exceed either
threshold.

Also, pension. assets recorded on. the balance sheet are
a deduction from capital, and Basel Il does not add
hack to capital the adjustment to other comprehensive
income that Basel I and Base} I make for pension.
liabilities and available-for-sale-securities.

Similar to Basel 11, the Basel ITl proposal also
incorporates the risk-weighted asset impact of
operational risk, which will be partially offset by a
decline in. credit exposwre.

Additionally, Basel 11T changes the treatment of

securitizations that falf below investment grade.
Under Basel 1 guidelines, securitizations that fall

T8 BNY Mellon

below investment grade are deducted equally from
Tier | and total capital. However, under Basel 111,
banking institutions will be required to apply a
1.250% risk weight to these securitizations and
include them as a component of risk-weighted assets.

Our fee-based model enables us to maintain a
relatively low risk asset mix, primarily composed of
high-quality securities, central bank deposits, liquid
placements and predominantly investment grade
loans. As a result of our asset mix, we have the
flexibility to manage to a lower level of risk-weighted
assets over time.

Given that the Basel ITT rules are subject to change,
we cannot be certain of the impact of new regulations
on our capital ratios. At Dec. 21, 2011, our estimated
Basel 1T Tier 1 common equity ratio was 7.1%.

Capital disclosure requirements

a December 2011, the Basel Commitiee issued a
consultative document on the Definition of capital
disclosure requirements, which proposes disclosure
requirements that aim. to improve the transparency and
comparability of a bank’s capital base. The
consultative document includes the following:

e A common template for banks to use in
reporting the breakdown of their reguwlatory
capital when the transition period for the
phasing-in of deductions ends on Tan. 1, 2018;

s A 3-step approach for bauks to follow to ensure
that there is full reconciliation of all regulatory
capital elements back to the published financial
statements;

e A common template for banks to use to meet the
Basel I requirement to provide a description. of
the main features of capital instruments;

s Proposals on how banks should mect the Basel
11 requirement to provide the full terms and
conditions of capital instruments on their
websites and the requirement to report the
calenlation of any ratios involving components
of regulatory capital, and

e A template for banks to use during the transition
period.

The Basel Committee proposes that banks comply
with the disclosure requirements set out in the
consultative document trom the date of publication of
their first set of financial statements relating to a
balance sheet date on or after Jan. 1, 2013 (with the
exception of the post-lan. 1, 2018 template).
Furthermore, it is proposed that banks publish this
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Recent Accounting and Regulatory Developments (continued)

disclosure with the same frequeney as the publication
of their financial statements. The deadline for
comments on the proposals was on Feb. 17, 2012.

IFRS

Tnternational Financiat Reporting Standards (“TFRS™)
ate a st of standards and interpretations adopted by
the International Accounting Standards Board. The
SEC is corrently considering a potential IFRS
adoption process in the U.S., which would, in the near
term, provide domestic issuers with an alternative
accomnting method and ultimately could replace U.s.
GAAP reporting requirements with IFRS reporting
requirements. The intention of this adoption would be
to provide the capital markets community with a
single set of high-quality, globally accepted
accounting standards. The adoption of TFRS for Uu.s.
companies with global operations would allow for
streamlined reporting, allow for easier access to
foreign capital markets and investments, and facilitate
cross-border acquisitions, ventures or spin-offs.

In November 2008, the SEC proposed a “roadmap”
for phasing in mandatory IERS filings by (LS. public
companies. The roadmap is conditional on progress
towards milestones that would demonstrate
improvements in both the infrastructure of
international standard setting and the preparation of
the U.S. financial reporting community .

In Pebruary 2010, the SEC issued a statement
confirming their position that they continue to helieve
that a single set of high-quality, globally accepted
accounting standards would benefit U.S. investors.
The SEC continues to support the dual goals of
improving financial reporting in the 1.8, and reducing
country-by-country disparities in financial reporting.
The SEC is developing a work plan to aid i s
svaluation of the impact of IFRS on the U.S.
securities nmarket.

In May 2011, the SEC published a staff paper,
“Tixploting a Possible Method of Incorporation,” that
presents a possible framework for incotporating JFRS
into the U.S. financial reporting system. In the staff
paper, the SEC staft elaborates on an approach that
combines elements of convergence and endorsement.
This approach would establish an endorsement
protocol for the FASB to incorporate newly issued or
amended [FRS into U.S. GAAP. During a transition
period (e.g., Tive to seven years), differences between
TERS and U.S. GAAP would be potentially eliminated
through ongoing FASH standard setting.

This is one of several approaches to incorporale IEFRS
into the U.S. financial reporting system. The SEC has
not vet decided whether to move ghead with
incorporation. Comments on the framework and on
any other potential approaches to incorporating TERS
were due by July 31, 2011

While the SEC decides whether IFRS will be required
to be used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements, a number of countries have
mandated the use of IFRS by BNY Mellon’s
subsidiaries in their statutory reports. Such countries
include Belgium, Brazil, the Netherlands, Australia,
Heng Kong, Canada and South Korea.

Proposed Update to Internal Control—Infegra ted
Framework

In December 2011, The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO™) issued for public comment a proposed
update to Internal Control—Integrated Framework.
The original Framework, issued in 1992, is used by
most U.8. public companies and many otbers to
evaluate and report on the effectiveness of their
internal control over extemal financial reporting.

Sinee the original Framework was introduced,
business has become increasingly global and complex.
Regulatory regimes also have expanded, and
additional forms of external reporting are emerging.
The COSO Board has updated the original Framew ork
to make it more relevant to investors and othex
stakeholders.

The more significant proposed changes to the original
framework include: applying a principles-based
approach, clarifying the role of objective-setting in
internal control, reflecting the increased relevance of
technology, enhancing governance concepts,
expanding the objectives of financial reporting,
enhancing consideration of anti-fraud expectations,
and considering diffexrent business models and
organizational stractures.

Comments on the proposed Framework will be

accepted through March 31, 2012. The final document
is expected to be issucd by the end of 2012
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Selected Quarterly Data (unaudited)

(doliar amounts i millions,

Cmarter ended

2011

2010

excepi pev share anmonnis) Dec, 31 Sept. 30 June 30 Mareli 31 Dec. 31 Sepl. 30 June 30 Maich 31
Consolidated income stalement
Total fee and other revenus 3 2765 $ 2,887 $ 3,056 3§ 2,838 3 2,972 % 2,668 $ 2,555 0§ 2,529
Income (loss) of congolidated investinent

management funds 5} 32 63 110 59 a7 65 65
Net infercst revenne 780 775 731 693 720 718 T2 765

Total revenus 3,540 3,694 3,850 3,646 3,751 3,423 3,342 3,359
Provision for eredit losses 23 (22) . - 22 22) 20 is
Noninterest expense 2,828 2,771 2,816 2,697 2,803 2,611 2,316 2,440

Income from continuing operations before

income taxes 589 943 1,034 949 @70 834 1,006 884

Provision for income taxes 211 281 277 279 265 220 304 258

Net income from continuing operations 478 664 757 670 703 614 702 626

Net 1nss from discontinued operations - - - - ity @& (10) “2)

Net income 478 664 787 670 694 611 642 584

Net Gucome) loss altributable to

noncontrolling interests 27 {13) {22) {45} (15% 11 (34) 25)
Net income applicable to common

sharcholders of The Bank of New York

Mellon Corporation $ 505 651 $ 735 & 625 $ 679 0§ 62 $ 658 & 559
Basic earnings per share
Continuing operstions % 042 $ 0583 0§ 059§ 0S80 $ 055 % 051 $ 055 &% 030
Discontinned operations - - - .01 - 0.00 {0.04)

Net income applicable to common stoek § 042 $ 083 & 03§ 050 $ 055{a)% 051 $ 054 § 046
Diluted earnings per share
C'ontinuing operations $ 042 § 053 8 05 0§ 050 3 05 & 03] $ 055 & 049
Discontinued operolions - - - 0.0y - (0.01) 0.03)

Net income applicable to commeon stock 59042 $ 083 $ 952 % 050 $ 05 % 0351 $ 054 $ 046
Average balances
Interest-bearing deposits with banks $115,734 $121,527 $ 93365  $ 78,010 $ 76447 % 70,244 $ 69021 § 67929
Secuties 74,981 70,863 68,782 63,397 65,370 57,993 54,030 35,352
Loans 44,236 40489 40,328 38,866 37,529 36,769 36,664 34,214
Total interest-camiog assets 247,732 240,283 209,933 190,185 187,547 172,759 167,119 163,429
Assets of operations 394,235 298,325 264,254 243,356 241,734 226,378 216,801 212.685
Total assets 316,074 311463 278,480 287,698 256,409 240,325 228,841 225415
Deposits 206,652 199,184 168,996 155,131 151,401 137,231 134,591 134,364
Long-term debt 14,546 18,256 17,380 17,014 16,624 16,798 16462 16,808
Total The Bauk of New York Mellon

Corporation shareholders” equity 33,761 34,008 33,464 32,827 32,379 31,868 30,462 24,715
Net interest wargin FTE) (&) 1.27% 1.30% 1.41% 1.49 % 1.54% 1.67% 1.74% 1.89%
Annualized retum on common equity (17} 3.9% T6% 8.8% 17 % 8.5% 7.8% 8.8% 8.20%
Pre-tax operating margin (&) 19% 26% 27% 20 % 2054 2450 30% 26%
Common stock data (c)
Market price per share range:

High $ 2257 $ 2643 § 3077 0§ 3259 $ 3063 § 2695 § 3265 $ 3146

Low 17.10 18.28 24.15 28.07 24 .65 23.78 24.63 26,35

Average 1%.64 22.01 2790 30.66 2749 2544 29.01 2920

Period end close 19.91 18.59 2562 29.87 3020 26.13 24.69 30.88
Dividends per common share 0.13 0.13 013 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.09
Market capitalization (@) § 24085  $ 22543 & 31582 % 37,090 $ 37494  § 32413 $ 29975 37456

() Amount does not fool dice to rounding.

(b} Presented on a continuing operations basis in 2010,

(e At Dec 31, 2011, there were 33,222 shareholders registered with pur siock Transfer dye
31, 2000, Jn addition, thare werz 49,004 of BNY Mellon’s cuwrrentand formugy
Retiremens Savings Plans. Al shaves of BNY Mellon's common stock held by
New York Melion Corporafion, as trusiee.

{d]

At period end.

30 BNY Mellon

empleyeas at Da

vil, comnpared with 33,028 at Dec. 31, 2019 and 35,930 at Dec.
¢. 31, 204 ] wha participate in BNY Mellon’s €01(k )
the Plans for its participants are vegistered in: fiue name of The Bank of
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Forward-looking Statements

Some statements in this document are forward-
Jooking. These include all statements about: the future
results of BNY Mellon; expectations for Basel 111 and
our estimated Basel TII Tier 1 common equity ratio;
RNY Mellon’s plans and strategies, areas of focus and
long-term financial goals; expectations regarding
updating our capital targets; the impact of continued
global uncertainty; expectations regarding our foreign
exchange revenue; expectations regarding our
effective tax rate; expectations with respect to legal
and litigation costs; expectations regarding the
seasonality of our businesses; expectations with
respect to fees and assets; factors affecting the
performance of our businesses: the impact of foreign
exchange rates on our financial results and levels of
assets under custody and management; descriptions of
owr critical acconnting estimates, including
management’ s estimates of probable losses,
management’ s judgment in determining the effect of
credit ratings on allowances, estimates of fair value;
effects of delinquencies, default rates and loss severity
assumptions on impairment losses; gxpectations
regarding the impact that a goodwill impairment
charge would have on our financial condition, results
of operations, regulatory capital ratios and debt
issuance; statements regarding the impact of money
market fee waivers or changes in Jevels of assets
under management on the fair value of Asset
Management; estimates of net peosion expense; our
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets: the
impact of significant changes in ratings classifications
for our investment portfolio on credit risk and the fair
value of our investinent securities portfolio;
assumptions with respect to residential mortgage-
backed securitics; expectations with respect to our
leasing portfolio; estimates of provisions for cradit
losses; statements with respect to BNY Mellon’s
liquidity cushion, liquidity ratios, liquid asset buffer
and potential uses of liquidity; statements with respect
to an increase in our dividends and our liguidity
targets; the effect of a significant reduction in owr
Tnvestment Services business on Our access 1o
deposits; the impact of a change in rating agencies’
method of review on BNY Mellon’s ratings;
expectations with respect to capital, inchuding
anticipated repayment and call of owstanding
securities; our goal of maintaining a predominantly
investment grade credit portfolio; the effect of a
change in risk-weighted assets or common equily on
our capital ratios, the effect of a change in the value of
the $&§ 500 Index; statements on our target capital
ratios; expectations with respect to the well
capitalized status of BN'Y Mellon and its bank
subsidiaries; statements regarding our balance sheet
size and client deposit levels; statements regarding

Mellon Capital IV, compliance with the requirements
of the Sound Practices Paper; statements regarding
maintaining a strong balance sheet and a superior debt
rating; descriptions of our risk management
framework: statements regarding risks that we may
face and the impact of such risks; statements
regarding our economic capital; staternents with
respect to our risk management, descriptions of our
earnings simulation models and assumptions;
statements with respect to our business continuity
plans; expectations regarding climate change; the
effect of geopolitical factors and other external factors
on risk; timing and impact of adoption of recent
accounting pronouncements; the timing and effects of
pending and proposed legislation and regulation,
including the Dodd-Frank Act; the Federal Reserve’s
proposed rules with respect to systensically important
financial institutions; the Federal Reserve’s and
FDIC’s proposed resolution planning rules; the 0oCcC’s
proposed rules regarding credit ratings in connection
with purchase of investment secutities; federal
regulators proposal regarding incentive compensation
arrangements; our expectation regarding Basel Il and
Base! HI requirements and the impact on our capital
ratios; the SEC’s plans regarding IFRS; ability to
realize benefit of deferred tax assets including
carryovers; calculations of the fair value of our option
granis; statements with respect to unrscognized tax
bencfits and compensation costs; our assessment of
the adequacy of our accruals for tax liabilities; amount
of dividends bank subsidiaries can pay without
regulatory waiver; and estimations of reasonable
possible loss with respect to legal proceedings and the
expected outcome and impact of judgments and
seftlements, if any, arising from. pending or potential
legal or regulatory proceedings.

In this report, any other report, any press release o
any written or oral statement that BNY Melon or its
executives may make, words, such as “estimate,”
“forecast.” “project,” “anticipate,” “confident,”
“target,” “expect,” “intend,” “continue,” “seel,”
“believe,” “plan,” “goal,” “could,” “should,” “may,”
“will,” “strategy,” “synergies,” “opportunities.”
“trends” and words of similar meaning. signify
forward-looking statements,

Forward-looking statements, including discussions
and projections of futore results of operations and
discussions of future plans contained in the MD&A,
are based on management's current expectations and
assumptions that mvolve risk and uncertainties and
that are subject to change based on various important
factors (some of which are beyond BNY Mellon’s
control), including adverse changes in market
conditions, and the timing of such changes, and the
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Forward-looking Statements (continued)

actions that management could take in response to
these changes. Actual results may differ matevially
from those expressed or implied as a result of a
number of factors, including those discussed in the
“Risk Factors” section of BNY Mellon’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dec. 31,
2011, such as: uncertainty in financial markets and
weakness in the economy; disruptions in Huropean
economies, or the faiture or nstability of any of our
significant counterparties in Europe; continued market
volatility ; write-downs of financial instruments that
we own or other losses related to volatile or illiquid
market conditions; adverse publicity, regulatory
actions or litigation with respect to us, other well-
known companies and the financial services industry
generally; government regulation and supervision, and
associated limitations on our ability to pay dividends
or make other capital distributions; recent legislative
and regulatory actions; low or volatile interest rates
and its impact on money market fund sponsors;
changes to deposit insurance premivms; the level of
regulation applicable to, and the costs associated
therewith of, our competitors, the degree of
consolidation and the breadth of products and services
offerings of companies in the financial services
industry and the ability of BN'Y Mellon to distinguish
itself from its competitors; declines in capital markets
on our fee-based businesses; stable exchange-rate
environment and declines in cross-border activity;
dependence on consistent execution of fee-based
services that we perform; the faiture to successfully
integrate strategic acquisitions; the failure or
instability of any of our significant counterparties, and
our assumption of credit and counterparty risk;

82 BNY Mellon

changes to credit ratings; supervisory standards;
aceess to capital makets; monetary policy and other
governmental regulations; failures relating to
operational risk and circamvention of controls and
procedutes; disruption or breaches in security of our
information systems that results in a loss of
confidential client information or impacts our ability
to provide services to our clients; dependence on
technology and intellectual property; global
operations and regulation; acts of terrorism and global
conflicts; risks relating to new lines of business;
attracting and retaining employees; tax and accounting
taws and regulations; inadequate credit reserves; risks
associated with being a holding company including
our dependence on dividends from our subsidiary
banks; the impact of provisions of Delaware law and
the Federal Reserve on our ability to pay dividends
and anti-takeover provisions in our certificate of
incorporation and bylaws. Investors should consider
all risks in BNY Mellon’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the vear ended Dec. 31, 2011 and any
subsequent reports filed with the SEC by BNY Mellon
pursuant to the Exchange Act.

All forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date on which such statements are made, and BNY
Metlon undertakes no obligation to update any
staternent Lo reflect events or circumstances after the
date on which such forward-looking statement is
made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated
events, The contents of BNY Mellon’s website or any
other websites referenced herein are not part of this
report.
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Glossary

Accumulated Benefit Obligation (“ABO”)—The
actuarial present value of benefits (vested and
non-vested) attributed to emplovee services rendered.

Alt-A securities—A mortgage risk categorization that
falls between prie and subprime. Borrowers behind
these mortgages will typically have clean credit
histories but the mortgage itself will generally have
issucs that increase its risk profile.

Alternative investments—Usually refers to
investments in hedge funds, leveraged loans,
subordinated and distressed debt, real estate and
foreign currency overlay. Examples of alternative
investment strategies are: long-short equity, event-
driven, statistical arbitrage, fixed income arbitrage,
converlible arbitrage, short bias, global macro and
equity market neutral.

APAC-—Asia-Pacific region.

Asset-backed commercial paper (“ABCP”)—A
short-term instrument issued by a financial institution
that is collateralized by other assets.

Assets Under Custody And Administration
(“AUC?")—Assets beneficially owned by our clienis
of customers which we hold in various capacities for
which various services are provided, such as custody,
accounting, administration valuations and
performance measurement. These assets age not on
our balance sheet.

ASC——Accounting Standards Codification.

Assets Under Management (“AUN"}—Includes
assets beneficially owned by our clients or customers
which we hold in various capacities that are either
actively or passively managed, as well as the value of
hedges supporting customer liabilities. These assets
and liabilities are not on our balance sheet.

bps—Dbasis points.

Collateral management—A comprehensive program
designed to simplify collateralization and expedite
sccurities transfers for buyers and sellers.

Collateralized Debt Obligations (“CBOs")—A type
of asset-backed security and structured credit product
constructed from a porifolio of fixed-income assets.

Collateralized loan obligation (“CLO’)—A debt
security backed by a pool of commercial loans.

Collective trust fund-—An investment fond formed
from the pooling of investments by mvestors.

Credit derivatives—Contractual agreements that
provide insance against a credit event of one or
more referenced credits. Such events include
bankruptcy, insolvency and failure to meet payment
obligations when due.

Credit risk—The risk of loss due to borrower or
counterparty default.

Credit valuation adjustment (CYA'")—The market
value of counterparty eredit risk on OTC derivative
trangactions.

Currency swaps—An agreement © exchange stipulated
amounts of one currency for another currency.

Daily average revenue trades (“DARTS”)—A
metric used that represents the number of trades from
which an entity can expect to generate revenue
through fees or commissions on a given day.

Debit valuation adjustment (“DVA’ ")The market
value of our credit risk on OTC derivative
fransactions.

Depositary Receipts (“DR”)—A negotiable secarity
that generally represents a non-U.5. company’s
publicly traded equity.

Devivative—A coniract or agreement whose value is
derived from changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, prices of securities or commodities,
credit worthiness for credit default swaps or financial
or commodity indices.

Discontinued operations—The operating results of a
component of an entity, as defined by ASC 205, that
are removed from continuing operations when that
component has been disposed of or it is management’s
intention to sell the component.

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”)}—Regulatory
reform legislation signed into law on July 21, 2010.
This law broadly affects the financial services industry
and contains numerous provisions aimed at
strengthening the sound operation of the financial
gervices sector,

Double leverage—The situation that exists when 4
holding company’s equity investments in wholly
owned subsidiaries (including goodwill and
intangibles) exceed iis equity capital. Double leverage
is created when a bank holding company issues debt
and downstreams the proceeds to a subsidiary as an
equity investment.

Feonomic Value of Equity (“EVE”)—An
aggregation of discounted future cash flows of assets
and liabilities over a long-term horizon.
EMEA—Furope, the Middle East and Africa.
Furozone—an economic and monetary union of 17
European Union member states that have adopted the
euro (£) as their common currency. The Burozone
currently includes Germany, France, Belgium, the
Netherlands, Luxembourg, Austria, Finland, Ttaly,
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Glossary (continued)

Ireland, Spain, Portugal, Greece, Estonia, Cyprus,
Malta, Slovenia and Slovakia.

eXtensible Business Reporting Language
(“XBRL»)-—a language for the electronic
communication of business and financial data.

FASB—Financial Accounting Standards Board.
FDIC—¥ederal Deposit Issuance Corporation.

Foreign currency options-—Similar to interest rate
options except they are based on foreign exchange
rates. Also, sce interest rate options in this glossary.

Foreign curvency swaps—~An agreement to
exchange stipulated. amounts of one currency for
anather currency at ong or more futwre dates.

Woreign exchange contracis—Contracts that provide
for the fature receipt or delivery of foreign currency at
previously agreed-upon terms.

Forward rate agrecments—Contracts to exchange
payments on a specified future date, based on a
market change in interest rates from trade date 1o
coniract settlement daie.

¥ully Taxable Equivalent (“FTE”)—Basis for
comparison of yields on assets having ordinary
taxability with assets Tor which special tax exemptions
apply. The FT1 adjustment reflects an increase in the
interest yield or return. on a tax-exempt asset 1o a level
that would be comparable had the asset been fully
taxable.

senerally Accepted Accounting Principles
(“GAAP")—Accounting rules and conventions
defining acceptable practices in preparing financial
statements in the 1.8, The FASB is the primary
source of accouniing rules.

Grantor Trust—A legal, passive entity through
which pass-through securities are sold to investors.

Hedge fund—A fund which is allowed to use diverse
stzategies that are unavailable to mutual funds,
including selling short, leverage, program trading,
swaps, arbitrage and derivatives.

Impairment—When an asset’s market value is Jess
than its carrying value.

Interest yate options, including caps and floors——
Contracts to modify interest rate risk in exchange for the
payment of a premium when the contract is initiated. As
a writer of interest rate options, we receive a premium in
exchange for bearing the risk of unfavorable changes n
interest rates. Conversely, as a purchaser of an option,
we pay & premivm for the right, but not the obligation, to
buy or sell 4 financial instrument or carency at
predetermined terms i the future.
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Tnterest rate sensitivity—1The exposure of net
interest income to interest rate movements.

Tuterest rate swaps—Contracts in which a series of
interest rate flows in a single currency is exchanged
over a prescribex period. Interest rate swaps are the
most common type of derivative contract that we use
in our asset/liability management activities.

Investment grade—Those where the customer has a
Moody's long-term rating of Baa3 or better; and/ora
Standard & Poor’s, Fitch. or DBRS long-term rating of
BBRB- or better; or if unrated, an equivalent rating using
our internal risk ratings. Instruments that fall below
these levels are considered non-investment grade.

Joiut venture—A company or entity owned and
operated by a group of companies for a specitic
business purpose, no one of which has a majority
interest.

Leverage ratio—Tier 1 capital divided by quarterly
average total assets, as defined by the regulators.

Liquidity visk—The risk of being unable to fund our
portfolio of assets at appropriate maturitics and rates.
and the risk of being unable to liquidate a position in a
timely manner at a reasonable price.

Loans for purchasing or carrying sccuritics—
Loans primarily to brokers and dealers in secuvities.

Market risk—The potential loss in value of
portfolios and financial instruments caused by
movements in market variables, such as interest and
foreign exchange rates, credit spreads, and equity and
commodity prices.

Master nefting agreement—An agreement between
two counterparties that have multiple contracts with
each other that provides for the net settlement of all
contracts through a single payment in the event of
default or termination of any one contract.
Mortgage-Backed Secarity (“MBS”)—An asset-
backed security whose cash flows are backed by the
principal and interest payments of a set of mortgage
loans.

NfA—Not applicable.
N/M—Not meaningful.

Net interest margin—The result of dividing net
interest revenue by average inlerest-earning assets.

Nostro account—An account held in a foreign
commiry by a domestic bank, denominated in the
currency of that country. Nostro accounts are used to
facilitate setttement of foreign exchange and currency
trading transactions.
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Gilossary (continued)

Operating leverage—The rate of increase n revenue
to the rate of increase in expenses.

Operational risk—The risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed processes or systems, human
factors or exiernal events.

Performance fees—Fees received by an investment
advisor based upon the fund’s performance for the
period relative to various predetermined benchmarks.

Prime securities—A classification of secorities
collateralized by loans to borrowers who have a high-
valage and/or a good credit history.

Private equity/ventire capital—Invesiment in
start-up companies or those in the early processes of
developing products and services with perceived,
long-term growth potential.

Pre-tax operating margin—Income before taxes for
a period divided by total revenue for that period.

Projected Benefit Obligation ¢PBO")—The
actuarial present value of all benefits accrued on
employee service rendered prior to the calculation
date, including allowance for future salary increases if
the pension benefit is based on future compensation
levels.

Qui tam action—An action brought under a statute
that allows a private person to sue for a recovery, part
of which the government or some specified public
institution will receive.

Rating Agency—An independent agency that
assesses the credit quality and likelihood of default of
an issue or issuer and assigns a rating to that issue or
issuer.

Real Hstate Investment Trust (“REIT ")—An
investor-owned corporation, trust or association that
sells shares to investors and invests in ncome-
producing property.

Repurchase Agreement (“Repo*)—An instrument
used 1o raise short term funds whereby securities are
sold with an agreement for the seller to buy back the
securities at a later date.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Security

(“RMBS"”)—An asset-backed security whose cash

flows are backed by principal and interest payments of
a set of residential mortgage loans.

Restructuring charges—Typically result from the
consolidation and/or relocation of operations.

Retern on assets—Income divided by average assets.

Return on commmon equity—Income divided by
average common shareholders’ equity.

Return on tangible common equity—Income.
sxcluding am ortization of intangible assets, divided
by average tangible common sharcholders’ equity.

Securities lending transaction—A fully
collateralized transaction in which the owner ofa
security agrees to lend the security through an agent
(The Rank of New York Mellon) to a borrower,
usually a broker/dealer or bank, on an open, overnight
or term basis, under the terms of a prearranged
contract, which generally matures in less than 90 days,

Subeustodizmn—A local provider (e.g., a bank)
contracted to provide specific custodial related
services in a selected country or geographic area.

Subprime securities—A classification of securities
collateralized by loans to borrowers who have a
tarnished or limited credit history.

Tangible common sharcholders’ equity—Common
equity less goodwill and intangible assets adjusted for
deferved tax Habilities associated with non-tax
deductible intangible assets and tax deductible
goodwill.

Tier 1 and total capital (Basel I guidelines)—
Includes common shareholders” equity (excluding
certain components of comprehensive income),
qualifying teust preferred securities, less goodwill and
certain intangible assets adjusted for deferred tax
liabilities associated with non-tax deductible
intangible assets and tax deductible goodwill and a
deduction for certain non-financial equity investments
and disallowed defetred tax assets. Total capital
includes Tier 1 capital, qualifying unrealized equity
securities gains, qualitying subordinated debt and the
allowance for credit losses.

Unfunded commitments—Legally binding
agreements to provide a defined level of financing
until a specified future date.

Value-at-Risk (*VaR?”)-—A measure of the dollar
amount of potential loss at a specified confidence
level from adverse market movements in an ordinary
market environment.

Variable Interest Entity (“VIIE*)—Au entity that:

(1} lacks enough equity iyvestment at visk to permit the
entity to finance its activities without additional financial
support from other parties; (2) has equity owners that
fack the right to make significant decisions affecting the
entity s operations; and/or 3) has equity owners that do
ot have an obligation to absoth or the right to receive
the entity’s Josses or return.
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Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of BNY Mellon is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting for BNY Mellon, as such term
is defined in Rule 13a-15(F) under the Fxchange Act.

BNY Mellon’s management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, hias
assessed the effectiveness of BN'Y Mellon’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2011. In making this assessment, management used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission in
Internal Controk—Integrated Framework. Based upon
such assessment, management believes that, as of

86 BNY Meilon

Pecember 31, 2011, RNY Mellon™s internal control

over financial reporting is effective based upon those
criteria.

KPMG LLP, the independent registered public
accounting firm that audited BN'Y Mellon’s 2011
financial statements included in this Amnuval Report
under “Financial Statements and Notes,” has issued a
report with respect to the effectiveness of BNY
Mellon's internal control over financial reporting.
This report appears on page 87.
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Revort of ndependet Reqistersd Public Accounting i

The: Bosrd of Directors aii ‘LL' teholders

The Eank of New York Mellon Corporation:

e heve audited The Eank of New Yotk Mellon Corporation’s (78 NY Mellon™ internsl control over financial
;ep-.artmg ws of Devember 31, 2011, b\lnﬂ'.q. on writeria csmi" Hshed in ntermal Conwol—lntegy arared Framework

.- .. -
ssusd oy the ¢ i

e of Spqusmmg, reunizations of the Treadway Commissinm § CO)O‘ BNY Mellen’s
patwgemnent [s responsibie forma faza ying sffsaive el sontrel ever francial [i-’pmtlugﬁ and for Qe

&

i

ssessment of the effeotivensss of internal conirnl over fing ncial reporting, moluded in the acoumpes y,ng Report
of Management on Internal Centrol ever Pinaneial Reperting. (ux responsioility Is 1o express an opinien on BNY
Wielinn's interne] conirsl ever finmeial reporting based on oux sudi.

r -
~ o B o

e conducted our audf in accordano Wi' % the standards of the Public Company Acnoun ing Grversight Board

(Tnited Slases). Those slandards re quire thst we plan and perforn the Jn& L o oblabn vessonable assurance shot
whether effective internal control over lmanc:alremltng 25 maintained in ol material respects. Our sudit

mon.\d-sd chiaining sn vnderstanding of imesmial entrel ever financial rep erting, assessing S visk thal 2 material

weskness exists, end testing evamzting the design and operating ef cfectiveness of mternal control based on the
apeessed rick, Dur audtt olse included performing such s oller procedures o5 we sensidered necessary the
circumstennes. We belisve that our audit provides @ reasonable basis for cur opinion

A compaiy’ s "_ armal comirol over financial reporting is a proces: designed to provide reasonable 2saurance
regarding :,hse glability of flnancial vepe 1n and. the praparation of financial slararnents for exernal purposss in

ac\ord ance with generally ancepted acco _nt.._,, prizeiples. A oo rany’ s infermal control over financial repariing
inciudes hose pol icies and pro crures Lhza {11 })ﬁ"ﬁlu o the maoln temanse of records that, i reassnable Aetail,

Iy and fairly reflect the transestions ang dispositions of the aseets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
sation of fnancis] steements & ascordence

,Jcn'hl-,ure of the compeny are belnzms ae

ancure
ass o thet sransact lona are vecorded 45 m-ws.:afj e permil gwﬁ
“""t : genex vally accepted ascount 11;; ,ﬂmc,p*c,, and that receird
only it acourdance wilh sulhorizalions of management and dar setors of the company; sud (33 provide reasoiable

assuran <& regerding rrevention or timely detection of unauthorized anquisiiion, use, or disposition of the
compary’s assets that conid have a s terial effect on the financla | sialemoerds.

Becauss of it 'ln'mw::*t Jznitations, mtemal contrel over flnoncial reporting may ot prove ol or dedecs
misstaternents, Also, projections of an 'ewlu&t.on of effectivensss to futmr pcnom\ we subiect to therisk that
serdrol may kn: oRag iuadr' jueie h’m use of changas i ccendbions, o shot the degree of bblllf_ul&llki e lihy the

puiicies ar procedures mey deteriorate.

In cur cpinion, 3“-1'1’. Mellon m“m:a.ned in all material reskeﬁs.effeﬂt*“e Luclui’l comrol over finsndalreporting

as of D wm yer 31, 2011, based on oriteria ealabi shed b Intorne) Domre —ltegrased Framework issued by the
iee of Sponscring Crganizetions ofthe Treadwsy Commissinl.

ny & r;f‘c“_nt ng Oversight Board

P}

We also have audited, in zocordence with the stendards of the Buldic TNy
(Unied States), the consolidated s lanvoe shests of BINY Mellon o2 fai Ciecamber 31, 2011 and 2010, and the

iideted statements of Income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of 'he vears In the three-year
petiod ended Devernber 31, 2013, and our reporl dated Fc**\mar} 28, 2012 erpressed an wgualified oploion on
those consolidated financial stalements.

g

KPme: LP

Merws York, Ness Work
Febroary 28 2012
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation {(and its subsidiaries)

Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended Dec, 31,

(in millions) 2011 2M0(a) 2009 (a)
Fee and other revenue
Investmeant services fees:
Agset servicing $ 3697 33,076 § 2,573
Issuer services 1,448 1,460 1.463
Clearing services 1,159 1,005 962
Treasury services 538 530 519
Total investrnent services fees 6,836 6,071 5,517
Investraent management and pexformance fees 3,002 2,868 2,677
Foreign exchange and other: trading revenue 348 886 1,030
Distritwtion and servicing 187 210 326
Financing-related fees 170 195 213
Tnvestnent income 258 308 226
Other 197 159 111
Total fee revenue 11,498 10,697 10,108
Net securities gaing (losses)--including ether-than-temporary impairment (86) {43) {5,552)
Non-credit-related gains (losses) on securities not expected. 1o be sold (recognized in OCI) (134) (70) (1833
Net securities gains {losses) 48 27 (5,369)
Total fee and other revenue 11,546 10,724 4,739
Operations of consolidated investment management funds
Investment incoms Q70 663 -
Interest of investment management {und note holders 470 437
Income of consolidated investinent management funds 200 226
Net interest revenue
tuterest revenue 3.5488 3,470 3,508
Interest. expense 604 345 593
Net interest revenue 2984 2,925 2915
Provision for cradit losses 1 11 332
Net interest revenue atier provision for cradit losses 2,983 2,914 2,583
Noninterest expense
Staff 5726 5,215 4,700
Professional, legal and other purchiased services 1,217 1,099 1,017
Net occupancy 624 588 564
Software 485 410 367
Distribution and servicing 416 377 393
Furnituze and equipment 330 315 309
Sub-censtodian 208 247 203
Business development 261 27 214
Other 1,147 1,060 9354
Sulitotal 10,504 9,582 8,721
Amortization of intangible assets 428 421 4206
Restructuring charges : 89 28 150
Merger andintegration expenses 91 139 233
Total noninterest expense 11,132 10,170 9,530
Income
Inceme (foss) from continuing operations before inconue taxes 3.617 3,694 {2,208)
Provision (benefit) for income (axes 1,048 1,047 (1,395)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 2,569 2,647 (813
Discontinued. operations:
Loss from discontinned operations - (110) @213
Benefit for income taxes - (44) (151)
Net 1oss from discontinued operations - (66} (270
Ned income (foss) 2,569 3,581 (1,083)
Net (income) alttibutable (o nonconirdling interests {includes $(50), $(39) and $—xelated to
investment management funds) (83) (63) )
Redemytion charge and preferred dividends - - (283)
Net income {loss) applicable 1o copimon shareholders of The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation § 2516 % 2518 $(1,367)
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation {(and its subsidiaries)

Consolidated Income Statement (continuad)

Reconciliation of net income (loss) from continving operations
to the net income applicable to common shareholders
of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

Year ended Dee, 31,

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Net income (108s) from continuing operations $2,569 $2,647 $ 0813
Net (income) attributable (o nonconirolling iaterests (83) (63) 1§91
Redemption charge and preferred dividends - - (283
Nel income (loss) from continuing operations applicable to common shareholders of The Bank
of New York Mellon Corporation 2,516 2,584 (1,097
Net loss from discontinued operations - (66) {(270)
Net income (loss) applicable to commou sharsholders of The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation 2,516 2,518 {1.367)
Less: Earnings allocated to participaling securities 2z 23 -
Excess of redeemable value over the fair value of noncontrolling interests 9
Net income (loss) applicable to comumon shareholders of The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation after required adjustments for the calenlation of basic and diluted. eanings per
share $2,480 $2,495 $(1,367)
Average common shares and equivalents outstanding
of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation Year ended Dec. 31,
(in thowsands) 2011 2010 2009
Basic 1,230,804 1,212,630 1,178,907
Comroon stock equivalents 8,425 9.308 -
Less: Participating securities 6,203 5,924 :
Dituted 1,223,026 1,216,214 1,178,907 (&)
Anti-dilutive securities (¢) 86,270 37,058 98,112
Earnings per common share applicable (o the common shareholders
of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation () Year ended Dec. 31,
(in dollars) 2011 2010 2009
Basic:
Net income (loss) from continming operations $2.03 §2.11 $(0.93)
Net loss from discontinued operations - (0.05) (0.23)
Net income (lossi applicable to cominon stock $2.03 $ 2.06 $(1.16)
Diluted:
Net incowme (1ossy from continuing operations $2.03 §2.11 $(0.93)
Net Loss from discontinued operations « {0.05) (0.23)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $2.03 $2.05¢e)  $(1.16)

(@) In 2031 BNY Mellon realigned its infernal reporting styucture. See Note 26 of the Notes to Consolidated Financiol Statements for

additional information.

{(b) Diluted earnings per share for the year ended Dec. 31, 2009, was calculated using average basic shares, Adding back the dilutive

shares would be anti-dilutiva.

(c) Represents stoct options, restricted stock, restricted stock wnifs, participating securities and warrants outsianding but not included in

the computaiion. of diluted average common shares because their effect would be anti-dilutive.
() Basic and dilited earvings per share under the two-cluss method are deternined on the net income reparted on the incone stedentent
less sarmings allocated 10 participating securities, and the excess of redesmable valus over the fair valus of noncontrolling intevesis.

(e) Doesnot foot due 1o rounding.

See accompanying Notes to Consalidated Financial Statetnents.
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Dec. 31,
(dollar amounts n nillions, except per share Gwounis) 2011 2010
Assets
Cash and due from.
Banks S 4175 $ 3675
Interest-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and other central banks 90,243 18,549
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 36321 30.200
Fedeval funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 4,510 5,169
Securitios:
Held-to-maturity (fair value of $3,540 and $3,637) 3,521 3,655
Available-fur-sale 78467 62,652
Total securitics 81,988 66,307
Trading assets 7861 6,276
Loans 43,979 37,808
Alowance forloan Iosses 394) (498)
Net loans 43585 37,310
Prensises and eqquipment, 1,681 1,693
Acecrued ioterest receivable 660 508
Goodwill 17,904 18,042
Intangible assets 5152 3.696
Other assets (includes $1,848 and $1,075, at Lfair value) 19,829 18,799
Assels of discontinued operalions - 278
Sublotal assets of operations 313,919 232,493
Assets of consolidated investrnent managemeat funds, at fudr value:
Trading asscts 10,7581 14,121
Other assers 596 645
Subtotal assets of consolidated investment management funds, at fair value 11,347 14,766
Total assels $328,266  $247,259
Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing (principally U.S. offices) $ 95328 $ 38,703
Interest-bearng deposits in U.S. offices 41,231 37,937
Intereat-bearing deposits in Non-1.S, offices 82,528 68,699
Total deposits 219094 145339
Federal funds purchased and secusitios sold under repuichase agreements 6,267 5,602
Trading liabdlities 8,071 6,911
Payables to customers and broker.dealers 12,671 9.962
Commercial papes i1 10
Other borowed funds 2174 2,858
Acerved taxes and otlior expenses 6,235 6,164
Other liabilities (including allowance for lending-related commitiments of $103 and $73,
also includes $382 and $590, at fair value) 6,525 F 176
Long-teria debt (includes $326 and $269, at fair value) 19,933 16,517
Subtotal tabilities of operations 280,980 200,539
Liabilities of consolidated investment imanagement funds, at falr value:
‘Trading liabilities 10,053 13,561
Otlrer iabilities a2 2
Subtotal labilities of consolidated investment management funds, of fair value 10,085 13,563
Total fiabilities 291,065 214,102
Temporary equity
Redeemible noncontroiling interests 114 92
Permanent equity
Common stock — par value $0.01 por conunon share; anthotized 3,500,000,000 common shares,
issved 1,249,061,305 and 1,244,608,989 common shares 12 12
Additional paid-in capital 23,188 22,883
Retained carnings 12,81x2 10,898
Accunnjated other comprehensive Loss, net of tax {1,627) {1,335}
Less: Treasury stock of 39,386,698 and 3,078,794 comtnon shares, at cost (965) {86)
Totat The Bank of New York Mellon Cocporation shareholders’ equity 33417 32,354
Non-redesrnable noncontrolling interests - 3
Non-redecmable noncontrolling interests of consclidated investinent ywanagement funds 671) 699
Total parmancat equity 34,087 33,063
Total liahilities, temporary equity and pemmanent squity 8328266 $247,259

See accomponying Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Staigmers.

90 BNY Mellon
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended Dec. 31,

(in niillions) 2011 2010 2009
Qperating activities
Net income (less) $ 2569 $ 2581 8 (1,083)
Nel (income) atfributable 1o noncontroling interests (53) [GGE))] (1)
Net Joss fron discontinued operrtions - (G6) {270)
Netincome (loss) from continwing operations applicable to cotumon sharcholders of The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation 2,516 2,884 {814)
Adjustinents 1o reconcile netincome (loss) to net cash pravided hy (used for) operating activifies:
Provision for cradit losses 1 11 332
Pension plan contribntion gt (46) (394)
Depreciation and amorfization 776 629 711
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 12 1,199 (1.970)
Net securities (gains) losses and venture capital (incotne) {6H5) 57 5,387
Change in ttading activities {425) (155 (638)
Change in accruals and other, net {333) (115} 1,192
Net effect of discontinued operations - - (27)
Net cash provided by operating activilies 2,211 4,050 3,781
Investing activities
Change in inferest-bearing deposils with banks 12,983 7,073 (2.635)
Change in interast-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and other central banks 70,787y (11,187 45,908
Purchases of securities held-to-maturity (1,226} [4R%)] (114)
Paydowns of secwities held-to-maturity 233 285 643
Maturitics of securities held-fo-matority 1,127 316 280
Purchases of securities available-for-sale {42,367) (23,585) (28,66%)
Sales of securities availahle-for-sale 8,507 5,981 3,975
Paydowns of securities available-for-sale 8,332 7,944 6,361
Maivrities of securilies available-for-sale 9,385 2,668 2,001
Net principal (disbuwsed to) received from loans to customers {6,863) 310 4,268
Sales of loans and othier real estate 604 511 851
Change in federal funds sold and securities purchased. under resale agresments 659 (1,634) (1.545)
Change in seed capital investraents 162 {160y (8)
Purchases of premises and equipnient/capitalized software (642) (230) (318)
Acquisitions, net. carh (64) 2,793) (364}
Dispositions, net cash - 133 -
Proceeds rom the sale of premises and equipent 13 14 6
Other, net (1,234) (591) (987)
Net effect of discontinued operations - 59 431

Net casl (used for) provided by investing activities

(80,178) (14.937) 23,088

Financing activities
Change in deposiis
Change in federal finds purchased and securities sold under repurchase agreements
Change in payables to customers and broker-dealers
Change in other borrowed funds
Change in comunercial paper
Net proceeds from the issuance of ong-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt

74,252 8.527 (24,774)
665 2,058 2,602
2,709 (762) I,447
(549) 1,988 (5,717)
- @ (126)
8,042 1,347 3,350

(1,911} (2,614 (1,852)

Proceeds fram the exercise of stock options 18 31 16
Issnance of conunon stock 28 697 1,371
Treasury stock acquived 873) “l) (28)
Comumon cash dividends paid (593) (440) (599)
Series B preferred stock repurchased - - (3,000)
Common stock warrant repurchased . - (136)
Preferred dividends paid - - (73)
Other, net 20) 1 4
Net effect of discontinued operations N . {428)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities 78,765 10.790 27,973y
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash {298) 40 (33)
Change in cash and due from banks
Change in cash and due from banks 500 [&X))] {1,153
Cash and due froni banks at beginning of period 3.675 3,732 4.889
Cash and due from banks at end of pesiod P 4175 $ 3675 § 37932
Supplemental disclosures
Interest paid $ S8 & 591 0§ a82
Income taxes paid 640 699 2,392
Incame taxes refunded 136 197 664
See accompanying Nates to Consolidated Pinan cizl Statements.
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Non-
The Bank of New York Melton Corporation shareholders redeerable
noncontroling Redeemable
Accumulated Non- interest of fon -
other redeemable  consolidated controlling
Additional comprehensive aon- investment Total interestsf
Comnmon paid-in Rerained  income (loss), Freasury controlling  management permanent. femporacy
(in millions, except par share amoiis) stock capital carnings et of fax stock jntorest funds equity equity
Balance at Dec. 31, 2010 $12  $22,885 $10,898 $(1,355)  § (86} 12 $699  §33.065 (a) 3 92
Shares issued to shareholders of
noncontrolling interests - - B - - - - - 41
Redemption of subsidiavy
shares fromt nonconlrolling
interests - 2 - - - . “ 2 {1%)
Other net changes in
nonconirolling interests - iy 9) - - {12} {70y {74y {2}
Consolidation of investment
management funds - B - - - - 7 7 -
Comprehensive incorme;
Net inconwe - - 2516 - ~ - 50 2,360 3
Other cornprehensive
income, net of tax - - - (246) - - (16} (262} 13
Reclassificalion
adjustment (0) ~ - - 26y - - - (26) N
Total comprehensive
jncome - - 2,516 (272) - - 34 2,278 (¢ 2
Dividends on conmmon stock at
$0.48 pex share - - (593) - - - - (593) -
Repurchase of common stock - “ - - 873 - - (873) -
Common stock lssued under:
Employee benefii plans - 30 - - 3 . B 33 -
Direct stock purchase and
dividend reinvesiment
plan - 20 " - - " - 20 B
Stock awards and options
exercised - 231 U] - ()] " - 221 -
Other - - 1 B - - N 1 "
Balanse at Dee. 31,2011 $12  $23,185 $12,812 $(1,627)  $(565) $ - $670  $34,087 (0) $114

(@) Includes total The Bark of New York Mellon Corporation cormon shareholders’ squity of $
$23 417 million ar Dec. 31, 2011,

(b Includes $(26) million (after tax) velated 1o net securities gains (losses).
(¢} Comprehensive income attributable to The Bank of New York Mellon Corperation shareholders totaled $2,244 willion fer the year

ended Dec. 31, 201 1.

See accomparying Nates to Consolidated Financial Sraternents.

92 BNY Mellon

32,354 miltion at Dec. 34, 2010, and
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corpotation {and its subsidiaries)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equily (continued)

The Rank of New York Mellon Corporation shareholders

Nop-redeemable

noncontrolling Redeemable
Accamulated Non- interest of non-
other redeemable  consolidated controlling
Additional coraprehensive ALY investiment Total interests/
Covnon paid-in Refained income (uss), Treasury controlling  management pamanent termporary
(in millicms, except per shave amounts) _ siock capital eamings net of tax stock: inferest funds Ly ecquity
Balance at Dec. 31, 2009 $12 521,917 § 8,912 $1.835) $2N F 26 5 - $29,003 () $ -
Adjustments for the sumulative
effect of applying ASC $10 - 52 24 - 76
Adjustments for the cumulative
effect of applying ASC 825 - - [Gi)] - - - - an -
Adjusted balance at Jan. 1, 2010 12 21,07 8,891 (1,810 (29 26 - 29,006 -
Shares issued to sharehalders of
noncontrolling interests 44
Redemption of subsidiary shares
from noncontroiling interasts (18) (18) ©)
Distributions paid to
noncontrolling infexests - - - - - ) - (4) -
Other net changes in
noncontrolling interests - 15 (355 (100 89 (139) 50
Consolidation of investment
management funds - - - - - - 785 185 -
Peconsolidation of investment
manapenent funds - - (12) a2
Comprehensive income:
Net income 2,518 39 2,577 4
Other comprehensive
i ot of tax - - - 46, - - 44y 417 -
fication
nent (#) - (4 {5) - {19) .
Total comprelieisive income - 2,504 456 15 2.975 (¢} 4
Dividends on common stock at
$0.36 per share - B {441 - - - - 441D B
Repurchase of common stock - - - - (1)) - - “4n “
Common stock issued under
Stock forward. contract - 676 - 676
Unployee benefit plins 34 - 1 33 -
Divect stock purchase aud
dividend reinvesiiment plan - 16 - - - - - 16 -
Stock awards and options
exercised - 245 {1y a7 - 227 -
Balance at Dec. 31, 2010 12 S22,885 $10.808 $(1,335) $(36) $12 $699  $33,003 (a) $92

{a)

(b}
incore.
{c)
ended Dec. 31, 2010,

Comprehensive incame attributable to The Bank of

Inchudes totol The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation common sharehalders’ equity of $28,9
$32,354 million at Dec. 31, 2010,
Inctudes $(15) miltion {after tax) re

RFIN_EX 25, 4000P4

77 wmillion at Dec. 31, 2009, and
tated to OTTL, and a $14 million reclassification to retained earnings from othey comprehensive

New York Mellon Corporation sharehelders totaled 32,960 mitlion for the vear
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continved)

‘Fhe Rank of New York Mellon Corporstion shareholders

Accumulated

other Non-
Additional, comprehensive redoemable Total
Prefersed  Cormon paid-in  Retained  income (loss), Treasury popcontrolling  permanent
(in millicms, excopt per share amonnts) stock stock capital earnings net. of tax stock infereats ety
Balance at Dec. 31, 2008 $ 2,786 $11 $20,432  $10,225 B(5,401) $ (3 $39 528,089 ()
Adjustments for the comulative effect of
applying ASC 320, net of tazes of $470 - - - 676 (676) - - -
Adjusted balance at Jan. 1, 2009 2186 11 20432 10,901 [CRii) (3) 39 28,089
Purchase of subsidiary shares from.
noncontrolling interests 74) (11 (85)
Distributions paid to noncontrolling inierests - - - - - - (7) (7)
Comprehensive lncome:
Net imcoms B - - (1,084 - - 1 {1,083)
Qther comprehensive income, net of tax - - 926 4 $30
Reclassification adjustroent - - - - 3,316 - - 3.316 (b}
Tolal comprehensive income - - (1,084) 4,242 - 3 3,163 ()
Dividends:
Commeoen steck at $0.51 per share - - - {599 - - - {599)
Preferred stock at $24.5% per share B {69) - (69)
Repurchase of:
Coraon stock - 28} (28)
Series B preferred stock (3,000) - - - - - - {3,000)
Comunon stock warrant - (136) - (136)
Conmoen stock issued:
In public offering 1 1,346 - 1,347
In connection with acquisitions and
investments 85 - - 85
Under employee benefit plans - - 49 - - 2 “ 51
Under direct stock puschase and
dividend rein vestment plan - - 1% - - - - 19
Amortization of preferred stock disconnt and
rederaption charge 214 - - R4 - - - -
Stock awards and options exercised - - 197 - - 197
Other - - (1 {23} - - - (24)
Balance at Dec. 31, 2009 3 12 $21917 % 8912 $(1,835) 3(29) $26  $29,003 (a)

(@) Includes total The Bank of New York Mellon Carporation conunon shareholders’ equity of $25,264 million at Dec. 31. 2008, and

$28,977 million at Dec. 31, 2009.

(b} Includes $3,348 million (after tax) related to OTT{ that was veclassified 1o net securities gains {losses) on the income statement,
(c) Comprehensive income attributable 1o The Bank of New York Melton Corporation shareholders totaled $3.158 million for the year

ended Dec. 31, 2009

g4 BNY Mellon
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Notes to Consaolidated Financial Statements

Note 1—Summary of significant accounting
and reporting policies

Basis of Presentafion

The accounting and financial reporting policies of
BNY Mellon, a globat financial services company,
conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and prevailing industry
practices.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments
necessary for a fair presentation of finaucial position,
results of operations and cash. flows for the annual
periods have been made. Certain other immaterial
reclassifications have been made to prior years to
place them on a basis comparable with current period
presentation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates based upon assumptions about future
economic and market conditions which affect reported
amounts and related disclosures in our financial
statements. Although our current estimates
contemplate current conditions and how we expect
them to change in the future, it is reasonably possible
that actual conditions could be worse than anticipated
in those estimates, which could materially affect our
results of operations and financial condition. Amounts
subject to estimates are items such as the allowance
for loan losses and lending-related commitments,
goodwill and intangible assets, pension accounting,
the fair value of financial instruments and other-than-
temporary impairments. Among other effects, such
changes in estimates could result in tuture
impairments of investment securities, goodwill and
intangible assets and establishment of allowances for
Joan losses and lending-related commitments as well
as increased pension and post-retitement expense.

Organization of our businesses

Tn 2011, BNY Mellon realigned its internal reporting
structure and business presentation to focus on ils two
principal businesses, Investment Management and
Investment Services. The realignment reflects
management’s current approach to assessing
performance and. decisions regarding resource
allocations. Investment Management includes the
former Asset Management and Wealth Management
businesses. Investment Services includes the former
Asset Servicing, Tssuer Services and Clearing Services

businesses, and the Cash Management business
previously included in the Treasury Services business.
The credit-refated activities previously included in the
Treasury Services business, are now included in the
Other segment. Fec revenue classifications in the
income statement were changed in 2011 to reflect thig
realignment as follows:

e Investment management and performance fees
consist of the former asset and wealth
management fee revenue; and

¢ Investment services fees consist of the former
securities servicing fees, including asset
servicing, issuer services, clearing services, as
well as treasury services fee revenue,

All prior periods were reclassified. The
reclassifications did not affect the results of
operations.

Equity method investments

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of BN'Y Mellon and its subsidiaries. Hquity
investments of less than a majority but at least 20%
ownership are accounted for by the equily method and
classified as other assets. Earnings on these
investments are reflected in fee and other revenue as
investment services fees or investment inconie, as
appropriate, in the petiod earned. Our most significant
equity method investments are:

Equity method investnients at Pee. 31, 2011

(dollars ir millions) Percentage Ownership  Book Value
CIBC Mellon 50.0% 577
Wing Hang 20.4% $399
Siguler Guff 20.0% $267
ConvergEx 33.2% 4152
West LB Joird Venture 50.0% $ 91

Acquired businesses

The income statement and balance sheet include
results of acquired businesses accounted for under the
acquisition method of accounting pursuant to ASC
805—Business Combinations and equity investments
from the dates of acquisition. For acquisitions prior to
Tan. 1, 2009, we recorded any contingent purchase
payments when the amounts were resolved and
became payable. For acquisitions occurring after Dec.
31, 2008, contingent purchase consideration was
measured at its fair value and recorded on the
purchase date.

RFJIN_EX 25 00000480 o5
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued

FParent financial statements

"The Parent financial statements in Note 20 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements include
the accounts of the Parent; those of a wholly owned
financing subsidiary that functions as a financing
entity for BN'Y Mellon and its subsidiaries by issuing
commercial paper and other debt guaranteed by BNY
Mellon; and MIPA, LIC, a single-member Hmited
liability company, created to hold and administer
corporate owned life insurance. Financial data for the
Parent, the financing subsidiary and the single-
member Bmited liahility company are combined for
financial reporting purposes because of the limited
function of these entities and the unconditional
gnarantee by BN'Y Mellon of their obligations.

Variable intevest entities

We consider the underlying facts and circumstaunces
of individual transactions when assessing whether or
not an entity is a potential variable interest entity
(“VIE™). VIEs are entitics that do not have sufficient
equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities
without additional financial support, or in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a
controlling financial interest. BN'Y Mellon applies
ASC 810 to its mutual funds, hedge funds, private
equity funds, collective investment funds and real
estate investment trusts, which were determined to be
ViEs. Generally, the company is deemed to be the
primary beneficiary and thus required to consolidate a
VIE, if BN'Y Mellon has a variable interest (or
combination of variable interests) that, based on a
quantitative analysis, will absorb a majority of the
VIE's expected losses, that will receive a majority of
the VIE’s expected residual returns, or both. A
“yariable interest” is a contractual, ownership or other
interest that changes with changes in the fair value of
the VIE’s net assets. “Bxpected losses” and “expected
residual returns” are measures of varjability in the
expected cash flows of a VIE.

RNY Metlon’s other VIEs are evaluated under the
guidance included in ASU 2009-17. These other VIEs
inclade securitization trusts, which are no longer
considered qualifying special purpose entities
(“QSPEs”), and CLOs, in which BNY Mellon serves
as the investment manager. In addition, we provide
trust and custody services for a fee to entities
sponsored by other corporations in which we have no
other interest. The company must detexmine whethey
or not its variable interests in these VIEs, based on
qualitative analysis, provide BNY Mellon with a
controlling financial interest i the VIE. The an alysis
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includes an assessment of the characteristics of the
VIE. The Company is considered to have a controlling
Gnancial interest in the VIE, which would require
consolidation of the VIE, if it has the following
characteristics: (1) the power to direct the activities
that most significantly impact the VIE's economic
performance; and (2) the obligation to absorb fosses or
the right to receive benefits from the VIE! that could
potentially be significant to the VIE.

Nature of operations

BNY Mellon is a global leader in providing a broad
range of financial products and services in domestic
and international markets. Through our two principal
businesses, Investment Management and Investment
Services, we serve the following major classes of
customers—institutions, corporations, and high net
worth individuals. For institutions and corporations,
we provide the following services:

investment management;

trust and custody;

foreign exchange,

fund adiministration;

securitics lending;

depositary 1eceipts;

corporate trust;

global payment/cash management; and
banking services.

4 ¢ O & & & & 2 W

For individuals, we provide mutual funds, separate
accounts, wealth management and private banking
services. BNY Mellon's investment management
businesses provide investment products in many asset
classes and investment styles on a global basis.

Trading account securities, available-for-sale
secyrities, and held-to-maturity securities

Securities ave accounted for under ASC 320
Investments—Debt and Equity Securities. Securities
are generally classified in the trading,
available-for-sale investment or the held-to-maturity
nvestment securities portfolios when they are
purchased. Securities are classified as trading
securities when our intention is to resell. Securities are
classified as available-for-sale secarities when we
intend to hold the securities for an indefinite period of
time or when the secwrities may be used for tactical
asset/liability purposes and may be sold from tine to
time to effectively manage inferest rate exposure,
prepayment risk and liquidity needs. Securities are
classified as held-to-niaturity securities when we
intend to hold them until maturity. Seed capital
investments are classified as other assets or

RFJN_EX 25_ 00000102
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Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

available-for-sale securities, depending on the nature
of the investment and management’s intent.

Trading securities are stated at fair value. Trading
revenue includes both realized and unrealized gains
and losses. The liability incurred on short-sale
transactions, representing the obligation to deliver
securities, is included in trading liabilities at fair
value.

Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value.
The difference between fair value and amortized cost
representing unnealized gains or losses on assets
classified as available-for-sale, are recorded net of tax
as an addition to or deduction from other
comprehensive income (“OCI"), unless a security is
deemed to have an other-than-temporary impairment
(“OTTI™). Gains and losses on sales of
available-for-sale securities are reported in the income
staternent, The cost of debt and equity securities sold
is determined on a specific identification and average
cost method, respectively. Unrealized gains and losses
on seed capital investments classified as other assets
are recorded in investment income. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at cost,

Tncome on securities purchased is adjusted for
amortization of premium and accretion of discount on
a level yield basis.

We routinely conduct periodic reviews to identify and
evaluate each investment security to determine
whether OTTL has occurred. We examine various
factors when determining whether an inpairment,
representing the fair valoe of a security being below
its amortized cost, is other than temporary. The
following are examples of factors that BNY Mellon
considers:

s The length of time and the extent to which the
fair value has been less than the amortized cost
basis;

e Whether management has an intent to sell the
security;

¢ Whether the decline in fair value is attributable
to specific adverse conditions affecting a
particular investment;

¢ Whether the decline in fair value is attributable
to specific conditions, such as conditions in an
industry or in a geographic area,

s  Whether a debt security has been downgraded
by a rating agency:

o  Whether a debt security exhibits cash flow
deterioration; and

e For cach non-agency RMBS, we compare the
remaining credit enhancement that protects the
individual security from losses against the
projected losses of principal and/or interest
expected to come from the underlying mortgage
collateral, to determine whether such credit
losses might directly impact the relevant
security.

The determination of whether a credit loss exists is
based on best estimates of the present value of cash
flows to be collected from the debt security.
Generally, cash flows are discounted at the effective
interest rate implicit in the debt security at the time of
acquisition. For debt securities that are beneficial
interests in securitized financial assets and are not
high credit quality, ASC 325 provides that cash flows
be discounted at the current yield used to accrete the
beneficial interest.

The credit component of an OTTI of a debt security is
recoghized in earnings and the non-credit component
is recognized in OCT when we do not intend to sell the
security and it is more likely than not that BNY
Mellon will not be required to sell the security prior to
TecoOvery.

For held-to-maturity debt securities, the amount of
OTTI recorded in OCI for the non-credit portion of
previous OTT1is amortized prospectively, as an
increase to the carrying amount of the security, over
the remaining life of the sccurity on the basis of the
timing of future estimated cash flows of the securities.
Tn order not to be required to recognize the non-credit
component of an OTTTin earnings, management is
required to assert that it does not have the intent to sell
the security and that it is more likely than not it will
not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost
basis.

If we intend to sell the security or it is more likely
than not that BN'Y Mellon will be required to sell the
security prior fo recovery, the non-ce dit component
of OTTI is recognized in earnings and subsequently
accreted to interest income on an effective yield basis
over the life of the security.

The accounting policies for the determination of the
fair value of financial instuments and OTTT have
been identified as “critical accounting estimates”™ as
they require us to make numerous assumplions based
on available market data. See Note 5 of the Notes to
Consolidated Pinancial Statements for these
disclosures.

REIN_EX 25 09001 %on 7
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Loans and leases

}.oans are reported net of any unearned discount. Loan
origination and upfront commitment fees, as well as
certain direct Loan origination and commifment costs,
are deferred and amortized as a yield adjustment over
the lives of the related loans. Deferred fees and costs
are petted against outstanding loan balances. Loans
held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market
value.

Unearned revenue on direct financing leases is
accreted over the lives of the leases in decreasing
amounts to provide a constant rate of return on the net
investment in the leases. Revenue on leveraged leases
is recognized on a basis to achieve a constant yield on
the outstanding investment in the Jease, net of the
related deferred tax liability, m the years in which the
net investment is positive. Gains and losses on
residual values of leased equipment sold are included
in investment income. Considering the nature of these
Jeases and the number of significant assumptions,
there is risk associated with the income recognition on
these leases should any of the assumptions change
materially in foture periods.

Nonperforming assets

Commercial loans are placed on nonaccrual status
when prineipal or interest is past due 90 days or more,
or when there is reasonable doubi that interest or
principal will be collected.

When a first lien residential mortgage loan reaches 90
days delinquent, it is subject to an impairment fest and
may be placed on nonaccraal status. At 180 days
delinquent, the loan is subject to further impairment
testing. The Joan will yemain on accrual status if the
realizable value of the collateral exceeds the unpaid
principal balance plus accrued interest. If the loan is
impaired, a charge-off is taken and the loan is placed
on nonaccrual status. At 270 days delinquent, all first
lien mortgages are placed on nonaccrual status.
Second lien mortgages are automatically placed on
nonaccrual status when they reach 90 days delinquent.
When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status,
previously accrued and uncollected interest is reversed
against cugrent period interest revenue. Interest
receipts on nonacerual and impaired loans are
recogunized as interest revenue or are applied to
principal when we believe the ultimate collectability
of principal is in doubt. Nonaccrual loans generally
are testored to an accrual basis when principal and
interest become current.

48 BNY Mellon

A loan is considered to be impaired, as defined by
ASC 310--Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of
a Loan, when it is probable that we will be vnable
collect all principal and interest amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. An impairment allowance is measured on
loans $1 million or greater and which meet the
definition of an impaired loan per ASC 310.

Impaired loans $1 million or greater are required to be
measured based upon the loan’s market price, the
present value of expected future cash flows,
discounted at the loan’s initial effective inlerest rate,
or at fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. If the loan valuation is less than the
recorded value of the loan, an impairment allowance
is established by either an allocation of the allowance
for credit tosses or by a provision for credit losses.
Impairment allowances are not needed when the
recorded investment in an impaired loan is less than
the loan valuation.

Allowance for loan losses and allowance for lending-
related commitments

The allowance for loans losses, shown as a valuation
allowance to Toans, and the allowance for lending-
related commitments are referred to as BNY Mellon’s
allowance for credit exposare. The accounting policy
for the determination of the adequacy of the
allowances has been identified as a “critical
accounting estimate” as it requires us to make
numerous complex and subjective estimates and
assumptions relating to amounts which are inherently
uncertain.

The allowance for loans losses is raintained to absorb
losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance
sheet date based on our judgment. The allowance
deteymination methodology is-designed to provide
procedural discipline in assessing the appropriateness
of the allowance. Credit losses are ¢harged against the
allowance. Recoveries are added to the allowance.

The methodology for determining the allowance for
lending-related commitments considers the same
factors as the allowance for loan losses, as well as an
estimate of the probability of drawdown. In 2011, we
implemented an enhanced methodology for
determining the allowance for credit losses by adding
a qualitative allowance framework. W ithin this
framework, management applics judgment when
assessing internal risk factors and environmental
factors to compute an additional allowance for each
component of the loan portfolio. This change did not
impact the allowance or provision for credit Josses.

RFJIN_EX 25_ 00000104
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (confinued)

The three elements of the allowance for loan losses
and the allowance for lending-related comm itments
include the qualitative allowance framew ork. The
three elements ave:

e an allowance for impaired credits of $1 million
or greater; .

¢ allowance for higher risk-rated credits and
pass-rated credits; and

¢ an allowance for residential mortgage loans.

Our lending is primarily to institutional customers. As
a result, our loans are geperally larger than 81 million.
Therefore, the first element, impaired credits, is based
on individual analysis of all impaired loans of

$1 million or greater. The allowance is measured by
the difference between the recorded value of impaired
loans and their impaired value. Jmpaired value is
either the present value of the expected future cash
flows from the borrower, the market value of the loan,
or the fair vatue of the collateral.

The second element, higher risk-rated credits and
pass-rated credits, is based on our probable loss
model, All borrowers are assigned to pools based on
their credit ratings. The probable loss inherent in each
Joan in a pool incorporates the borrower’s credit
rating, loss given default rating and maturity. The loss
given default incorporates a recovery expectation. The
borrower’s probability of default is derived from the
associated credit rating. Borrower ratings are
seviewed at least annually and are periodically
mapped to third-party databases, including rating
agency and default and recovery databases, to ensure
ongoing consistency and validity. Higher risk-rated
credits are reviewed quarterly. Commercial loans over
%1 million are individually analyzed before being
assigned a credit rating. We also apply this technique
to our Jease financing and wealth management
porifolios.

The third element, the allowance for residential
mortgage loans, is determined by segregating six
mortgage pools into delinquency periods ranging from
current through foreclosure. Bach of these
delinquency periods is assigned a probability of
default. A specific loss given default based on a
combination of external loss data from third-party
databases and internal loss history is assigned for each
mortgage pool. For each pool, the inherent loss is
calculated using the above factors. The resulting
probable loss factor is applied against the loan balance
1o determine the allowance held for each pool.

The gualitative framework is used to determine an
additional allowance for each portfolio based on the
factors below:

Internal risk factors:

s Nop-performing loans to total non-margin loans;

o Criticized assets to total Joans and lending-
related commiiments;

# Ratings volatility;

s Dorrower concentration; and

¢ Significant concentration in high-risk indusiry.

Fnvironmental visk factors:

e U.S. non-investment grade default rate;
e Unemployment rate; and
e Change in real GDP (quarter-over-quarter).

"The allocation of the prior period allowance for loan
losses and allowance for lending-related commitments
has been restated to reflect the implementation of the
qualitative allowance framework. The allocation of
allowance for credit losses is inherently judgmental,
and the entire allowance for credit losses is available
1o absorb credit losses regardless of the nature of the
loss. ~

Premises and equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the owned asset and, for leasehold improvements,
over the lesser of the remaining term of the leased
facility or the estimated economic life of the
improvement. For owned and capitalized assets,
estimated useful lives range from two to 40 yeass.
Maintenance and repairs are charged o expense as
incurred, while major improvements are capitalized
and amortized to operating expense over their
identified useful lives.

Software

BNY Mellon capitalizes costs relating to acquired
software and iitemal-use software development
projects that provide new or significantly improved
tunctionality. We capitalize projects that are expected
to result i longer-term operational benefits, such 4s
replacement systems or new applications that result in
significantly increased operational efficiencies or
functionality. All other costs incurred in connection
with an internal-use software project are expensed 4$
incurred. Capitalized software is recorded in other
assels.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerts (continued)

Identified intangible assets and goodwill

Identified intangible assets with estimable lives are
amortized in a pattern consistent with the assets’
identifiable cash flows or using a straight-line method
over their remaining estimated benefit periods if the
pattern of cash flows is not estimable. Intangible
assets with estimable lives are reviewed for possible
impairment when events or changed circumstances
may affect the underlying basis of the asset. Goodwill
and intangibles with indefinite lives are not amortized,
but are assessed annually for impairment, or more
often if events and circumstances indicate it is more
likely than not they may be impaired. The accounting
policy for valuing and ipairment testing of identified
intangible assets and goodwill has been identified as a
“critical accounting estimate” as it requires us to make
numerous complex and subjective estimates. See Note
7 of the Noies to Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional disclosures related to goodwill and
intangible assets.

Noncontroliing Interests

Noncontrolling interests included in permanent equity
are adjusted for the income or (loss) attributable to the
noncontrolling interest holders and any distributions
to those shareholders. Redeemable noncontrolling
interests are reported as temporary equity. In
accordance with ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities
from Equity, BNY Mellon recognizes changes in the
redemption value of the redeemable noncontrolling
interests as they occur and adjusts the carrying value
to be equal to the redemption value.

Fee revenue

We record investment services fees, mrvestment
management fees, foreign exchange and other trading
revenue, financing-related fees, distribution and
servicing, and other revenue when the services are
provided and earned based on contractual terms, when
amounts are determined and collectibility is
reasonably assured.

Additionally, we recognize revenue from
non-refundable, up-front implementation fees under
outsourcing contracts using a straight-line method,
commencing in the period the ongoing services are
performed through the expected term of the
contractaal relationship. Incremental direct set-up
costs of implementation, up to the related
implementation fee or minimum fee revenue amount,
are deferred and amortized over the same period that
the related implementation fees are recognized. If a
client terminates an outsourcing contract prematurely,
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the unamortized deferred incremental divect set-up
costs and the wnamortized deferred up-front
implementation fees related to that contract are
recognized in the period the contract is terminated.

Performance fees are recognized in the period in
which the performance fees are earned and become
determinable. Performance fees are generally
caleulated as a percentage of the applicable portfolio™s
performance in excess of a benchmark index or a peer
group’s performance. When a portfolio underperforms
its benchmark or fails to generate positive
performance, subsequent years’ performance must
penerally exceed this shortfall prior to fees being
earned. Amounts billable in subsequent years and
which are subject to a clawback if performance
thresholds in those years are not met are not
recognized since the fees are potentially uncollectible.
These fees are recognized when it is determined that
they will be collected. When a multi-year performance
contract provides that fees eaned are billed ratably
over the performance period, only the portion of the
fees earned that are non-refundable are recognized.

Net interest revenye

Revenue on interest-earning assets and expense on
interest-bearing liabilities is recognized based on the
eftective vield of the related financial instrument.

Foreign currency translation

Assets and Habilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to U.S. dollars at the rate of
exchange ou the balance sheet date. Transaction gains
and losses are included in the income stateinent.
Translation gains and losses on investments in foreign
entities with functional currencies that are not the U.S.
dollar are recorded as foreign currency translation
adjustments in other comprehensive tesults. Revenue
and expense transactions are translated at the
applicable daily rate or the weighted average monthly
exchange rate when applying the daily rate is not
practical.

Pension

The measurement date for BNY Mellon™s pension
plans is Dec. 31. Plan assets are deterinined based on
tair value generally representing observable market
prices. The projected benefit obligation is determined
based on the present value of projecied benefit
distributions at an assuned discount rate. The
discount rate utilized is based on the yield of high-
quality corporate bonds available in the marketplace.

RFJN_EX 25_ 00000106

1509



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenrerts (continued)

"The net periodic pension expense or credit includes
service costs, interest costs based on an assumed
discount rate, an expected return on plan assets based
on an actuarially derived market-related value and
amortization of prior years’ actuarial gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses include the impact of plan
amendments, gains or losses related to changes in the
amount of the projected benefit obligation or plan
assets resulting from experience different from the
assumed rate of return, changes in the discount rate or
other assumptions, To the extent an actuarial gain or
loss exceeds 10 percent of the greater of the projected
benefit obligation or the marketrelated value of plan
assets, the excess is recognized over the future sexvice
periods of active employees.

Our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on anticipated returns for each asset class.
Anticipated returns are weighted for the expected
allocation for each asset class and are based on
forecasts for prospective retumns in the equity and
fixed income markets, which should track the long-
term historical retarns for these markets. We also
consider the growth outlook for U.S. and global
economies, as well as current and prospective interest
rates.

The market-related value utilized to determine the
expected return on plan assets is based on the fair
value of plan assets adjusted for the difference
between expected returns and actual performance of
plan assets. The difference between actual experience
and expected returns on plan assets is included as an
adjustment in the market-related salue over a five-
year peartod.

BNY Mellon's accounting policy regarding pensions
hias been identified as a “critical accounting estimate”
as itis regarded to be critical 1o the presentation of our
financial statements since it requires management 10
malke numerous complex and subjective assumptions
relating to amounts which are inherently uncertain,
See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional disclosures related to
pensions.

Severance

BNY Mellon provides separation benefits for U.S.-
hased employees through The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation Supplemental Unemployment
Benefit Plan. These benefits are provided to eligible
employees separated from their jobs for business
reasons not related to individual performance. Basic

separation benefits are generally based on the
employee’s years of continuous benefited service.
Severance for employees based ontside of the U.S is
determined in accordance with local agreements and
legal requirements. Separation expense is recorded
when management commits to an action that will
result in separation and the anxount of the liability can
be reasonably estimated.

{rcome faxes

We record current tax liabifities or assets tirough
charges or credits to the current iax provision for the
estimated taxes payable or yefundable for the current
year. Defesred tax assets and liabilities are recorded
for future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered of seitled. A deferred tax
valuation allowance is established if it is more likely
than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. A tax position that fails to meet a
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold will result
in either reduction of current or deferred tax assets,
and/or recording of cutrent or deferred tax liabilities.
Interest and penalties related to income taxes are
recorded as income tax expense,

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative contracts, such as futures contracts,
forwards, interest rate swaps, foreign currency swaps
and options and similar products u sed in trading
activitics are recorded at fair value. Gains and losses
are included in foreign exchange and other trading
revenue in fee and other revenue, Unrealized gains are
recognized as trading assets and unrealized losses are
recognized as trading labilities, after taking into
consideration master netting agreements.

We enter into various derivative financial instruments
for non-trading purposes primarily as part of our asset/
liability management (*ALM?) process. These
derivatives are designated as fair value aud cash flow
hedges of certain assets and ligbilities when we enter
into the derivative contracts. Gains and losses
associated with fair value hedges are recorded in
income as well as any change in the value of the
related hedged item associated with the designated
risks being hedged. Gains and Josses on cash flow
hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income,
uittil reclassified into carnings to meet the risks being
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

hedged. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses
related to a hedged net investment in a foreign
operation, net of their tax effect, are recorded with
cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments
within other comprehensive income.

We formally document all relationships between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our
risk-management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions.

We formally assess, both at the hedge’s inception and
on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective and
whether those derivatives are expected to remain
highly effective in future periods. We evaluate
ineffectivencss i terms of amounts that could impact
a hedge’s ability to qualify for hedge accounting and
the risk that the hedge could result in more than a de
minimis amount of ineffectiveness. At inception, the
potential causes of ineffectiveness related to each of
our hedges is assessed to determine if we can expect
the hedge to be highly effective over the life of the
transaction and to determine the method for
evaluating effectiveness on an ongoing basis.

Recognizing that changes in the value of derivatives
used for hedging or the value of hedged items could
result in significant ineffectiveness, we have processes
in place that are designed to identify and evalvate
such changes when they occur, Quartexly, we perform
a quantitative effectiveness assesspient and record any
ineffectiveness in current earnings.

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when
we determine that a derivative is no longer an
effective hedge, the derivative expires, is sold, or
management discontinues the derivative’s hedge
designation. Subsequent gains and losses on these
derivatives are included in foreign exchange and other
trading revenue. For discontinued fair valve hedges,
the accumulated gain or loss on the hedged iten is
amortized on a yield basis over the remaining life of
the hedged item. Accumulated gains and losses, net of
tax effect, from discontinued cash flow hedges are
reclassified from other comprehensive income and
recognized in current earnings in other revenue upon
receipt of the hedged cash flow.

The accounting policy for the determination of the fair
value of derivative financial instruments has been
identified as a “critical accounting estimate’ as it
requites us to make numerous assumptions based on
the available market data. See Note 25 of the Notes to

102 BNY Mellon

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
disclosures related to derivative financial instruments
disclosures.

Statement of cash flows

We have defined cash as cash and due from banks.
Cash flows from hedging activities are classified in
the same category as the items hedged.

Siock aptions

Compensation expense is recognized. in the income
statement, on a straight-line basis, over the applicable
vesting period, for all share-based payments.

Certain of our stock compensation grants vest when
the employee retires. ASC 718 requires the
campletion of expensing of new grants with this
feature by the first date the employee is eligible to
retire. For grants prior to Jan. 1, 2006, we will
continue to expense them over their stated vesting
period.

Note 2~-Accounting changes and new
accounting guidance

ASU 2011-02—A Creditor’s Derermination of
Whether a Restructuring is a Troubled Debt
Restructuring

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-02,%“A
Creditor’s Determination of Whether a Restructuing
is a Troubled Debt Restructuring.” This ASU
provided clarifying guidance for creditors when
determining whether they granted concessions and
whether the debtor is experiencing financial difficulty.
For purposes of identifying and disclosing roubled
debt restructurings (“TDRs"), this ASU was effective
for interim and annual periods beginning after

June 15, 2011 and was applied retrospectively to
TDRs occurring on or after Jan. 1, 2011, Furthermore,
this ASU specified that the absence of a market rate
for a loan with risks similar to the restructured loan 1s
an indicator of a TDR, but not a detesminative factor,
and that the assessment should consider all aspects of
the restructuring. For purposes of measuting
impairment of a receivable restructured i a TDR, the
guidance in this ASU was applied prospectively for
interinl and atmual periods beginning after June 15,
2011, This ASU also required an entity to disclose the
information required by ASU 2010-20. See Note 6 of
the Notes to Consolidated Pinancial Stalements for
these disclosures.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ASU 201 0-6-Improving Disclosures About Fair
Value Measurements

In Yanuary 2010, the FASB 1ssued ASTU 2010-6,
“Toproving Disclosures about Fair Value
Measurements.” This amended ASC 820 to clarify
existing requirements regarding disclosures of nputs
and valuation techniques and levels of disaggregation.
Effective March 31, 2011, thisa ASU required new
disclosures about Level 3 purchases, sales, issuances
and settlements in the roll-forward activity for fair
value measurements. This ASU is required in interim
and anmual financial statements. See Note 22 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for these
disclosures.

ASU 2010-29--Disclosure of Supplementary Pro
Forma Information for Business Cambinarions

Tn December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29,
“Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma Information
for Business Combinations.” This ASU specified that
if a public entity presents comparative financial
statements, the entity would disclose revenue and
earnings of the combined entity as though the business
combination(s) that occurred during the current year
had occurted as of the beginning of the comparable
prior annual reporting period only. This ASU also
expanded the supplemental pro forma disclosures
under Topic 805 to include a description of the nature
and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma
adjustoents directly attributable to the business
combination. The ASU was effective prospectively
for business combinations consummated on or after
Jan. 1,2011.

Adopted in 2010

ASUT 2009-17-Improvements to Financial Reporting
by Enterprises Involved with Variable Intevest Entities

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17
“Improvements to Financial Reporting by Entitics
Tivolved with Variable Interest Entities.” This ASU
amended ASC 810 to require ongoing assessments to
determine whether an entity is a ¥IE and whether an
enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE. This
ASU also amended the guidance for determining
which enterprise, if any, is the primary beneficiary of
a VIE by requiring the enterprise to initially perform a
qualitative analysis to determine if the enterpri se's
variable interest or interests give it a controlling
financial imterest. Consolidation is based on a
company’s ability to direct the activities of the entity
that most significantly impact the entity’s economic

performance. If a company has control and the right to
receive benefits or the obligation to absorh losses
which could potentially be significant to the VIE, then
consolidation is required. This ASU was effective Jan.
1, 2010, and primarily impacted oux Investment
Management businesses.

This ASU does not change the economic risk related
to these businesses and therefore, BNY Mellon’s
computation of economic capital required by our
businesses did not change.

This statement also required additional disclosures
about an enterprise’s involverment in a VIE, including
the requirement for sponsors of a VIE to disclose
information even if they do not hold a significant
variable interest in the VIE.

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-10,
“Amendments for Certain Investment Funds™ which
deferred the requirements of ASU 2009-17 for asset
managers’ interests in entities that apply the
specialized accounting goidance for investment
companies ot that have the attributes of investment
companies and asset managers’ interests in money
market funds. This amendment was effective Jan. 1,
2010.

Note 3—Acquisitions and dispositions

We sometimes structure our acquisitions with both an
initial payment and later contingent payments tied to
post-closing revenue or income growth. For
acquisitions completed prior to Jan. 1, 2009, we
record the fair value of contingent payments as an
additional cost of the entity acquired in the period that
the payment becomes probable. For acquisitions
completed after Jan. 1, 2009, subsequent changes m,
the fair value of a contingent consideration liability
will be recorded through the income statement.
Contingent payments totaled $17 million in 2011.

At Drec. 31, 2011, we were potentially obligated to
pay additional consideration which, using reasonable
assumptions for the performance of the acquired
companies and joint ventures based on contractual
agreements, could range from $3 million to $33
million over the next 3 years.

Acquasitions in 2011

On July 1, 2011, BNY Mellon acquired the wealth
management operations of Chicago-based Talon Asset
Management (“Talon™) for cash of $11 million, We
are obligated to pay, upon occursence of certain
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Dear Fellow Shareholders

2011 was a difficult year. Revenues were less than expected and expenses were too high as we dealt
with a challenging environment. Still, we continued to develop and execute our plans to improve our
oparating rargins, differentiate our products, and ensure we continue to contribute in meaningful
ways to the smooth and efficient functioning of the global capital markets.

During 2011, we made significant progress on a number of fronts:
» achieved above-median revenue growth compared with our peers;

»  continued o receive top rankings for client satisfaction and industry recognition for investment
performance;

= further strengthencd our balance sheet in terms of liquidity, asset guality and capital. At year end,
our Basel | Tier 1 commion equity ratio was 13.4 percent};

+ achieved superior returns versus U.S. banking peers on our tangible and regulatory capital;

+  implemented a series of efficiency initiatives to reduce our cost base and manage through the
curtent environmerd, with clear evidence of progress on expenses in our fourth-quarter results;

»  successfully completed the sale of our non-core Shareowner Services business; and
»  repurchased approximately 35 million shares and raised the quarterly dividend by 44 percent.

But our stock price performance has been unacceptable. We know we must improve our sharcholder
return. And | am confident that we will, given the strength of our business model and our plans to
enhance revenue growth and drive operational excellence.

Our Business Model
To appreciate our potential and comprehend the nature of our challenges, it's necessary to
understand what we do.

« We are an investments company, with significant scale in virtually all of our businesses and more
expettise in managing and servicing investments than any other firm. We help clients at every
stage of the investment life cycle — whether they are looking to create, trade or hold assets, or
need help managing, distributing or restructuring them. The breadth of our offerings creates
significant opportunities for us to build broader and deepsr client relationships.

»  Ourmodel is primarily fee-basad, with little credit risk, A large percentage of our ravenue —
78 percent — cames from recurring fees, which is above our pear group median, That has helpad
us maintain a strong, highly liquid balance sheet, with a solid capital position and strong credit
ratings.

«  Our model generates capital rapidly. It also generates significant levels of earnings. Much of
these earnings, subject to regulatory approval, can be returned to you in the form of dividends
and share repurchases.

+  We benefit from the long-term trends of organic growth in financial assets and the globalization
of the financial markets.

Our cornpany has been designated by international regulators as one of the 29 Global Systemically
Important Financial Institutions (G-SIFls). This designation recognizes our fundamental importance
to the health and operation of the global capital markets. The designation also carries with it an
implicit responsibility to maintain the highest standards of excellence, and we take that responsibility
seriously, In all that we undertake, we are committed to carefully considering the impact of our
actions on our clients and the markets.
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Let me discuss our 2011 performance;

Investment Services - Most of the key drivers of our lnvestment Services businesses showed
significant improvement over 2010, Growth of assets under custody and administration outpaced our
closest trust and custody peers, up 3 percant to $25.8 trillion, Average active clearing accounts grew
11 percent, average collateral management balances were up 13 percent and the number of sponsered
depositary receipt programs increased 2 percent. Average total Investment Services deposits grew
32 percent, again outpacing peers. Total debt serviced, however, declined 2 percent, reflecting the
lack of structured debt issuance and the slow recovery of the debt capital markets,

We continued to expand our capabilities in 2011, particularly in the areas of asset servicing, clearing,
collateral management and alternative investment services. In a year in which we received industry
recognition for our innovative use of technology, we intraduced new tools to increase investment
transparency and released iPad® apps to allow client access to information and reporting.

Investment Management - Our overall Investment Management businesses maintained focus on
delivering strong investiment performance and outstanding wealth management capabilities for our
clients. Our long-term organic flows continued to grow, with assets under management (AUM) up

& percent to arecord level of $1.26 trillion, reflecting a 130 percent increase in net AUM flows in 2011,
which significantly outpaced that of our peers.

We made progress inlaying a foundation to optimize our multi-boutique model by building eut our
investment, distribution and infrasiructure capabilities, with a particular focus on Asia Pacific. We
also continued to develop distinctive investment capabilities, such as our liability-driven investment
strategies, Wealth Management expanded Its footprint, entering Chicago, the third-largest U.S,
wealth market, through the acquisition of the astablished operations of one of the region’s premier
independent investment managers.

Enhancing Revenue Growth
To make us more resilient to market dynamics, we have a number of strategies in place to increase
client assets under management, custody and administration,

*  Deepening client relationships ~ There is tremendous room to increase the value we deliver to
our clients and, thereby, earn more of their business. Over the past year, we have refined our
global client management model to better align our resources with our clients' needs.

» Increasing our capabilities - In Investment Services, we are collaborating across our businesses
te develop mare sophisticated and innovative multi-product solutions for our clients. In
Investment Management, we see opportunities to expand our global credit investment
capabilities; advance cur market position in absolute return, asset allocation and alternative
investment solutions; and broaden and strengthen our global distribution, We also are looking
to further expand our Wealth Management franchise, continuing a long tradition of helping our
clients weather market cycles,

*  Building a global presence - To maximize our returns in a prudent and focused way, we ate
continuing to build upon our global footprint in countries and regions with the strongest revenue
potential for our company. in 2011, for example, our investment in Germany enabled us to achieve
our goal of becoming the No. 1 custody provider in that country.
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Driving Operational Excellence

Operational excellence refers to delivering the highest service quality, increasing our eperating
margins through the use of technology and taking risk out of our company and the financial system.
Those goals are complementary and mutually reinforcing, not mutually exclusive. We are finding
apportunities to improve the client experience while reducing the potential for errors and reducing
our costs.

For instance, we are making investments in our technology infrastructure that will help improve ease
of use for clients, allow us to introduce new products more guickly and lower technology costs, We
are also utilizing cloud technology to distribute applications in a virtual environment, effectively
eliminating proprietary hardware and software,

Through these and other operational excellence activities, we expect to realize roughly $650 million
to $700 million in expense savings by 2015, with substantial benefits in the intervening years.

Deplaying Dur Capital

Our business model generated approximately $2.8 billion worth of capital in 2011, Our ability to
rapidly generate capital is enabling us to invest in our businesses, strengthen our balance sheet and,
subject to regulatory approval, return capital to our shareholders in the form of dividands and share
buybacks. Acquisitions remain a lesser priority in the near term.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Over the last few years, we have adopted fairly ambitious corporate sccial responsibility geals related
to supporting our communities, developing our people and promoting environmental sustainability. In
a shott time, we have accomplished many of these goals and continue to push ourselves to do more.

This year, we donated $33.6 million to our communities around the world through philanthropic
grants, sponsorships, employee giving and company matching donations, The number of employee
teamns involved in voluntesring and fundraising has mote than tripled since the launch of our
Community Partnership program three vears age, with employees contributing more than 140,000
hours. We call our strategic approach to helping people in need “Powering Potential.” We have
extended that program to help returning military personnel, providing support in the areas of critical
basic needs, wotkforce skills and career development. We also have a special focus on helping at-risk
youth. Our support for youth is producing significantly higher graduation rates and employment and
reduced homelessness, This program was honered in 2011 with awatds in Boston, London, New York
and Pittsburgh. All of this good work will continue.

Looking Ahead

We are well aware of the headwinds we face. We have entered a period in which revenue growth will
be more difficult to achieve than in, perhaps, any period over the past 20 years, Ecoromies globally
remain sluggish, with a general lack of confidence and uncertainty inhibiting growth. This is reflected
in high levels of market volatility and continued deleveraging of major market participants. Interest
rates remain persistently low, limiting our ability to earn net interest income from client deposits.

While net interest income and strong global capital markets are important drivers of our
performance, they are not the only drivers. How well we service our clients, the strength of client
relationships, and our ability fo innovate and drive operationat excellence will have a major impact
on our performance. We are positioned to perform well in each of these areas. In 2012, we expect
our net savings from operational excellance initiatives to range from $240 million to $260 million,
toward our goal of achieving net savings of approximately $650 million to $700 million by 2015,
These savings will help us achieve operating leverage, even in a slow-growth environment. And
we expect our revenues to grow as we execule our strategies.
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The financial services industry, in general, has faced a dramatic increase in legal and regulatory
scrutiny, actions and costs, and cur company is no exception. The foreign exchange litigation has
received a substantial amount of attention. With our reputation and integrity being challenged, we
have undertaken an aggressive outreach program to our clients, media, regulators and interested
patties ta ensure they know the facts. We have also been listening to our clients and developing new
foreign exchange options to meet their evolving needs, including an innovative defined spread pricing
option that is positioned to set a new standard, We realize we must innovate to stay competitive as a
provider in this space, and we will,

Making Our Company Even Greater

lam honored to lead BNY Mellon. | have tremendous belief in the potential of our company and
pride in its capacity to navigate through challenging times, operate with integrity and remain
focused onour clients’ success. My sole focus is to make this great compary even greater for all
of our constituents — clients, employees and you, aur sharcholders.

I also have considerable confidence in the 49,000 professionals who work as a unified global team,
each contributing te the diversity of thought, ideas and talents that help our clients succeed. | thank
them for all they do avery day for our clients, company, colleagues and communities.

I also thank our board of directors for its wise counsel and support, and for entrusting the Executive
Committee and me with leading this company forward. 1 offer my special thanks to John Surma, who
will not stand for re-election to our board after eight years of service, for his significant contributions
and service.

I strongly believe in cur ability to deliver great investment management advice and investment
services fo our clients, as well as consistent earnings per share growth and attractive returns to you,
our shareholders,

Jecney x%w%

Gerald L. Hassell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Financial Summary

(dollar armaunts in mitlions, except per comimon share

amaounts and unless otherwise noled) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 {n}
Year ¢nded Dec. 31
Fee revenne $ 11,498 $ 10,697 $ 10,108 $ 12,342 $ 9,25
Net securities gains (losses) 48 27 (5,369) (1,628) (2013
Iacome of consolidated investment management funds 200 226 - - -
Net interest revenue 2,984 2925 2,915 2,859 2,245
Total revenne 14,730 13,878 7,654 13,573 11,298
Provision for credit losses 1 11 332 104 (i1)
Noninterest expense 151,112 10,170 9,530 11,523 8,094
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 3,617 3,694 (2.208) 1,946 3,215
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,048 1.047 {1,395) 491 987
Net income {loss) from continuing operations 2,569 2,647 (813 1455 2,228
Net income (loss) from diseontinued operations - (66) {270) 14 10
fixtraordinary (loss) on consolidation of commercial paper
conduits, net of tax - - ~ (20) (150
Met dncome (1oss) 2,569 2,581 (1,083) 1,443 2,058
Net fincome) attiibutable to noncontrolling interests 83 (63) {13 24 [€8%)]
Redemption charge and preferced dividends - - (283 (33) -
Net incorne ¢loss) applicable to common shareholders of The
Bank of New York Mellon Corporation $ 2,516 § 2518 $ (1,367) 3 1386 $ 2,039
Earnings per diluted comimon share applicable to common
shareholders of The Baunk of New York Mellon orporation:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations $  2.03 $ 21 $ 093 3 1.2 § 235
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations " {0.05) {0.23) 0.01 0,01
Extracrdinary (loss), net of lax - - (0.02) (0.19)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ 203 $ 205¢h § (LIo)(g $  1.20 % 217
Atee. 31
Interest-carning assets §259,231 $180,541 $1061,537 $184,591 $144,882
Assets of operations 313,919 232,493 212224 237,512 197,656
Total assets 325,266 247,259 212,224 237,512 197,656
Deposits 219,004 145,339 135,050 159,673 118,125
Long-texmn debt 19,933 16,517 17.234 15865 16,873
Preferred (Series B) stock - - 2,786 -
Total The Bapk of New Y ork Mellon Corporation common
shareholders’ equity 33,417 32,354 28,977 25,2064 20403
AtDec. 31
Assets under mapagement. (in billions) & 1,260 § 1,172 § 1,115 3 928 $ 1A
Assets under custody and administration (in trillions) 258 25.0 223 202 231
Cross-border assels (in tillions) 97 9.2 8.8 7.5 10.0
Market valne of securities o loan (i billions) (d) 269 278 247 326 033

{a} Results for 2007 inchude six months of BNY Mellon and six months of le gacy The Bank of New York Company, fnc.

(b} Does not foor due to rounding.

(¢} Diluted earnings per common share for 2009 was calculated wsing average basic shares. Adding back the dilutive shares wonld be

anti-difutive.

{d) Represents the securities on loan menaged by the lnvestinent Services husiness.

2 BNY Mellon
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Financial Summary (continued)

(doliar amounts in millions, except per common shave

cmounts and unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 (e}
Met income basis:
Return on common equity (b) 7.5% 31% N/M 5.0% 11.0%
Return on tangible common equity (&) 22.6 2B.6 N/M 20.7 283
Return on average assets (&) 0.86 1.06 N/M 0.67 1.4%
Continuing operations basis:
siurn on comumon equity (bi(e) 1.5% 8.3% N/M 5.0% 10.9%
Non-GAAP adjusied (b)(c) 8.6 9.5 9.2% 14,2 13.6
Return on tangible common equity -~ Non-GAAP (b)(c) 22.6 263 N/M 205 29.2
Not-GAAP adjusted (b)(c) 23.3 213 316 48.7 33.6
Pre-iax operating roargin (¢) 25 27 N/M 14 28
Non-GAAP adjusted (¢} 28 30 31 39 36
Fee tevenue as a percentage of total revenue excluding net
securities gains (losses) 78 78 78 79 80
Fee revenue per employee (based on average
headeount) (in thousands) $ 237 % 241 § 241 $ 290 ) 201
Percentage of non-U.8, revenue (d) 37% 36% 539% (e) 33% (f) 32%
Net interest margin (on fully taxable equivalent basis) 1.36 1.70 1.82 1.89(/) 2.05
Cash dividends per common share $ 048 & 036 § 0.51 § 0.96 $ 0.95
Common dividend payout ratio 24Y% 18% N/M 80% A%
Dividend yield 2.4% 1.2% 1.83% 3.4% 1.9%
Closing common stock price per conumon share $ 1981 $ 3020 8§ 27.97 $ 28.33 $ 4876
Market capitatization (in billions) 24.1 37.5 338 32.5 559
Rook value per common share — GAAP {«) 2762 20.06 23.99 22,00 25.60
Tangible book value per conunon share — Non-GAAP (¢) 10.57 .91 7.90 5.18 8.00
Full-time employees 48,700 48000 42,200 42,500 41,200
Year-end conmon shares ontstanding (in thousands) 1,209,675 1,241,330 1,207,835 1,148,467 1,145,983
Average toal eqnity to average total assets 11.5% 13.1% 13.4% 13.7% 13.6%

Sapital ratios at Dee. 31 {g)
Fstimated Basel 11 Tier | common eqgnity 1atio-

Non-GAAP (e)(h) 7.1% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Basel I Tier 1 common equity torisk-weighted assels

rano-Non-GAAP (¢} 13.4 118 10.5 0.4 7.6
Basel I Tier 1 capital tatio 150 134 12.1 13.2 9.3
Basel 1 Total (Tier 1 plus Tier 2) capital ratio 17.0 16.3 16.0 16.9 132
Basel [ leverage capital rafio 5.2 58 6.5 6.9 6.5
BNY Mellon shareholders’ equity to total assets ratio (¢} 10.3 133 137 1.6 14.9
Tangible common shareholders’ equily to tangible assets

of operations ratio - Non-GAAP (ci 6.4 58 52 3.8 5.2

{a) Results for 2007 inclucde siz months of BNY Mellen cnd six months of legacy The Bank of New York Comparsy, hic.

(by  Caleuiated before the extraordinary losses in 2008 and 2007.

(c) See “Supplementai Information’' beginning on page 66 for a calculation of these ratios.

(d) Includes fee vevenne, net interest revenue and income of consolidated investment mangg ement funds, net of net income attyibutable to
nonconirolling interests,

{e) Excluding investment securities losses, the percentage of non-U.S. fee vevenue vwas 32%.

() Excluding the SILO/LILO charge, the percentage of non-U.S. Fee and net interest reverue was 32% and the net interest margin wis
2.21%.

(g) Includes discontinued operations in 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

(h)  (hir estimated Basel I Tier 1 common equity ralio (Non-GAAP) reflects our current interpretation of the Basel TIT rules, Onr
estimated Basel Il Tier 1 common equity ratie could changa in the future as the U.S. regulatory ngencies implement Basel T oy if onr
hsinesses change.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulits of Operations

Hesulis of Operations

General

In this Annuval Report, references to “our,” “we,” “us.”
“BNY Mellon,” the “Clompany”” and similar terms for
periods on or after July 1, 2007 refer to The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries, and references to “our,” “we,” “us,” the
“Company,” and similar terms prior to July 1, 2007
refer io The Bank of New York Company, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries. The term “Parent” refers to
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation but not
its subsidiaries.

BNY Mellon’s actual results of future operations may
differ from those estimated or anticipated in certain
forward-looking statements contained herein for
reasons which are discussed below and under the
heading “Forward-looking Statemients.” When used in
this Annual Report, words such as “estimate,”
“forecast,” “project,” “anticipate,” “confident,”
“target,” “expect.” “mtend,” “continue,” “seck,”
“believe,” “plan,” “goal,” “could,” “should,” “may,”
“will,” “‘strategy,” “synergies,” “opportunijties,”
“trends,” and words of similar meaning, signify
forward-looking statements in addition to statements
specitically identified as forward-looking statements.

23 4%

Certain business terms used in this document are
defined in the Glossary.

The following should be read in conjunction with the
Conselidated Financial Statements included in this
Annual Report.

How we reported results

Al information for 2011 in this Annual Report is
reported on a net income basis. All information for
2010 and 2009 in this Annual Report is reported on a
continuing operations basis, unless otherwise noted.
For a description of discontinued operations, see
Note 4 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Throughout this Annual Report, certain measures,
which are noted as “Non-GAAP measures,” exclude
certain items. BNY Mellon believes that these
measures are useful to investors because they permita
focus on period-to-period comparisons, using
measures that relate to our ability to enhance revenues
and limit expenses in circumstances where such
matters are within our control. We also present the net
interest margin on a fully taxable equivalent (“FIE”)
basis. We believe that this presentation allows for

4 BNY Mellon

comparison of amounts arising from both taxable and
tax-exempt sources and is consistent with industry
practice. Certain immaterial reclassifications have
been made to prior periods to place them on a basis
comparable with the current period presentation. See
“Supplemental information — Bxplanation of
Non-GAAP financial measures” beginning on page 66
for a reconciliation of financial measures presented in
accordance with GAAP to adjusted Non-GAAP
financial measures.

Organization of our business

In the first quarter of 2011, BNY Mellon realigned its
internal reporting structure and business presentation
to focus on its two principal businesses, lnvestment
Management and Investment Services, The
realigiment reflects management’s approach to
assessing performance and decisions regarding
resource allocations. Investment Management
includes the former Asset Management and Wealth
Management businesses. Investment Services includes
the former Asset Servicing, Issuer Services and
Clearing Services businesses as well as the Cash
IManagement business previously included in the
former Treasury Services business, The Other
segment includes credit-related activities previously
included in the Treaswury Services business, the lease
financing portfolio, corporale treasury activities,
including our investment securities portfolic, our
equity investments in Wing Hang Bank and
ConvergEx Group, business exits and corporate
overhead. The income statenment has been changed to
reflect this realignment as follows:

o Investment management and performance fees
consist of the former asset and wealth
management fee revenue; and

e JInvestment services fees consist of the former
secwrities servicing fees, including asset
servicing, issuer services, clearing services, as
well as treasury sexvices fee revenue.

All prior periods were reclassified. The
reclassifications did not affect the results of
operations.

Merger with Mellon Financial

On Juty 1, 2007, The Bank of New York Company,
Inc. and Mellon Financial Corporation (“Mellon
Financial™ merged into The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation (together with its consolidated
subsidiaries, “BNY Mellon'), with BNY Mellon
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Results of Operations (continued)

being the smviving entity (the “2007 Merger™).
Results for 2007 reflect six months of BNY Melion
and six months of legacy The Bank of New York
Company, lnc.

Qverview

BNY Mellon is the corporate brand of The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation (N YSE symbol: BK).
BNY Mellon is a global financial services company
focused on helping clients manage and service their
financial assets, operating in 36 countries and serving
more than 100 markets. BN'Y Mellon is a leading
provider of financial sexvices for institutions,
corporations and high-net-worth individuals, offering
superior investment management and investment
services through a worldwide client-focused team. At
Dec. 31, 2011, we had $25.8 teillion in assets under
custody and administration and §1.26 trillion in assets
under management, serviced $11.8 trillion in
outstanding debt and processed global payments
averaging $1.5 trillion per day.

BNY Metflon's businesses benefit from the global
growth in financial assets and from the globalization
of the investment process. Over the long term, our
goals are focused on deploying capital to accelerate
the long-term growth of our businesses and achieving
superior total returns to sharcholders by generating
first quartile earnings per share growth over time
relative to a group of peer companies.

Key components of our strategy include: providing
superior client service versus peers; strong investment
performance relative to investiment benchmarks;
above-median reverue growth relative to peer
companies; increasing the percentage of revenue and
income derived from outside the United States;
sucecessful integration of acqnired businesses;
competitive margms; and positive operating leverage.
We have established Basel T Tier 1 capital as our
principal capital measure and have established a

targeted ratio of Basel I Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted

assets of 10%. We expect to update our capital targets
once new regulatory capital guidelines are finalized.

Key 2011 evenis

Sale of Shareowner Services

On Dee. 31, 2011, BNY Mellon sold its Shareowner
Services business. The sales price of $550 million

resulted in a pre-tax gain of $98 million. We yecorded
an immaterial after-tax gain primarily due to the

write-off of non-tax deductible goodwill associated
with the business. The transaction enhanced BNY
Mellon’s capital position, adding approximately 30
basis points to our estimated Basel III Tier 1 common
equity ratio at Dec. 31, 2011,

Acquisition of Penson Financial Services

On Nov. 30, 2011, we acquired Penson Financial
Sexvices Austraba Pty Litd (“Penson”), a clearing firm
located in Australia, in a $33 million share purchase
transaction. Penson offers execution and clearing
services and provides processing for local exchange-
traded equities and exchange-traded options in
Australia. The results of Penson are included in the
Investment Services business.

Continuing global economic uncertainty

The global financial markets and economy remain
affected by a vaxiety of concerns, including questions
about the creditworthiness of sovereign issuers within
BEurope. Sovereign or financial institution defaults,
political uncertainties or credit downgrades could lead
to disruptions in the money markets, changes in
foreign exchange values, reductions i the
atiractiveness and value of European assets, and/or an
increase in borrowing costs for consumers and
companies in Europe.

During 2011, the continued economic uncertainty in
the global markets contributed to a significant
increase in our balance sheet. Client deposits
increased $74 biltion, which drove a $78 billion
increase in total assets. Inresponse fo this continued
uncertainty, we reduced exposure to higher risk
countries and increased our exposure to central banks.
Additionally, we continued to maintain a highly liquid
balance sheet with a ratio of liquid funds to total
assets of 42% at Dec. 31, 2011, while also reducing
our exposure to large global financial institutions.

Change in executive management

Effective Aug. 31, 2011, Robert P. Kelly resigned as
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Direclor. Also
effective on Aug. 31, 2011, Gerald L. Hassell, BNY
Mellon’s President and a board member since 1998,
was appointed Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company.

Acguisition of Talon Asset Management
On July 1, 2011, BNY Mellon acquired the wealth

management operations of Chicago-based Talon Asset
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Results of Operations (continuad)

Management (“Talon™). Talon manages more than.
$800 million i assets for wealthy familics and
institutions. The acquisition of Talon represents BN'Y
Mellon's first wealth management office in Chicago,
the third largest wealth management market in the
1.8, The results of Talon are included in the
Investment Management business.

Dividend increase and share repurchase program

Tn March 2011, BNY Mellon received confirmation
that the Federal Reserve did not object fo its
comprehensive capital plan which provides for capital
actions, including a dividend increase and share
repurchases. Accordingly, on March 22, 2011, the
board of directors authorized a 44% increase in the
quarterly common stock dividend to $0.13 per
common share.

In 2011, we repurchased 34.8 million shares in the
open market, at an average price of $24.00 per share
for a total of $835 million. In 2012, we continued to
repurchase shares under the 2011 capital plan.
Through Feb. 47, 2012, we repurchased 17.3 million
shares in the open market, at an average price of
$21.53 per share for a total of $371 million.

Summary of financial restlts

We reported net income applicable to common
shareholders of BNY Mellon of $2.5 billion, or $2.03
per difuted common share in 2011 compared with
$2.5 billion, or $2.05 per diluted common share in
2010, In 2009, we reported a net loss applicable to
common shareholders of BNY Mellon of $1.4 billion,
or $1.16 per diluted common share. In 2010, net
income applicable to common sharcholders on a
continuing operations basis was $2.6 billion, or $2.11
per diluted common share. In 2009, we incurred a net
loss applicable to common sharcholders on &
continuing operations basis of $1.1 billion, or $0.93
per diluted common share.

Highlights of 2011 vesults
s Assets under costody and administration

(“AUCT totaled $25.8 trillion. at Dec. 31, 2011
compared with $25.0 tritlion at Dec. 31, 2010

The increase primarily reflects net new business.

{See the “Investment Services business”
beginning on page 21).

e Assets under management (“AUM”), excluding
securities lending assets, totaled $1.26 trillion at
Dee. 31, 2011 compared with §1.17 trillion at

6 BNY Mellon

Dec. 31, 2010. The increase was primarily
driven by net new business. (See the
“Investment Management business” beginning
on. page 18).

Investment services fees totaled $6.8 billion in
2011 compared with $6.1 billion in 2010. The
increase primarily resulted from the full year
impact of the acquisitions of Global Investment
Servicing (“GIS™) on July 1, 2010 and BHF
Asset Servicing GmbH (“BAS”) on Aug. 2,
2010 (collectively, “the Acquisitions™), and net
new business, partiaily offset by higher money
market fee waivers. (See the “lovestment
Services business” beginning on page 21).
Investment management and performance fees
totaled $3.0 billion in 2011 compared with $2.9
billion in 2010. The increase was driven hy net
new business and higher average equity markets,
largely offset by higher money market fee
waivers. (See the “Investment Management
business” beginuing on page 18).

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue
totaled $848 million in 2011 compared with
$886 million in 2010, In 2011, foreign exchange
revenue totaled $761 million, a decrease of 3%
compared with 2010, diiven by lower volatility,
partially offset by higher volumes. Other trading
revenue was $87 million 2011 compared with
$99 million in 2010. The decrease was primarily
driven by lower fixed income trading revenue.
(See “Fee and other revenue™ beginning on
page 8).

Investment income and other revenue totaled
$455 million in 2011 compared with $467
million in 2010. The decrease primarily resulted
from lower foreign currency translation, the
write-down of an equity investment, lower Jease
residual gains and lower private equity
investment revenue, primarily offset by the gain
on the sale of Shareowner Services and gains
related to loans held-for-sale retained from a
previously divested bank subsidiary. (See “Fee
and other revenue” beginning on page 8).

Net interest revenue totaled $3.0 bilfion in 2011
compared with $2.9 billion in 2010 and the net
interest margin (FTH) was 1.36% in 2011
compared with 1.70% in 2010. The trends of net
interest revenue and net interest margin (FITE)
primarily reflect growth in client deposits, which
were placed with central banks, purchases of
high quality securities and an increased level of
sccured foans, partially offset by lower spreads
resulting from the continned impact of the lower
global interest rate environment. (See “Net
interest revenue” beginning on page 11).
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Resuits of Operations (continued)

e The provision for credit losses was $1 million in
2011 compared with $11 million in 2010. The
lower provision in 2011 primarily resulted from
an improvement in the loan portfolio and a
decline in criticized assets. (See “Asset quality
and allowance for credit losses™ beginning on
page 42).

s Noninterest expense totaled $11.1 hillion in
2011 compared with $10.2 bitlion in 2010. The
increase primarily reflects the full-year impact
of the Acquisitions, higher stafl expense,
volume-related expenses, and software expense,
ag well as higher professional, legal and other
purchased services. Noninterest expense in 2011
also includes restructuring charges of $89
million. (See “Noninterest expense” begmning
on page 14).

¢+ BNY Mellon recorded an mcome tax provision
of $1.0 billion (29.0% effective tax rate) in 2011
compared with an income tax provision, on a
continuing operations basis, of $1.0 billion
(28.3% effective tax rate) in 2010. (See “Income
taxes” on page 15).

¢ Unrealized net of tax gatus on our total
investment securities portfolio were $420
wmillion at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with $150
million at Dec. 31, 2010. The improvement in
the valuation of the investment securities
portfolio was driven by improved valuations of
agency RMBS and U.S. Treasury securities,
partially offset by declines in valuations of
certain non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities. (See “Investment securities”
beginning on page 30).

e AtDec 31, 2011, our estimated Basel 11T Tier 1
common equity ratio was 7.1% , an
improvement of more than 100 basis points from
March 31, 2011, The improvement was driven
by earnings retention, the reduction of goodwill
and intangible assets related to the sale of
Shareowner Services and paydowns on
sub-investment grade securities, partially offset
by share repurchases. (See “Capital” beginning
on page 53).

» We generated $2.8 billion of Basel T Tier 1
common equity in 2011, primarily driven by
carnings. Our Basel [ Tier 1 capital ratio was
15.0% at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with 13.4% at
Dec. 31, 2010. (See “Capital” beginning on
page 33).

s In 2011, we repurchased 34.8 million coramon
shares in the open market, at an average price of
$24.00 per share, for a total of §835 million.

Results of 2010

In 2010, we reported net income applicable to
common sharelolders, mcluding discontinued
operations, of $2.5 billion, or $2 .05 per diluted
common share, or on a continuing operations basis,
net incore of $2.6 billion, or $2.11 per diluted
common share. These resalts were primarily driven
by:

¢ Investment services fee revenue totaled $6.1
billion in 2010 reflecting the Acquisitions,
higher market values and net new business.

o Investment management and performance fees
totaled $2.9 billion in 2010 reflecting higher
market values globally, the full year impact of
the acquisition of Insight Investment
Management Limited (“Insight”) and new
business.

e Foreign exchange and other trading revenue
totaled $886 million in 2010 driven by lower
fixed income and derivatives trading revenue
and. lower foreign exchange revenue.

» Net interest revenue totaled $2.9 billion in 2010
as a higher yield on the restructured investment
securities portfolio and higher interest-earning
assets were offset by lower spreads.

e Noninterest expense totaled $10.2 billion in
2010 primarily driven by the impact of the
Acquisitions, the full-year impact of the Insight
acquisition and higher compensation expense.

Resulis for 2009

In 2009, we reported a net loss of $1.4 biltion, or
$1.16 per dituted common share, or on a continuing
operations basis, a net loss of $1.1 billion, or $0.93
per diluted common share. These results were
primarily driven by:

e Investment securities (pre-tax) net logses of $5.4
billion in 2009 reflecting the restructuring of the
investment securities portfolio.

s A provision for credit losses of $332 million in
2009, reflecting a higher number of downgrades
and deterioration in certain industry sectors.

¢ Merger and integration (“Mé&:I”) expeuses of
$233 million (pre-1ax).

o An after-tax redemption charge of $196.5
million related to the repurchase of the Series B
preferred stock issued to the U.S. Treasury as
part of the Troubled Asset Relief Program
(“TARP") Capital Pucchase Program and $86.5
million for dividends/aceretion on the Series B
preterred stock.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Results for 2009, compared with 2008, also inciuded
lower securities servicing revenue, lower investment

Fee and other revenue

management and performance fees and lower foreign
exchange and other trading revenue.

Fee and other revenue 2011 2010
v, Vs,
{dollars in millions unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Investment services fees:
Asset servicing (o) S 3,697 4 3,07 $ 2573 20% 20%
Issuer services 1,445 1 A6 1,463 ) -
Clearing services 1,159 1,005 962 15 4
Treasury services 538 530 519 1 2
Total investment services fees 6,836 6,071 5517 13 10
Investment management and performance fees 3,002 2,868 2,677 g 7
Foreign exchange and other frading revenue 848 R85 1,036 (4) (14)
Distiibution and sexrvicing 187 210 326 (11 (36)
Financing-related fees 170 195 215 (%)) (9)
Investment income 258 308 226 {16} 36
Other 107 159 111 24 43
Total fee revenue 11,498 10,697 10,108 7 6
Net securities gaing (losses) 48 27 (5,369) 78 N/M
Total fee and ofher revenue $11.546 $10,724 $ 4,739 8% 120%
Fee revenue as a percentage of total revenue excluding net secyritics
gaing (fosses) 78% T8% TRY
Market value of AUM at period end (in billions) $ 1,260 $ 1,172 $ 1,115 8% 5%
Market value of AUC and administration at period end (in triliions) $ 258 $ 250 3 223 3% 12%

(a} Asset servicing fees include securities lending revenue of $7183 milfion iz 2011, $150 nuillion in 2010 and $259 wiiliion in 2009.

Fee revenue

Fee revenue increased 7% in 2011 compared with
2010, primarily reflecting the full year impact of the
Acquisitions, higher average market values and higher
net new business, partially offset by higher money
market fee waivers and lower trading volumes.

Investment services fees

Investment services fees were impacted by the
following compared with 2010:

* Asset servicing fees mncreased 20%, primarily
driven by the full-year impact of the
Acquisitions, higher market values, net new
business and higher securities lending revenue
due to wider spreads.

¢ Issuer services fees decreased 1% as higher
Depositary Receipts revenue driven by higher
corporate action fees was more than offset by
lower Corporate Trust fee revenue, reflecting
continued weakness in the structured debt
markets and lower money market-refated
distribution fees, and lower Shareowney Services
revenue, reflecting lower corporate action fees.

& BNY Mellon

& Clearing services fees increased 15%, primarily
driven by the full-vear impact of the GIS
acquisition, and new business, partially offset by
lower rading volumes and higher money market
fee waivers.

e ‘Ireasury services fees increased 1% compared
with 2010, reflecting the full-year impact of the
GIS acquisition, primarily offset by lower funds
transfer, cash management and liquidity
management fees.

See the “Tnvestment Services business” in “Review of
businesses™ for additional details.

Investment management and performance fees

Investment management and performance fees totaled
$3.0 billion in 2011, an increase of 5% compared with
2010, The increase reflects higher average market
values and net new business, partially offset by higher
money market fee waivers and lower perfonmance
fees. Performance fees were $93 million in 2011 and
$121 million in 2010.

Total AUM for the vestment Management business

was $1.26 willion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with
$1.17 trillion at Dee. 31, 2010, The increase was
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Results of Operations (continued)

primarily due to net new business and improved
market values throughout 2011, Long-term mflows in
2011 were $83 billion and benefited from strengih in
fixed income and equity-indexed products,

See the “Investment Management business™ in
“Review of businesses” for additional details
regarding the drivers of investinent management and
performance fees.

Foreign exchange and other trading revenne

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Foreign exchange $761 $787 § 850
Fixedincome 65 80 242
Credit dexivatives {a) 3> (€)] (84)
Other 28 26 28

Tolal $848 $885 $1,036

{aj Used as economic hedges aof loans.

Foreign exchange and other trading revenne decreased
438 million, or 4%, from $8%6 million in 2010, In
2011, foreign exchange revenue totaled $761 million,
a decrease of 3% compared with 2010, driven by
lower volatility and spreads, partially offset by higher
volumes. Foreign exchange revenue continues to be
impacted by increasing competitive pressures. Other
trading revenue totaled $87 million in 2011, a
decrease of 12% compared with 2010, largely due to
lower fixed ncome trading revenue. Foreign
exchange revenue is primarily reported in the
Investment Services business. Other trading revenue
is primarily reported in the Other segment.

The foreign exchange trading engaged in by the
Company generates revenues, which are infiuenced by
the volume of client ransactions and the spread
realized on these transactions. The level of volume
and spreads is affected by magket volatility, the level
of cross-border assels held in custody for clients, the
level and nature of underlying cross-border
investments and other transactions undertaken by
corporate and institutional clients. These revenues
also depend on our ability to manage the risk
associated with the currency transactions we execute.
A substantial majority of our foreign exchange trades
is undertaken for our custody clienls in transactions
where BNY Mellon acts as principal, and not as an
agent or broker. As a principal, we earn a profit, if
any, based on our ability to risk manage the aggregate
foreign currency positions that we buy and sell on a
daily basis. Generally speaking, custody clients enter
into foreign exchange transactions in one of three

ways: negotiated trading with BNY Mellon, BNY
Mellon’s standing instruction prograr, or
transactions with third-pariy foreign exchange
providers. Negotiated rading generally refers to
orders entered by the client or the client’s investment
manager, with all decisions related to the transaction,
usually on a transaction-specific basis, made by the
client or its investment manager. Such transactions
may be initiated by (i) contacting one of our sales
desks to negotiate the rate for specific transactions,
(iiy using electrovic trading platforms, or (ili) electing
other methods such as those pursuant to a
benchmarking arrangement, in which pricing is
determined by an objective market rate plus a
pre-negotiated spread. The preponderance of the
notonal value of our frading volume with clients is in
negotiated trading. Our standing instruction program
provides custody clients and their investment
managers with an end-to-end solution that allows
them to shift to BNY Mellon the cost, management
and execution risk, often in small transactions not
otherwise eligible for a more favorable rate or
transactions in restricted and difficuit to trade
currencies. We incur substantial costs in supporting
the global operational infrastruciure required to
administer the standing instruction program; on a
per-transaction basis, the costs associated with the
standing instruction program exceed the costs
associated with negotiated trading. Qur custody
clients choose to use third-party foreign exchange
providers other than BNY Mellon for a substantial
majority of their U.S. dollar equivalent volume
foreign exchange transactions.

We typically price negotiated frades for our custody
clients at a spread over our estimation of the current
market rate for a particular currency or based on an
agreed third-party benchmark, With respect to our
standing instruction program, we typically assign a
price derived from the daily pricing range for
marketable-size foreign exchange transactions
(generally more than $1 million) executed between
global financial mstitations, known as the “interbank
range.” Using the interbank range for the given day,
we typically price purchases of cutrencies at or near
the low end of this range and sales of currencies at or
near the high end of this range. For the year ended
Dec. 31, 201 1, our total revenue for all types of
foreign exchange trading transactions was $761
million, which is approximately 5% of our total
revenue. Approximately 40% of our foreign exchange
revenye resulted from foreign exchange transactions
undertaken through our standing mstruction program.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Distribution and servicing fees

Distribution and servicing fees earned from mutual
fands are primarily based on average assets in the
funds and the sales of funds that we manage or
administer and are primarily reported in the
Investment Management business. These fees, which
include 12b-1 fees, Fluctuate with the overall level of
net sales, the relative mix of sales between share
classes, the funds’ market values and money market
fee waivers.

The $23 million decrease i distribution and servicing
fee revenue in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily
reflects increased money market fee waivers as well
as equity market changes. The impact of distribution
and servicing fees on income in any one period is
partially offset by distribution and servicing expense
paid to other financial intermediaries to cover their
costs Tor distribution and servicing of mutual funds.
Distribution and servicing expense is recorded as
noninterest expense on the income statement.

Finaneing-related fees

Financing-related fees, which are primarily reported
in the Other segment, include capital markets fees,
loan commitment fees and credit-related fees.
Financing-related fees decreased $25 million from
2010 primarily as a result of lower capital markets and
credit-related fees, primarily reflecting our strategy to
reduce targeted risk exposure,

Investment iHcome

Investment incorme

{in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Corporate/bank-owned
tife insurance. $154 $1350 $151
L.ease residual pains 42 69 B0
Equity investment income (loss) 44 51 (28)
Private equity gains (losses) 18 29 (18)
Seed capital gains - 9 31
Total investment incomne $258 $308 $226

Investment income, which is primarily reported in the
Other segment and Investment Management business,
includes mcome from insurance contracts, lease
residual gains and losses, equity investment income
{loss), private equity investments and gains and Josses
on seed capital mvestments. The decrease, compared
with 2010, primarily reflects lower lease residual,
private equity and seed capital gains.

10 BNY Mellon

(Mther revenue

Other revenue

{in rmillivrs) 2011 2010 2009
Asset-related gaing $181 S 22 $ 7%
lixpense reimbursements from
joint ventures 38 37 3
Economie valne payments 4 7 .
Other income (10ss) {26) 93 4
‘Total other revenne $197 3159 3111

Other revenue includes asset-related gains, expense
reimbursements from joint ventures, econotsic value
payments and other income (loss). As set-related gains
include loan, real estate and other asset dispositions.
Expense reimbursements from joint ventures relate to
expenses incurred by BNY Mellon on behalf of joint
ventures. Beonomic value payments relate to deposits
from the GIS acquisition that have not yet transferred
to BNY Meilon. Other income (loss) primarily
includes foreign currency remeasurement, other
investments and various miscellaneous revenues.

with 2010, primarily reflecting the gam on the sale of
Shareowner Services and asset-related gains on loans
held-for-sale retained from a previously divested bank
subsidiary, partially offset by net losses on foreign
cutrency remeasurement.

Net securities gains (losses)

Net securities gains totaled $48 million in 2011
compared with $27 million. in 2010.

The following table details securities gains (losses) by
type of security. See “Consolidated balance sheet
review” for further information on the investment
securities portfolio.

Net securities gaing (Josses)

(in wnilliors) 2011 2010 2009
U.8, Treasury $ 77 315 $
Agency RMBS 8 15 -
Alt-A RMBS (36} 13 (3.113)
Prime RMBS H (1,008)
Subprime RMBS {21y G)] {322}
Enropean floating rate notes 39 €)) (269)
Sovereign debt 36 - -
Horne equity lines of credit . (205}
Conunercial MBS - - (8%)
Grantor Trust - - {39
Cradit cards - - (26)
ARS CDOs - (23)
Other 24 17 (275)
Total nei securities gains
(losses) % 48 527 $(5,369)
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Resuits of Operations (continued)

2010 compared with 2009

Fee revenue increased 6% in 2010 compared with
2009, primarily reflecting the impact of the
Acquisitions, the full-year impact of the fnsight
acquisition, improved market values and new
business, partially offset by lower foreign exchange
and other trading revenue, lower distribution and
servicing fees and lower securities lending revenue.

Net securities gains fotaled $27 million in 2010
compared with losses of $5.4 billion in 2009. The loss
in 2009 primarily resulted from a charge related to
restructuring the investment securities portfolio.

Fee and other revenue was also impacted by the
following:

s Investment services fees increased reflecting the
impact of the Acquisitions, higher market
values, net new business and higher Depositary
Receipts revenue resulting from higher issuance,
corporate action and service fees. This increase

Net interest revenue

was partially offset by lower Corporate Trust fec
revenue, reflecting continued weakness in the
stroctured debt markets and lower money market
related distribution fees, lower Shareowner
Services revenue, retlecting lower corporate
action fees, and lower securities lending revenue
resuliing from narrower spreads and lower loan
balances.

¢ Investment management and performance fees
increased reflecting improved market values, the
Insight acquisition and the impact of net new
business.

¢ Forcign exchange and other trading revenue
decreased largely due to lower fixed income and
derivatives trading revenue.

e Investment income mcreased reflecting higher
equity mvestment revenue and higher private
equity gains, partially offset by lower lease
residual and seed capital gains.

o Total other vevenue increased primarily
reflecting higher foreign currency
remeasurements, partially offset by lower asset-
related gains.

Met inteyest revepue 2011 2010
¥8. Vs,
{dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2000
Net interest revenne (non-FTE) $ 2984 $ 2,925 3 2915 2% Y
Tax equivalent adjustiment 27 19 i8 NM N/M
Net interest revenue (FTE) - Non-GAAP 3,011 2,944 2933 2% -%
Average interest-earning assels $222,233 $172.792 $160,955 X% %
Net interest margin (FTT) 1.36% 1.70% 1.82% (3d)bps (1 2)hps

Net interest revenue totaled $3.0 billion in 2011, a2%
increase compared with 2010. The net interest margin
(ETE) was 1.36% in 2011 compared with 1.70% in
2010. The trends of net inteyest revenue and net
interest margin (FTE) primarily reflect growth in client
deposits, which were placed with central banks,
purchases of high quality securities and an increased
level of secured loans, partially offset by lower spreads
resulting from the continued impact of the lower
global interest rate environmenit,

Average interest-carping assets were $222 billion in
2011, compared with $173 bitlion in 2010. The
increase in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily
ocourred in the second half of 2011 and was driven by
higher client deposits as a function of the Buropean
debt crisis and continued economic uncertainty in the
global markets. Average total securities increased to
$74 billion in 2011, up from $61 billion m 2010,
reflecting our strategy to invest in high-quality,
government-guaranteed securities, and to a fesser
degree, state and political subdivisions and asset-

backed collateralized loan obligations (“CLOs”).
Average inierest-bearing deposits with the Federal
Reserve and other central banks increased to $47
hillion, up from $14 billion in 2010, reflecting higher
client deposits.

2010 compared with 2009

Net interest revenue totaled $2.9 billion in 2010,
essentially wnchanged compared with 2009. Net
mterest revenue in 2010 reflected a higher yield on the
restructired investment securities portfolio, net of lost
interest on the securities sold and higher average
interest-sarning assets, primarily offset by narrower
spreads.

The net interest margin (FTH) was 1.70% in 2010
compared with 1.82% in 2009, The lower net interest
margin (FT'E) in 2010 was driven by lower spreads
and higher interest-earning assets in a Jower-rate
environment, which more than offset the higher yield
on the restruciured investment securities portfolio.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Average balances and interest rales 20113

(dollar amownts in willions, presernted on an FIL basis) Average balance Infevest  Average rafes

Assets

Taterest-carning assers: ,
Intesest-bearing deposits with banks (primasily foreign banks) $ 55218 8 543 0.99%
Tnterest-hearing deposits held at the Federal Reserve and other central banks 47,104 148 $.31
Federal funds sold and securitics purchased under resale agroomeants 4,809 28 .58
Margin loans 9,376 129 1.34

Non-~tugin loans:
Domestic offices:

Consuner 5,666 217 3.83
Conmmrcial 15915 316 1.%
Foreign otfices 9,762 148 1.51
Tota) non-margin loans 31343 681 () %37
Seaurities:
1.8, government obligations 15,003 234 1.36
U.S. governinent agency obligations 21,684 628 2.88
State and potitical subdivisions ~ tax-sxenpt 1,304 59 425
Other securities:
Domestic offices 15,756 680 4.32
Foreign offices 17,4587 414 2.37
Total cther seencities 33,213 1,094 330
Trading securities:
Donestic offices 2856 74 2,61
Yoreign offices 33 - (.98
Total trading securities 2,889 74 2.59
Total searities 74,183 2,086 2.82
Total interest-sarning assets $222.233 33,615 (1) 1.63%
Allowance for Joan losses (444)
Cash and due from banks 4,579
Other assels 51,398
Assets of consolidated investment manageraent fands 13,30
Total asssls $291,145
Lisbilities

Interest-bearing Habilities:
Interest-beariag depasits:
Dorpestic offices:

Money market rate. aCOURS $ 4,659 § 16 (4.34%
Savings 1,825 2 316
Ceatiticates of deposits of $100,000 & over 364 - 3.08
Other Line depogits 34,396 29 0.08
Total domestic 40944 47 Q.11
TForeign offices:
Banks 6910 58 .84
Goverrunent and osficial institutions 2931 1 008
Other 74,810 135 .18
‘Total foreign : 83,751 194 0,23
Total interest-bearing deposits 124,698 241 6.19
Federal [unds prreh ased and securities sold under reparchase agresments 8,372 2 0.02
Trading labilities 1.852 32 1.7
Other barowed funds:
Domestic offices 1,124 16 1.41
Poscign offices 906 ) .60
Total other borrewsed funds 2,030 21 105
Payables (o customers and broker-dealers 7,319 7 0.09
Long-terrn debt 18,057 301 1.66
Teral interest-hearing liabilities $162,525 $ 604 0.37%
Total noninterest bearing deposits 87,984
Other liabilities 24,244
Tiahilities and chligations of consolidated investment management funds 12,073
Total Babilities 256,826
Eguity
Nonconirolling interests 800
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation shacehclders” equity 33,519
Tislal liabilitics, termporary equity and pennanent equity $201,145
Net interest racgin 1.36%
Percentage of assets attributable to foreign offices (¢} 36%
Percentage of Habilities attributable o foreign olfices 33

ta) Includes fees of $39 million in 2011, Nen-acerwal loans are included in the average loan bolance; the associated income, reeognized on the cosh basks, is Included
in i 7

& equivalent adjusiment way $27 million in 2001, and is based o the applicable wax ray (35%).
(=) Inchedoy the Cayman Iskavds brasch office.
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Hesults of Operations (continued)

Acverage balances and interest yates (continued) 2010 2009
Average Average Average Average
(dotlar amounss i millions, presented on an FTE Dasis) balanca Interest. rates balance Tuterest rales
Assets
Interest-earntig assets:
Interast-hearing deposits with banks (primarily foreign banks) $ 56,679 $ 491 0.87% $ 55,797 % 684 1.22%
Interest-bearing Jeposils held at e Faderd Reseove and other central bauks 14,253 49 .34 11,938 43 0.36
Other short-ter m investoents -~ U8, Government-backed commercial paper - - . 317 9 2.95
Federal funrs sold and secucitics purchased under resale agreements 4,650 64 1.37 3,238 31 0.97
Margin loans 5,900 &8 1.50 4,340 59 1.59
Non-trargin lnans:
Domestic offices:
Congarer 5,485 231 421 3,420 262 4.83
Comniercial 15,286 356 2.33 15,058 362 2.41
Foreipn offices 9,633 151 1.57 11,608 2350 215
Total non-taangin loans 30,404 738 {ap 243 32.084 874 {a} 2.7
Securitiss
U.S. Government obligations 7,857 119 1.50 3,218 50 1.54
U.S. Government agency obligations 20,140 674 3.34 16,019 392 3.70
State and political subdivisions - tax exesnpt 627 41 6.48 A0 A7 4.92
Other securities:
Domestic offices 14,683 981 5.68 20419 828 4.05
Fareign offices 14,906 173 1.16 10912 248 2.98
Total other securities 29,589 1.154 380 31,351 1,07% 3.43
Trading secarilies
Domestic offices 2,568 71 279 1,934 50 2.57
Foreign offices 115 - 0,26 39 1 1.40
Total trading securities 2,683 n 2.68 1993 31 2,54
‘Total securities 60,896 2,054 3,38 53,241 1,816 3.41
Total inferest-earning aseels $172.192 3489 (b 2.02% 3160953 $3,526(h)  2.19%
Aliovance for loan losses ¢322) 42
Cash due fiombanks 3,832 3,638
Qther assets 41979 45,166
Asgets of discontinued operations 404 () 2,188 {¢}
Assets of vonsolidated investiment management funds 13,358 -
Teral assefs $237,840 $212,127
Liabilities
Interest-bearing labibiies:
Tntesest-bearing deposits - domestic offices:
Money market rate ace ounts (@) $ 4,463 $ 20 0.46% $ 2,603 § 12 0.45%
Savings 1.396 < 0,26 1,136 2 0.17
Ceatificates of deposit of $100,000 & over 368 . 0.37 261 8 0,85
Othes Lime deposits (d) 20,649 23 U0 20938 35 0.17
Tetal domestic 32,876 49 013 23,638 37 0.22
Interest-beaving deposits - foreign offices:
Banks 5,401 13 (.33 5.182 13 0.2
Government and official institutions 1,423 1 0.05 s6a i .10
Other 64,829 63 010 65,520 101 Q.15
Total foreign 71,353 2 0.12 72,568 118 016
Total interest-bearing deposits 104,229 135 0.13 O8.206 172 D.17
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under reparchase agrecinents 35,356 43 0.8 2605 - -
Tracking liabilities 1,630 41 2.50 1,283 22 1.16
Other borrowedt funds:
Domestic offices 1,386 21 1.57 Q81 15 1.53
Yoreign offices 677 3 0.39 593 5 0.83
Total other borrowed funds 2,063 24 118 1,574 20 1.27
Borrowings from the Federal Resorve related to ABCP - - - 317 ? 2.25
Payables to customers and broker-dealers 6,439 & 0.0 5,263 G G2
Long-texrn debt 16,673 300 1.80 16,893 366 2.17
Total inlerest-bearing labilities $136,390 $ 545 2,405 $126,231 $ 53 0.47%
Total noninterest-hearing deposits 35,208 364406
Other labdlities 21,768 18,160
Lidbilities of discontinned operations 404 (¢} 2,188 (¢}
Liabilities and obligations of consolidaled suvestinent managenent funds 12,218 -
Total abilities 205,958 183,625
Equity
MNoncontrafling interests 52 26
‘The Bank of New York Meilon Corporation sharcholders” equity 31,100 28475
Total Liahitities, tengorary equity and pernanent equity $237,810 5212127
Net interest nmiargin 1.70% 1.82%
Percentage of asgels atributabile to foreign offices (e] 43% 37%
Percentage of Labilities attributable to foreign offices k] 34

(aj dncludes fees of 346 million in 2010 and B4 3 million in 2009, Now-acerual loans are fucliwded in the averaga loan balance; the associated incone, recognized or

&)
(2} Average balance: and rates are impacted by allocations made 1o maicl osset
(dy 2011
(e} Irchudes the Cayman lslands branch office.

wias $19 miliions in 010 and $1& mitlion in 2009, and is based an ihe applicable tax rate (35%).

of discontinued vperatiors wish labilities of discontinned operations.

sertlin money market virte gocounte were rectasified io other thine deposies, All prior puriods have bee vesited,
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Results of Operations (continued)

Noninterest expense

Noninterest expense 2011 2010
\t V8.
(dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Siaff:
Compensation $ 3.567 $ 3,237 $ 2,985 10% K%
Incentives 1,262 1.193 996 G 20
Employee benedits 897 785 719 14 9
Total staff 5726 5,215 4,700 10 11
Professional, legal and other purchased services L2217 1,009 1,017 11 8
Net ovcupancy 624 583 564 [ 4
Software 488 410 367 18 12
Distribution and servicing 416 377 393 16 [G5]
Fomitee and equipment 330 313 309 5 2
Sub-custodian 298 247 203 21 22
Rusiness development 261 27 214 (4 27
Other 1,147 1,060 934 8 11
Subtotal 10,504 9,582 8,721 10 10
Amortization of intangible assets 428 421 426 2 ()]
Restruciuring charges 89 28 150 218 {81)
Merger and integration (“M&I”) expenses 91 139 233 (35) [¢I))
‘Total noninterest expense $11,112 $10,170 $ 9,930 04, T%
Total staff expense as a percentage of total revenue 39% 38% 61% (a)
Full-time exaployees at period end 48,700 48,000 42,200 1% 14%

(a) Excluding investment securities gains (losses), 1otal staff expense as a percentage of total reverie (Non-GAAP) way 36% in 2009.

"Total nonitterest expense increased $942 million, or plans designed to reward a combination of
9%, compared. with 2010 primarily reflecting the full- individual, business unit and corporate
year impact of the Acquisitions, which impacted performance goals; as well as,
nearly all expense categories and accouuted for nearly ~  stock-based compensation expense; and
50% of tlie increase year-over-year, The increase in s employee benefit expense, primarily medical
noninterest expense also reflects higher staff expense, benefits, payroll taxes, pension and other
volume-related expenses and software expense, as retirement benefits.
well as higher professional, legal and other purchased
serviees. The increase in staff expense compared with 2010

primarily reflects:
Staff expense

o the full-year impact of the Acquisitions;

Given our mix of fee-based businesses, which are o the annual employee merit increase effective in
staffed with high-quality professionals, staff expense the second quarter of 2011;
comprised 55% of total noninterest expense in 2011 e higher pension expense;
and 54% in 2010, excluding amortization. of intangible ¢ higher incentives; and
assets, restructuring charges and M&I expenses. e a$22 million charge as a result of a change in

gxecutive management.
Staff expense is comprised of:
Non-staiff expense
e compensation expense, which includes:

~  salary expense, primarily driven by Non-staff expense includes certain expenses that vary
headcount; with the levels of business activity and levels of
— the cost of temporary services and overtime; expensed business investments, fixed infrastructure
and costs and expenses associated with corporate activities
—  SEYLrance cxpense; related to technology, compliance, Jegal, litigation,
e incentive expense, which includes: productivity initiatives and business development.

- additional compensation earned under 3 wide
range of sales commission and incentive
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Results of Operations (continued)

Mon-staff expense, excluding amortization of
imangible assets, restructuring charges and Mé&I
expenses, totaled $4.8 billion in 201 1 compared with
$4.4 billion in 2010, The increase primarily reflects:

the full-year impact of the Acquisitions;

# higher volume-related expenses;

s higher software expense resulting from new
assets placed into service; and,

e higher legal costs.

These increases were partially offset by state
investment tax credits received in 2011,

Pre-tax restructaring charges of $89 million in 2011
primarily related to efficiency initiatives to transform
operations, technology and corporate services. The
efficiency initiatives are expected to produce
annualized pre-tax savings of $240 — $260 miflion in
2012. For additional information on restructuring
charges, ses Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In 2011, we incarred $91 million of M&T expenses
primarily related to the integration of the Acquisitions.

The financial services industry has seen a continuing
increase in the level of litigation activity. As a result,
we anticipate our legal and litigation costs to continue
at elevated levels. For additional information on
litigation matters, see Note 24 of the Notes to
Consolidated Pinancial Statements.

2010 compared with 2009

Total noninterest expense was $10.2 billion in 2010,
an increase of $0.6 billion or 7% compared with 2009,
The increase primarily reflects the impact of the
Acquisitions and. the full-year impact of the Insight
acquisition, both of which impacted nearly all expense
categories and higher Litigation expense. Noninterest
expense in 2010 also included M&I expenses of $139
million related to the Acquisitions and the 2007
Merger.

Income taxes

BNY Mellon recorded an income tax provision of
$1.0 billion (29.0% effective tax rate) in 2011
compared with an income tax provision, on a
continuing operations basis, of $1.0 billion (28.3%
effective tax rate) in 2010 and an income tax benefit,
on a continuing operations basis, of $1.4 billion
(63.2% effective tax rate) i 2009, Excluding the
impact of investment securities losses, M&I expenses,
restructuriag charges and benefits from. discrete tax
ftems, the effective tax rate for 2009 was 29.7%.

We expect the effective tax rate to be approximately
29-304% i the first quarter of 2012,

Review of businesses

We have an internal information, system that produces
perfornmance data along product and service lines for
our two principal businesses and the Other segment.

Organization af owr business

In the first quarter of 2011, BN'Y Mellon realigned its
internal reporting structure and business presentation
1o focus on its two principal businesses, Investment
Management and Investment Services. See “General —
Organization of our business” for additional
information. All prior periods presented in this Anuual
Report are presented accordingly.

Also in the first quarter of 2011, we revised the net
interest revenue for our businesses to reflect a new
approach which adjusts our transfer pricing
methodology to better reflect the value of certain
domestic deposits. All prior period business results
have been restated to reflect this revision. This
revision did not impact the consolidated results.

For information on the accounting principles of our
businesses, the primary types of revenue generated by
each business and how our businesses are presented
and analyzed, see Note 20 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information on our businesses is reported on a
comtinuing operations basis for 2010 and 2009. See
Note 4 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Staternents for a discussion of discontinued
operations.

The results of our businesses may be influenced by
client activities thal vary by quarter. In the second
quarter, we typically experience an increase in
securities lending fees due to ae increase in demand to
borrow secarities outside of the United States. In the
third quarter, depositary receipts revenue is typically
higher due to an increased level of client dividend
payments paid in the guarter. Also in the third quarter,
volume-related fees may decline due to reduced client
activity. In our Tnvestment Management business,
performance fees are typically higher in the fourth
quarter, as the fourth quarter represents the end of the
measurement period for many of the performance fee
eligible relationships.

The results of our businesses in 2011 were driven by
the following factors. The fuvestment Management
business benefited from hgher average equity markets
and net new business partially offset by higher mouey
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Resuits of Operations (continued)

market fee waivers and lower performance fees.
Results in the Investment Services busivess benefited
from the full-year impact of the Acquisitions, net new
business, higher Depositary Receipts revenue, the
pre-tax gain on the sale of the Shareowner Services
husiness and an increased level of secured loans,
partially offset by lower foreign exchange fee
revenue, higher money market fee waivers and lower
trading volumes. NYSE and NASDAQ share volumes
deereased 10% in 2011 compared with 2010.

Net securities gains (losses) and vestructuring charges
are recorded in the Other segment. In addition, M&I
expenses are 4 corporate level item and are therelore
recorded in the Other segment.

Net interest revenue was impacted by growth in client
deposits and loans, partially offset by lower spreads
resulting from the continued impact of the low interest
rate enviromment.

Noninterest expense increased compared to 2010
reflecting the full-year impact of the Acquisitions,
restructuring charges related to efficiency initiatives to
transform operations, technology and corporate
services, higher volume-related expenses and higher
software costs.

The following table presents the value of certain
market indices at period end and on an average basis.

Market indices

Increase/(Decrease)

2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs, 2009
S&P 500 Index {(aj 1258 1258 1118 e 13%
$&P 500 Index —~ daily average 1268 1140 948 11 20
FIST 100 Index fa) 5572 5000 5413 ® )
FTSE 100 Index - daily average 5682 5468 4568 4 20
Barclay's Capital Aggregate Bond™ Index (a) 347 323 301 i 7
MSCI Fmerging Markets (EM) IMI [ndex (o) 204 1151 931 {21 17
NYSE and NASDAQ Share Volowe (in billions) 893 997 1113 (10) (1)

(a} Period end.

The period end S&P 500 Index at Dec. 31,2011 was
unchanged versus Dec. 31, 2010. The period end
FTSE 100 Index decreased 6% at Dec. 31, 2011
versus Dec. 31, 2010. On a daily average basis, the
S&P 500 Index increased 119% and the FTSE 100
Tndex increased 4% in 2011 versus 2010.

Fee revenue in Investment Management, and to a
lesser extent Investment Services, is impacted by the
value of market indices. At Dec. 31, 2011, using the

markets, we estimate that a 100-point change i the
value of the S&P 500 Index, sustained for one year,
would impact fee revenue by approximately 1% and
fully diluted earnings per conumon share by $0.03 to
$0.05. If global equity markets over- or under-perform
the S&P 500 Index, the impact to fee revenue and
earnings per share could be different.

The following consolidating schedules show the
contribution of our businesses to our overall

S$&P 500 Index as a proxy for the global equity profitability.
Tor the year ended Dee, 31, 2011 Investment  Investment
(datlar amounts in millions) Management Serviees Gther  Consolidated
Fee and other reverme $ 326d4(a) $ 7957 § 475 $ 11,696 {(a)}
Mot interest revenue. 200 2,635 143 2.984
Total revenue 3,470 10,592 618 14,680
Provision for credit losses 1 - - 1
Moninterest expense 2,746 7478 888 11,112
Income (loss) betore Laxes $ 723(a) $ 3,034 8§ (270) % 3,507 ()
Pre-tax operating margin (&) 21% 29%  NM 24%
Average assets $37,043 $207,454  $d46,648 $201,145
Excluding amortization of intangible assels:
Nouinterest expense $ 2532 $ 7266 § 886 $ 10,684
Income (loss) before axes 97 3,326 (268) 3,995 fa)
21 9% 31%  N/M 27%

Pre-tax operating margin {b)

(ai Total fee and other revenue includes income From consolidated investment manag ement funds of $200 million, net of noncentrolling
interests of $50 mitlion, for a net impact of $1 50 million. Income before taxes includes noncontrolling interasts of $30 million.

(b} Income before taxes divided by total revenne,

16 BNY Mellon
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Hesults of Operations (continued)

FFor the year emded Dec. 31, 2010 Total
Investment  Xnvestment continping
(dollar amounts in millions) Yanagemenl Services Other  operations
Fee and other revenue $ 3234 () § 7179 0§ 478§ 1080 (a)
Net interest ravenne 205 2,448 272 2,925
Total revenue 3439 9,627 750 13816
Provision for credit losses 3 3 11
Noninierest expense 2,693 6,515 962 10,170
Income (loss) hefore taxes $ 7436 5 3,112 % (220) § 3635(a)
Pre-tax operating margin (6} 22% 32% NM 268
Average assets $35411 $161,605 340420 §237 436 (c)
Fixcluding amortization of intangible assets:
Norinterest expense $ 2456 $ 6,333 5 960 % 9749
Income (loss} before taxes 980 3,294 218) 4,056 ()
Pre-tax operiting margin (b) 28% 344 N/M 206

(@) Total fee and other revenne includes income from consolidated investment management funds of $226 miltion, net of noncentrolling

interests of $59 million, for a. nel impact of $167 million. Income before taxes includ

{b) Incame before taxes divided by total revermie.

o5 noncentrolling intavests of $359 million.

{c) Including aserage assets of discontinued operations of $404 miliior in 2010, consolidated average assels wore $237,840 million.

For the year ended Dec. 31, 2008 Total
Investment Investment continuing
(dollar ammounts in millions) Managemoent Services Other operations
Fes and other ravenue 3 2,825 $ 6887  $(4,973) 3 473
Net interest revenug 242 2,249 324 2915
Total revenue 3,067 9,236 (4,649) 7,654
Provision for credit losses 1 - 33). 332
Noninlerest expense 2,499 5,901 1,130 9,530
Income {(loss) before taxes % 367 $ 3,335 $(6,10) § (2.208)
Pre-1ax operating margin (a) 18% 36% N/M N/M
Avcrags assels $21,840 $151,001 37,098 3209,939 ()
fixcluding amortization of intangible assets:
Noninlerest expense $ 2,235 $ 5740 § 1,129 § 9,104
Income (1oss) before taxes 831 3496 (6,109) (1,782)
Pre-lax operating margin (aj 27% 38% N/M N/M

(a) Income before taxes divided fry total revernie.

(by  Including average assets of discontinued operations of $2,188 milliost in 2009, consofidated average assets were $212,127 miltion.
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Resulte of Operations (continued)

Investment Management business

2011 2010
{dollar mnounts in millions, ¥5. vs.
unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenue:
Investment nunasgement and performance fees:
Mutual funds $ 1,073 $1,066  §1,098 1% (3%
Institutional clients 1,248 1,141 847 9 35
Wealth nmanagement 638 623 596 2 5
Performance fees 93 123 93 (24) 32
Total investment management and performance fees 3,052 2,953 2,634 3 12
Distribution and servicing 181 201 279 (10) (2%)
Qther {n) 31 &{) (88) (61)  N/M
Total fee and other revenue (@) 3,264 3,234 2,825 1 14
Netinterest revenue 206 208 242 - (15)
Total revenne 3470 3439 3,067 i 12
Provision for credit losses 1 3 1 N/M N/M
Noninterest expense (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 2,532 2,450 2,235 3 10
Imcome before taxes (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 937 9’0 831 {4) 18
Armortization of intangible asscts 214 237 264 (10) {10)
Income before laxes $ 723 % 743§ 367 3% 3%
Pre-tax operaling margin 21% 220 18%
Pre-tax operating margin (ex. amortization of intangible assets and net of disuibution
and servicing expense) (b) 31% 32% 319
‘Wealth management:
Average loans $ 6,970 36461  $382 8% 1%
Average deposits $10,113 $8,240 306,788 23%  2i%

(a) Total fee and ather revenue includes the bnpac af the consolidated Investment mransgement funds. See “Supplemental Information
beginning on page 66. Additionally, other revenue inchudes asset servicing, clearing services and treasury services revenne.
(b} Diswibution and servicing expense is netted with the distribution and servicing revenue for the purpose of this calculation of pre-tax
operating margin. Disiribution and servicing expense toialed $412 million, $376 miltion and $393 million, respectively.

AUM trendsia)

{in billions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
AUM at period end, hy product type:
Equity securifies $ 390 % 379 $ 337 0§ 270 § 460
Money markel 328 332 357 402 296
Fixed incorue secyrities 437 342 302 163 218
Alternative investoients and overlay 108 119 119 B8 147
Total AUM $1,260  §1,172  SL1ES  $ 928 $1,121
AUM at period end, by client type:
Ingtitutional % 787 0§ 639 0§ 611 3 445 % 671
Mutual fands 427 454 416 400 348
Private client 76 79 88 §3 101
Total AUM $1,260  $1,172  $L,115  § 93 $1,121
Changes in market value of AUM in the Investment Management business:
Beginning balance market value of AUM 1,172 $1,115  § 928  $1,121  § 142
Nat inflows {outflows):
Long-tenm 83 45 [{5)] (43) as)
Money market, {14 (13) (49) 92 70
Total ned inflows (outllows) 6% 30 (55) 49 55
Net market/cowency inpact 19 27 03 {235) (&)
Acquisilions/divestitares - - 147 7 929
Ending balaice market value of AUM %1,266  $1,172 31115 § 928  $1.12]

(a) Excludes securities lending cash management assels.

1§ BNY Mellon
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Results of Operations (continued)

Business description

Our Investment Management business is comprised of
our affiliated investment management boutiques and
wealth management business.

Our Investment Management business is responsible,
through various subsidiaries, for U.S. and non-U.S.
retail, infermediary and institutional investment
management, distribution and related services. The
investment management boutiques offer a broad range
of equity, fixed income, cash and alternative/overlay
products. In addition to the investment subsidiaries,
this business includes BNY Mellon Asset
Management International, which is responsible for
the investment management and distribution of
non-U.S. produets, and the Dreyfus Corporation and
itg affiliates, which are responsible for U.S.
investment management and distribution of retail
mutual funds, separate accounts and annuities. We are
one of the world’ s largest asset managess with. a
top-10 position in both the United States and Europe
and 11th position globally.

Through BNY Mellon Wealth Management, we offer
a full array of investment management, wealth and
estate planning and private banking solutions to help
clients protect, grow and transfer their wealth through
an extensive network of offices in the U.S., Canada,
UK and Asta. Clients include high-net-worth
individuals and families, charitable gifl programs,
endowments and foundations and related entities.
BNY Mellon Wealth Management is vauked as the
nation s seventh largest wealth manager and third
largest private bank.

The results of the Investment Management business
are driven by the period-end, average level and mix of
assets managed and the level of activity in client
accounts. The overall level of AUM for a given period
is determined by:

¢ the beginning Jevel of AUM,;

o the net flows of new assets during the period
resulting from new business wins and existing
client enrichments, reduced by the loss of clients
and withdrawals; and

¢ the impact of market price appreciation or
depreciation, the impact of any acquisitions or
divestitures and foreign exchange rates.

The mix of AUM is determined principally by client
asset sllocation decisions among equities, fixed
income, alternative investments and overlay, and
money market products.

Managed equity assets typically generate higher
percentage fees than money market and fixed-income
assets. Also, actively managed assets typically
generate higher management fees than indexed or
passively managed assets of the same fype.

Management fees are typically subject to fee
schedules based on the overall level of assets managed
for a single client or by individual asset class and
style. This is most prevalent for institutional assets
where amounts we manage for individual clients are
typically large.

A key driver of organic growth in investment
management and performance fees is the amount of
net new AUM flows. Overall market conditions are
also key drivers, with a significant long-term
economic driver being the growth of global financial
assets,

Performance fees are generally calculated as a
percentage of a portfolio’s pexformance in excess of a
benchmark imdex or a peer group’s performance.

Results for this business are also impacted by sales of
fec-based products. Net interest revenue is determined
by loan and deposit volumes and the interest rate
spread between customer rates and. internal funds
transfer rates on loans and deposits. Expenses in this
business are mainly deiven by staffing costs,
incentives and distribution and servicing expense.

Review of financial results

Tnvestment management and performance fees are
dependent on the overall level and mix of AUM and
the management fees expressed in basis points (one-
hundredth of one percent) charged for managing those
assets. Assets under management were $1.26 trillion
at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with $1.17 teillion at

Dec. 31, 2010, an increase of 8%. The increase
primarily reflects net new business and higher market
values, offset in pait by short-term. outflows.

Net Jong-term inflows were $83 billion and benefited
from strength in fixed income and equity-indexed
praducts, Net short-term outflows were $14 billion in
2011

Revenue generated in the Investment Management
business includes 42% from non-U.S. sources in 2011

compared with 40% in 2010.

In 2011, Investment Management had pre-tax income
of $723 million compared with $743 million . 2010.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Fixcluding amortization of intangible assets, pre-tax
income was $937 million in 2011 compared with $980
million in 2010. Investment Management results for
2011 reflect the impact of net new business in the
investment management boutiques and the wealth
management business, the adverse impact of the low
interest rate environment, and lower performance fees.

Investment management and performance fees in the
Investment Management business were $3.1 billion in
2011 compared with $3.0 billion in 2010. The
increase was driven by net new business and higher
average equity markets, largely offset by higher
money market fee waivers and lower non-U. 5.
markets and performance fees.

Tn 2011, 35% of invesiment management and
‘performance fees were generated from managed
mutual fund fees. These fees are based on the daily
average net assets of each fund and the management
fee paid by that fund. Managed mutual fund fee
revenne was $1.1 billion in both 2011 and 2010.
Managed nutual fund fees were impacted by net new
business and higher average equity markets in the
U.S., primarily offset by higher money market fee
waivers.

Distibution and servicing fees were $181 million in
2011 compared with $201 million in 2010. The
decrease primarily reflects higher money market fee
waivers.

Other fee revenue was $31 million in 2011 compared
with $80 million in 2010. The decrease primarily
resulted from a $30 million write-down of an equity
investment, mark-to-market seed capital losses and
lower securities gains.

200 BNY Mellon

Net interest revenne was $206 million i 2011,
comparad with $205 million in 2010, The increase
primarily resulted from bigher average deposits and
loans, largely offset by fhe inmpact of fow interest
rates. Average deposits increased 23% in 2011
compared with 2010 while average loans increased
8% i 2011 compared with 2010.

Noninterest expense exchuling amortization of
intangible assets was $2.53 billion in 2011 and $2.46
billion in 2010. The increase was primarily driven by
higher distribution and servicing and staff expenses,
primarily resulting from net new business.

2010 compared with 2009

Income before taxes was $743 million in 2010,
compared with $567 million in 2009, Tocome before
taxes excluding amortization of intangible assets and
support agreement charges was $980 million in 2010
compared with $83 1 million in 2009. Fee and other
revenue increased $409 million, primarily reflecting
improved market values, the full-year impact of the
Insight acquisition, higher performance fees, net new
business and a higher value of seed capital
investments. Investment management results also
include $12 million of securities pains in 2010 and
$76 million of securities losses in 2009. The increase
in fee and other revenue was partially offset by ligher
fee waivers and short-term outflows. Noninterest
expense (excluding amortization of intangible assets)
increased $221 million in 2010 compared with 2009
primarily due to higher incentives expense resulting
from an increase in performance fees, as well as the
impact of adjusting compensation to market levels,
and the full-year impact of the Insight acquisition.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Investmant Services business
2011 2010
(dollar amauntys in reillions, vs, vs.
wnless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Reveme:
Investment services fees:
Asset servicing 4 3586 § 2954 3 2461 21% 20%
lssuer sexvices 1,446 1,460 1,403 (1) -
(Clearing services 1,149 993 948 16 5
Treasury services 532 526 S15 1 2
Total investinent services fees 6,713 5,933 5,387 13 10
Foreigt exchange and other trading revenue 840 882 1,059 {5} n
Qther (a) 404 364 441 11 (17)
Total fae and other revenue (e} 7957 7,179 0,887 11 4
Net imterest revenue 2,635 2,448 2,349 8 4
Total revenue 10,592 9,627 9.236 10 4
Noninterest expense (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 7266 6,333 5,740 15 10
Income before taxes (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 3326 3,294 3,496 1 (6)
Amorlization of intangible assels 232 182 161 16 13
[ncome before taxes % 3334 0% 3112 0§ 3335 -~ (e
Pre-tax operating margin 29% 32% 36%
Pre-tax operating margin (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 31% 34% 8%
Tovestinent services fees as a percentage of noninterest expense (b} 9590 94% 939
Securities lending revenue % 46 0§ 07 8% 222 365 (32)%
Metrics:
Average loans $ 23,298 $ 17,006 9 13,754 36% 24 %
Average deposits 168,115 127,066 120,494 32 5
Asset gervieing:
New hasiness wins (AUC) {in billions) & 1,219 $ 1450 ¢ 1,197
Corporate Trust:
Total debt serviced (in rillions) 4 118 §& 120 3 120 (2)9% -
Numbex of deals adnimistered 133,850 138,007 142442 3)% (3)%
Depositary Receipts:
Number of sponsored programs 1,389 1,359 1,330 2% 2%
Clearing sarvices:
DARTS volume (in thousends) 197.5 1833 3230 8%  (18)%
Average active clearing accounts (in thousareds) 5,427 4,901 4,995 11% (2)%
Average tong-term montual fund assets (U.S. platform) (in millicns) $292,252 3240396 3$190,524 22% 20%
Average margin loans (in millions) $ 7347 % 5891 § 4,320 25% 36%
Broker- Dealer:
Average collateral managemeont balances (i billions) & 1,865 § 1,647 0§ 1559 13% 6%
Treasury services:
Global payments wansaction volume (in thousands) 43,649 42,733 42,252 2% 1%
(a} Total fee and other revenue includes investment manag esent fees and distyibution and seyvicing revenue.
(b) Newuimerest expense excludes amoriization of imtangilile assels, support agreernent charges anid litigation expense.
Assets under custody and administration trend
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Market valtie of AUC at period end (in trilfions) (o} $25.8  $25.0  $223 8202 $231
Market value of secorilies on loan al period end (in billions) (b) $ 269 § 278 % 247 $ 326 $ 633

(aj Includes the assets uader ensiody or administration of CIBC Mellon Global Securities Sevvicey Company, a joint veatuye with the

Canadian Jmperial Rank of Commerce, of $1.1 trillion ai botit Dec. 31, 2011 and Dec. 31, 2010, $905 biltion at Dec. 31, 2009, $697

bitlion at Dec. 31, 2008, and $989 billion at Dec. 31, 2007 .
(b} Represents the 1otal amownt of securities on loan, both cash and nen-cash, managed by the Investment Services business.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Business description

Our Investment Services business provides global
custody and refated services, broker-dealer services,
alternative investment services, corporate frust and
depositary receipt, as well as clearing services and
global payment/working capital solutions to
institutional clients.

Our comprehensive suite of financial solutions
includes: global custody, global fund services,
securities lending, investment manager outsourcing,
performance and risk analytics, alternative jinvestment
services, securities clearance, collateral management,
corporate trust, American and global depositary
receipt programs, cash management solutions,
payment sexvices, liquidity services and other
revenues, principally foreign exchange, global
clearing and execution, managed account services and
global prime brokerage solutions. Our clients include
corporations, public funds and government agencies,
foundations and endowments; global financial
institutions including baunks, broker-dealers, asset
managers, insurance companies and central banks;
financial mtermediaries and independent registered
investment advisors and hedge fund managers. We
help our clients service their financial assets through a
network of offices and operations centers in 36
countries across six continents.

The results of this business ate driven by a number of
factors which fuclude: the level of transaction activity;
the range of services provided, inchuding custody,
accounting, fund administration, daily valuations,
performance measurement and risk analytics,
securities lending, and nvestment manager back-
office outsowrcing; and the market value of assets
under administration and custody. Market interest
rates impact both securities lending revenue and the
carnings on client deposit balances. Business expenses
are driven by staff, technology investment, equipment
and space required to support the services provided by
the business and the cost of execution and clearance
and custody of securities.

We are one of the leading global securities servicing
providers with a total of $25.8 tritlion of assets under
custody and administration at Dec. 31, 2011

We are the largest custodian for U.S. corporate and
public pension plans and we service 44% of the top 50
endowments. We are a leading custodian in the UK
and service 25% of UK peusions. Huropean asset
servicing continues to grow across all products,
reflecting significant cross-border investment and
capital flows.

22 BNY Mellon

We are one of the largest providers of fund services in
the world, servicing over $6.5 trillion in agsets, We
are the third largest fund administrator in the
alternative investment services industry and service
44% of the funds in the U.S. exchange-traded funds
marketplace.

BNY Mellon is a leader in both global securities and
U.8. Government securities clearance. We clear and
settle equity and fixed income transactions in over 100
markets and handle most of the transactions cleared
through the Federal Reserve Bank of New York for 17
of the 21 primary dealers. We are an industry leader in
collateral management, servicing $£1.8 trillion as a
clearing bank in tri-party balances worldwide at

Dec. 31, 2011

In connection with ourrole as a clearing and custody
hank for the wri-party repurchase (“repo”) transaction
market, we work with dealers who use repos to
tinance their securities by selling them to
counterparties, agreeing to buy them back at a later
date. In tri-party repos, a clearing and custody bank
such as The Bank of New York Mellon acts as the
intermediary between a dealer and its counterparty in
settling the transaction and providing mark-to-market
and other services.

Tn securities lending, we are one of the largest lenders
of U.S. Treasury securities and depositary receipts and
service a lending pool of more than $3.0 willion in 31
markets. We are one of the largest global providers of
performance and risk analytics, with $9.7 trillion in
assets under measurement.

BNY Mellon is the leading provider of corporate trust
services for all major conventional and structared
finance debt categories, and a leading provider of
specialty services. We service $11.8 trillion in
outstanding debt from 61 locations in 20 countries.

We serve as depositary for 1,389 sponsored American
and global depositary receipt programs at Dec. 31,
2011, acting in partnership with leading companies
from 65 countries — a 62% global markel share.

With a network of more than 2,000 correspondent
financial institutions, we help clients in their efforts to
optimize cash flow, manage liquidity and make
payments more efficiently around the world in more
than 100 currencies. We are the fourth largest Fedwire
and CHIPS payment processor, processing about
170,000 global payments daily totaling an average of
$1.5 trillion.

Pershing, our clearing service, takes a consoliative
approach, working with more than 1.500 financial
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Results of Operations (continued)

organizations and 100,000 investment professionals
who collectively represent more than five and a half
million individual and institutional investors by
delivering dependable operational support; robust
trading services; flexible technology; an expansive
array of investment solutions, including managed
accounts, mutual fonds and cash management;
practice management support and service excellence.

Sale of Shareowner Services

On Dec. 31, 2011, BNY Melon sold its Shateowner
Services business. See “Key 2011 events™ for
additional information.

Role of BNY Mellon, as a trustee, for mortgage-
backed securitizations

BNY Mellon acts as trustee and document custodian
for certain mortgage-backed security (“MBS”)
securitization trusts. The role of trustee for MBS
securilizations is limited; our primary role as trustee is
to calculate and distribute monthly bond payments to
bondholders. As a document custodian, we hold the
mortgage, note, and related documents provided to us
by the loan originator or seller and provide periodic
reporting to these parties. BNY Mellon, either as
document custodian or trustee, does not receive
morigage underwriting files (the files that contain
information. related to the creditworthiness of the
borrower). As trustee or custodian, we have no
responsibility or liability for the quality of the
portfolio; we are liable only for performance of the
limited duties as described above and set forlh in the
trust docament. BNY Mellon is indemnified by the
servicers or divectly from trust assets under the
governing agreements. BN'Y Mellon may appear as
the named plaintiff in legal actions brought by
servicers in foreclosure and other related proceedings
hecause the trustee is the nominee owner of the
morigage loans within the trusts.

Review of financial results

Assets under custody and administration at Dec. 31,
2011 were $25.8 trillion, an increase of 3% from
$25.0 trillion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase was
driven by net new business. Equity securities
constituted 339% and fixed-income securities
constituted 67% of the assets under custody and
administration at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with 32%
equity securities and 68% fixed income securitics at
Dec. 31, 2010. Assets under custody and
administration at Dec. 31, 2011 consisted of assets
related to custody, mutual funds and corporate trust

businesses of $20.5 trillion, broker-dealer service
assets of $3.4 trillion, and all other assets of $1.9
trillion.

Income before taxes was $3.1 billion in both 2011 and
2010. Income before taxes, excluding amortization of
intangible assets, was $3.3 billion in both 2011 and
2010, Investment Services results in 2011 were
primarily impacied by the full-year impact of the
Acquisitions, netnew business, higher money market
fee waivers, as well as higher volume-driven expenses
and expense incurred to support business prowth.

Revenue generated in the Tnvestment Services
business includes 37% from non-U.8. sources in both
2011 and 2010.

Investment services fees increased $780 million, or
13%, in 2011 compared with 2010

» Asset servicing revenue (global custody, broker-
dealer services and alternative investment
services) was $3.6 billion in 2011 compared
with $3.0 biltion in 2010. The increase was
primarily driven by the full-year impact of the
Acquisitions, higher market values of AUC, net
new business and higher securities lending
revenue due to wider spreads, partially offset by
tower volumes.

o Issuer services revenue (Corporate Trust,
Depositary Receipts and Shareowner Services)
was $1.4 billion in 2011 compared with $1.5
billion in 2010. The decrease primarily resulted
from lower revenue in our Shareowner Services
and Corporate Trust businesses, primarily offset
by higher Depositary Receipts revenue driven by
higher corporate action fees and net new
busiess.

s Clearing services revenue (Pershing) was §1.1
billion in 2011 compared with $1.0 billion in
2010. The increase reflects the full-year impact
of the GIS acquisition, net new business, growth
in mutual fund assets and positions and an 8%
increase in DARTS, partially offset by higher
money market fee waivers.

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue decreased
$42 miltion compared with 2010, primarily reflecting

Jower volatility and spreads, partially offset by higher

volumes.

Net interest revenue increased $ {87 million compared
with 2010, primarily driven by higher average
customer deposits and Joan levels, offset in part by
narrower spreads.
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Results of Operations (continuad)

Noninterest expense, excluding amortization of
intangible assets, increased $933 million compared
with 2010. The increase in expenses primarily resulted
from the full-year impact of the Acquisitions, highet
Jitigation and volume-driven expenses and increased
expenses in support of business growth.

2010 compared wiih 2009

Income before taxes was $3.1 billion in 2010,
compared with $3.3 billion in 2009. Income before
taxes, excluding amortization of intangible assets, was
$3.3 billion in 2010 compared with §3.5 billion in
2009. Fee and other revenue increased $292 million,
primarily due to the impact of the Acquisitions, higher
market values of AUC and net new business, partially
offset by lower foreign exchange trading volatility,
lower money market related distribution fees and
Jower trading volumes. Net interest revenue increased
$99 million, primarily driven higher yields related to
restructured investment securities portfolio and
increased loan and deposit balances. Noninterest
expense, excluding amortization of intangible assets,
increased $593 million, primarily due to the impact of
the Acquisitions, higher volume-driven expenses and
expenses supporting business growth.

Other Segment
(dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Revenue;
Fee and othet revenue $ 475 % 478 $(4.973
Net interest yevepue 143 272 324
Total revenne 618 750 (4,649)
Provision For creditlosses . 8 331
MNoninterest expense {eX.
amortization of intangible
assets, restruciuning
charges and M
expenses) 706 793 746
Tncome {loss) before 1axes
(ex. amortization of
mtangible assets,
restructuring charges
and M&I expenses) (88) (51) (5,726)
Amortization of infangible
agsets 2 2 1
Restroctyring charges 89 28 150
M&1 expenses 91 139 233
Income {10ss) before
taxes $ (2707 % 220y 5(6,110)
Average assels $46,648  $40,420  §37.098
Average deposils $ 4451 $4,132 37300

24 BNY Melion

Business description
The Other segment primarily includes:

e credit-related services;
the leasing portfolio;

+ corpotate treasury activities, including our
investment securities porifolio;

o our equity investment in Wing Hang Bank;

e a33.2% equity interest in. Converghix; and
business exits and corporate overhead.

Revenue primarily reflects:

® net interest revenue from the credit services and
lease financing portfolios;

¢ interest income remaining after transfer pricing
allocations;

¢ fee and other revenue from corporate and bank-
owned life insurance and credit-related financing
revenue; and

e gains (losses) associated with the valuation of

coaty
i35,

menrmitioe and atha
G CUWIRT asse

vestment securiiies am
Expenses include:

s M&] expenses;

restructuring charges;

s direct expenses supporting credit-related
services, leasing, investing and funding
activities; and

e certain corporate overthead not directly

L

attributable to the operations of other businesses.

Equiry stake in ConvergEx Group

On Dec. 23, 2011, the previously-announced
agreement to sell a majority of our equity stake in
ConvergBx Group was terminated.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes was a loss of $270 million in
2011 compared with aloss of $220 million in 2010.

Total fee and other revenue decreased $3 million in
2011 compared with 2010. The decrease primarily
reflects lower leasing gains, financing related fees,
private equity investment gains and the impact of
wider credit spreads on the CVA in 2011, partially
offset by gains related to loans held-for-sale from a
previously divested bank subsidiary
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Results of Operations (continued)

Net intercst revenue decreased $129 million in 2011
compared with 2010, primarily reflecting a reduction
in the net interest margin resulting from the continued
impact of the low interest rate environment as well as
lower average loan and lease balances resulting from
our strategy to reduce targeted risk exposure,

Nouinterest expense (excluding amortization of
intangible assets, restructuring charges and Mé&I
expenses) decreased $87 million in 2011 compared
with 2010. The decrease was driven by lower
litigation expense and the impact of state investment
tax credits in 2011,

2010 compared with 2009

Income before taxes was a loss of $220 million in
2010 compared with a loss of $6.1 billion in 2009,
Total fee and other revenue increased $5.5 billion,
primarily due to net securities losses related to the
restructored investment securities portfolio recorded
ia 2009. Net interest revenue decreased $52 million,
primarily reflecting our strategy to reduce targeted
risk exposure. The provision for credit losses
decreased $323 million in 2010 reflecting a decline in
criticized assets and improvements in the nsurance,
media and residential mortgage portfolios. Noninterest
expense excluding amortization of intangible assets,
restructuring charges and M&I expenses increased
$47 million in 2010 compared with 2009 as a result of
higher litigation expenses, partially offset by a special
BDIC assessment recorded in 2009, as well as lower
legal costs and consulting fees. M&I expenses related
to the Acquisitions and the 2007 Merger were $139
million in 2010 compared with $233 million in 2009,
primarily related to the 2007 Merger.

International opetations

Our primary international activities consist of
securities services and global payment services in our
investment services business, and asset management
in our mvestment management business.

Our clients include some of the world’s largest asset
managers, nsurance conLpanies, corporations,
financial intermediaries, local authorities and pension
funds. Through our global network of offices, we have
developed a deep understanding of local tequirements
and. cultural needs and we pride ourselves in providing
dedicated service through our multilingual sales,
marketing and client service teams.

We contduct business through subsidiaries, branches,
and representative offices in 36 countries. We have

operational centers based in Brussels, Cork, Dublin,
Navan, Wexford, Luxembourg, Singapore, Wroclaw,
throughout the United Kingdom including London,
Manchester, Brentwood, FEdinburgh and Poole, and
Chennai and Pune in India.

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had approximately 9,000
employees in Furope, the Middle Hast and Adrica
(“EMEA™), approximately 8,000 employees in the
Asia-Pacific region (“APAC’") and approsimately 700
employees in other global locations, primarily Brazil

At Dec. 31, 2011, our cross-border assets under
custody and administration were $9.7 willion
compared with $9.2 trillion at Dee. 31, 2010. This
increase was primarily driven by net new business.

In Europe, we maintain a significant presence in the
Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Scourities Directives (“UCITS™)
servicing field, In Treland, BN'Y Mellon is the largest
administrator of third-party assets and largest provider
of trustee services. In Luxembourg, BNY Melon is a
top 10-ranked fund administrator. We provide global
clearance services in more than 100 markets and
service $1.8 trillion in daily tri-party balances
spanning 40 markets.

The acquisition of GIS and BAS in 2010 expanded
our investment services business worldwide. GIS
enhariced our managed account platform, performance
reporting capabilities and business intelligence tools
for broker-dealer and registered investment advisor
clients. BAS offers a full range of tailored solutions
for investment companies, financial institutions and
institational investors in Germany.

We serve as the depositary for 1,389 sponsored
American and global depositary receipt programs,
acting in partuership with leading companies from 65
countries. As the world’s leading provider of
corporate trust and agency services, BNY Mellon
services $11.8 trillion in outstanding debt from 61
{ocations, in 20 countries, for clients including
governments and their agencies, multi-national
corporations, financial institutions and other entities
that access the global debt markets. We leverage our
global footprint and expertise to deliver customized
and market-driven solutions across a full range of debt
issuer and related investor services.

BNY Mellon Asset Management operates on 4 multi-
boutique model, bringing investors the skills of our
specialist boutique assel managers, which together
manage investments spanning virtually all asset
classes.
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Results of Operations (continued)

We are one of the largest global asset managers,
ranking 11th in the mstitutional marketplace and are
the 8ih largest asset manager active in Europe. We are
also a market leader iy the field of liability-driven
myvestments.

At Dec. 31, 2011, ow interpational operations
managed 38% of BNY Mellon’s AUM, compared
with 34% at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase primarily
resulted from net long-texm inflows in fixed income
products and improved market values.

We process 170,000 global payments daily, totaling
an average of $1.5 trillion. With payment services
provided in more than 100 cutrencies through more
than 2,000 correspondent bank accounts worldwide,
we are a recognized leader in receivables and payables
processing.

We bave over 50 years of experience providing trade
and cash services to financial institutions and central
banks outside of the UJ.S. In addition, we offer a broad
range of servicing and fiduciary products to financial
institations, corporations aud central banks depending
oi the state of market development. In emerging
markets, we lead with global payments and issuer
services, infroducing other products as the markets
mature. For more established markets, our focus is on
global, not local, investment services.

We are also a full-service global provider of foreign
exchange services, actively tading in over 80 of the
world’s currencies. We serve clients from ten trading
rooms in furope, Asia and North America.

Our financial results, as well as our level of AUM and
AUC, are impacted by the translation of financial
results denominated in foreign currencies to the U.S.
dollar. We are primarily impacted by activities
denominated in the British pound and the Euro. If the
.S dollar depreciates against these currencies, the
translation impact is a higher level of fee revenue, net
interest revenue, noninterest expense and AUM and
AUC. Conversely, if the U.S. dollar appreciates, the
translated levels of fee revenue, net interest tevenue,
noninterest expense and AUM and AUC will be
lower.

Foreign exchange rates for
one U.S, dollar

2011 2010 2009
Spotrate (at Dec. 31k
British pound $1.5448  $1.9545  §1.61%4
Furo 1.2934 1.3373 1.4348
Yearly average rate:
British pound $1.6038  $1.3457  $1.5659
Eure 1.3021 1.3270 1.3946
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International clients accounted for 37% of revenue in
2011 compared with 36% in 2010 and 53% in 2009.
Income from mternational operations was $1.5 billion
in 2011 compared with income from continuing
operations of $1.5 billion in 2010 and $1.1 billion in
2009.

In 2011, revenues from EMEA were $3.8 billion,
compared with $3.5 billion in 2010 and §2.8 billion in
2009. Revenues from EMEA were up 8% for 2011
compared to 2010, The increase in 2011 primarily
retlects the full-year impact of the Acquisitions,
higher market values and net new business, partially
offset by lower volumes, lower performance fees and
a write-dowi of an equity investroent in the fourth
quarter of 2011. Investment Services generated 72%
and Investment Management generated 28% of
EMIEA yevenues. Income from continuing operations
from EMEA was $8367 million in 2011 compared with
$916 million in 2010 and $667 million in 2009.

Revenues from APAC were $842 million in 2011
compared with $745 million in 2010 and $669 million
in 2009. Revenues from APAC were up 13% for 2011
compared to 2010, The increase in 2011 primarily
resulied from higher net interest yevenue and net new
business. Revenue from APAC in 2011 was generated
by Investment Services 67% and Investment
Management 27%. Income from continuing
operations from APAC was $325 million in 2011
compared with $295 million in 2010 and $222 million
in 2009,

Net income in EMEA reflects the same factors
affecting revenue, which were more than offset by
higher expenses, including higher visk expenses as
well as a credit loss incurred 1n the second quarter.
Net income in APAC was driven by the same factors
affecting revenue. For additional information
regarding our International operations, see Note 27 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Faxposure in Ireland, Italy, Spain and Portugal

The following table presents our on- and off-balance
sheet exposure in Ireland, Italy, Spain, and Portugal at
Dec. 31, 2011. We have provided expanded disclosure
on these countries as they have experienced particular
market focus on aredit quality and are countries
experiencing economic concerns. Where appropriate,
we are offsetring the risk associated with the gross
exposure in these countries with collateral that has
been pledged, which primarily consists of cash or
marketable securities, or by transferring the risk to a
third~party guarantor in another country.
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Fesults of Operations (continued)

RNY Mellon has a Hmited cconomic interest in the At Dec. 31,2011, BNY Mellon had no exposure to
performance of assets of consolidated nvestment Greece and no sovereign exposure to the countries
management funds, therefore they are excluded from disclosed below.

this presentation. The labilities of consolidated

investment management funds represent the interest of Our exposure to Ireland is principally related to Irish
the note holders of the funds and are solely dependent domiciled investment funds. Servicing provided to
on the value of the assets. Any loss in the value of these funds and fund families may result in overdraft
assets of consolidated investment management funds exposure.

would be incurred by the fund’s note holders.
See “Risk management” for additional information on
how our expostres are managed.

Exposure in the table below reflects the country of operations and risk of the immediate counterparty.

On- and off-balance sheet exposuore at Dec, 31, 2011

(in millions) Ireland Italy  Spain  Portugal Total
On-balance sheet exposure
{iross:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks (a) $ 97 § M $ 4 $- $ 125
Investment secuzities (primarily Buropean Floating Rate Notes) (b} 208 155 27 - 390
Loans and leases (¢) 411 3 4 : 418
Trading assets (d) 117 53 16 3 189
Total gross on-balance sheet exposure 833 238 51 3 1,122
Less:
Collaterad 102 39 7 3 151
Cinartantees - 3 1 - 4
Total collateral and guarantogs 102 42 8 3 155
Tolal net on-balance sheet exposuse § 731 $193 $43 §- $ 957
Off-balance sheet exposure
Cross:
Lending-related commitnents (g) $ 213§ - $ - $- § 273
Letters of credit (9 2 14 - 16
Total gross off-balance sheet, exposure 273 2 14 - 289
Less:
Collateral 190 - 14 - 204
Total net off-balance sheel exposuie & 83 § 2 $ - & - $ 85
Total exposare:
Total gross on- and off-balance sheel exposure $1,106 $237 $65 $3 $1411
[.ess: Total collateral and gnarantees 242 42 22 3 359
Total nel on- and off-balance sheet exposure $ 814 8195 $43 3. $1,052

(a) Interest-bearing deposits with benks represent o $96 miliion placement with an Irish subsidiary of a UK holding company and $29
million of rostre accounts related to our eusiady business.

(b} Represents $364 million, fair value, of residential mortgage-hacked secuvities, of which 97% were invesiment grade, $23 million, fair
value, of investment grade asset-backed CLOs, and $3 miliion, fair vatue, of money market find investments located in Ireland,

(¢) Loans and leases inchade $335 rillion of overdrafts primarily to Irish domiciled investment funds resulting from our custody business,
@ §65 million commercial lease fullv-collateralized by U.S. Treasuries, $15 million of, financial institution laans, which were
collateralized by marketable securities and $4 miliion of leases w0 airline marmfacturing companies which are under joint and several
guarantee arvorigements, with gnoranters outside af the Burozona. There is no impairment associated with these loans and leases,

(d) Trading assets reprosent over-the-counter mark-to-markel on foreign exchange receivables, net of muster netting agreements. Trading
assets include $117 million of foreign exchange trading receivables due from trish domiciled investment funds and $72 million 1o
financial institutions in ltaiy, Spain and Portugal. Cash cotlateral on the trading assets totaled $22 million in Ireland, $39 nillion in
iy, $7 million in Spain and $3 million in Portugal.

(1) Lending-reloled comuilments vepresanl $100 millian 1o an asset mapoger fully-collaievalized lry marketable securities, and $173
million to an insurance company, collateratized by $90 million of markeiabie securities.

() Represents @ $14 willion leiter of cvedit extended to an insurance company in Spain fully-collateralized by marketable securities.
Exposure in Ity vepresents a 52 million letter of credii extended 1o a financial institution.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Cross-border tisk

Foreign assets are subject to general risks attendant to
the conduct of business in each foreign country,
including economic uncertamties and each foreign
government's regulations. In addition, our foreign
assets may be affected by changes in demand or
pricing resulting from fluctuations in currency

exchange rates or other factors. Cross-border

outstandings include loans, acceptances, mterest-

bearing deposits with other banks, other

interest-bearing investments, and other monetary

asscts which are denominated in UJ.S. dollars or other
non-local currency. Also included are local currency
outstandings not hedged or funded by local

borrowings.

"I'he table below shows our cross-border outstandings for the last three years where cross-border exposure exceeds
1.00% of total assets (denoted with *“*7) or 0.75% of total asscts (denoted with “*=7).

Cross-border outstandings Bauks and
other Commercial, Total
financial Public indusirial  cross-bovder
{in millions) institutions (a) secior and other outstandings (D)
2011:
Japan# 54,703 $ 15 $ 16 $4,734
Australia® 4,418 . 239 4,657
rermany™ 4,062 - 464 4.526
Uiited Kingdom* 3369 25 713 4,107
France® 1,341 7 117 3.465
Netherlandg®* 2,079 - 905 {(¢) 2,984
2010:
Germany® 37,007 15 $ 312 $7,334
Franca* 6,109 20 124 6,233
Netherlands* 4,338 - 1,205 (c) 5,543
Austalia * 2,663 275 2,938
Switzealand * 2,839 - 30 2,369
Belgium® 2411 184 2,595
Japan™* 2,261 7 2,268
United Kingdom *% 533 1411 1,944
Hong Kong ** 1,908 - 18 1,926
2009:
France® §6,5319 % 56 $1,307 $7,8%2
Germany*® 5,328 75 156 5,936
Nethenands* 2,765 - 1312 (¢) 4,077
Spain* 3903 133 4,036
Belgium® 3,162 377 169 3,738
United Kingdom® 2,850 . 613 34063
lapan®* 1,809 - 7 1,816
Ireland®* 932 1 895 (c) 1,828

(a) Primarily short-term interest-bearing deposits with banks.
(D) Excludes assely of consolidaied investment management JSiends.
(¢} Primarily Ewropcan floating rate notes.
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Resuits of Operations (continuad)

Emerging markets exposure
L

We deterniine our emerging markets exposures using
the MSCI Bmerging Markets (EM) IMI Index. Our
mncro ging markets exposures totaled $8 billion at Dec.

2011 wmpmed with $5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010.
The increase in emerging markets exposure was
primarily driven by higher short-term loans and
mmreat-beamg deposus with banks.

Critical accounting estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in
Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements under “Summary of significant accounting
and reporting policies”. Our more critical accounting
estimates are those related to the allowance for loan
losses and allowance for lending-related
commitments, fair value of financial instruments and
derivatives, other-than-temporary impaiment,
goodwill and other intangibles, and peansion
accounting. Further information on policies related to

<1 Lo Ton «
the allowance for loan losses and allowance for

lending-related commitments can be found under
“Summary of significant accounting and reporting
policies” in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated
Tiinancial Statements. Purther information on the
valuation of derivatives and securities where quoted
market prices are not available can be found under
“Fair value measurement” in Note 22 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Further
information on policies related to goodwill and
intang ible assets can be found in “Goodwill and
intangible assets” in Note 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Additional
information on pensions can be found in “Hmployee
benefit plans™ in Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Allowance for loan losses and allowance for
lending-related commitments

The allowance for loan losses and allowance for
lendin g~related commitments represents
management’s estimate of probable losses inherent in
our credit portfolio. This evaluation process is subject
to numerous estimates and judgments.

In 2011, we implemented an enhanced methodology
for determining the allowance for credit losses by
adding a qualitative allowance framework. Within this
framework, management applies judgment when
assessing internal risk factors and environmental
factors Lo compute an additional allowance for each
component of the loan portfolio.

The three elements of the allowance for loan losses
and the allowance for lending-related commitments
include the qualitative allowance framework. The
three elements are:

s an allowance for impaired credits of $1 miflion
or greater;

e an allowance for higher risk-rated credits and
pass-rated credits; and

o an allowance for residential mortgage loans.

Qur lending is primarily to institutional customers, As
a result, owr Loans are generally larger than §1 million.
Therefore, the first element, impaired credits, is based
on individual analysis of all impaired loans of $1
million or greater. The allowance is measured by the
difference between the recorded value of impaired
foans and their impaired value. Impaired value is
either the present value of the expected futwe cash
flows from the borrower, the market value of the loan,
or the fair value of the collateral.

nd element, higher risk-rafed credits and
pass-rated credits, is hasud on our probable loss
model. All borrowers are assigned to pools based on
their credit ratings. The probable loss inherent in each
loan in a pool incorporates the borrower’s credit
rating, loss given default rating and matarity. The loss
given detault incorporates a recovery expectation. The
borrower’s probability of default is devived from the
associated credit rating. Borrower ratings are
reviewed at least annually and are periodically
mapped to third-party databases, including rating
agency and default and recovery datahasea, to ensure
ongoing consistency and Vahdxt} Higher risk-rated
credits are reviewed quarterly. Commercial loans over
$1 million are individually analyzed before being
assigned a credit vating. We also apply this technique
to our lease tinancing and wealth management
portfolios.

The second element

The third element, the allowance for residential
mortgage loans, is determined by segregating six
mortgage pools into delmquencv periods ranging from
current through foreclosure. Each of these
delinquency periods is assigned a probability of
default. A specific loss given default based ona
combination of external loss data from third-party
databases and internal loss history is assigned for each
morigage pool. For each pool, the inherent loss is
calculated using the above factors. The resulting
probable loss factor is applied against the loan balance
1o determine the allowance held for each pool.
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Results of Operations (continued)

The qualitative framework is used to determine an
addjtional allowance for each portfolio based on the
factors below:

Internal risk factors:

Non-performing loans to total non-margin loans;
Criticized assets to total loans and lending-
related commiiments;

e Ratings volatility;

¢ Borrower concentration; and
Significant concentration in high risk industry.

Linvironmental risk factors:

s 11.S. non-investment grade default rate;
o  Unemployment rate; and
s Change iu real GDP.

The allocation of the prior period allowance for loan
losses and allowance for lending-related commitments
has been restated to reflect the implementation. of the

vinlitatiz o all 'y, . §
Guaave allowance frames vork.

To the extent actual results differ from forecasts or
management’s judgment, the allowance for credit
losses may be greater or less than future charge-offs.

The credit rating assigned to each crediiis a
significant variable in determining the allowance. If
each credit were rated one grade better, the allowance
would have decreased by $68 million, while if cach
credit were rated one grade worse, the allowance
would have increased by $109 million. Similarly, if
the loss given default were one rating worse, the
allowance would have increased by 845 million, while
ifthe loss given default were one rating better, the
allowance would have decreased by $42 miltion. For
impaired credits, if the net carrying value of the loans
was 10% higher or lower, the allowance would have
decreased or ncreased by $2 mitlion, respectively.

Fair value of financial Instruments

The guidance related to Fair Value Measurement
inchided in Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC™) 820 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and cxpands

disclosures about assets and liabilities measured at fair

value. The standard also established a three-level
hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valnation of an asset or
Liability as of the measurerent date.

30 BNY Mellon

Fair value - Securities

Level 1 - Securities — Recent quoted prices from
exchange transactions are used for debt and equity
securities that are actively traded on exchanges and
for U.S. Treasury securities and U8, Government
securities that are actively traded in highly liquid
over-the-counter markets.

Level 2 - Securities ~ For securities where quotes
from recent transactions are not available for identical
securities, we determine fair value primarily based on
pricing sources with rcasonable levels of price
transparency. The pricing sources employ financial
models or obtain comparisons to similar instruments
1o arrive at “consensus” prices.

Specifically, the pricing sources obtain recent
transactions for similar types of securities (e.g.,
vintage, position in the securitization structure) and
asceriain variables such as discomut rate and speed of
prepayment for the type of ansaction and apply such
variables to similar types of bonds. We view these as
observable transactions in the current market place
and classify such securities as Level 2,

o addition, we have significaut investments in more
actively traded agency RMBS and other types of
securities sach as FDIC-insured debt and sovereign
debt. The pricing sousces derive the prices for these
securities largely from quotes they obtain from three
major inter-dealer brokers. The pricing sources
receive their daily observed trade price and other
information feeds from the inter-dealer brokers.

For securities with bond insurance, the financial
strength of the insurance provider is analyzed and that
information is included in the fair value assessment
for such securities.

The pricing sources discontinue pricing any specific
security whenever they determine there is insufficient
observable data to provide a good faith opinion on
price. The pricing sources did not discontinue pricing
for any securities in our investment securities
portfolio at Dec. 31, 201 1.

BNY Mellon obtains prices for its Level 1 and Level 2
securities from multiple pricing sources. We have
designed controls to develop an understanding of the
pricing sources’ securities pricing methodology and
have implemented specific internal controls over the
valuation of securities.
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As appropriate, we review the quality control
procedures and pricing methodologies used by the
pricing sources, inclading the process for obtlaining
prices provided by the pricing sources, their valuation
methodology and controls for each class of secwity.

Prices received from pricing sources are subject (o
validation checks that help determine the
completeness and accuracy of the prices. These
validation checks are reviewed by management and,
based on the results, may be subject to additional
review and investigation. We also review securities
with. no price changes (stale prices) and securities with
zero or 100% values.

BNY Mellon has a surveillance process in place to
monitor the accuracy of prices provided by the pricing
sources. We utilize a hierarchy that compates security
prices obtained from multiple pricing sources against
established thresholds. Discrepancies that fall outside
of these thresholds are challenged with the pricing
services and adjusted if necessary.

If further rescarch is required, we review and validate
these prices with the pricing sources. We also validate
prices from pricing sources by comparing prices
received to actual observed prices from actions such
as purchases and sales, when possible.

Level 3 - Securities ~ Where we have used ow own
cash flow models and estimates to value securities, we
classify them in Level 3 of the ASC 820 hierarchy.
More than 99% of our securifies are valued by pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transparency.
Yess than 1% of our securities are priced based on
economic models and non-binding dealer quotes, and
are included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

See Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for details of our securities by ASC 820
hierarchy level.

Fair value - Derivarive financial instruments

Level I — Derivative financial instruments ~ Includes
derivative financial instraments that are actively
traded oun exchanges, principally foreign exchange
futures and forward contracts.

Level 2 — Derivative financial instruments — Includes
the majority of onr derivative financial msiruments
priced using internally developed models that use
observable inputs for interest rates, pay-downs (both
actual and expected), foreign exchange rates, option
volatilities and other factors. The valuation process

takes into consideration factors such as counterparty
credit quality, liquidity and concentration concerns.

Level 3 — Derivative financial instruments — Certain
nterest rate devivatives that are highly structured
reqoire significant judgment and analysis to adjust the
value determined by standard pricing models. These
interest rate derivatives are included in Level 3 of the
ASC 820 hierarchy and comprise less than 1% of our
derivaiive financial instruments at fair value.

To test the appropriateness of the valnations, we
subject the models to review and approval by an
independent internal visk management function,
henchmark the models against similar instruments and
validate model estimates to actual cash transactions.
In addition, we perform defailed reviews and analyses
of profit and loss. Valuation adjusiments are
determined and controlled by a function independent
of the area initiating the risk position. As markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain products
becomes more transparent, we refine our valuation
methods. Any changes to the valuation niodels are
reviewed by management to ensure the changes are
justified.

To confirm that our valuation policies are consistent
with exit prices as prescribed by ASC 820, we
reviewed our derivative valuations using recent
transactions in the marketplace, pricing services and
the results of similar types of transactions. As aresult
of maximizing observable inputs as required by ASC
820, we reflect external credit ratings as well as
observable credit default swap spreads for both
ourselves as well as omr counterpariies when
measuring the fair value of our derivative positions.
Accordingly, the valuation of our derivative positions
is sensitive to the current changes in our own credit
spreads, as well as those of owr counterparties.

For details of our derivative financial instruments by
ASC 820 hierarchy Jevel, see Note 22 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fair value option

ASC 825 provides the option to elect fair value as an
alternative measurement basis for selected financial
assets, financial Habilities, wrecognized firm
commitments and written loan commitments which
are not subject to fair value under other accounting
standards. Under ASC 825, fair value is used for both
the initial and subsequent measurement of the
designated assets, liabilities and commitments, with
the changes in fair value recognized in income. See
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Note 23 of the Notes to Consolidated Pinancial
Statements for additional disclosure regarding the fair
value option,

Fairvalue -- Judgments

In times of illiquid markets and financial stress, aciual
prices and valuations may significantly diverge from
results predicted by models. In addition, other factors
can affect onr estimate of fair value, including market
dislocations, incorrect model assumptions, and
unexpected correlations. These valuation methods
could expose us to materially different results should
the models used or underlying assumptions be
inaccurate. See “Basis of presentation” in Note 1 to
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other-than-temporary impairment

The guidance included in ASC 320 defines the other-
than-temporary impairment (“OTTI") model for
investments in debt securities. Under this guidance, a
debl security is considered impaired if its fair value 1s
less than its amortized cost basis. An OTTLis
triggered if (1) the intent is to sell the security, (2) the
security will more likely than not have to be sold
before the impairment is recovered, or (3) the
amortized cost basis is not expected to be recovered.
When an entity does not intend to sell the security
before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize the
credit component of an OTTI of a debt security in
earnings and the remaining portion in accumulated
other comprehensive ncome.

The determination of whether a credit loss exists s
based on best estimates of the present value of cash
flows to be collected from the debt security.
Generally, cash flows are discounted at the effective
interest rate implicit in the debt security at the time of
acquisition. For debt securities that are beneficial
interests in securitized financial assets and are not
high credit quality, ASC 325 provides that cash flows
be discounted at the current yield used to accrete the
beneficial interest,

For each security in the investment securities portfolio
(including but not limited to those whose fair value 13
less than their amortized cost basis), an extensive,
regular review is conducted 1o determine if an OTTI
has occurred. Por-example, to determine if an
unrealized loss on non-agency RMBS is other-than-
temporary, we project total estimated defaults of the
underlying assets (morigages) and multiply that
calculated amount by an estimate of realizable value
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upon sale of these assets in the marketplace (severity)
in order to determine the projected collateral loss. We
also evaluate the current credit enhancement
underlying the bond to determine the impact on cash
flows. If we determine that a given RMBS will be
subject to a write-down or loss, we record the
expected credit loss as a charge to earnings.

During 2011, the housing market continued to remain
unstable. As a result, we adjusted our non-agency
RMBS estimated default and loss severity
assumptions to increase estimated defaults and
decreased the amount we expect to receive to cover
the value of the original loan. See Note § of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for projected
weighted-average default rates and loss severities for
the 2007, 2006 and late-2005 non-agency RMBS an
Grantor Trust portfolies at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010. 1f
actual delinguencies, default rates and loss severity
assumptions worsen, we would expect additional
impairment losses to be recorded in future periods.

Net securities gains in 2011 were $48 million.
compared with $27 million in 2010.

If we were to increase or decrease each of our loss
severity and projected default rates by 100 basis
points on each of the positions in our Alt-A, subprime
and prime RMRBS portfolios including the securities
previously held by the Grautor Trast we established in
connection with the restructuring of our investment
securities portfolio in 2009, credit-related impairment
charges on these securities would have increased by
$10 million (pre-tax) or decreased by $9 million (pre-
tax) at Dee. 31, 2011,

Goodwill and other intangibles

We initially record all assets and liabilitics acquired in
purchase acquisitions, including goodwill, indefinite-
lived intangibles and other intangibles, in accordance
with ASC 805 Business Combinations. GGoodwill,
ndefinite-lived intangibles and other intangibles are
subsequently accounted for in accordance with ASC
330 Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. The itial
measurenment of goodwill and intangibles requires
judgment concerning estimates of the fair value of the
acquired assets and labilities. Goodwill ($17.9 billion
at Dec. 31, 2011) and indefinite-fived intangible assets
($2.7 billion at Dec. 31, 2011) are not amortized but
subject to tests for impairment annually or more often
if events or circumstances indicate it is more likely
than not they may be impaired. Other intangible assets
are amortized over their estimated useful lives and are
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subject to impairment if events or circumstances
indicate a possible inability to realize the carrying
amount.

BNY Metlon’s three business segments include seven
reporting units for which annual goodwill impairment
testing is done in accordance with ASC 350. The
Tnvestment Management segment is comprised of two
reporting units; the Investment Services segment is
comprised of four reporting units; and one reporting
unit is included in the Other segment.

The goodwill impairment test is performed in two
steps. The first step compares the estimated fair value
of the reporting unit with its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill
of the reporting unit is considered not impaired.
However, if the carrying amount of the reporting unit
were to exceed its estimated tair value, a second step
would be performed that would compare the implied
fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the
carrying amount of that goodwill. An impairment loss
would be recorded to the extent that the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its iraplied fair value. A
substantial goodwill inapairment charge would not
have a significant impact on our financial condition,
but could have an adverse impact on our results of
operations. [n addition, due to regulatory testrictions,
the Company’s subsidiary banks could be restricted
from distributing available cash to the Parent resulting
in the Parent needing to issue additional long-terim
debt.

In the second quarter of 2011, we performed our
annual goodwill test. The estimated fair values of each
of these reporting units exceeded its carrying amount
by at least 20% at that time.

GAAP also requires that an inferim test be done
whenever events or circumstances oceuy that may
indicate that it is more likely than not that the fai
value of any reporting unit might be less than its
carrying value. The broad decline of stock prices
throughout the U.S. stock market in the second half of
2011 also impacted the Company’s stock price, which
declined below the Company’s net hook value per
share. As a result of this sustained decline in the
second half of 2011, the Company performed an
interim goodwill test during the fourth quarter of
2011,

Yor thig interim test, the fair value of each of the
Company’s reporting units was estimated by the

Company with the assistance of a third-party
valuation specialist. Fair value was estimated using an
income approach, based on discounted cash flows
and, where appropriate, a markel approach. Since
public company multiples are on a marketable
minority interest basis, we adjusted them in the
impairment test to reflect the control rights and
privileges in atriving at a multiple that reflects an
approptiate control premium. Fair value of each of the
Company’s reporting units reflected a control
premium of 35% to 40%.

Estimated cash Flows used in the income approach
were based on management’s most recent projections
available as of Oct. 31, 2011. The discount taies used
under the income approach were based on the capital
asset pricing model. The discount rate applied to
estimated cash flows ranged from 10% 1o 12% and
incorporated a 6% market equity risk premium,
forward assumptions for risk-free rates, and other
relevant assumptions. Bstimated cash flows extend far
into the future and, by their nature, are difficult to
estimate over such an extended time-frame. Factors
that may significantly affect the estimates include,
among others, stock market price impacts affecting
the market values of assets we manage, the effects of
regulatory and legislative changes, increases to the
cost of equity., specific industry or market sector
conditions, competitive forces, customer behaviors
and attiition, changes in revenne growth trends, cost
stractures and iechnology, and changes n interest
rates.

The market approach used by the Company was
primarily based on the “Guideline Public Company
Method™, which generally reflects publicly available
information for comparable businesses, and
incorporated earnings multiples from comparable
publicly-traded companies in industries similar to that
of the respective reporting unit. When appropriate,
comparable multiples were selected based on the
expected profitability of the reporting unit among
other factors.

The fair value of each reporting unit exceeded its
carrying value as of the date of the interim test. The
fair values of six of the Company’s reporting units
were substantially in excess of the respective
reporting vnit’s carrying value. The Asset
Management reporting unit, with $7.7 billion of
allocated goodwill, which is one of the two reposting
undis in the Investiment Management segment,
exceeded ifs carrying value by approximately 10:%.
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The fair value of the Asset Management reporting unit
was estimated using both an income approach and a
market approach. The Company estimated cash flows
based on a compound anpual operating income
arowth rate of approximately 16% through 2016 and
4.5% thexeafter, discounted at 12.0%. In addition, the
fair value of this reporting unit reflected a control
premium of 35%. Fair value estimates based ou the
two methods exceeded the camying value of the
reporting unit. For this reporting unit, in the future,
small changes in the assumptions could produce a
non-cash goodwill imparment, which would have no
effect on. our regulatory capital ratios. In addition to
the factors and assumptions previously discussed that
could affect all of the Compauy’s reporting units,
certain money market fee waiver practices and
changes in the level of assets under management
could have an effect on Asset Management broadly,
as well as the fair value of this reporting unit.

Key judgments in accounting for intangibles include
nseful life and classification between goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangibles or other intangibles

requiring amortization.

Indefinite-tived intangible assets are evaluated for
impairment at least annually by comparing their fair
values, estimated using discounted cash flow analyses,
to their carrying values. Other amortizing intangible
assets ($2.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2011} are evaluated for
impairment if events and circumstances indicate a
possible impairment. Such evaluation of other
intangible assets is initially based on undiscounted
cash flow projections.

See Notes 1 and 7 of the Notes to Consolidated
Finaucial Statements for additional information
regarding goodwill, intangible assets and the annual
and interim impairment testing.

Pension accounting

BNY Mellon has defined benefit pension plans
govering approximately 24,500 U.S. employees and
approximately 9,700 non-U.S. employees.

BNY Mellon has two qualified and several
non-qualified defined benefit pension plans in the
U.S. and several pension plans overseas. As of Dec.
31, 2011, the U.S. plans accounted for 84% of the
projected benefit obligation. The pension expense for
BNY Mellon plans was $93 million in 2011 compared
with $47 million in 2010 and a pension credit of $17
million in 2009,

34 BNY Mellon

Fiffective Jan. 1, 2011, the U.S. pension plan was
amended to reduce benefits earned by partticipants for
service after 2010, and to freeze plan participation
such that no new employees will enter the plan after
Dec. 31, 2010. This change in the pension plan
reduced pension expense by §40 million m 2011.

A net pension expense of approximately $140 million
is expected to be recorded by BNY Mellon in 2012,
assuming currency exchange rates at Dec, 31, 2011
The expected increase in pension expense in 2012 is
primarily driven by the change in plan assumptions.

A number of key assumption and measurement date
values determine pension expense. The key elements
include the long-term rate of retumn on plan assets, the
discount rate, the market-related value of plan assets
and the price used to value stock in the ESOP. Since
2009, these key elements have varied as follows:

(dollars i millions,
except per share
amaunts) 2012 2011 2019 2009

Domestic plans:
Long-term rate of
retnrn on plan
assets 7.38%  7.50% 8004  8.00%
Discount tate 4.75 R 6.21 .38
Market-related
value of plan

assets (u 53,763 33,836 $38061  $3.651
ESOP stock
price {a) %$22.96 32048 92797  $33.12
Net LS. pension
credit/(expense) Na  § G 0§ 18 § R
Al other net pension
credit{expense) N/A {39) (32) (13)
Total net pension
credir/(expense) NA 0§ (9% % @) § 17

(a) Market-related value of plan assets and BESOP stock price
are for the beginning of the plan year. See “Summary of
significant accounting and reporiing policies” in Note 1 of
the Notes to Consoliduted Financial Statements.

The discount rate tor U.S. pension plans was
determined after reviewing equivalent rates obtained
by discounting the pension plans” expected cash fows
using various high-quality, long-term corporate bond
yield curves, We also reviewed the results of several
models that matched bonds to our pension cash flows.
After reviewing the various indices and maodels, we
selected a discount. rate of 4.75% as of Dec. 31, 2011.

The discount rates for foreign pension plans are based

on high-quality corporate bond rates in. countries that
have an active corporate bond market. In those
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countries with no active corporate bond market,
discount rates are based on local government bond
rates plus a credit gpread.

Our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on anticipated returns tor each applicable asset
class. Anticipated returns are weighted for the
expected allocation for each asset class. Anticipated
returns are based on forecasts for prospective retums
in the equity and fixed income markets, which should
track the long-term historical retwms for these
markets.

We also consider the growth outlook for U.S. and
global economies, as well as current and prospective
interest rates.

The market-related value of plan assets also
influences the level of pension expense. Differences
between expected and actual returns are recognized
over five years to compute an actuarially derived
matket-related value of plan assets.

Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized
over the future service period of active employees if
they exceed a threshold amount. BNY Mellon
currently has $1.7 billion of unrecognized losses
which are being amortized.

The annual impacts of hypothetical changes in the key
elements on pension costs are shown in the table
below.

Pension egpense
(dollar amounts in
miliions, except per
share amornts)

(Decrease) in
pension expense

Increase in
pension expanse

Long-erm rate of

relum on plan assets  (100)bps (S0} bps S0 bps 100 bps
Change in pension

eRpeNse $ 44 22 $(22) $ {44)
Discount rate GO bps  (25)bps 25 bps 50 bps
Change in pension

expense $ 36 $ 17 $(16) $ (32
Matket-related value of

plan assets Q0% {(10)% 10% 20%
Change in pension

expense $ 164 $ R4 $(82) $¢161)
ESOP stock price § (10) LI E)) 55 $ 10
Change in pension

EXPENse $ 14 3 7 5 (0) 32

In addition to its pension plans, BNY Mellon has an
Bmployee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESCOP”). Benefits
payable under The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation Pension Plan ace offsct by the equivalent

value of benefits carned under the ESOP for
employees who participated in the legacy Retirement
Plan of The Bank of New York Company, Tne.

Consolidated balance sheet review

At Dec. 31, 2011, total assets were $325.3 billion
compared with $247.3 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The
increage in consolidated total assets primarily resolted
from growth in client deposits. Deposits totaled
$219.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, and $145.3 billion at
Dee. 31, 2010. At Dec. 31, 2011, total interest-bearing
deposits were 48% of total interest-earning assets,
compared with 59% at Dec. 31, 2010. Total assets
averaged $291.1 billion in 2011, compared with
$237.8 billion in 2010. The increase in average assets
primarily reflects higher client deposit levels. Total
deposits averaged $182.7 billion in 2011 and $139.4
billion in 2010.

At Dec. 31,2011, we had $40.8 billion of liquid funds
and $94.4 billion of cash (including $90.2 billion of
overnight deposits with the Federal Reserve and other
central banks) Tor a total of $135.2 billion of available
funds. This compares with available funds of §77.6
billion at Dec. 31, 2010. Our percentage of Jiquid
assets Lo 1otal assets was 42% at Dec. 31, 2011,
compared with 31% at Dec. 31, 2010, At Dec. 31,
2011, of our $40.8 billion in liquid funds, $36.3
billion were placed in interest-bearing deposits with
large, highly-rated global financial institutions with a
weighted average life to maturity of approximately 56
days. Of the $36.3 billion, $7.5 billion was placed
with banks in the Furozone.

Tavestment securities were $82.0 billion or 25% of
total assets at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $66.3
hillion or 27% of total assets at Dec. 31, 2010. The
increase primarily reflects a higher level of agency
residential mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Treasury
securities and sovereign securities, as well as an
improvement in the unrealized gain of our invesiment
secuarities portfolio.

Loans were $44.0 billion or 14% of total assets at
Dee. 31, 2011, compared with $37.8 billiont or 15% of
total assets at Dec. 31, 2010, The increase in loan
levels was primarily due to higher loans to brokes-
dealers.

Long-term debt increased to $19.9 billion at Dec. 31,
2011 from $16.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010, primarily
due to the issvance of $5.1 billion of senior medivm-
term notes, partially offset by $1.3 billion of senior
and subordinated debt that matured in 2011 and $596
million of retail medinm-term notes that were called
n 2011,
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Total sharcholders’ equity applicable to BNY Mellon
was $33.4 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 and $32.4 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in total shareholders®
equity primarily reflects earnings retention and an
improvement in the valuation of our investment
securities portfolio, offset in part by share
repurchases.

BNY Mellon, through its involvement in the
Government Securities Clearing Corporation
(*GSCC™), settles government securities transactions
on a net basis for payment and delivery through the
Fed wire system. As a vesult, at Dec. 31, 2011, the
assets and liabilities of BN'Y Mellon were reduced by
$98 million for the netting of repurchase agresments
and reverse repurchase agreement transactions
executed with the same counterparty under

standardized Master Repurchase Agreements. This
netting is performed in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation
No. 41 (ASC Topic 210-20) “Offsetting of Amounts
Related to Certain Repurchase and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements.”

Investment securities

In the discussion of our investment securities
portfolio, we have included certain credit ratings
information because the imformation indicates the
degree of credit risk 1o which we are exposed, and
significant changes in ratings classifications for our
mvestment portfolio conld indicate increased credit
risk for us and could be accompanied by a reduction

in the fair value of our investment securities portfolio.

The following table shows the distribution of our total investment securities porttolio:

Inveshment securities porifolio

) Gty v I
Dec. 31, Changglig-] Dec.31, 2011 laas‘fa‘ ,’30“(15 Ratings
2010 ypyealized Amortized Talr  amortized  Unrealized AAA/ A+l BBB+/ BB+and Not
(dollars in milliens) Fair value  gainMloss) cogl  value cosl (@) gain/(loss) AA- A- BBB- lower raled
Watch list: (b)
Enropean floating rate notes (¢j  $ 4,636 $ 84 $ 3372 % 3,025 89 $(347) T % 23% 6% -G -Gy
Mon-agency RMBS 2,577 (59 2,130 1,730 76 (3500 21 15 12 52
Other 331 (%) 246 264 34 18 3 1 22 23 S1
Total Watch list (b} 7,544 20 5748 5,069 7% (679) 5G9 8 20 3
Agency RMBS 20,157 226 26,890 27,493 102 603 100 " -
ULS, Treasury securities 12,635 387 17,627 17,999 102 372 100 “
Sovereign debt/sovereign
guarantesd (d) 8,585 108 11,724 11,881 101 157 100 - - - -
Mon-agency RMBS re) 4,496 (401) 3,002 3,179 64 177 1 1 2 96 -
Commercial MBS 2,281 12 2,935 3,003 105 68 a4 14 2 -
State and political subdivisions 629 62 2787 2,806 101 19 7619 3 - 2
Foreign covered bonds (f) 2,868 31 2,410 2,425 101 15 99 1 . -
FDIC-insured debt 2474 (34 1,100 1,112 101 12 100 - - - -
ClLO - (23} 1,258 1,233 98 (25) 96 4 - - -
1.8, Government agency debt 1.008 28 932 958 103 20 1GO - - - -
Credit cards 517 (1) 393 397 101 4 16 &4 - B -
Other 3,178 27 4,139 4,183 101 44 38 30 4 -
Total investment. securities $66,369 () $ 440 $80,945 $81.738(g) 101% $793(g) 89% S% 1% 5% -G
(e} Amortized cost before impairments,
(B) The “Watch list” inchedes those securitivs we view as having a higher visk of impaivment charges,
() Includes RMBS, commercial MBS and other securities. See puge 37 for axposure By country.

{d)

Primarily comprised of exposure to United Kingdom. France, Germany and Netherlands.

(¢) These RMBS were included in the former Granter Trust and werve marked-to-market in 2009. We believe these RMBS would receive
highey cradit rofings if these ratings incorporated, as additional credit enkancement, the differance between the written-down
amaortized cost and the curvent face amourt of each of these securitias,

(i Primarily comprised of exposure to Germany and Canada.
(g

Includes net unreclized gains on devivatives hedging securitics available-for-sale of $60 million gt Dec. 31, 2020 and net unrealized

losses on devivatives hedging secuvities ovailoble~for-sale of $209 million at Dec. 31, 2011.
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The fair value of our investment securities portfolio
was $81.7 billion. at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with
$66.4 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in the fair
value of the investment securities porttolio primarily
reflects a higher level of agency residential mortgage-
backed securities, U.S. Treasury securities and
sovereign securities, commensurate with our growth
in deposits, as well as an increase in the unrealized
gain of the securities portfolio. In 2011, we received
$1.3 billion of paydowns and sold $480 million of
sub-investment grade securities.

At Dec. 31, 2011, the total investment securities
portfolio had an unrealized pre-tax gain of $793
million compared with $353 million at Dec. 31, 2010.
The unrealized net of tax gain on our lavestment
securities available-for-sale portfolio included in
accumaulated other comprehensive income was $417
milfion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $151 million
atDec. 31, 2010. The improvement in the valuation of
the investment securities portfolio was driven by
improved valnations of agency RMBS and U.S.
Treasory securities, partially offset by declines in
valuations of certain non-agency residential mortgage-
backed securities.

In 2009, we established a Grantor Trust in comnection
with. the restructuring of our investment securities
portfolio. The Grantor Trust has been dissolved. The
securities held in the former Grantor Trust are
included in our investiment securities portfolio and
were marked down to approximately 60% of face
value in 2009. At Dec. 31, 2011, these securities were
trading above adjusted amortized cost with a total
umnrealized pre-tax gain of $177 million compared
with $578 million at Dec. 31, 2010,

At Dec. 31, 2011, 89% of the securities in our
portfolio were rated AAA/AA-, compared with 87%
at Dec. 31, 2010.

We routinely test our investment securities tor O'TTL
(See “Critical accountiog estimates” for additional
disclosure regarding OTTL)

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had $1.2 billion of accretable
discount related to the restructuring of the mvestment
securities portfolio. The discount related to these
transactions had a remaining average Jife of
approximately 3.9 years. The accretion of discount
related to these securities increases net interest
revenue and is recorded on a level yield basis. The
discount accretion totaled $391 million in 2011 and
$458 million in 2010,

Also, at Dec. 31, 2011, we had $1.7 billion of net
amortizable purchase premium relating to mvestment
securities with a remaining average life of
approximately 4.1 years. For these securities, the
amortization of net preminm decreased net interest
revenue and is recorded on a level yield basis, We
recorded net premivm amortization of $294 million in
2011 and $242 million in 2010.

The following table provides pre-tax securities gains
(losses) by type.

Net securities gains (fosses)

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
U.8. Treasury $ 77 $ 18 4 -
Agency RMBS 8 15 -
All-A RMBS 36 (13) (3,113)
Prime RMBS (1) (1,008)
Subprime RMBS (21 (43 {322)
Furopean floating rate notes 39 (33 (269)
Sovereign debt 36 - .
Home equity lines of credit - - (205)
Commercial MBS - - (8%9)
Grantor Trust - - (39
Credit cards - - (26)
ABS CDOs - - {23)
Other 24 17 (275)
Total net securities gaing
(losses} $48  $21 35,369

At Dec. 31, 2011, the investment securities portfolio
includes $95 million of assets not accruing interest.
These securities are held at market value.

The following table shows the fair value of the
Buropean floating rate notes by geographical location
at Dec. 31, 2011, The unrealized loss on these
securities was $347 million at Dec. 31, 2011, a
decrease of 19% compared with $431 million at
Dec. 31, 2010.

European floating rate notes at Dec. 31, 2011 (4)

Total
fair
(in millions) RMBS  Other value
United Kingdom 31,225  $259  $1484
Netherlands 731 47 798
Ireland 182 3 205
Italy 155 - 155
Luxembourg - 140 140
Aunstralia 101 - 101
Germany - 101 101
Spain 27 - 27
France 4q 10 1¢l
Total 2,445 8580 §3,025

(a) 71% of these securities are in the AAA to AA- ratings

category.
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See Note 22 of the Notes to Conscolidated Financial
Statements for the detail of securities by level in the
fair value hierarchy.

Equity investments

We also have equity investiments categorized as other
assets. Included in other assets are (parenthetical
amounts indicate carrying values at Dec. 31, 2011):
joint ventures and other equity investments (§1.6
billion), seed capital ($48 million), Federal Reserve
Bank stock ($429 million), private equity investments
($122 million), and tax advantaged low-income
housing investments ($477 million). For additional
information on the fair value of owr private equity
investments and seed capital, see Note 22 of the Notes
to Consolidaled Financial Statements.

Our equity investment in Wing Hang Bank Limited
(“Wing Hang™), which is located in Hong Kong, had a
fair value of $499 million (book value of $399
million) based on its share price at Dec, 31, 2011, An
agreement with certain other shareholders of Wing
Hang prohibits the sale of this interest without thelr
permission. In 2011, we elected to receive a stock
dividend from Wing Hang with a value of $12 million

(or 1.1 million shares). In 2010 and 2009, we received
cash dividends from Wing Hang of $6 million and $2
million, respectively.

Private equity activities consist of investments in
private equity finds, mezzanine financings, and direct
equity investments. Consistent with our policy to
focus on our core activities, we continue to reduce our
exposure to these activities. The carrying and fair
value of our private equity investments was $122
million at Dec. 31, 2011, down $21 million from $143
miltion at Dec. 31, 2010, AtDec. 31, 2011, private
equity investments consisted of investments in private
equity funds of $115 million, direct equity of less than
$1 million, and leveraged bond fonds of §7 million,
Investment income was $18 million in 2011,

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had $22 million of unfunded
mvestment conmitments to private equity funds. If
unused, the commitments expire between 2012 and
2015

Comumnitments to private equity limited partaerships
may extend beyond the expiration period shown
above to cover certain follow-on investments, claims
and liabilities, and organizational and partnership
axpenses.

Loans
‘I'otal exposure — consolidated Dec, 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010
Unfonded Total Unfonded Total
(in billions) Loans  commibments exposure .oans Commtments exposure
Non-margin loans:
Financial institutions $11.1 $15.5 $266 %93 $15.8 $25.1
Commercial 1.3 16.3 176 1.6 18.8 20.4
Subtotal institutional 12.4 318 44.2 10.9 34.6 455
Wealth management loans and morigages 7.3 1.5 8.8 6.5 1.8 8.3
Copamercial real estate 1.5 15 30 1.6 1.6 32
I.eage financing 2.6 - 2.6 3.1 0.1 3.2
Other residential mortgages 1.9 - 1.9 2.1 - 2.1
Overdrafts 4.8 - 4.8 6.0 - 6.0
Other 0.7 - 0.7 0.8 - 0.8
Subtotal non-margin loms 31.2 348 66.0 31.0 38.1 69,1
Margin loans 12.8 0.7 13.8 6.8 - 6.8
Total $44.0 $35.5 $79.5 $37.8 $38.1 $75.9

At Dec. 31, 2011, total exposures were $79.5 billion,
an increase of 5% from $75.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2010,
This increase primarily reflects higher secured term
Loans to broker-dealers in the margin loans portfolio
and higher other margin loans, partially offset by
lower commercial exposure, overdrafis and lease
financing exposure.
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Our financial ipstitations and commercial portfolios
comprise our largest concentrated risk. These
portfolios make up 56% of our tolal lending exposure.
Additionally, a substantial portion of our overdrafts
refate to financial nstitutions and commercial
customers.
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